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Lei\e SEC

Ivf MARIS2009
March 18 2009

DearStockholder Washington DC 20549

You are cordially invited to attend the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Moodys Corporation to be

held on Tuesday April 28 2009 at 930 a.m EST at the Companys offices at World Trade Center at 250

Greenwich Street New York New York

The Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement accompanying this letter describe the business to be

acted upon at the meeting The Annual Report for the year ended December 31 2008 is also enclosed

We are pleased to be using the U.S Securities and Exchange Conmiission rule that allows companies to

furnish proxy materials to their stockholders over the Internet We believe that this process should expedite

stockholders receipt of proxy materials lower the costs of our annual meeting and help to conserve natural

resources Accordingly on March 18 2009 we mailed to many of our stockholders Notice of Internet

Availability of Proxy Materials the Notice containing instructions on how to access our 2009 Proxy
Statement and 2008 Annual Report and vote online The Notice included instructions on how to request paper

or e-mail copy of the proxy materials including the Notice of Annual Meeting Proxy Statement Annual Report
and proxy card or voting instruction card Stockholders who requested paper copies of the proxy materials or

previously elected to receive the proxy materials electronically did not receive Notice and will receive the

proxy materials in the format requested

Your vote is important Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting we encourage you to review

the proxy materials and hope you will vote as soon as possible You may vote by proxy over the Internet or by

telephone by using the instructions provided in the Notice Alternatively if you requested and received paper

copies of the proxy materials by mail you can also vote by mail by following the instructions on the proxy card

or voting instruction card Voting over the Internet by telephone or by written proxy or voting instruction card

will ensure your representation at the annual meeting regardless of whether you attend in person Instructions

regarding the three methods of voting are contained in the Notice or proxy card or voting instruction card

Sincerely

Raymond McDaniel Jr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



MOODYS CORPORATION
World Trade Center

250 Greenwich Street

New York New York 10007

NOTICE OF 2009 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Our Stockholders

The 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Moodys Corporation will be held on Tuesday April 28
2009 at 930 a.m EST at the Companys offices at World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich Street New York
New York for the following purposes all as more fully described in the accompanying Proxy Statement

To elect three Class II directors of the Company to each serve three-year term

To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of the

Company for the year 2009

To vote on two stockholder proposals if properly presented at the meeting and

To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting

The Board of Directors of the Company has fixed the close of business on March 2009 as the record date

for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting

By Order of the Board of Directors

Jane Clark

Corporate Secretary

March 18 2009

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held on April 28 2009 The Proxy Statement and the Companys 2008 Annual Report
to Stockholders are available at httpllmaterials.proxyvote.com/615369 Your vote is very important
Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting we hope you will vote as soon as possible You may
vote your shares via toll-free telephone number or over the Internet as instructed in the Notice of

Internet Availability of Proxy Materials Alternatively if you received paper copy of proxy or voting

instruction card by mail you may submit your proxy or voting instruction card for the annual meeting by

completing signing dating and returning your proxy or voting instruction card in the pre-addressed

envelope provided No postage is required if mailed in the United States If you attend the meeting you

may vote in person even if you have previously returned your proxy or voting instruction card or voted by

telephone or the Internet
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PROXY STATEMENT

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
OF MOODYS CORPORATION

General

This Proxy Statement is being furnished to the holders of the common stock par value $.0l per share the
Common Stock of Moodys Corporation Moody or the Company in connection with the solicitation

of proxies by the Board of Directors of the Company the Board of Directors or the Board for use in voting

at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders or any adjournment or postponement thereof the Annual Meeting The

Annual Meeting will be held on Tuesday April 28 2009 at 930 a.m EST at the Companys principal executive

offices located at World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich Street New York New York 10007 To obtain

directions to attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person please contact the Companys Investor Relations

Department by sending an email to ir@moodys.com This Proxy Statement and the accompanying proxy card are

first being made available to stockholders on or about March 18 2009 Moodys telephone number is 212 553-

0300

Annual Meeting Admission

Stockholders will need an admission ticket to enter the Annual Meeting For stockholders of record an

admission ticket is attached to the proxy card which is available over the Internet or if you requested paper

copies you will receive printed proxy card If you plan to attend the Annual Meeting in person please retain

the admission ticket

If
your

shares are held in the name of bank broker or other holder of record and you plan to attend the

Annual Meeting in person you may obtain an admission ticket in advance by sending written request along

with proof of share ownership such as bank or brokerage account statement to the Corporate Secretary of the

Company at World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich Street New York New York 10007 Stockholders who do

not have admission tickets will be admitted following verification of ownership at the door

Internet Availability of Proxy Materials

Under rules recently adopted by the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC we are

furnishing proxy materials to our stockholders primarily via the Internet instead of mailing printed copies of

those materials to stockholders On March 18 2009 we mailed to our stockholders other than those who

previously requested e-mail or paper delivery Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials the Notice
containing instructions on how to access and review our proxy materials including this Proxy Statement and the

Companys Annual Report These materials are available at http//materials.proxyvote.com1615369 The Notice

also instructs you on how to access your proxy card to vote through the Internet or by telephone

This
process is designed to expedite stockholders receipt of proxy materials lower the cost of the Annual

Meeting and help conserve natural resources If you received Notice by mail you will not receive printed

copy of the proxy materials unless you request one If you would prefer to receive printed proxy materials please

follow the instructions included in the Notice If you have previously elected to receive our proxy materials

electronically you will continue to receive these materials via e-mail unless you elect otherwise

Record Date

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 2009 as the record date the Record

Date for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting As of the

close of business on the Record Date there were 235311912 shares of Common Stock outstanding Each holder

of Common Stock entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be entitled to one vote per share



How to Vote

In addition to voting in person at the Annual Meeting stockholders of record can vote by proxy by

following the instructions in the Notice and using the Internet or by calling the toll-free telephone number that is

available on the Internet Alternatively stockholders of record who requested paper copy of the proxy

materials can vote by proxy by mailing their signed proxy cards The telephone and Internet voting procedures

are designed to authenticate stockholders identities to allow stockholders to give their voting instructions and to

confirm that stockholders instructions have been recorded properly

If your
shares are held in the name of bank broker or other holder of record you may receive Notice

from the holder of record containing instructions that you must follow in order for your shares to be voted

Certain of these institutions offer telephone and Internet voting If you received the proxy materials in paper

form the materials include voting instruction card so you can instruct the holder of record how to vote your

shares

Special Voting Procedures for Certain Current and Former Employees

Many current and former employees of the Company have share balances in the Moodys Common Stock

Fund of the Moodys Corporation Profit Participation Plan the Profit Participation Plan The voting

procedures described above do not apply to these share balances Instead any proxy given by such an employee

or former employee will serve as voting instruction for the trustee of the Profit Participation Plan as well as

proxy for any shares registered in that persons own name including shares acquired under the Moodys

Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan and/or pursuant to restricted stock awards To allow sufficient time

for voting by the trustee Profit Participation Plan voting instructions must be received by April 24 2009 If

voting instructions have not been received by that date the trustee will vote those Profit Participation Plan shares

in the same proportion as the Profit Participation Plan shares for which it has received instructions except as

otherwise required by law

Quorum and Voting Requirements

The holders of majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote at the Annual

Meeting whether present in person or represented by proxy will constitute quorum for the transaction of

business at the Annual Meeting If quorum is not present at the Annual Meeting the stockholders present may

adjourn the Annual Meeting from time to time without notice other than by announcement at the meeting until

quorum is present or represented At any such adjourned meeting at which quorum is present or represented

any
business may be transacted that might have been transacted at the original meeting Abstentions and broker

non-votes will be counted for purposes of determining whether quorum is present at the Annual Meeting

broker non-vote occurs when nominee holding shares for beneficial owner does not vote on particular

proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary voting power for that particular matter and has not

received instructions from the beneficial owner

Pursuant to the Companys by-laws each nominee for director is required to receive majority of the votes

cast with respect to such nominee in order to be elected at the Annual Meeting majority of the votes cast

means that the number of shares voted for director must exceed the number of votes cast against that

director Abstentions have no effect on the election of directors Any director subject to election at the Annual

Meeting who fails to receive majority of the votes cast was required in accordance with the Companys

Director Resignation Policy to tender his resignation for consideration by the Board of Directors following

review and recommendation from the Governance and Compensation Committee in accordance with such

policy

The affirmative vote of the majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to

vote at the Annual Meeting is required to ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the independent registered

public accounting firm of the Company for the year ending December 31 2009 If stockholder abstains from

voting or directs the stockholders proxy to abstain from voting on the matter the shares are considered present



at the meeting for such matter but since they are not affirmative votes for the matter they will have the same

effect as votes against the matter

The affirmative vote of the majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to

vote at the Annual Meeting is required to adopt the stockholder proposals set forth in this Proxy Statement

Please bear in mind that the adoption of the stockholder proposals included in this Proxy Statement at the Annual

Meeting would serve only as recommendation to the Board of Directors to take the actions requested by the

proponents If stockholder abstains from voting or directs the stockholders proxy to abstain from voting on

these matters the shares are considered present at the meeting for such matters but since they are not affirmative

votes for these matters they will have the same effect as votes against these matters On the other hand shares

resulting in broker non-votes if any while present at the meeting are not entitled to vote for such matters and

will have no effect on the outcome of the vote

Proxies

The proxy provides that you may specify that your shares of Common Stock be voted For Against or

Abstain from voting with respect to the director nominees and the other proposals The Board of Directors

recommends that you vote For each of the three director nominees named in this Proxy Statement For the

ratification of the selection of the independent registered public accounting firm and Against the stockholder

proposals All shares of Common Stock represented by properly executed proxies received prior to or at the

Annual Meeting and not revoked will be voted in accordance with the instructions indicated in such proxies

Properly executed proxies that do not contain voting instructions will be voted in accordance with the

recommendations of the Board of Directors

It is not expected that any matter other than those referred to herein will be brought before the Annual

Meeting If however other matters are properly presented the persons named as proxies will vote in accordance

with their best judgment with respect to such matters

Any stockholder of record who votes by telephone or the Internet or who executes and returns proxy may
revoke such proxy or change such vote at any time before it is voted at the Annual Meeting by filing with the

Corporate Secretary of the Company at World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich Street New York New York

10007 written notice of such revocation ii casting new vote by telephone or the Internet or by submitting

another proxy that is properly signed and bears later date or iiiattending the Annual Meeting and voting in

person stockholder whose shares are owned beneficially through bank broker or other nominee should

contact that entity to change or revoke previously given proxy

Proxies are being solicited hereby on behalf of the Board of Directors The cost of the proxy solicitation will

be borne by the Company although stockholders who vote by telephone or the Internet may incur telephone or

Internet access charges In addition to solicitation by mail directors officers and employees of the Company

may solicit proxies personally or by telephone telecopy e-mail or otherwise Such directors officers and

employees will not be specifically compensated for such services The Company has retained Georgeson

Shareholder Communications Inc to assist with the solicitation of proxies for fee not to exceed approximately

$15500 plus reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses Arrangements may also be made with custodians

nominees and fiduciaries to forward proxy solicitation materials to the beneficial owners of shares of Common
Stock held of record by such custodians nominees and fiduciaries and the Company may reimburse such

custodians nominees and fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in connection

therewith

Delivery of Documents to Stockholders Sharing an Address

If you are the beneficial owner but not the record holder of the Companys shares your broker bank or

other nominee may seek to reduce duplicate mailings by delivering only one copy of the Companys Proxy

Statement and Annual Report or Notice as applicable to multiple stockholders who share an address unless that



nominee has received contrary instructions from one or more of the stockholders The Company will deliver

promptly upon written or oral request separate copy of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report or Notice as

applicable to stockholder at shared address to which single copy of the documents was delivered

stockholder who wishes to receive separate copy of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report or Notice as

applicable now or in the future should submit his request to the Company by sending an e-mail to

ir@moodys.com or by submitting written request to the Companys Investor Relations Department at World

Trade Center at 250 Greenwich Street New York New York 10007 Beneficial owners sharing an address who

are receiving multiple copies of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report or Notice as applicable and wish to

receive single copy of such materials in the future should contact their broker bank or other nominee to request

that only single copy of each document be mailed to all stockholders at the shared address in the future Please

note that if you wish to receive paper proxy materials for the 2009 Annual Meeting you should follow the

instructions contained in the Notice

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In order to address evolving best practices and new regulatory requirements the Board of Directors annually

reviews its corporate governance practices and the charters for its standing committees As result of this review

during 2008 the Board amended the Companys Corporate Governance Principles and the charters of its

Governance and Compensation Committee and its Audit Committee copy of the Corporate Governance

Principles is available on the Companys website at www.moodys.com under the headings Shareholder

RelationsCorporate GovernanceDocuments Charters Copies of the charter of the Governance and

Compensation Committee and the charter of the Audit Committee Charter are available on the Companys

website at www.moodys.com under the headings Shareholder RelationsCorporate Governance

Documents Charters Print copies of the Corporate Governance Principles and the committee charters may

also be obtained upon request addressed to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at World Trade Center at

250 Greenwich Street New York New York 10007 The Audit Committee and the Governance and

Compensation Committee assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities as described below

Board Meetings and Committees

During 2008 the Board of Directors met ten times and had three standing committees an Audit Committee

Governance and Compensation Committee which also performs the functions of nominating committee and

an International Business Development Committee All directors attended at least 83 percent of the total number

of meetings of the Board and of all committees of the Board on which they served in 2008 The function of the

International Business Development Committee is to evaluate possible opportunities outside of the United States

and to recommend to the Board areas for development The members of the International Business Development

Committee are Mr Kist Mr McDaniel and Mr Frederic Drevon Senior Managing DirectorEMEA of

Moodys Investors Service The International Business Development Committee met two times during 2008

Please refer to page for additional information regarding the Audit Committee and to page for additional

information regarding the Governance and Compensation Committee

Directors are expected to attend the Annual Meeting All of the individuals serving as directors at the time

of the Companys 2008 Annual Meeting attended the meeting

Recommendation of Director Candidates

The Governance and Compensation Committee will consider director candidates recommended by

stockholders of the Company In considering candidate for Board membership whether proposed by

stockholders or otherwise the Governance and Compensation Committee examines the candidates business

experience and skills independence judgment and integrity his ability to commit sufficient time and attention to

Board activities and any potential conflicts with the Companys business and interests The Governance and



Compensation Committee also seeks to achieve diversity of occupational and personal backgrounds on the

Board To have candidate considered by the Governance and Compensation Committee stockholder must

submit the recommendation in writing and must include the following information

The name of the stockholder and evidence of the persons ownership of Company stock including the

number of shares owned and the length of time of ownership and

The name of the candidate the candidates resume or listing of his qualifications to be director of

the Company and the persons consent to be named as director if selected by the Governance and

Compensation Committee and nominated by the Board

The stockholder recommendation and information described above must be sent to the Corporate Secretary

of the Company at World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich Street New York New York 10007 and must be

received by the Corporate Secretary not less than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the Companys most

recent annual meeting of stockholders For the Companys 2010 annual meeting this deadline is December 29

2009

The Governance and Compensation Committee identifies potential nominees by asking current directors and

executive officers to notify the Committee if they become aware of persons meeting the criteria described above

who might be available to serve on the Board As described above the Committee will also consider candidates

recommended by stockholders on the same basis as those recommended by current directors and executives The

Governance and Compensation Committee also from time to time may engage firms that specialize in

identifying director candidates for the Committees consideration although it did not do so in 2008

Once person has been identified by or for the Governance and Compensation Committee as potential

candidate the Committee may collect and review publicly available information regarding the person to assess

whether the person should be considered further If the Governance and Compensation Committee determines

that the candidate warrants further consideration the chairman or another member of the Committee contacts the

person Generally if the person expresses willingness to be considered and to serve on the Board the

Governance and Compensation Committee requests information from the candidate reviews the candidates

accomplishments and qualifications including in light of any other candidates whom the Committee might be

considering and conducts one or more interviews with the candidate In certain instances Committee members

may contact one or more references provided by the candidate or may contact other members of the business

community or other persons that may have greater first-hand knowledge of the candidates accomplishments

The Lead Independent Director

The Companys non-management directors routinely meet in executive session without the presence of

management directors or other members of management During 2008 the non-management directors held four

executive sessions Those sessions are presided over by Lead Independent Director whose responsibilities also

include setting the agenda for executive sessions of the non-management directors consulting with the Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer regarding agendas scheduling and information needs for Board and committee

meetings and acting as liaison between the non-management directors and management Dr McKinnell

currently serves as the Companys Lead Independent Director

Codes of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Company has adopted code of ethics that applies to its Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial

Officer and Controller or persons performing similar functions The Company has also adopted code of

business conduct and ethics that applies to the Companys directors officers and employees current copy of

each of these codes is available on the Companys website at www.moodys.com under the headings Shareholder

RelationsCorporate GovernanceDocuments Charters copy of each is also available in print to

stockholders upon request addressed to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at World Trade Center at 250

Greenwich Street New York New York 10007



The Company intends to satisfy disclosure requirements regarding any amendments to or waivers from the

codes of ethics by posting such information on the Companys website at www.moodys.com under the headings

Shareholder RelationsCorporate GovernanceDocuments Chariers

Director Independence

To assist it in making determinations of directors independence the Board has adopted independence

standards which are set forth below and are also included in the Companys Corporate Governance Principles

The Board has determined that Mr Anderson Dr Duffie Mr Glauber Mr Kist Senator Mack Dr McKinnell

Ms Newcomb and Mr Wulff and thus majority of the directors on the Board are independent under these

standards The standards adopted by the Board incorporate the director independence criteria included in the New

York Stock Exchange the NYSE listing standards as well as additional criteria established by the Board

Each of the Audit Committee and the Governance and Compensation Committee is composed entirely of

independent directors In accordance with NYSE requirements and the independence standards adopted by the

Board all members of the Audit Committee meet additional heightened independence standards applicable to

audit committee members

An independent director is director whom the Board has determined has no material relationship with

the Company or any of its consolidated subsidiaries for purposes of this section collectively referred to as the

Company either directly or as partner stockholder or officer of an organization that has relationship with

the Company For purposes
of this definition the Board has determined that director is not independent if

the director is or in the past three years has been an employee of the Company or an immediate

family member of the director is or in the past three years has been an executive officer of the

Company

the director or an immediate family member of the director is current partner of the Companys

outside auditor the director is current employee of the Companys outside auditor member

of the directors immediate family is current employee of the Companys outside auditor and

personally works on the Companys audit or the director or an immediate family member of the

director was in the past three years partner or employee of the Companys outside auditor and

personally worked on the Companys audit within that time

the director or member of the directors immediate family is or in the past three years has been an

executive officer of another company where any of the Companys present executive officers serves or

served on the compensation committee at the same time

the director or member of the directors immediate family has received during any
12-month period

in the past three years any direct compensation from the Company in excess of $120000 other than

compensation for Board service compensation received by the directors immediate family member

for service as an employee other than an executive officer of the Company and pension or other

forms of deferred compensation for prior service with the Company

the director is current executive officer or employee or member of the directors immediate family

is current executive officer of another company that makes payments to or receives payments from

the Company or during any of the last three fiscal years has made payments to or received payments

from the Company for property or services in an amount that in any single fiscal year exceeded the

greater of $1 million or 2% of the other companys consolidated gross revenues or

the director or the directors spouse is an executive officer of non-profit organization to which the

Company or the Company foundation makes or in the past three years has made contributions that in

any single fiscal year exceeded the greater of $1 million or 2% of the non-profit organizations

consolidated gross revenues Amounts that the Company foundation contributes under matching gifts

programs are not included in the contributions calculated for purposes of this standard



An immediate family member includes directors spouse parents children siblings mother and

father-in-law sons and daughters-in-law brothers and sisters-in-law and anyone other than domestic

employee who shares the directors home

In assessing independence the Board took into account that Mr Anderson Mr Glauber Mr Kist Senator Mack
Ms Newcomb and Mr Wuiff each served during 2008 or currently serves as directors of entities that are rated or

have issued securities rated by Moodys Investors Service as described in the Companys Directors and Shareholders

Affiliation Policy posted on the Companys website under the headings Shareholder RelationsCorporate

GovernanceDocuments Charters and that each such entity accounted for less than 1% of the Companys 2008

revenue The Board also took into account that Dr Duffie has provided consulting services to entities that Moodys
Investors Service rates as well as to an entity with which Moodys Analytics was engaged in model development

project The Board found nothing in the relationships to be contrary to the standards for determining independence as

contained in the NYSEs requirements and the Companys Corporate Governance Principles

Communications with Directors

The Board of Directors has established process to receive communications from stockholders and other

interested parties Stockholders and other interested parties may communicate with the Board of Directors or

with all non-management directors as group with the Lead Independent Director or with specific director or

directors by writing to them do the Corporate Secretary of the Company at World Trade Center at 250

Greenwich Street New York New York 10007

All communications received as set forth in the preceding paragraph will be opened by the Corporate

Secretary in the office of the Companys General Counsel for the sole purpose of determining whether the

contents represent message to the Companys directors Any contents that are not in the nature of advertising

promotions of product or service or patently offensive material will be forwarded promptly to the addressee

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee represents and assists the Board of Directors in its oversight responsibilities relating to

the integrity of the Companys financial statements and the financial information provided to the Companys
stockholders and others the Companys compliance with legal and regulatory requirements the Companys internal

controls and the audit
process including the qualifications and independence of the Companys principal external

auditors the Independent Auditors and the performance of the Independent Auditors and of the Companys
internal audit function The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment compensation and oversight of the

Independent Auditors and as such the Independent Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has established policy setting forth the requirements for the pre-approval of audit

and permissible non-audit services to be provided by the independent registered public accounting firm Under

the policy the Audit Committee pre-approves the annual audit engagement terms and fees as well as any other

audit services and specified categories of non-audit services subject to certain pre-approved fee levels In

addition pursuant to the policy the Audit Committee has authorized its Chairman to pre-approve other audit and

permissible non-audit services up to $50000 per engagement and maximum of $250000 per year The policy

requires that the Audit Committee Chairman report any pre-approval decisions to the full Audit Committee at its

next scheduled meeting For the year ended December 31 2008 the Audit Committee or the Chairman

pre-approved all of the services provided by the Companys independent registered public accounting firm

which are described on page 14

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr Wulff Chairman Mr Anderson Dr Duffie Mr Glauber

Mr Kist Senator Mack Dr McKinnell and Ms Newcomb each of whom is independent under NYSE and SEC
rules and under the Companys Corporate Governance Principles The Board of Directors has determined that

each of Mr Anderson Mr Glauber Mr Kist Dr McKinnell Ms Newcomb and Mr Wulff is an audit

committee financial expert under the SECs rules The Audit Committee held eight meetings during 2008



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the audited financial statements of the

Company for the year ended December 31 2008 the Audited Financial Statements managements

assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting and the independent

auditors evaluation of the Companys system of internal control over financial reporting In addition the Audit

Committee has discussed with KPMG LLP who reported directly to the Audit Committee the matters required

by Statement on Auditing Standards No 61 as amended and adopted by the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board PCAOB

The Audit Committee also has discussed with KPMG LLP its independence from the Company including

the matters contained in the written disclosures and letter required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB

regarding independent registered public accounting firms communications with audit committees about

independence The Audit Committee also has discussed with management of the Company and KPMG LLP such

other matters and received such assurances from them as it deemed appropriate The Audit Committee

considered whether the rendering of non-audit services by KPMG LLP to the Company is compatible with

maintaining the independence of KPMG LLP from the Company

Following the foregoing review and discussions the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of

Directors that the Audited Financial Statements be included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 2008 for filing with the SEC

The Audit Committee

John Wulff Chairman

Basil Anderson

Darrell Duffie

Robert Glauber

Ewald Kist

Connie Mack

Henry McKinnell Jr

Nancy Newcomb

THE GOVERNANCE AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The role of the Governance and Compensation Committee is to identify and evaluate possible candidates to

serve on the Board and to recommend director nominees for approval by the Board and the Companys

stockholders The Governance and Compensation Committee also considers and makes recommendations to the

Board of Directors concerning the size structure composition and functioning of the Board and its committees

oversees the evaluation of the Board and develops and reviews the Companys Corporate Governance Principles

The Governance and Compensation Committee oversees the Companys overall compensation structure

policies and programs and assesses whether the Companys compensation structure establishes appropriate

incentives for management and employees The Committee also oversees the evaluation of senior management

including by reviewing and approving performance goals for the Companys executive officers including the

CEO and by evaluating their performance and oversees and makes the final decisions regarding compensation

arrangements for the CEO and for certain other executive officers The CEO makes recommendations to the

Committee regarding the amount and form of executive compensation except with respect to his compensation

For description of this process see the Compensation Discussion and Analysis on page 17 The Committee

annually reviews the compensation of directors for service on the Board and its committees and recommends

changes in compensation to the Board The Committee administers and makes recommendations to the Board

with respect to the Companys incentive compensation and equity-based compensation plans that are subject to

Board approval including the Companys key employees stock incentive plans The Committee is responsible



for the overall administration of the Companys employee benefit plans programs and practices and the

Committee may delegate to management such responsibility for the administration of the Companys employee

benefit plans programs and practices as the Conmiittee deems appropriate The Committee is empowered to

retain at the Companys expense such consultants counsel or other outside advisors as it determines appropriate

to assist it in the performance of its functions In 2008 to assist in the development of targeted compensation

levels the Committee retained compensation consultant Hewitt Associates The consultant reported directly to

the Committee and provided external market analysis with regard to executive target total compensation levels

recommendations with regard to the design of cash and equity incentives for executives and competitive market

practice with respect to director compensation Hewitt also provided analysis regarding general market trends in

compensation Separately Hewitt also provides consulting services for the Companys health and welfare plans

and acts as the actuary for the Companys U.S pension plans These services are provided under separate

contractual arrangements All work performed by compensation consultants must be approved by the Committee

The Committee regularly reviews this arrangement and the objectivity and independence of the advice provided

by the consultant The Committee makes the final decisions regarding named executive officer compensation

The members of the Governance and Compensation Committee are Dr McKinnell Chairman
Mr Anderson Dr Duffie Mr Glauber Mr Kist Senator Mack Ms Newcomb and Mr Wulff each of whom is

independent under NYSE rules and under the Companys Corporate Governance Principles The Governance and

Compensation Committee met six times during 2008

REPORT OF THE GOVERNANCE AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Governance and Compensation Committee which is composed solely of independent members of the

Board of Directors assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility relating to among other things

establishing and reviewing compensation of the Companys executive officers In this context the Governance

and Compensation Committee reviewed and discussed with management the Companys Compensation

Discussion and Analysis Following the reviews and discussions referred to above the Governance and

Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be

included in this proxy statement

The Governance and Compensation Committee

Henry McKinnell Jr Chairman

Basil Anderson

Darrell Duffie

Robert Glauber

Ewald Kist

Connie Mack

Nancy Newcomb

John Wulff

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The Governance and Compensation Committee is charged with monitoring and reviewing issues involving

potential conflicts of interest and reviewing and approving all related party transactions Special rules apply to

executive officers and directors who engage in conduct that creates an actual apparent or potential conflict of

interest Before engaging in such conduct such executive officers and directors must make full disclosure of all

the facts and circumstances to the Companys General Counsel and the Chairman of the Audit Committee and

obtain the prior written approval of the Audit Committee All conduct is reviewed in manner so as to

maintain the Companys credibility in the market iimaintain the independence of the Companys

employees and iii ensure that all business decisions are made solely on the basis of the best interests of the

Company and not for personal benefit These procedures are addressed in the Companys Code of Business



Conduct The categories of persons covered by the Companys conflict of interest policy include any related

person which SEC rules define to include any director executive officer any nominee for director any person

owning 5% or more of the Companys common stock and any immediate family members of such persons

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 the total compensation of the

non-management members of the Companys Board of Directors

Change in

Pension Value

Fees and

Earned Non-Equity Nonqualified

or Paid in Stock Option Incentive Plan Deferred All Other

Cash Awards Award Compensation Compensation Compensation Total

Name Year $1 $2 Earnings $3
Basil Anderson 2008 $75000 $109596 $184596

Darrell Duffie 2008 18750 2396 21146

RobertR.Glauber 2008 75000 109596 184596

Ewald Kist 2008 95000 109596 204596

Connie Mack 2008 75000 109596 184596

Henry McKinnell Jr 2008 95000 109596 204596

Nancy Newcomb 2008 75000 109365 184365

John Wulff 2008 95000 109596 204596

In 2008 the Companys non-management directors received an annual cash retainer of $75000 payable in

quarterly installments The Chairmen of the Audit Committee the Governance and Compensation

Committee and the International Business Development Committee received an additional annual cash

retainer of $20000 also payable in quarterly installments There were no separate meeting fees paid in

2008 Because Dr Duffie joined the Board in the fourth quarter
of 2008 his fees were pro-rated

non-management director may elect to defer receipt of all or portion of his annual cash retainer until

after termination of service on the Companys Board of Directors Deferred amounts are credited to an

account and receive the rate of return earned by one or more investment options in the Moodys Corporation

Profit Participation Plan as selected by the director Upon change in control of the Company lump sum

payment will be made to each director of the amount credited to the directors deferred account on the date

of the change in control and the total amount credited to each directors deferred account from the date of

the change in control until the date such director ceases to be director will be paid in lump sum at that

time In addition any notice by director to change or terminate an election to defer his annual retainer

given on or before the date of the change in control will be effective as of the date of the change in control

rather than the end of the calendar year

On February 12 2008 each non-management director other than Dr Duffie received grant of $115000

worth of restricted stock issued from the 1998 Moodys Corporation Non-Employee Directors Stock

Incentive Plan the 1998 Directors Plan The Governance and Compensation Committee authorized the

grant of restricted stock awards for 2008 on December 18 2007 to be effective on the third trading day

following the public dissemination on February 2008 of the Companys financial results for 2007

The amounts reported in the Stock Awards column represent the portion of the grant date fair value of the

restricted stock awards made to the non-management directors during 2008 and in prior years that was

recognized as expense for financial reporting purposes during 2008 in accordance with Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 123 revised 2004 Share based Payment FAS 123R excluding

in the case of service-based awards estimates for forfeitures The grant date fair value for the restricted

stock awards is based on the arithmetic mean of the high and low market price of the Companys Common

Stock on the grant date Because the restricted stock awards carry dividend equivalent rights no
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assumptions were used in valuing these awards under FAS 123R The actual amount that will be realized

at the time an award vests will depend upon the market price of the Companys Common Stock at the

vesting date

The grant date fair value of the restricted stock awards granted in 2008 was $115000 computed in

accordance with FAS 123R These awards vest in three equal annual installments beginning on the first

anniversary of the date of grant

The aggregate number of stock awards outstanding as of December 31 2008 for each of the Companys

non-management directors was as follows

Number of

Number of Shares Shares of Unvested

Name Underlying Options Restricted Stock

Basil Anderson 4605

Darrell Duffie 1499

Robert Glauber 18000 4605

Ewald Kist 4605

Connie Mack 18000 4605

Henry McKinnell Jr 46000 4605

Nancy Newcomb 4605
John Wulff 4605

Perquisites and other personal benefits provided to each of the Companys non-management directors in

2008 were in the aggregate less than $10000 per director Each non-management director is reimbursed

for travel meals and hotel expenses incurred in connection with attending meetings of the Companys
Board of Directors or its committees which are generally held at the Companys executive office For those

meetings the Company pays for travel for each non-management director and one guest of each director as

well as for their accommodations meals Company-arranged activities and other incidental expenses

ITEM 1ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has nominated Ewald Kist Henry McKinnell Jr Ph.D and John Wulff for

re-election as Class II directors each for three-year term expiring in 2012 If elected each nominee will hold

office until his term expires and until successor is elected and qualified All three nominees are currently

members of the Board of Directors The Company expects each nominee for election as director to be able to

serve if elected If any nominee is unable to serve proxies will be voted for the election of such other person for

director as management may recommend in the place of such nominee

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the election as directors of each of the Class II

nominees listed below

The principal occupation and certain other information including age as of the date of this Proxy Statement

about the nominees and other directors of the Company whose terms of office continue after the Annual Meeting

are set forth below

Nominees For Class II Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2012

Ewald Kist

Director since July 2004

Ewald Kist age 65 is Chairman of the International Business Development Committee and is member of

the Audit and Governance and Compensation Conmiittees of the Board of Directors Mr Kist was Chairman of

ING Groep N.y ING Group financial services company from 2000 until his retirement in June 2004

Before serving as Chairman of ING Group Mr Kist was Vice Chairman from 1999 to 2000 and served as

member of the Executive Board from 1993 to 1999 Prior to the merger of Nationale Nederlanden and NMB
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Postbank Group to form ING Group in 1992 Mr Kist served in variety of capacities at Nationale Nederlanden

beginning in 1969 including Chairman from 1991 to 1992 General Managementthe Netherlands from 1989 to

1991 and President Nationale Nederlanden U.S Corporation from 1986 to 1989 Mr Kist is also director of

The DSM Corporation Royal Philips Electronics the Dutch National Bank and Stage Entertainment

Henry McKinnell Jr Ph.D

Director since October 1997

Henry McKinnell Jr age 66 is Chairman of the Governance and Compensation Committee is member

of the Audit Committee and serves as the Lead Independent Director of the Board of Directors Dr McKinnell

served as Chairman of the Board of Pfizer Inc pharmaceutical company from May 2001 until his retirement in

December 2006 and Chief Executive Officer from January 2001 to July 2006 He served as President of Pfizer Inc

from May 1999 to May 2001 and as President of Pfizer Pharmaceuticals Group from January 1997 to April 2001

Dr McKinnell served as Chief Operating Officer of Pfizer Inc from May 1999 to December 2000 and as Executive

Vice President from 1992 to 1999 Dr McKinnell is also director of Angiotech Pharmaceuticals Inc

Dr McKinnell serves as Chairman of the Board of the Academic Global Health Foundation and the Connecticut

Science Center and is member of the Academic Alliance for AIDS Care and Prevention in Africa

John Wulff

Director since April 2004

John Wulff age 60 is Chairman of the Audit Committee and is member of the Governance and

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors Mr Wulff is the retired Chairman of the board of Hercules

Incorporated manufacturer and supplier of specialty chemical products position held from December 2003

until Ashland Inc.s acquisition of Hercules in November 2008 Mr Wulff was first elected as director of

Hercules in July 2003 and served as interim Chairman from October 2003 to December 2003 Mr Wulff served

as member of the Financial Accounting Standards Board from July 2001 until June 2003 From January 1996

until March 2001 Mr Wulff was Chief Financial Officer of Union Carbide Corporation During his 14 years

with Union Carbide Mr Wulff also served as Vice President and Principal Accounting Officer from January

1989 to December 1995 and Controller from July 1987 to January 1989 From April 1977 until June 1987

Mr Wulff was partner with KPMG and predecessor accounting and consulting firms Mr Wulff is also

director of Celanese Corporation and Sunoco Inc

CONTINUING DIRECTORS

Class III Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2010

Basil Anderson

Director since April 2004

Basil Anderson age 63 is member of the Audit and Governance and Compensation Committees of the

Board of Directors Mr Anderson served as Vice Chairman of Staples Inc an office products company from

September 2001 until his retirement in March 2006 Prior to joining Staples Mr Anderson served as Executive

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Campbell Soup Company from April 1996 to February 2001 Prior to

joining Campbell Soup Mr Anderson was with Scott Paper Company where he served in variety of capacities

beginning in 1975 including Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from December 1993 to December 1995

Mr Anderson is also director of Staples Inc Becton Dickinson CRA International Inc and Hasbro Inc

Darrell Duffie Ph.D

Director since October 2008

Darrell Duffie Ph.D age 54 Dean Witter Distinguished Professor of Finance at Stanford University

Graduate School of Business has been on the finance faculty at Stanford since receiving his Ph.D from Stanford

in 1984 He has authored books and research articles on topics in finance and related fields Dr Duffie is trustee
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of iShares Trust and is director of iShares family of Exchange Traded Funds from Barclays Global Investors

and as result oversees total of approximately 200 funds within the fund complex Dr Duffie is also member

of The Federal Reserve Bank of New York Financial Advisory Roundtable the Banff International Research

Station Scientific Advisory Board The Chicago Mercantile Exchange Mathematical Sciences Research Institute

Prize Committee and is Fellow of the Econometric Society and the American Academy of Arts Sciences

Dr Duffie is the President of the American Finance Association

Raymond McDaniel Jr

Director since April 2003

Raymond McDaniel Jr age 51 has served as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company since April 2005 and serves on the International Business Development Committee of the Board of

Directors Mr McDaniel served as the Companys President from October 2004 until April 2005 and the

Companys Chief Operating Officer from January 2004 until April 2005 He served as President of Moodys
Investors Service Inc subsidiary of the Company from November 2001 to August 2007 Mr McDaniel

served as the Companys Executive Vice President from April 2003 to January 2004 and as Senior Vice

President Global Ratings and Research from November 2000 until April 2003 He served as Senior Managing

Director Global Ratings and Research of Moodys Investors Service Inc from November 2000 until November

2001 and as Managing Director International from 1996 to November 2000 Mr McDaniel is also director of

John Wiley Sons Inc

Class Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2011

Robert Glauber

Director since June 1998

Robert Glauber age 70 is member of the Audit and Governance and Compensation Committees of the

Board of Directors Mr Glauber has served as an adjunct lecturer at the John Kennedy School of Government

at Harvard University since July 2007 and as senior advisor for Peter Solomon Company since November

2006 Mr Glauber is currently serving as visiting professor at Harvard Law School from January 2009 to June

2009 where he also served in the same capacity from September 2006 to June 2007 Mr Glauber served as

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the National Association of Securities Dealers NASD from

September 2001 to August 2006 From November 2000 to September 2001 Mr Glauber served as President and

Chief Executive Officer of the NASD From 1992 to October 2000 Mr Glauber was an adjunct lecturer at the

John Kennedy School of Government at Harvard University From 1989 to 1992 Mr Glauber served as Under

Secretary of the Treasury for Finance Prior to that Mr Glauber was professor of finance at the Harvard

Business School Mr Glauber is also director of Freddie Mac and XL Capital Ltd and is trustee of the

International Accounting Standards Committee Foundation

Connie Mack

Director since December 2001

Connie Mack age 68 is member of the Audit and Governance and Compensation Committees of the

Board of Directors Senator Mack has served as senior policy advisor at the law firm King Spalding LLP

since February 2005 Since January 2007 Senator Mack has been partner at Liberty Partners of Florida LLC
firm specializing in the development and implementation of successful advocacy strategies at the state level of

government Senator Mack served as senior policy advisor at the law firm Shaw Pittman LLP from February

2001 to February 2005 He was United States Senator R-FL from 1989 to January 2001 While in the Senate

Senator Mack was the Republican Conference Chairman from 1997 to 2001 Chairman of the Joint Economic

Committee from 1995 to 1997 and 1999 to 2001 and member of the Senate Finance and Senate Banking

Housing and Urban Affairs committees Senator Mack was Chairman of the Presidents Advisory Panel on

Federal Tax Reform and is also director of Darden Restaurants EXACT Sciences Corporation Genzyme

Corporation Mutual of America Life Insurance Company the Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and American

Momentum Bank

13



Nancy Newcomb

Director since February 2005

Nancy Newcomb age 63 is member of the Audit and Governance and Compensation Committees of

the Board of Directors Ms Newcomb served as senior corporate officer risk management of Citigroup

financial services company from May 1998 to April 2004 She served as customer group executive of Citicorp

the predecessor corporation from December 1995 to April 1998 and as division executive Latin America

from September 1993 to December 1995 From January 1988 to August 1993 she was the principal financial

officer responsible for liquidity funding and capital management Ms Newcomb is also director of The

DIRECTV Group Inc and SYSCO Corporation

ITEM 2RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Audit Committee appointed KPMG LLP as the Companys independent registered public accounting

firm to audit the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ending December 31 2009

KPMG LLP audited the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ending December 31

2008

As matter of good corporate governance the Audit Committee has requested the Board of Directors to

submit the selection of KPMG LLP to stockholders for ratification If the appointment of KPMG LLP is not

ratified by stockholders the Audit Committee will re-evaluate its selection and will determine whether to

maintain KPMG LLP as the Companys independent registered public accounting firm or to appoint another

independent registered public accounting firm representative of KPMG LLP is expected to be present at the

Annual Meeting Such representative will have the opportunity to make statement if he so desires and is

expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as the

Companys independent registered public accounting firmfor 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees for professional services rendered for the integrated audit of the Companys annual

financial statements for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 ii the review of the financial statements

included in the Companys Reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K and iiistatutory audits of non-U.S subsidiaries

were approximately $1.8 million and $2.6 million in 2008 and 2007 respectively These fees included amounts

accrued but not billed of $0.9 million and $0.2 million in 2008 and 2007 respectively All 2008 fees were

attributable to KPMG LLP and all 2007 fees were attributable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Audit-Related Fees

The aggregate fees billed for audit-related services rendered to the Company were approximately $0.2

million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Such services included

employee benefit plan audits and consultations concerning financial accounting and reporting standards All 2008

fees were attributable to KPMG LLP and all 2007 fees were attributable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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Tax Fees

The aggregate fees for professional services rendered for tax services rendered by the auditors for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 were $0 and $0 respectively

All Other Fees

The aggregate fees billed for all other services rendered to the Company by KPMG LLP for the
year

ended

December 31 2008 was $0.3 million primarily relating to accounting and payroll services prior to their

appointment as independent auditors and by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the year ended December 31

2007 was $6000 principally related to accounting research software

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The table below sets forth the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned as of December 31

2008 by each person who is known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the

outstanding shares of Common Stock the Companys 5% Owners ii each director and nominee for director

of the Company iii each named executive officer listed in the Summary Compensation Table below the

Named Executive Officers or NEOs and iv all directors and executive officers of the Company as

group Stock ownership information is based on the number of shares of Common Stock held by directors and

executive officers as of December 31 2008 based on information supplied to the Company by them calculated

in accordance with SEC rules and the number of shares of Common Stock held by the Companys 5%

Owners based on information filed with the SEC by the Companys 5% Owners Unless otherwise indicated and

except for the interests of individuals spouses the stockholders listed below have sole voting and investment

power with respect to the shares indicated as owned by them Percentages are based upon the number of shares of

Common Stock outstanding on December 31 2008 and where applicable the number of shares of Common

Stock that the indicated person or group had right to acquire within 60 days of such date The table also sets

forth ownership information concerning Stock Units the value of which is measured by the price of the

Common Stock Stock Units do not confer voting rights and are not considered beneficially owned shares

under SEC rules

Aggregate Amount of Percentage of

Shares Beneficially Shares

Name Owned1 Stock Units2 Outstanding

Mark Almeida 3737343
Basil Anderson 10839 7470

Brian Clarkson 320001

Darrell Duffie 1499

RobertR.Glauber 37121 1597

John Goggins 298265

Linda Huber 156207

Ewald Kist 9952

Connie Mack 271964
Michel Madelain 101275

Raymond McDaniel Jr 14729805

Henry McKinnell Jr 85573 1600

Nancy Newcomb 8386

John Wuiff 17839 9178

All current directors and executive officers as group 18

persons 3144470 19845 1.3%
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Aggregate Amount of Percentage of

Shares Beneficially Shares

Name Owned1 Stock Units2 Outstanding

Berkshire Hathaway Inc 4800000067 20.41%

Warren Buffett OBH Inc GEICO Corporation

Government Employees Insurance Company and National

Indemnity Company

1440 Kiewit Plaza

Omaha Nebraska 68131

Davis Selected Advisers L.P 188514558 8.02%

2949 East Alvira Road Suite 101

Tucson Arizona 85706

Represents less than 1% of the outstanding Common Stock

Includes the maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be acquired within 60 days of

December 31 2008 upon the exercise of vested stock options as follows Mr Almeida28 1600

Mr Anderson0 Mr Clarkson254450 Dr Duffie0 Mr Glauber1 8000 Mr Goggins267050

Ms Huber127250 Mr Kist0 Senator Mack18000 Mr Madelain76405 Mr McDaniel

1341677 Dr McKinnell46000 Ms Newcomb0 and Mr Wulff0 and all current directors and

executive officers as group2619824 Also includes the following shares of restricted stock over which

the Named Executive Officers and directors had voting but not diLspositive power as of December 31

2008 Mr Almeida8283 Mr Anderson4605 Mr Clarkson-0 Dr Duffie1499 Mr Glauber

4605 Mr Goggins8575 Ms Huber15740 Mr Kist4605 Senator Mack4605 Mr Madelain

4597 Mr McDaniel37575 Dr McKinnell4605 Ms Newcomb4605 and Mr Wulff4605 and

all current directors and executive officers as group125957

Consists of stock units payable to non-management directors after retirement the value of which is

measured by the price of the Common Stock received under various non-management director

compensation arrangements of the Company and its predecessor These units do not confer voting rights and

are not considered beneficially owned shares of Common Stock under SEC rules Additional stock units

accrue over time to reflect the deemed reinvestment of dividends

This amount includes 1000 shares of Common Stock owned by the estate of Patricia Almeida

This amount includes 484 shares of Common Stock owned by the Priscilla Mack Trust

This amount includes 2000 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr McDaniels spouse

As set forth in the Schedule 13D jointly filed with the SEC on January 23 2009 by Warren Buffett

Berkshire Hathaway Inc OBH Inc GEICO Corporation Government Employees Insurance Company and

National Indemnity Company each of Mr Buffett Berkshire Hathaway Inc OBH Inc and National

Indemnity Company had shared voting power and shared dispositive power with respect to 48000000

shares reported in such Schedule 3D and each of GEICO Corporation and Government Employees

Insurance Company had shared voting power and shared dispositive power with respect to 15719400 of

such 48000000 shares

This address is listed in the Schedule 13D as the address of each of Mr Buffett Berkshire Hathaway Inc and

OBH Inc The address of National Indemnity Company is listed as 3024 Harney Street Omaha Nebraska

68131 the address of GEICO Corporation is listed as GEICO Plaza Washington D.C 20076 and the

address of Government Employees Insurance Company is listed as 5260 Western Avenue Chevy Chase MD

20815

Schedule 13G/A filed by Davis Selected Advisers L.P Davis with the SEC on February 13 2009

reported that Davis registered investment adviser had sole voting power with respect to 17634603 of

such 18851455 shares
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Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act requires the

Companys directors and executive officers and
persons who beneficially own more than 10% of registered

class of the Companys equity securities to file with the SEC reports on Forms and concerning their

ownership of and transactions in the Common Stock and other equity securities of the Company As practical

matter the Company assists its directors and executives by monitoring transactions and completing and filing

reports on their behalf

Based solely on the Companys review of copies of such reports furnished to the Company and written

representations that no other reports are required the Company believes that all of its officers and directors and

those greater-than-10% stockholders that filed
any reports filed all of such reports on timely basis during the

year ended December 31 2008

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Moodys long-term success is dependent on leadership team with the integrity skills and dedication

necessary to oversee global organization operating in todays challenging environment The executive

compensation program is designed to link compensation to performance align rewards with stockholder value

and provide competitive compensation package that will assist in the retention and motivation of senior

management team with the collective and individual abilities to meet these challenges

This discussion and analysis should serve as guide to the executive compensation program and seeks to

explain the decisions made for fiscal year 2008 with respect to Raymond McDaniel the Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer referred to as the CEO and the other executive officers named in the Summary

Compensation Table on page 27 together with the CEO referred to as the Named Executive Officers or

NEOs

Moodys confronted significant obstacles in 2008 as credit problems that began in the U.S housing sector

spread to impact the Companys business globally The severity and protracted nature of market dislocations that

grew from the initial credit problems confirmed that the challenges of 2007 would persist not just for Moodys
but for the entire global economy The considerable adverse market events of this year led to decline in

financial results and in turn decrease in the price of Moodys common stock impacting stockholders in

significant way This decrease also impacted the NEOs who have substantial holdings in the Companys stock

In light of the Companys 22% decrease in annual revenue and 28% decrease in reported earnings per share

as compared to 2007 incentive compensation for the NEO group likewise decreased as compared to 2007 The

Committee believes this decrease in incentive compensation was appropriate based on the 2008 financial results

and reflects the Companys philosophy of strongly aligning compensation with performance For the four

continuing executives who were NEOs in 2008 and 2007 cash incentive awards decreased on average by 64% as

compared to 2007 awards In addition the value of long-term equity incentive awards granted to the CEO in

February 2008 was approximately 60% lower than 2007 award values and those awarded to the NEO group

excluding the CEO in February 2008 were on average approximately 45% lower than 2007 award values as

disruptions in the credit markets in the second half of 2007 were reflected in 2008 equity compensation These

awards were made based on review of the circumstances affecting results to determine if any events were

unusual or unforeseen and an evaluation of each NEOs performance in light of the challenging environment and

the Companys structural reorganization

It is crucial for the Company to retain and motivate strong leadership with the ability to manage the business

during this difficult time With this in view the Governance and Compensation Committee the Committee

changed the compensation structure in 2008 in response to the altered market conditions For example as

discussed in more detail below the Committee modified aggregate funding for the 2004 Moodys Corporation
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Covered Employees Cash Incentive Plan the 2004 Plan stockholder approved plan to be based on

Company annual operating income and EPS performance against budget instead of being measured against

constant long-term financial performance growth targets

THE ROLE OF THE GOVERNANCE AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE ITS CONSULTANT AND

MANAGEMENT

The Committee which is comprised entirely of independent directors has responsibility for oversight of the

Companys compensation program and has final authority for evaluating and setting compensation for NEOs To

assist in this process it considers recommendations made by the CEO except with respect to his own

compensation and uses market data and analyses that the Committees compensation consultant Hewitt

Associates provides in order to help formulate target compensation levels

The consultant conducted comparison of the elements of Moodys executive compensation structure and

practices to those of the Companys peer group as set forth below and the broader financial services industry

Based on its review the consultant concluded that the compensation program structure is consistent with industry

practices However it did recommend certain changes be made in response to evolving market conditions which

changes the Committee approved These changes are discussed below

PHILOSOPHY OF TIlE EXECUTiVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM

Moodys executive compensation program is designed to

link substantial part of each executives compensation to the achievement of the Companys financial

and operating objectives and to the individuals performance

align executives rewards with changes in the value of stockholders investments and

provide competitive total compensation package that will assist in the retention of the Companys

executives and motivate them to perform at superior level

Linking annual compensation to performance

Moodys awards the NEOs with compensation based on the Companys performance against financial

objectives specified at the beginning of the performance year and an evaluation of individual accomplishments

and performance during that year Each NEO has list of annual objectives and is evaluated at year-end in part

through subjective analysis of performance against those objectives

Aligning rewards with stockholder value

The program is designed to align rewards with stockholder value The Committee determined in 2008 that

long-term equity awards for members of senior management including the NEOs would be comprised solely of

stock options as opposed to mix of stock options and restricted stock This change was made so that

management is not rewarded until there is recovery in the Companys stock price The Committee believed that

using only stock options would more strongly align the executives long-term compensation with the interests of

stockholders while the potential for stock price appreciation would serve as strong retention tool

Providing competitive total compensation package

Peer and Market Review In an effort to provide competitive compensation package the Committee

annually reviews the structure of the program and target compensation levels by first comparing data to that of

group of select peer companies For the peer group in 2007 the Company identified companies that were active

in credit risk analysis company and industry credit research business information services and other similar

services for the investment community Companies were then selected for the peer group
based on common

metrics which include revenue number of employees and market capitalization
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In response to the expanding nature of the Moodys business and changes in the business or existence of

peers the Committee revised the peer group in 2008 with the assistance of its compensation consultant to more

accurately reflect the companies with which Moodys competes for business and executive talent This revised

group also better reflects the companies against which Moodys financial performance is measured The size of

the peer group remained approximately the same but now includes firms that provide analytics products and

services in addition to credit risk analysis company and industry credit research and business information

services As was the case with the 2007 peer group the 2008 peer group companies also have comparable

average revenue number of employees and market capitalization The new peer group is as follows

AllianceBernstein FactSet Research Systems Inc Morningstar

BlackRock Inc Fair Isaac Corporation NASDAQ OMX Group Inc

CME Group Inc Federated Investors Inc NYSE Euronext

Corporate Executive Board Company Franklin Resources Inc RiskMetrics Group Inc

Dun Bradstreet Corp Interactive Data Corporation Thomson Reuters Corp
Eaton Vance Corp Invesco Ltd Union Bank California

Equifax Inc The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc Verisk Analytics Inc

In addition to reviewing compensation practices and pay levels within the Companys peer group the

Committee looks at the broader financial services industrys compensation data furnished by the consultant The

compensation consultant provided the Committee with total compensation data from these comparison groups

along with analysis of each element of compensation

The comparison groups information is reviewed in quartile ranges generally targeting the 50th to 75th

percentile range for total compensation The Company has found that using range and taking broader

approach to these figures instead of targeting specific percentage allows for flexibility based on actual yearly

performance market conditions and the unique nature of Moodys business It has also found that using this

particular 50th to 75th percentile range has allowed the Company to retain key talent and remain competitive in

the marketplace The Company does not benchmark discrete elements of compensation against subset of the

peer group

This
range serves as just one of the reference points when establishing targeted total compensation The

Committee also reviews each NEO skills experience tenure and performance during the prior year These

factors contribute to variations in actual and target compensation levels Based on the Committees analysis of

the above and consideration of recommendation from the CEO other than with respect to his own

compensation the Committee establishes targeted total compensation level for each NEO that it believes is

competitive

The Committee periodically benchmarks benefits and perquisites and believes benefits to be in line with

market practice and perquisites to be below current market practice Moodys does not provide perquisites or

other personal benefits with an aggregate value of $10000 or more to its executives including the NEOs

In 2008 the targeted total compensation opportunity in aggregate for the NEO group was at the median as

compared to the peer group and financial services group comparative data The Conmiittee believes this was

appropriate because the companies within the peer group and financial services
group faced similar

macroeconomic challenges Actual total compensation payments were between the 25t percentile target total

compensation and the median as compared to both the peer group and the broader financial services group

ELEMENTS OF MOODYS COMPENSATION PROGRAM AND 2008 COMPENSATION UNDER Tim PROGRAM

Moodys executive compensation program consists of three primary components

Base salary

An annual cash incentive award opportunity and

Long-term equity incentive compensation
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Weighting of ElementsFixed versus At Risk compensation

The Company did not have target weight for each element of compensation in 2008 Instead the Company

reviewed data from its peer group and the broader financial services market and based on that data determined

what level of the total compensation package should be at risk and what level should be fixed in the form of

salary The Committee concluded that 20% to 30% of total compensation should be fixed and 70% to 80%

should be at risk in 2008 This focus differs from past years when the Company focused on the mix of long-term

equity compensation versus cash compensation The Committee believes weighting at risk versus fixed

compensation provides motivation incentives and aligns the Companys compensation structure with its focus on

an NEO contribution to overall value to the Company

Base salary

Base salary is intended to provide level of pay that is appropriate given professional status job content

market value accomplishments and internal equity In 2008 base salary represented approximately 25% of the

aggregate of total compensation for the NEO group The Company generally set base salaries for each NEO at

the median salary of executives in similarpositions within the peer group or the broader financial services

market

The Committee determined that it was appropriate to maintain the same salary for Mr McDaniel as he

received in 2007 The Committee also determined that it was appropriate to increase the base salaries of Messrs

Madelain Goggins and Almeida and of Ms Huber Mr Madelain assumed new position in 2008 becoming

Chief Operating Officer of Moodys Investors Service This leadership role encompasses broader responsibilities

than his previous position with the Company and therefore in the Committees view merited salary increase

Mr Goggins General Counsel assumed additional responsibility in 2008 for the Regulatory Affairs and

Compliance departments due to an internal reorganization The added supervision of these two groups whose

roles have taken on particular significance in the current environment was deemed to have merited salary

increase Likewise Mr Almeida role as President of Moodys Analytics has resulted in increasing

responsibility subsequent to the internal reorganization as the services and scope
of that subsidiary take on added

significance for the Company Finally with respect to Ms Huber the Committee determined that salary

increase was appropriate in light of her successful cost management efforts for the Company including execution

of the restructuring plan announced in the fourth quarter of 2007 and her first full year managing the Corporate

Communications group during challenging time The base salaries paid to the NEOs during 2008 are reported

in the Summary Compensation Table on page 27

Annual cash incentive awards

Moodys awards the Companys executives including the NEOs annual cash incentives based on the

Companys performance against financial objectives specified at the beginning of the performance year and an

evaluation of individual accomplishments during that year These awards are intended to reward performance and

assist in retention and motivation of management Award payouts are finalized at the Committees February

meeting following the performance year in question and actual payouts are made typically at the beginning of

March

The awards customarily are made under the 2004 Plan which was approved by stockholders The 2004 Plan

outlines the performance measures the Committee can use to determine annual incentive awards and is structured

to provide compensation that meets the performance-based criteria under Section 162m of the Internal Revenue

Code There is not predetermined aggregate dollar amount for the 2004 Plan funding pool Instead it is funded

by the Companys performance achievement against pre-set targets For 2008 funding for the 2004 Plan and

therefore award opportunities for NEOs was based on operating inconie and EPS goals relative to budget and

reflects pre-agreed adjustments for legacy tax and restructuring activities Operating income and EPS goals were
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selected in order for bonus payouts to reflect achievement against budgeted expectations for profitability and

performance relative to external guidance regarding EPS The operating income and EPS goals under the plan for

2008 were $952.6 million and $2.21 respectively In prior years annual incentives were based on long-term

financial growth targets The Committee changed this structure to ensure that at the time they were established

and communicated to executives the performance conditions remained challenging but had at least some

likelihood of achievement This years Company financial performance resulted in no funding for the NEOs

under the 2004 Plan Therefore no annual cash incentive awards were paid out from the 2004 Plan as shown in

the table below

Target Cash Bonus Under Maximum Cash Bonus Under Actual Cash Bonus
Name 2004 Plan 2004 Plan Under 2004 Plan

Raymond McDaniel $1465200 $2930400
Linda Huber 660000 1320000
Michel Madelain 497046 994092
Mark Almeida 528000 1056000
John Goggins 385000 770000
Brian Clarkson 810900 1621800

The plan design together with the size of the annual cash incentive award opportunity ensures that

significant portion of each NEOs cash compensation is at risk meaning it varies year to year based on

Company performance In the case of the NEOs whose overall annual cash compensation may exceed $1 million

an overall performance target is established for each NEO to allow their award payouts to be attributable to and

dependent upon satisfaction of such performance target so that they will be deductible by the Company under

the federal income tax laws The Committee retains the discretion to set individual award payouts under the 2004

Plan For that reason and after considering the recommendation of the CEO except with respect to his award
the Committee may apply negative adjustment to the target award resulting in actual 2004 Plan awards

deviating from the target level Each NEO has target award amount maximum award amount and an actual

award amount

Discretionary Awards Separate from the 2004 Plan however after thorough evaluation of each NEO
performance against his or her respective annual objectives the Committee approved discretionary cash awards

at level of 37% of the aggregate actual 2007 awards for the NEO group and 27% of the aggregate 2008 targets

for the NEO group The Committees evaluation was subjective and was based generally on review of the

executive teams efforts in light of the challenging operating environment The Committee recognized the

contributions made by the NEOs individually and as group in response to the challenges and the strong

leadership demonstrated in connection with the internal reorganization After completing this evaluation and

soliciting advice from the compensation consultant as appropriate the Committee determined that the following

discretionary cash bonuses were merited this year

Name Discretionary Cash Bonus

Raymond McDaniel 305000
Linda Huber 200000

Michel Madelain 122800

Mark Almeida 200000

John Goggins 120000

Long-term equity incentive compensation

Change in 2008 long-term equity incentive mix The Committee annually evaluates the mix of long-term

equity incentive compensation awards In 2008 the Committee determined that long-term equity awards for

members of senior management including the NEOs would be comprised solely of stock options as opposed to

the mix of stock options and restricted stock awarded in the past This change was made so that management is

not rewarded until there is recovery in the Companys stock price The Committee believed that using only

stock options would more strongly align executives long-term compensation with the interests of stockholders

while the potential for stock price appreciation would serve as strong incentive and retention tools These
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awards are made under the stockholder-approved 2001 Moodys Corporation Key Employees Incentive Plan

The program is adequately balanced by the discretion retained by the Committee under cash compensation

arrangements so that management will not be driven to take imprudent risks

Stock options Stock options vest based on continued service over lour years in annual 25% increments

ensuring that an executive will realize value from his award only if the market price of the Companys stock

appreciates above the options exercise price after the shares have vested and ii that executives are motivated

to remain with the Company due to the multi-year vesting schedule

The Committees primary considerations in recommending 2008 stock option grant levels included the level

of each NEO target
total compensation in comparison to the peer group and the financial services industry and

individual performance It also took into account the disruptions in the credit markets which had already begun to

have an impact on the Companys business in the second half of 2007 After consideration of these factors the

Committee recommended and the Board approved total equity grants comprised solely of stock options with

total economic value approximately 55% lower than total equity grants approved in 2007 which were comprised

of both stock options and restricted stock In 2008 as reported in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards of 2008 table

on page 30 the following stock option awards with an exercise price of $38.07 were granted Mr McDaniel

185000 Ms Huber85000 Mr Madelain62500 Mr Almeida62500 Mr Goggins50000

Mr Clarkson90000

Restricted stock No restricted stock awards were granted to the NEOs in 2008

Equity Grant Practices Equity awards are granted and the exercise price determined as of the third trading

day following the date of public dissemination of Moodys financial results for the prior year the beginning of

February The exercise price of the stock options is set at the fair market value of the Companys common stock

on the grant date Under 2001 Moodys Corporation Key Employees Incentive Plan fair market value is based

on the arithmetic mean of the high and low trading prices of Moodys common stock as reported on the New

York Stock Exchange at the end of each trading day

Summary of Actual 2008 Equity Awards In 2008 the aggregate long-term equity compensation awards

granted for the NEO group were at the median of executives in the comparative groups Actual award

determinations were based on targeted total compensation mix individual performance and competitive market

practice Prior grants did not influence annual decisions values realized upon option exercises or vesting of

restricted stock also did not impact 2008 decisions Annual awards are determined by an examination of the

present period as well as by considering expectations of the future

As was the case with the total cash compensation in 2008 the Committee concluded that given the

significant challenges faced by Moodys in 2008 granting equity with value below the 2007 level was

appropriate

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

When determining the target compensation opportunity of the CEO the Committee does not use targeted

multiple versus the other NEOs Instead the Committee begins its analysis of total compensation for the CEO by

analyzing the compensation of executive officers with similarpositions at companies included in its peer group

as well as in the broader financial services market The Company has determined in the past that the CEOs of

comparable companies generally are paid compensation that is materially different in amount than that of other

named executive officers at such companies Additionally the Committee takes into account the scope of the

CEO responsibilities experience and prior performance and balances these factors against competitive market

data for comparable positions when determining overall compensation Because the CEO of the Company is

responsible for the entire organization and is not only responsible for one area of its operations as is the case

with the other NEOs the scope of his position led to determination that materially higher total compensation

package was warranted The CEOs compensation program consists of the same three primary components that

apply to all NEOs base salary annual cash incentive award opportunity and long-term equity incentive

compensation
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For 2008 the Committee determined that Mr McDaniels base salary should remain unchanged from 2007
set at $936000 The Committee also established target annual cash incentive award of $1465200 This target

was based on an evaluation of competitive benchmark data for total compensation of CEOs in the Companys
peer group

and the financial services industry Payment of Mr McDaniels annual incentive award under the

2004 Plan like for the other NEOs is based on operating income and EPS goals as described above in Annual
Incentive Awards Payments are also based on assessment of his performance against his annual personal

objectives which are set by examining the Companys needs setting Company-wide goals and ascertaining his

role in the achievement of those goals One key element this
year was his leadership role in the structural

reorganization At the end of the year Mr McDaniel conducted self-assessment and submitted this to the

Committee The Committee evaluated his performance and as discussed in the paragraph titled Discretionary

Awards above with the assistance of and reliance on the compensation consultant the Committee determined

that although no bonuses would be paid under the 2004 Plan he would receive 20% of his target annual incentive

award amount in the form of discretionary bonus award As reported in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards of

2008 table on page 30 Mr McDaniel was granted 185000 stock option awards with an exercise price of $38.07

Mr McDaniel targeted total compensation for 2008 was at the median as compared to the Companys peer

group and the broader market data provided to the Company by its compensation consultant His actual total

compensation was approximately 20% to 25% below the median levels of the benchmark target total

compensation levels of the comparative groups

ADDITIONAL EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION POLICIES

To further the objectives of Moodys executive compensation program the Committee has adopted

number of supplemental policies that it believes help the Company to meet the compensation programs goals

Retirement benefits

Moodys provides retirement benefits to its NEOs under three defined benefit and defined contribution

pension plans

The defined benefit pension plans are the Retirement Account the Pension Benefit Equalization Plan

PBEP and the Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan SEBP The Retirement Account which closed to

new entrants effective December 31 2007 is broad-based tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan for all

Moodys U.S employees The PBEP is non-tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan that restores benefits to

participants in the Retirement Account that would otherwise be lost due to limitations under the federal income

tax laws on the provision of benefits under tax-qualified defined benefit pension plans The Retirement Account

together with the PBEP provides income upon retirement based on percentage of annual compensation The

SEBP is non-tax-qualified supplemental executive retirement plan that provides more generous benefits than

the PBEP for designated executive officers The SEBP was closed as of January 2008 to new participants and

the only NEOs who participate in the plan are Mr McDaniel Ms Huber and Mr Goggins due to the fact that

they were participants prior to the closing of the plan The determination to close the plan was made based on

the Committees review of retirement benefits More details regarding the SEBP are provided in the narrative

following the Pension Benefits Table for 2008

Moodys also offers its U.S employees including the NEOs the opportunity to participate in tax-qualified

defined contribution plan the Profit Participation Plan PPP In addition through December 31 2007 U.S

employees including the NEOs whose participation in the PPP is restricted due to limitations under the federal

income tax laws on the provision of benefits under tax-qualified defined contribution plans participated in the

Profit Participation Benefit Equalization Plan PPBEP The PPBEP was terminated effective December 31

2007 and in 2008 the Company began to offer voluntary deferred compensation plan the Moodys
Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan or the DCP The primary purpose of the DCP is to allow certain

employees to continue pre-tax deductions into nonqualified plan and receive the maximum company match on

compensation which exceeds the IRS limits for allowable pre-tax deferrals into the PPP limited
group

of
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highly compensated senior management has the option of immediate deferral of up to 50% of base salary and/or

bonus However the Company match only applies to deferrals in excess of the IRS limit on compensation In

addition the Company will credit to the DCP employer contributions that would have been made to the PPP but

for the application
of the compensation limit Additional information regarding the DCP is found on page 36

These plans provide Moodys U.S employees with the opportunity to accumulate retirement benefits and

with the exception of the DCP and the SEBP these plans are open to all eligible U.S employees Mr Madelain

participates in Moodys UK Group Personal Pension Plan described on page 36

The actuarial present
values of the accumulated pension benefits of the NEOs who participate in these plans

as of the end of 2008 as well as other information about each of Moodys defined benefit pension plans are

reported in the Pension Benefits Table on page 33

Employment agreements

Moodys does not enter into employment agreements
with its executives including the NEOs All of the

Companys executives are at will employees

Severance policy

Moodys does not have severance agreements in place with any current NEO All NEOs are subject to the

Moodys Career Transition Plan CTP an ERISA-based plan that is available to all employees The NEOs do

not receive any extra severance benefits The CTP is designed to compensate eligible employees in the following

situations where there has been reduction in the Companys workforce or elimination of specific jobs

iiwhere the individuals job performance has not met expectations but does not involve basis for terminating

his performance for cause or iiiwhere the Company has agreed with an individual that it is in the mutual best

interests of the parties to sever the employment relationship While having such plan in place is an important

tool in Moodys retention efforts and is in the best long-term interest of stockholders the plan is not designed to

reward individuals who have not performed to expectations or who have engaged in conduct that is detrimental to

the Company and its stockholders and contain provisions to ensure this

Moodys believes that these payment arrangements are similar to the general practice among the Companys

peer group although it has not benchmarked the severance practices of Moodys peer companies

Mr Clarkson who most recently served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Moodys Investors

Service left the Company in May 2008 after nearly 17 years of service He remained at Moodys until the end of

July in order to ensure smooth transition In addition to receiving 52 weeks of salary and benefits continuation

under the CTP and participation in the 2004 Plan Mr Clarkson was participant in the SEBP The SEBP

features cliff vesting provision pursuant to which any SEBP participant who terminates employment before

both reaching the age
of 55 and accumulating 10 years of service will have his SEBP benefits reduced by 60

percent of the otherwise accrued benefit The Board exercised its authority to waive the reduction in benefits for

pre-age 55 terminations and granted Mr Clarkson the full value of his accrued SEBP benefit otherwise in

accordance with the plan terms Because Mr Clarkson departure was retirement under the Companys equity

plans as consequence his restricted stock grants vested in full and all restrictions on such shares lapsed upon

his termination and his unvested stock options other than the grant he received in 2008 will continue to vest and

together with his vested stock options be exercisable for five years from the date of termination or if shorter

the remaining stated term of each option Mr Clarkson is party to separation agreement with the Company

dated May 2008 which was included as an exhibit to the Companys Form 10-Q filed on August 2008

Change in control arrangements

So that Moodys executives are motivated to pursue potential transactions that would enhance the value of

stockholders investments Moodys believes it is important to provide certain arrangements upon potential

change in control of the organization While Moodys does not provide specific change in control agreements for
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its executives the Companys 2001 Stock Incentive Plan provides for accelerated vesting of outstanding awards

including stock options and restricted stock awards upon change in control of the Company change in

control is defined to include person acquiring more than 20% of the voting power of the Companys then

outstanding securities ii the stockholders of the Company approving merger or consolidation of the Company
with any other corporation other than merger or consolidation that would not change the current voting power

position or iiithe stockholders of the Company approving plan of complete liquidation of the Company or an

agreement for the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the Companys assets Relative

to the overall value of the Company however the value of this potential change in control benefit is minor

The NEOs receive no extra cash severance upon change in control The Committee does not take into

account compensation that would become payable to each of the NEOs under certain existing plans and

arrangements if the executives employment had terminated under the specified circumstances or if there had

been change in control Therefore when discussing the factors considered by the Committee when determining

overall compensation potential payments upon termination or change in control were not included

The estimated payments and benefits payable to the NEOs assuming change of control of the Company as

of the last day of 2008 are reported in the discussion of Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in

Control on page 37

Perquisites and other personal benefits

Moodys does not provide perquisites or other personal benefits with an aggregate value of $10000 or more

to its executives including the NEOs

Stock ownership guidelines

In July 2004 Moodys adopted stock ownership guidelines for its executives including the NEOs and its

non-management directors requiring them to acquire and maintain meaningful stake in the Company These

guidelines were revised in February 2008 to reflect the new management structure resulting from the Companys
reorganization Moodys believes that these guidelines encourage its executive officers to act as owners thereby

better aligning the executives interests with those of the Companys stockholders

The guidelines are intended to satisfy an individuals need for portfolio diversification while ensuring an

ownership level sufficient to assure stockholders of their commitment to value creation Executive officers are

expected within five years to acquire and hold shares of the Companys common stock equal in value to

specified multiple of their base salary which varies based on position The current ownership level multiples are

five times base salary for the CEO three times base salary for the remaining Named Executive Officers and five

times the annual cash retainer for non-management directors

Restricted shares and shares owned by immediate family members or through the Companys tax-qualified

savings and retirement plans count toward satisfying the guidelines Stock options whether vested or unvested

do not count toward satisfying the guidelines The guidelines for an individual executive officer may be

suspended at the discretion of the Board of Directors in situations that it deems appropriate All executive

officers and directors are subject to securities trading policy whereby hedging transactions are prohibited

Tax deductibility policy

Section 162m of the Tax Code limits income tax deductibility of compensation in excess of $1 million that

is not performance-based as defined under the income tax regulations paid to any employee who as of the

close of the taxable year was the CEO or whose total compensation is required to be reported to stockholders

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by reason of such employee being among the three highest

compensated officers for the taxable
year other than the CEO and CFO Stock options awarded under the

Companys stockholder-approved stock incentive plans are performance-based for
purposes

of the federal
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income tax laws and any amounts required to be included in an executives income upon the exercise of options

do not count toward the $1 million limitation For other compensation to be performance-based under the

regulations it must be contingent on the attainment of performance goals the material terms of which are

approved by stockholders and the specific objectives of which are established by and attainment of which

objectives are certified by committee of the Board which consists entirely of independent directors

While Moodys generally seeks to ensure the deductibility of the incentive compensation paid to the

Companys executives the Committee intends to retain the flexibility necessary to provide cash and equity

compensation in line with competitive practice Under Moodys annual cash incentive plan for the NEOs whose

compensation is potentially to be in excess of $1 million annual bonuses are preliminarily funded on the basis of

achievement relative to quantitative measures of performance and then are subject to negative discretion based

on the degree of achievement of qualitative objectives The Committee can also make positive adjustments based

on achievement of qualitative objectives but such adjustments may not be tax deductible

Clawback Policy

The Board has the right to make retroactive adjustments to any annual cash incentive awards granted after

July 28 2008 where payment was predicated upon the achievement of specified financial results and those

results must later be revised Where the results are revised by reason of significant or material restatement

recoupment can be sought against executive officers as defined in accordance with SEC rules where the results

are revised by reason of restatement resulting from fraud or other misconduct recoupment can be sought

against the person engaging in such misconduct as well as against any executive officer The value with respect

to which recoupment may be sought shall be determined by the Board
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 the total compensation of the

Companys Named Executive Officers The Named Executive Officers for 2008 2007 and 2006 include Moodys Principal

Executive Officer its Principal Financial Officer and the three most highly-compensated executive officers of the Company
other than the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer who were serving as executive officers at the end

of the last completed fiscal year The table also includes details regarding one officer for whom but for the fact that he was
not serving as an executive officer at the end of the 2008 fiscal year disclosure would have been required

Change in

Pension Value

and

Nonqualified

Non-Equity Deferred

Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other

Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year $1 $2 $3 $4 $5 $6 Total

Raymond McDaniel 2008 $936000 $305000 830041 $2123428 $3360721 14791 $7569981
Chairman and Chief 2007 936000 1873732 2066087 1051000 1302492 147244 7376555
Executive Officer 2006 900000 1708913 1826666 1863490 1709230 187468 8195767

Linda Huber 2008 495708 200000 350655 889475 238475 10129 2184442
Executive Vice President 2007 485500 50809 781383 677872 477191 210877 66356 2749988
and Chief Financial Officer 2006 475500 647508 427974 730000 165511 80430 2526923

MichelMadelain7 2008 398611 122800 103087 420157 38052 1082707
Chief Operating Officer of 2007

Moodys Investors Service 2006

MarkE.Almeida 2008 435417 200000 183094 515464 56952 19574 1410501
President of Moodys Analytics 2007 392917 412523 446273 401000 27964 43502 1724179

2006 343200 371770 391936 364000 36523 52874 1560303

Johnj Goggins 2008 377250 120000 192093 517148 377775 18260 1602526
Senior Vice President and General 2007 361000 435737 508584 281000 118981 44458 1749760
Counsel 2006 351000 393496 475764 412000 174761 50898 1857919

Brian Clarkson8 2008 379167 358128 322490 1393760 292171 2745716
Former President and Chief Operating 2007 580467 39924 874411 976468 391076 302289 78758 3243393
Officer of Moodys Investors Service 2006 520000 773070 858933 874000 691339 95947 3813289

The amounts reported in the Bonus column represent discretionary bonuses paid to the NEOs The Company paid no

discretionary bonuses to the NEOs for 2006 For 2007 two NEOs received discretionary bonuses paid on March

2008 Payments under the Companys annual cash incentive program for 2007 and 2006 are reported in the Non-Equity

Incentive Plan Compensation column The Company paid discretionary bonuses to the NEOs for 2008 These amounts

were paid on March 2009 There were no payments under the Companys annual cash incentive program for 2008 as

reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column

There were no restricted stock award grants made to the NEOs in 2008 The amounts reported in the Stock Awards

column represent the portion of the grant date fair value of the restricted stock awards made to the NEOs in prior years

that was recognized as expense for financial reporting purposes during 2008 in accordance with Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No 123 revised 2004 Share based Payment FAS 123R excluding in the case of service-

based awards estimates for forfeitures The grant date fair value for the restricted stock awards is based on the

arithmetic mean of the high and low market price of the Companys Common Stock on the grant date The actual

amount that will be realized at the time an award vests will depend upon the market price of the Companys Common
Stock at the vesting date

The amounts reported in the Option Awards column represent the portion of the grant date fair value of the stock option

grants made to the NEOs during 2008 and in prior years that was recognized as expense for financial reporting

purposes during 2008 in accordance with FAS 123R excluding in the case of service-based option awards estimates

for forfeitures The assumptions made in calculating these grant date fair value amounts are incorporated herein by

reference to the discussion of those assumptions under the heading Stock-Based Compensation in the Managements
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Discussion and Analysis and Note 12 in 2008 and 2007 Note 11 in 2006 and Note in 2005 and 2004 to the

financial statements as contained in the Companys Annual Reports on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March

2009 February 29 2008 March 2007 March 2006 and March 2005 The actual amount that will be realized if

any upon the exercise of an option will depend upon the extent to which the market price of the Companys Common

Stock exceeds the option exercise price at the time the option is exercised The exercise price of these awards is equal to

the arithmetic mean of the high and low market price of the Companys Common Stock on the grant date

The amounts reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column represent
the amounts earned by the

NEOs for 2008 2007 and 2006 under the Companys annual cash incentive program The amounts for 2007 and 2006

were actually paid on March 2008 and March 2007 respectively arid there were no payments under the

Companys annual cash incentive program for 2008 For description of this program see Annual Cash Incentive

Awards in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis on page 17

The amounts reported in the Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings column

represent the aggregate change during 2008 in the actuarial present value of the Named Executive Officers

accumulated benefits under the Companys Retirement Account Pension Benefit Equalization Plan and Supplemental

Executive Benefit Plan SEBP For description of these plans see the Pension Benefits Table for 2008 on page 33

The change in the actuarial present value year over year is largely driven by the impact on the SEBP component of the

following variables one additional year of service and pay one less year
of discounting in the present value calculation

and annual assumption changes such as the discount rate or mortality assumption In addition to these typical factors

that affect the actuarial present values from one year to the next plan changes can also have an impact During 2008

certain changes became effective in the PBEP and SEBP so the plans would continue to comply with Section 409A of

the Internal Revenue Code SEBP participants elected either an annuity or lump sum form of payment that will apply

at retirement and the PBEP was amended so it will automatically provide lump sum distributions to terminated

participants at the later of
age

55 or six months following termination from Moodys Both of these changes affect the

comparability of the actuarial present values from 2007 to 2008 with the 2008 actuarial present values generally being

higher if lump sums are in effect Mr McDaniel chose lump sum form of payment for his SEBP The SEBP was

closed as of January 2008 to new participants and the only NEOs who participate in the plan are Mr McDaniel

Ms Huber and Mr Goggins

The amounts reported in the All Other Compensation column comprise the following compensation items

Company Dividends or

Contributions Other

to Vested and Earnings

Perquisites Unvested Paid on

and Other Defined Stock or

Personal Contribution Option Termination

Name Year Benefitsa Plansb Awardsc Benefitsd Total

Raymond McDaniel 2008 6900 $7891 14791

2007 139449 7795 147244

2006 184307 3161 187468

Linda Huber 2008 6900 3229 10129

2007 63735 2621 66356

2006 79680 750 80430

Michel Madelain 2008 37299 753 38052

2007

2006

Mark Almeida 2008 1736 19574

2007 41815 1687 43502

2006 52205 669 52874

John Goggins
2008 16413 1847 18260

2007 42584 1874 44458

2006 849 50898

BrianM Clarkson 2008 11375 9963 270833 292171

2007 75158 3600 78758

2006 94404 1543 95947
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Perquisites and other personal benefits provided to each of the Companys NEOs in fiscal 2008 were
in the aggregate less than $10000 per individual

These amounts represent the aggregate annual Company contributions to the accounts of the NEOs
under the Companys Profit Participation Plan and the non-qualified Deferred Compensation Plan in

the U.S The Profit Participation Plan and the Deferred Compensation Plan are tax-qualified defined

contribution plans The amount described with respect to Mr Madelain was contributed by the

Companys subsidiary in the UK to the Moodys Group Personal Pension Plan An exchange rate of

1.4619 from The Federal Reserve Bank of New York as of December 31 2008 was used to calculate

the U.S dollar amount

These amounts represent dividend equivalents paid on restricted stock awards that vested during 2008
2007 and 2006

Payments associated with Mr Clarksons Severance Agreement and relate to his termination of

employment on July 31 2008

Mr Madelain became an executive officer of the Company as of May 2008 His compensation figures are

shown in the table in U.S dollars However certain elements of his compensation were paid in British

pounds sterling An exchange rate of 1.46 19 from The Federal Reserve Bank of New York as of

December 31 2008 was used to calculate the U.S dollar amount

Mr Clarkson left the Company as of July 31 2008 Because Mr Clarkson Severance Agreement provides

for the Company to provide Mr Clarkson with unreduced SEBP benefits at age 55 the amount reflected in

the Change in Pension Value and Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Earnings is the present value of the

increase in his SEBP benefit
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GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS TABLE FOR 2008

The following table sets forth for the year ended December 31 2008 information concerning each grant of an award

made to the Companys Named Executive Officers in 2008 under any plan

Estimated All Other

Future Option

Payouts Awards Closing

Estimated Future Pa outs Under
Under Number Exercise or Price

Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards
Equity of Securities Base Price on Day

_____________________________ Incentive Underlying of Option of Grant Date

Authorization Threshold Target Maximum Plan Options Awards Grant Fair

Name Grant Date Date1 $2 Awards3 $ISh5 $/Sh Value6

Raymond McDaniel 2/12/2008 12/18/2007 $732600 $1465200 $2930400 185000 $38.07 $36.75 $1809300

Linda Huber 2/12/2008 12/18/2007 330000 660000 1320000 85000 $38.07 $36.75 831300

MichelMadelain 2/12/2008 12/18/2007 248523 497046 994092 62500 $38.07 $36.75 611250

MarkE Almeida 2/12/2008 12/18/2007 264000 528000 1056000 62500 $38.07 $36.75 611250

John Goggins 2/12/2008 12/18/2007 192500 385000 770000 50000 $38.07 $36.75 489000

Brian Clarkson7 ... 2/12/2008 12/18/2007 405450 810900 1621800 90000 $38.07 $36.75 880200

The Governance and Compensation Committee authorized the grant of stock options for 2008 on December 18 2007 to

be effective on February 12 2008 the third trading day following the date of the public dissemination of the Companys

financial results for 2007

These awards were granted in 2008 under the Moodys Corporation Covered Employees Cash Incentive Plan the

Companys annual cash incentive program The Governance and Compensation Committee determines the aggregate

funding of the program based on the financial performance of the Company In addition certain senior corporate

executives will have component of funding based on earnings per share growth relative to budget The plan would

have been funded at 200% of target if performance EPS and operating income growth as percentage is 12 percentage

points higher than budget For additional information on the annual cash incentive program see the Compensation

Discussion and Analysis on page 17 These awards were earned during 2008 and were to be paid in March 2009

Because EPS and/or operating income growth as percentage was more than percentage points below budget no

formulaic funding occurred There were no payments under the Companys annual cash incentive program for 2008 as

reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column of the Summary Compensation Table on page 27

There were no restricted stock award grants made to the NEOs in 2008

These stock option awards were made under the Companys 2001 Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated on

December 15 2008 They are exercisable in four equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date

of grant February 12 2009 and expire on February 12 2018

The exercise price of these awards is equal to the arithmetic mean of the high and low market price of the Companys

Common Stock on the grant date

The February 12th grant date fair value for stock options is based on the Black-Scholes option valuation model

applying the following assumptions an expected stock-price volatility factor of 25% risk-free rate of return of 2.97%

dividend yield of 1.05% and an expected time of exercise of 5.5 years from the date of grant The Black-Scholes

model is premised on the immediate exercisability and transferability of the options neither of which applies to the

options set out in the table above The actual amounts realized if any will depend on the extent to which the stock price

exceeds the option exercise price at the time the option is exercised

Mr Clarkson target amount is listed at the annual amount though any payments to him would have been pro-rated

based on his termination date of July 31 2008 Mr Clarksons 2008 stock option grant was forfeited
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END TABLE FOR 2008

The following table sets forth information concerning unexercised options stock that has not vested and equity

incentive plan awards for each of the Companys Named Executive Officers outstanding as of December 31 2008 The

market value of the shares that have not vested is based on the closing market price of the Companys Common Stock on

December 31 2008 on the New York Stock Exchange

Option Awards1 Stock Awards2

Equity

Incentive

Plan

Awards
Equity Market

Incentive or Payout
Equity Plan Value of

Incentive Awards Unearned
Plan Number of Shares

Awards Number of Unearned Units orNumber of Number of
Number of Shares or Shares OtherSecurities Securities
Securities Units of Market Value of Units or RightsUnderlying Underlying

Underlying Stock Shares or Units Other That
Unexercised Unexercised

Unexercised Option Option That Have of Stock That Rights That Have Not
Options Options

Unearned Exercise Expiration Not Have Not Have Not Vested

Name Exercisable Unexercisable Options Price Date Vested Vested $3 Vested

Raymond McDaniel 39740 $10.9916 12/21/2009 37575 $754882

44120 10.7092 01/19/2010

300000 14.0625 10/03/2010

230000 19.9875 02/07/2012

212000 21.2675 02/07/2013

165000 32.4075 02/09/2014

125625 41875 41.6875 02/22/2015

57111 57112 63.0900 02/08/2016

25700 77100 72.7150 02/12/2017

185000 38.0700 02/12/2018

Linda Huber 50000 16667 44.9850 07/01/2015 15740 316217

22500 22500 63.0900 02/08/20 16

11125 33375 72.7150 02/12/2017

85000 38.0700 02/12/2018

Michel Madelain 11789 21.2675 02/07/2013 4597 92354
8573 32.4075 02/09/2014

19095 6365 41.6875 02/22/2015

6812 6813 63.0900 02/08/2016

3187 9563 72.7150 02/12/2017

62500 38.0700 02/12/2018

Mark Almeida 70000 14.0625 10/03/2010 8283 166405

50000 19.9875 02/07/2012

46000 21.2675 02/07/2013

33000 32.4075 02/09/2014

27637 9213 41.6875 02/22/2015

12500 12500 63.0900 02/08/2016

5687 17063 72.7150 02/12/2017

62500 38.0700 02/12/2018

John Goggins 70000 19.9875 02/07/2012 8575 172272

64000 21.2675 02/07/2013

46500 32.4075 02/09/2014

32662 10888 41.6875 02/22/2015

12250 12250 63.0900 02/08/2016

6062 18188 72.7150 02/12/2017

50000 38.0700 02/12/2018

Brian Clarkson 29300 21.2675 02/07/2013

82500 32.4075 07/31/2013

60300 20100 41.6875 07/31/2013

25000 25000 63.0900 07/31/2013

12375 37125 72.7150 07/31/2013

31



Option awards are exercisable in four equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the

date of grant The grant date for options is ten years earlier than the Option Expiration Date reported in this

table

Subject to the NEOs continued employment through each vesting date the vesting of restricted stock

awards in any one year generally depends on the financial performance of the Company Twenty-five

percent of the total number of shares subject to an award represents the Target Shares for each vesting

year If the Companys annual operating income growth in any one year
is less than 10% then 50% of

the Target Shares will vest ii between 10% and 15% inclusive then 100% of the Target Shares will vest

and iii greater than 15% then 150% of the Target Shares will vest Notwithstanding the possibility of

accelerated vesting in any year of operating income growth greater
than 15% no more than 100% of the

initial award will vest and all shares will vest in full if not previously vested five years from the grant date

subject to the NEO continued employment through such date regardless of whether the specified

performance goals have been achieved

Value is calculated based on the closing price of the Common Stock on December 31 2008 $20.09

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED TABLE FOR 2008

The following table sets forth information concerning the number of shares of Common Stock acquired and

the value realized upon the exercise of stock options and the number of shares of Common Stock acquired and

the value realized upon vesting of restricted stock awards during 2008 for each of the Companys Named

Executive Officers on an aggregated basis In the case of stock options the value realized is based on the market

price of the Companys Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange at the time of exercise and the option

exercise price in the case of restricted stock awards the value realized is based on the average high and low

market price of the Companys Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the vesting date

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of Shares Number of Shares

Acquired on Value Realized on Acquired on Value Realized

Name Exercise Exercise Vesting on Vesting

Raymond McDaniel 23208 863338

Linda Huber 9496 353251

Michel Madelain 3007 111860

MarkE Almeida 5106 189943

JohnJ Goggins 5431 202033

Brian Clarkson 282731 1014828

Because Mr Clarkson departure was retirement under the Companys equity plans as consequence

his restricted stock grants will vest in full and all restrictions on such shares lapsed upon his termination and

his unvested stock options other than the grant he received in 2008 will continue to vest and together with

his vested stock options be exercisable for five years from the date of termination or if shorter the

remaining stated term of each option
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PENSION BENEFITS TABLE FOR 2008

The following table sets forth information with respect to each defined benefit pension plan that provides for

payments or other benefits to the Named Executive Officers at following or in connection with retirement

Present Value of Payments
Number of Accumulated During Last

Years Credited Benefit at 12/31/08 Fiscal Year
Name Plan Name Service /2
Raymond McDaniel Retirement Account 20.5000 192060

Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 20.5000 978270

Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 21.8333 10238587

Linda Huber Retirement Account 2.5833 24601

Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 2.5833 67922

Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 3.6667 522340

Michel Madelain Moodys Group Personal Pension Plan

Mark Almeida Retirement Account 19.5000 157702

Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 19.5000 267323

Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan

John Goggins Retirement Account 8.8333 70473

Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 8.8333 137729

Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 9.9 167 1053883

Brian Clarkson Retirement Account 16.0833 173121

Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 16.0833 598759

Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 17.0833 2001914

___________
Severance Agreement3 17.0833 3002870

The Company provides retirement benefits to the NEOs under three defined benefit pension plans except for

Michel Madelain who is not U.S employee As reflected in footnote to the Summary Compensation

Table an amount was contributed by the Companys subsidiary in the UK to the Moodys Group Personal

Pension Plan on Mr Madelain behalf Using an exchange rate of 1.4619 from the Federal Reserve Bank of

New York as of December 31 2008 the amount contributed was $37299 in 2008

The credited service for the Retirement Account and the PBEP is based on service from the date the

individual became participant in the plan Individuals become participants in the plan on the first day of

the month coincident with or next following the completion of one year
of service The SEBP provides

credited service from the participants date of hire with Moodys For Messrs McDaniel Clarkson and

Almeida the date of participation in the Retirement Account is based on an earlier plan provision that

provided for individuals to become participants on the January or July following the completion of one

year of service

The SEBP features cliff vesting provision pursuant to which any SEBP participant who terminates

employment before both reaching the
age of 55 and accumulating 10 years of service will have his SEBP

benefits reduced by 60% of the otherwise accrued benefit The Board exercised its authority to waive the

reduction in benefits for
pre-age 55 terminations and granted Mr Clarkson the full value of his accrued

SEBP benefit otherwise in accordance with plan terms The amount shown in the Severance Agreement

row reflects the benefit he received as result of the Company agreeing to provide unreduced SEBP
benefits

The Company provides retirement benefits to the Named Executive Officers under three defined benefit

pension plans except for Michel Madelain who is not U.S employee the Moodys Corporation Retirement

Account the Retirement Account the Moodys Corporation Pension Benefit Equalization Plan the PBEP
and the Moodys Corporation Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan the SEBP The Retirement Account is

broad-based tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan The PBEP is non-tax-qualified defined benefit pension

plan that restores benefits to participants that would otherwise be lost under the Retirement Account due to
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limitations under the federal income tax laws on the provision of benefits under tax-qualified defined benefit

pension plans The Retirement Account together with the PBEP provides retirement income based on

percentage of annual compensation The SEBP is non-tax-qualified supplemental executive retirement plan that

provides more generous
benefits than the PBEP for designated senior executive officers of the Company An

amount was contributed by the Companys subsidiary in the UK to the Moodys Group Personal Pension Plan

described below on Mr Madelain behalf

None of the continuing Named Executive Officers are currently eligible for early retirement under any of

the Companys defined benefit pension plans

The assumptions made in computing the present value of the accumulated benefits of the Named Executive

Officers except as described in the following sentence are incorporated
herein by reference to the discussion of

those assumptions under the heading Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits in the Managements

Discussion and Analysis and Note 11 to the financial statements as contained in the Companys Annual Report

on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on March 2009 The assumed retirement age
used in computing the

present value of the accumulated benefits of the Named Executive Officers was age
65 in the case of the

Retirement Account age 65 in the case of the PBEP and age
55 in the case of the SEBP

The material terms in effect in 2008 of the Retirement Account the PBEP and the SEBP are described

below Each of these plans was amended effective as of January 2008 Therefore future benefit accruals made

under these plans will be subject to revised terms

Moodys Corporation Retirement Account

All U.S employees hired prior to January 2008 and who have been continuously employed are eligible to

participate in the Retirement Account after attaining age 21 and completing one year of service with the

Company Participants earn one month of credited service for each month or fraction thereof from the date they

become eligible to participate in the plan The Retirement Account is cash balance plan providing benefits that

grow monthly as hypothetical account balances which are credited with interest and pay-based credits Interest

credits are based on 30-year Treasury interest rate equivalent with minimum compounded annual interest rate

of 3% Pay-based credits are amounts allocated to each participants hypothetical account based upon

percentage of monthly pensionable compensation The percentage of compensation allocated annually ranges

from 3% to 12.5% Each participants pay-based credit percentage is based on their attained age and credited

service Compensation is based on actual earnings which include base salary regular bonus or annual incentive

award overtime and commissions Severance pay contingent payments and other forms of special

remuneration are excluded

Participants vest in their benefits after completing three years of service with the Company Upon termination

of employment participant may elect to receive an immediate lump sum distribution equal to 50% of his cash

balance account The remaining 50% of the cash balance account must be received in the form of an annuity upon

retirement at age 55 or later The normal retirement age under the Retirement Account is age 65 but participants

who have attained age 55 with at least 10 years
of service may elect to retire early Upon retirement participants can

choose among the various actuarially equivalent forms of annuities offered under the plan The Retirement Account

was amended as of January 2008 in order to keep the plan in compliance with recent tax law changes These

changes included revising actuarial assumptions used for calculating distributions adding an option for married

participants to elect joint and survivor annuity with 75% continuation benefit for the surviving spouse reflecting

required three-year vesting of benefits and adding roll-over rights for non-spouse beneficiaries

Moodys Corporation Pension Benefit Equalization Plan

The PBEP is non-tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan that restores benefits to participants whose

pensionable compensation exceeds the limitations under the federal income tax laws on the provision of benefits

under tax-qualified defined benefit pension plans For 2008 this limitation was $230000 The provisions of the
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PBEP are the same as those of the Retirement Account except for the form of payment which must be as lump

sum Upon attaining age 55 with at least 10 years of service participants may elect to retire The PBEP was

amended as of January 2008 to provide that any participant who is an active employee of the Company or any

subsidiary after December 31 2004 shall receive all of his benefits under the PBEP in lump sum on the six

month anniversary of his separation from service with the Company or subsidiary

Moodys Corporation Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan

The SEBP is closed to new participants and the only Named Executive Officers participating in the plan are

Mr McDaniel Ms Huber and Mr Goggins The SEBP is non-tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan

designed to ensure the payment of competitive level of retirement income and disability benefits to participants

Historically key management employee of the Company who was deemed to be responsible for the

management growth or protection of the Companys business and who was designated in writing by the Chief

Executive Officer and approved by the Governance and Compensation Committee was eligible to participate in

the plan on the effective date of his designation The target retirement benefit for participant is equal to 2% of

average final compensation for each year of credited service up to 30 years of credited service for maximum

benefit of 60% of average final compensation This target benefit is offset by other pension benefits earned under

the Retirement Account and PBEP as well as benefits payable from Social Security and other pension benefits

payable by the Company

Participants earn one month of credited service for each month or fraction thereof that they are employed by

the Company Eligible compensation includes base salary annual incentive awards commissions lump sum

payments in lieu of foregone merit increases bonus buyouts as the result of job changes and any portion of

such amounts voluntarily deferred or reduced by the participant under any Company employee benefit plan

Average final compensation is the highest consecutive 60 months of eligible compensation in the last 120 months

of employment

The SEBP also provides temporary disability benefit in the event of participants total and permanent

disability This disability benefit is equal to 60% of the 12 months of compensation earned by the participant

immediately prior to the date of disability The disability benefit is offset by any other disability income and/or

pension income the participant is already receiving Payment of the temporary disability benefit continues during

the participants period of disability but no later than age 65 During the period of total and permanent disability

participant continues to earn credited service for retirement purposes

Participants vest in their benefits after completing five
years of service with the Company Benefits are

payable at the later of age 55 or termination of employment For participants who terminate their employment

prior to attaining age 55 benefits must commence at age 55 and their SEBP benefit will be reduced by 60% for

early retirement If participant or vested former participant retires directly from the Company after age 55 and

before age 60 without the Companys consent his retirement benefit is reduced by 3% for each year or fraction

thereof that retirement commences prior to reaching age 60 If participant retires directly from the Company on

or after age 55 with the Companys consent benefits are not reduced for commencement prior to age
60

The normal form of payment under the SEBP is single-life annuity for non-married participants or fully

subsidized 50% joint and survivor annuity for married participants Participants may receive up to 100% of their

benefit in the form of lump-sum distribution by making written election at least 12 months prior to

termination of employment 2008 actuarial present values generally were higher if lump sums are in effect

The SEBP was amended January 2008 in order to reflect the requirements of Section 409A of the Internal

Revenue Code
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Moodys UK Group Personal Pension Plan

The Group Personal Pension Plan the GPPP enables employees in the United Kingdom to contribute to

pension arrangement The GPPP is collection of individual pension policies Each member has his or own

individual pension policy within the GPPP and if the employee changes jobs the employee may be able to

continue to contribute to the policy if he so wishes Membership in the GPPP is voluntary and is offered to all

employees of the Companys UK subsidiary Moodys UK who are directly employed by Moodys UK are

between the ages
of 18 and 65 and have completed three months of service Moodys UK makes contributions

representing percentage of pensionable salary at rate dependent upon the employees age The percentage

increases as the employees age near retirement Moodys UK will stop paying contributions to the GPPP when

an employee leaves service or on the date of contractual retirement if earlier As condition to membership in

the GPPP an employee is required to make regular contributions of at least 3% of ones pensionable salary for

the first two years
of membership After an employee is member of the GPPP for two years

the employee is

not required to contribute personally to the GPPP in order to benefit from the contributions available from

Moodys UK but the employee may elect to pay personal contributions on voluntary basis up to maximum

amount set forth in the GPPP which is dependent upon ones age and earnings Employee contributions qualify

for tax relief and they are invested in funds which have beneficial tax treatment Employees are not taxed on the

contributions paid into the GPPP by Moodys UK

NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION TABLE1

The following table sets forth information concerning the nonqualified deferred compensation of the Named

Executive Officers in 2008

Aggregate

Aggregate Balance

Executive Registrant Earnings Aggregate at Last

Contributions Contributions in Last Withdrawals/ Fiscal

in Last Fiscal in Last Fiscal Fiscal Distributions Year-End

Name Year Year Year

Raymond McDaniel

Linda Huber

Michel Madelain

Mark Almeida 43542 10938 13290 41189

John Goggins 19025 9513 2780 25757

Brian Clarkson 16250 8125 5333 19042

No nonqualified deferred compensation earnings were included in the Change in Pension Value and

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings of the Summary Compensation Table as there were no

above-market earnings for the NEOs under the Moodys Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan in 2008

Moodys Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan

Effective January 2008 the Company implemented the Moodys Corporation Deferred Compensation

Plan the DCP Each year employees expected to earn annual compensation in excess of the IRS

compensation limit for allowable pre-tax deferrals into the Moodys Profit Participation Plan are notified of their

eligibility to participate in the DCP

The primary purpose of the DCP is to allow these employees to continue pre-tax
deductions into

nonqualified plan and receive the maximum company match on compensation which exceeds the IRS limits for

allowable pre-tax deferrals into the Moodys Profit Participation Plan limited group of highly compensated

senior management has the option of immediate deferral of up to 50% of base salary and/or bonus However the

Company match only applies to deferrals in excess of the IRS limit on compensation In addition the Company

will credit to the DCP employer contributions that would have been made to the Profit Participation Plan but for

the application of the compensation limit
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Each participant may select one or more deemed investment funds offered under the DCP for the investment

of the participants account and future contributions The deemed investment funds are substantially the same as

the funds available in the Profit Participation Plan The DCP is unfunded and no cash amounts are paid into or set

aside in trust or similar fund under the DCP All amounts deducted from participants earnings along with

any Company contributions are retained as part of the Companys general assets and are credited to the

participants bookkeeping account under the DCP The value of participants account increases or decreases in

value based upon the fair market value of the deemed investment funds as of the end of the year The forms of

distribution under the DCP are either lump sum or an annuity after termination

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CONTROL

The information below reflects the amount of compensation that would become payable to each of the

Named Executive Officers under certain existing plans and arrangements if the executives employment had

terminated under the specified circumstances or if there had been change in control on December 31 2008
given the named executives compensation and if applicable based on the Companys closing stock price on that

date These benefits are in addition to benefits that may be available to the executive prior to the occurrence of

any termination of employment including under exercisable stock options held by the executive and benefits

available generally to salaried employees such as distributions under the Companys tax-qualified defined

contribution plan and accrued vacation pay In addition in connection with any event including or other than

those described below the Company may determine to enter into an agreement or to establish an arrangement

providing additional benefits or amounts or altering the terms of benefits described below as the Company
determines appropriate

The actual amounts that would be paid upon Named Executive Officers termination of employment can

be determined only at the time of such executives separation from the Company Due to the number of factors

that affect the nature and amount of any benefits provided upon the events discussed below any actual amounts

paid or distributed may be higher or lower than reported below Factors that could affect these amounts include

the timing during the year of any such event the Companys stock price and the executives then current

compensation

Moodys Corporation Career Transition Plan

Each of the Companys Named Executive Officers currently participates in the Moodys Corporation Career

Transition Plan This plan generally provides for the payment of benefits if an eligible executive officers

employment terminates for one of several specified events reduction in force job elimination unsatisfactory

job performance not constituting cause or mutually agreed upon resignation

The CTP provides payments and benefits to individuals for what Moodys believes to be reasonable period

for them to find comparable employment It also affords both Moodys and the individual the motivation to

resolve any potential claims or other issues between the parties with finality which helps minimize distractions

for management and protect the interests of stockholders

The plan does not cover employment terminations resulting from unilateral resignation termination of

employment for cause sale merger spin-off reorganization liquidation or dissolution of the Company or

where the Named Executive Officer takes comparable position with an affiliate of the Company Cause

means willful malfeasance or misconduct continuing failure to perform his duties failure to observe the

material policies of the Company or the conmiission of felony or any misdemeanor involving moral turpitude

In the event of an eligible termination of employment Named Executive Officer may be paid 52 weeks of

salary continuation 26 weeks if the executive officer is terminated by the Company for unsatisfactory

performance payable at the times the executive officers salary would have been paid if employment had not

terminated For this purpose salary consists of the Named Executive Officers annual base salary at the time of
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termination of employment In addition the Named Executive Officer may receive continued medical dental

and life insurance benefits during the applicable salary continuation period and will be entitled to such

outplacement services during the salary continuation period as are being generally provided by the Company to

its employees In addition the executive is entitled to receive any benefits that he or she otherwise would have

been entitled to receive under Moodys retirement plans although these benefits are not increased or accelerated

Except in the case of termination of employment by the Company for unsatisfactory performance the

Named Executive Officer also may receive

prorated portion of the actual annual cash incentive for the year of termination of employment that

would have been payable to the executive officer under the annual cash incentive plan in which the

executive officer was participating at the time of termination provided that the executive officer was

employed for at least six full months during the calendar year of termination

financial planning and counseling services during the salary continuation period to the same extent

afforded immediately prior to termination of employment

The plan gives the Companys Chairman and Chief Executive Officer the discretion to reduce or increase

the benefits otherwise payable to or otherwise modify the terms and conditions applicable to Named

Executive Officer other than himself under the plan As matter of policy if Mr McDaniel intended to

increase the benefits payable any
such proposal would be reviewed by the Committee

The receipt of any benefits under the plan is contingent upon the affected Named Executive Officer signing

severance and release agreement that prohibits him from engaging in conduct that is detrimental to the

Company such as working for certain competitors soliciting customers or employees after employment ends

and disclosing confidential information the disclosure of which would result in competitive harm to us These

provisions extend for the one year period during with the Named Executive Officer would be receiving payments

pursuant to the CTP

The estimated payments and benefits payable to the Named Executive Officers assuming an event triggering

payment under the CTP as of the last day of 2008 are reported in the discussion of Potential Payments Upon

Termination or Change in Control on page 37

The estimated payments and benefits that would be provided to each Named Executive Officer still serving

in that capacity under each circumstance that is covered by the Career Transition Plan are listed in the tables

below

Potential Payments and Benefits Upon Termination of Employment

By Reason of Reduction in Force Job Elimination

or Mutually Agreed Upon Resignation1

Cash

Payments in Medical
Lieu of Dental and

Performance Life Out-

Salary Annual Cash Based Insurance Placement

Continuation Incentive Awards Benefits Services Total

_____

Raymond McDaniel $936000 $1465200 $11662 $25000 $2437862

Linda Huber 510000 660000 25000 1195000

Michel Madelain 409332 497046 1023 25000 932401

Mark Almeida 450000 528000 6363 25000 1009363

JohnJ Goggins 400000 385000 11662 25000 821662

Brian Clarkson2 379167 6803 385970
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For purposes of this analysis the following assumptions were used

the date of termination of employment was December 31 2008

each NEOs base salary was the amount as of December 31 2008 and is continued for period of 52

weeks and

each NEOs annual cash incentive is equal to 100% of the target amount under the annual cash

incentive program

Mr Clarkson is entitled to 52 weeks of salary and benefits continuation under the CTP Salary continuation

amounts received in 2008 under the CTP are reflected in the All Other Compensation column of the

Summary Compensation Table on page 27 The salary continuation amount included in the table above

reflects the amount of his salary continuation to be paid in 2009 the receipt of which is contingent upon his

release agreement that prohibits him from engaging in conduct that is detrimental to the Company such as

working for certain competitors soliciting customers or employees after employment ends and disclosing

confidential information the disclosure of which would result in competitive harm to us The amounts

shown in the Medical Dental and Life Insurance Benefits column reflect the continuation of benefits to

be received by him in 2009

Potential Payments and Benefits Upon Termination of Employment

By Reason of Unsatisfactory Job Performance

Not Constituting Cause1

Medical

Dental and

Life Out-

Salary Insurance Placement

Continuation Benefits Services Total

Raymond McDaniel $468000 $11662 $25000 $504662

Linda Huber 255000 25000 280000
Michel Madelain 204666 1023 25000 230689
Mark Almeida 225000 6363 25000 256363

JohnJ Goggins 200000 11662 25000 236662

For purposes of this analysis the following assumptions were used

the date of termination of employment was December 31 2008 and

each NEO base salary was the amount as of December 31 2008 and is continued for period of 26

weeks

Other Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment

Except for the Career Transition Plan and as provided below the Company does not have any other

contracts agreements plans or arrangements that provide for payments to Named Executive Officer at

following or in connection with termination of employment or change in control of the Company or change

in the Named Executive Officers responsibilities

The Companys 2001 Stock Incentive Plan provides for vesting of outstanding stock options and restricted

stock awards under certain circumstances as follows

in the event of the death or disability of Named Executive Officer after the first anniversary of the

date of grant of stock option the unvested portion of such stock option will immediately vest in full

and such portion may thereafter be exercised during the shorter of the remaining stated term of the

stock option or five years after the date of death or disability
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in the event of the retirement of Named Executive Officer after the first anniversary of the date of

grant of stock option the unvested portion of such stock option will continue to vest in full during the

shorter of the remaining stated term of the stock option or five years after the date of retirement

in the event of termination for any reason other than death disability or retirement an unexercised

stock option may thereafter be exercised during the period ending 30 days after the date of termination

but only to the extent such stock option was exercisable at the time of termination

in the event of the death disability or retirement of Named Executive Officer after the first

anniversary of the date of grant of restricted stock award the award will immediately vest in full

in the event of termination for
any reason other than death disability or retirement after the first

anniversary of the date of grant of restricted stock award the award shall be forfeited and

in the event of change in control of the Company the unvested portion of all outstanding stock

options and restricted stock awards vest in full

None of the continuing Named Executive Officers are currently eligible for retirement under the 2001 Stock

Incentive Plan

Potential Payments and Benefits Upon Termination of

Employment Following Change in Control of the Company1

Restricted Stock

Stock Options Awards Total

Raymond McDaniel $754882 $754882

LindaS.Huber 316217 316217

Michel Madelain 92354 92354

Mark Almeida 166405 166405

John Goggins 172272 172272

For purposes of this analysis the following assumptions were used

the date of termination of employment or the change in control of the Company was December 31

2008 and

the market price per share of the Companys Common Stock on December 31 2008 was $20.09 per

share the closing price of the Common Stock on that date

Potential Payments and Benefits Upon Termination of

Employment by Reason of Death Disability or Retirement1

Restricted Stock

Stock Options Awards Total

Raymond McDaniel $754882 $754882

LindaS.Huber 316217 316217

Michel Madelain 92354 92354

Mark Almeida 166405 166405

John Goggins 172272 172272

For purposes
of this analysis the following assumptions were used

the date of termination of employment or the change in control of the Company was December 31

2008 and

the market price per
share of the Companys Common Stock on December 31 2008 was $20.09 per

share the closing price of the Common Stock on that date
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

ITEM 3INDEPENDENT CHAIRMAN

The Massachusetts Laborers Pension Fund 14 New England Executive Park Suite 200 P.O Box 4000

Burlington Massachusetts 01803-0900 the beneficial owner of 1100 shares of Common Stock has given notice

of his intention to make the following proposal at the Annual Meeting

RESOLVED That stockholders of Moodys Corporation Moody or the Company ask the board of

directors to adopt policy that the boards chairman be an independent director who has not previously served as

an executive officer of Moodys The policy should be implemented so as not to violate any contractual

obligation The policy should also specify how the select new independent chairman if current chairman

ceases to be independent during the time between annual meetings of shareholders and that compliance with

the policy is excused if no independent director is available and willing to serve as chairman

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to protect shareholders long-term interests by providing

independent oversight of management including the Chief Executive Officer CEO in directing the

corporations business and affairs Currently at our Company Mr Raymond McDaniel Jr is both the Chairman

of the Board and the CEO We believe that this current scheme may not adequately protect shareholders

Shareholders of Moodys require an independent leader to ensure that management acts strictly in the best

interests of the Company By setting agendas priorities and procedures the position of Chairman is critical in

shaping the work of the Board of Directors Accordingly we believe that having an independent director serve as

chairman can help ensure the objective functioning of an effective Board

As long-term shareholder of our Company we believe that ensuring that the Chairman of the Board of our

Company is independent will enhance Board leadership at Moodys and protect shareholders from future

management actions that can harm shareholders Other corporate governance experts agree As Commission of

The Conference Board stated in 2003 report The ultimate responsibility for good corporate governance rests

with the board of directors Only strong diligent and independent board of directors that understands the key

issues provides wise counsel and asks management the tough questions is capable of ensuring the interests of

shareowners as well as other constituencies are being properly served

We believe that the recent wave of corporate scandals demonstrates that no matter how many independent

directors there are on the Board that Board is less able to provide independent oversight of the officers if the

Chairman of that Board is also the CEO of the Company

We therefore urge shareholders to vote FOR this proposal

Statement of the Board of Directors in Opposition to Independent Chair Stockholder Proposal

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that stockholders vote AGAINST this proposal

The proponent is requesting that the Board adopt policy that the Chairman of the Board be an independent

director who has not previously served as an executive officer of the Company However the Board already has

mechanisms in place to provide independent Board leadership including Lead Independent Director and the

Board believes that the Company and its stockholders are best served by the Boards current leadership structure

Lead Independent Director To provide independent Board leadership the Company has Lead

Independent Director who is appointed annually by the independent directors As discussed on page of this

Proxy Statement and in our Corporate Governance Principles the Lead Independent Director presides over and
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sets the agenda for executive sessions of the independent directors and has the authority to call executive

sessions of the independent directors The Lead Independent Directors responsibilities also include

consulting with the Chairman regarding agendas scheduling and information needs for Board and committee

meetings acting as liaison between the independent directors and management and presiding at Board

meetings when the Chairman is not present By contrast the Chairmans responsibilities include presiding at

meetings of the Board and at the annual meeting of stockholders

Independent Oversight The Board also has adopted number of governance practices that promote the

independence of the Board and independent oversight of management First eight out of nine members of the

Board are independent directors Second both the Audit Committee and the Governance and Compensation

Committee consist solely of independent directors Third the independent directors routinely meet in executive

sessions which the Lead Independent Director chairs In 2008 there were four executive sessions of the Board

Finally the Governance and Compensation and Committee consisting solely of independent directors is

responsible for evaluating the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and all of the independent directors

approve the Chief Executive Officers compensation after considering the results of the evaluation

Current Leadership Structure The Board also believes that the Company and its stockholders are best

served by the Boards current leadership structure in which Mr McDaniel serves as our Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer Rather than taking one-size fits all approach to Board leadership our Corporate

Governance Principles permit the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to be filled by the same or

different individuals This allows the Board the flexibility to determine whether the roles should be combined or

separated based upon the Companys circumstances and needs at any given time The Board currently believes

that the Company and its stockholders are best served by having Mr McDaniel serve in both positions He is

most familiar with our business and the unique challenges the Company faces in the current environment and is

best situated to lead discussions on important matters affecting the Company at this time

In this regard the Boards current leadership structure is consistent with practice at majority of U.S

companies American companies have historically followed model in which the chief executive officer also

serves as chairman of the board This model has succeeded because it makes clear that the chief executive officer

and chairman is responsible for managing the corporations business under the oversight and review of its board

This structure also enables the chief executive officer to act as bridge between management and the board

helping both to act with common purpose According to one survey in 2008 61% of the boards of directors at

SP 500 companies had combined chairman and chief executive officer see Spencer Stuart Board Index 2008

available at www spencerstuart.coml

Based on the foregoing the Board believes that adopting policy that requires an independent Chairman of

the Board is unnecessary
and not in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders For these reasons the

Board opposes adopting policy to require an independent Chairman

The Board of Directors therefore recommends vote AGAINST this stockholder proposal

ITEM 4SHARE RETENTION POLICY

The American Federal of State County and Municipal Employees AFL-CIO 1625 Street N.W

Washington DC 20036-5687 the beneficial owner of 1444 shares of Common Stock has given notice of his

intention to make the following proposal at the Annual Meeting

RESOLVED that stockholders of Moodys Corporation Moodys urge the Governance and

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors the Committee to adopt policy requiring that senior

executives retain significant percentage of shares acquired through equity compensation programs until two

years following the termination of their employment through retirement or otherwise and to report to

stockholders regarding the policy before Moodys 2010 annual meeting of stockholders The stockholders

recommend that the Committee not adopt percentage
lower than 75% of net after-tax shares The policy should

address the permissibility of transactions such as hedging transactions which are not sales but reduce the risk of

loss to the executive
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SUPPORTING STATEMENT

Equity-based compensation is an important component of senior executive compensation at Moodys
According to Moodys 2008 proxy statement long-term incentive compensation paid 100% in equity grants

accounted for between 55 and 70% of total compensation for the Named Executive Officers

Moodys claims that equity-based compensation promotes alignment between executive and stockholder

interests Unfortunately Moodys equity compensation programs have yet to translate into meaningful levels of

stock ownership Moodys most recent proxy statement disclosed that CEO Raymond McDaniel owned only

138140 shares outright as of December 31 2007 .055% of shares outstanding on that date And all officers and

directors as group owned outright only 2927272 shares or 1.16% of shares outstanding on December 31
2007 Thus we believe that the alignment benefits touted by Moodys are not being fully realized

Requiring senior executives to hold significant portion of shares obtained through compensation plans

after the termination of employment would focus them on Moodys long-term success and would better align

their interests with those of Moodys stockholders In the context of the current financial crisis we believe it is

imperative that companies reshape their compensation policies and practices to discourage excessive risk-taking

and promote long-term sustainable value creation 2002 report by the commission of The Conference Board

endorsed the idea of holding requirement stating that the long-tem focus promoted thereby may help prevent

companies from artificially propping up stock prices over the short-term to cash out options and making other

potentially negative short-term decisions

In February 2008 Moodys adopted stock ownership guideline requiring directors and executives to own
shares of Moodys stock worth specified multiple of base salary or in the case of outside directors the annual

cash retainer The directors and executives covered by the policy have five
years

in which to comply We believe

this policy does not go far enough to ensure that equity compensation builds executive ownership especially

given the extended time period for compliance We also view retention requirement approach as superior to

stock ownership guideline because guideline loses effectiveness once it has been satisfied

We urge stockholders to vote for this proposal

Statement of the Board of Directors in Opposition to Proposal on Retention of Shares Acquired Under

Equity Compensation Programs

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that stockholders vote AGAINST this proposal

The proponent is requesting that the Governance and Compensation Committee adopt policy requiring

senior executive officers to retain significant percentage of shares acquired through equity compensation

programs until two years after their departure from the Company The proposal further recommends that this

percentage be no lower than 75% of net after-tax shares The Board believes that such policy is unnecessary

because the Companys executives already own and hold meaningful amount of Company stock pursuant to the

Companys stock ownership guidelines The Board believes that these guidelines have successfully aligned the

interests of the Companys executives with the interests of stockholders and that setting 75% threshold could be

onerous on those executives

Stock Ownership Guidelines The Company has had stock ownership guidelines for its executive officers

in place for over four years since July 2004 not since February 2008 as the proposal incorrectly states As

discussed on page 25 of this Proxy Statement and in our Corporate Governance Principles ownership guidelines

are five times base salary for the Chief Executive Officer and three times base salary for the remaining named

executives officers Executives have until July 2009 or five
years

from the date on which they became

executives to satisfy the guidelines The Governance and Compensation Committee has been monitoring

compliance with these guidelines periodically since their adoption and intends to revisit the status of compliance
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with the guidelines as July 2009 approaches The current financial crisis has adversely impacted the Companys

stock price and consequently has affected the number of shares that executives must own in order to satisfy the

thresholds in the stock ownership guidelines However the Board believes that these thresholds have been

appropriately designed to align the interests of the Companys executives with those of its stockholders The

Board also believes based on executives current stock ownership levels that the stock ownership guidelines are

accomplishing their intended purpose of aligning executive and stockholder interests and ensuring that

executives own and hold meaningful amount of Company stock

Retention of Company Stock The proposal singles out Mr McIaniel ownership of Company stock in

support of its argument that stock retention policy is superior to the Companys current stock ownership

guidelines However Mr McDaniel has not exercised single one of the stock option awards granted to him

since 2000 he has held all of his stock options Similarly since 2000 Mr McDaniel only disposition of

restricted stock has occurred in connection with the automatic sale of shares for tax withholding purposes upon

vesting of the restricted stock practice that the proposal specifically would permit Since our executives

including Mr McDaniel already have followed practice of retaining their stock in the Company the Board

believes that policy mandating that they do so is unnecessary

Hedging Transactions All executive officers and directors are subject to securities trading policy

whereby hedging transactions are prohibited We believe that these prohibitions are crucial to the elimination of

speculative trading

Based on the foregoing the Board believes that it is unnecessary for the Company to adopt policy

requiring executives to retain significant percentage of shares acquired through equity compensation

programs until two years after their departure from the Company For this reason the Board opposes the

proposal

The Board of Directors therefore recommends vote AGAINST this stockholder proposal

OTHER BUSINESS

The Board of Directors knows of no business other than the matters set forth herein that will be presented at

the Annual Meeting Inasmuch as matters not known at this time may come before the Annual Meeting the

enclosed proxy confers discretionary authority with respect to such matters as may properly come before the

Annual Meeting and it is the intention of the persons
named in the proxy to vote in accordance with their best

judgment on such matters

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2010 ANNUAL MEETING

Stockholder proposals which are being submitted for inclusion in the Companys proxy statement and form

of proxy for the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders must be received by the Company at its principal executive

offices no later than 530 p.m EST on November 18 2009 Such proposals when submitted must be in full

compliance with applicable laws including Rule 14a-8 of the Exchange Act

Under the Companys By-Laws notices of matters which are being submitted other than for inclusion in the

Companys proxy statement and form of proxy for the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders must be received by

the Corporate Secretary of the Company at its principal executive offices no earlier than January 28 2010 and no

later than February 17 2010 Such matters when submitted must be in full compliance with applicable law and

the Companys By-Laws If we do not receive notice of matter by February 17 2010 the persons named as

proxies will be allowed to use their discretionary voting authority when and if the matter is raised at the meeting

March 18 2009
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER READERS

In my letter to you last year observed that the severity and

protracted nature of market dislocations. confirms that

the challenges of 2007 will persist well into 2008 It is now

obvious that those challenges not only persisted but also

deepened and widened breaching previously safe havens of

the global economy By the fourth quarter of 2008 we were

witnessing worldwide paralysis in the global credit markets

Determining the mechanismsthat will support sustainable

recovery and restore market confidence will be critical effort

through 2009 and will carry lasting aftereffects For Moodys
this recovery process represents both responsibility and

an opportunity Moodys Investors Service has enhanced its

rating processes and ratings transparency summarizedin

our Special Comment Strengthening Analytical Quality and

7ansparency available to readers in the Credit Policy area of

moodys.com Moodys Analytics has developed and invested

in important risk-management products and services both

independently and through selective acquisitions will

further discuss our efforts in the context of current and longer

term financial market dynamics after brief summaryof

Moodys financial performance for 2008



THE YEAR IN REVIEW At Moodys Investors Service global ratings revenue

Moodys financial performance in zoo8 was disappointing
declined by 32% in zoo8 with the largest contraction corn-

Revenue contracted by approximately $5oo million and et ing from structured finance The structured finance market

income by $235
million1 versus the Companys record

per-

faced difficulties all year with new issuance disappearing in

formance in 2007 Market conditions were sluggish from
the U.S and slowing internationally in the fourth quarter

the beginning of the year through mid-September when The corporate finance ratings area also experienced

credit markets collapsed
and issuance activity virtually

material decline with high-yield bonds and bank loans hit

ceased through year-end Loss of investor confidence led to
hardest by investors limited appetite

for risk Our financial

extreme risk aversion with demand for capital protection
institutions ratings business posted modest decrease for

clearly trumping the demand for return on capital
the

year
with uneven issuance amid eroding market condi

tions and countervailing policy actions while the public

Despite substandard financial performance Moodys
proj ect and infrastructure finance area achieved mid-single-

demonstrated resilience through these extraordinarily
digit growth Total ratings revenue declined by 42%

challenging business conditions We invested in strategic fir the U.S while international ratings revenue fell by i0/0

growth opportunities and remained profitable due to

2008 marked the first
year

of operation for Moodys
our solid base of recurring revenue and prudent expense

Analytics-our capital markets research and hank risk

nianagement Recurring revenue including fees from
frware segment Moodys Analytics includesmanagement so

monitoring outstanding securities and from subscription-
different businessesanalytic tools economic datasevera

based productsaccounted for 64% of Moodys
and analysis risk-management software solutions and credit

overall revenue Cost management initiatives reduced the

training services along with sales of credit research and

Companys year-over-year expenses by ii%partially miii-

related content produced by the rating agency
gating the effect of declining revenue on operating income

and earnings Revenue growth was limited to our Moodys Moodys Analytics revenue grew 15% this
year against

Analytics business which
grew i%and the public increasingly difficult market conditions with all

project and infrastructure finance ratings unit of Moodys three business linessubscriptions software and con-

Investors Service which had modest revenue increase suIting contributing to top-line growth U.S revenue

increased 9% from 2007 while international revenue

Geographically Moodys international revenue declined
zr% representing just over half of Moodysmncrexce

6% versus 2007 but
grew annually as percentage

of total

Analytics total revenue
revenue from 40% to 48% in 2oo8 While the stress in

the U.S credit markets affected other regions especially Other reported financial measures for Moodys

Europe conditions internationally were generally less Corporation include

extreme and selected markets in Asia and other areas

Operating income2 of $748 million down 34% from

continued to present attractive opportunities Foreign
$1.13 billion in 2007

currency exchange rates and the depreciation of the U.S

dollar had favorable
impact

of one percentage point on Net income3 of $458 million down 35% from

revenue in 2008 comparable to the two points of revenue $702 million in 2007

growth attributable to exchange rates in 2007
Diluted earnings per

share3 of $5.87 down z8% from

$2.58 in 2007

Excluding reutructuring and legacy tax items from both years
Includes restructuring charge of $50 million in 2007 and minor restructuring

adjustments in 2008

Net income and diluled ElS in 2008 include minor adjustments to the 2007

restructuring charge and $107 million bnnnfit relating to the resolution of certain

legacy tax matters The 2007 amounts include $523 million benefit related to the

resolution of certain legacy tax matters und $30.0 million after-tee related to the

restrecturing charge
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Moody1s demonstrated resilience through these

extraordinarily challenging business conditions

We invested in strategic growth opportunities

and remained profitable due to our solid base

of recurring revenue and prudent expense

management

Raymond McDaniel Jr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Moodys has Long held that healthy competition among rating agencies on the basis

of quality is in the best interest of financial markets

with the right rating as independently determined by the Potential Implications for Moodys Structural changes in

agency As result attempts to persuade rating agencies
the nature and operation of markets impact both our 5cr-

about their opinions can and do come from all types vice to investors and our internal
operations For example

of market
participants Managing potential conflicts of Moodys Investors Service must continue to evaluate the

interest is necessary aspect
of the

rating business and many credit implications of these structural changes and

rating agencies must continuously manage those
pressures provide the market with insight and perspective Moreover

appropriately and transparently it is inevitable that further regulation lies ahead for the

financial services industry Beyond adherence to new rules

The nature of the credit rating industry overturns the
and regulations Moodys Investors Service must prepare

simplistic conclusion that more competition is good and
for additional interest and scrutiny from oversight bodies

less competition is bad If rules and regulations about
at the national regional and global levels There will he

competition are to be effective and productive they
incremental costs in meeting these obligations but we will

must be based on enhancing the quality and not simply
adapt to meet the demands of both domestic and cross-

the quantity of credit ratings or credit rating agencies
border markets

Moodys has
long

held that healthy competition among

rating agencies on the basis of quality is in the best interest For Moodys alytics structural changes fuel demand

of financial markets for new tools and applications In this financial crisis

In light of the important challenges and opportunities

lost confidence has greatly extended the
scope

and extent

of financial assets under stress The loss of confidence
described above Moodys has recommended the following

measures and considerations
corresponds to perceived weaknesses in mechanisms that

identify measure arid communicate risk
exposures

To use

to determine if they are being effectively demonstrably have health code violations but the identity of the restau

Potential conflicts must be subject to specific oversight an analocy
if neighborhood restaurant is reported to

and transparently managed This might require for rant and the significance of the violations are unknown

example direct third-party oversight of potential diners are likely to avoid all the restaurants in the neigh-

conflicts or periodic reviews of customer concentra borhood So it is with investors risksensitive instruments

tion levels and confidence-sensitive institutions if the source and

scale of risk is unknown then avoidance is preferable

Regulators to the extent they continue to utilize

to indeterminate
risk-taking Moodys Analytics is well

ratings must consider the quality of ratings rather than

positioned to provide services that address the burgeoning
commoditizing them The tendency to view officially

uncertainty in financial markets and its range
of products

recognized credit rating agencies as interchangeable
and services was recently complemented by its acquisition

diminishes the incentives for competition on the basis

of Fermat Internationala software firm specializing
of rating quality and predictive performance and

in hank risk-management tools Our offerings help

Market participants must better understand what uses measure and report on firm-specific risk and contribute

ratings can and cannot serve and then use ratings to rnarkr-wide development of more rigorous risk-

accordingly Improved understanding and more management practices

informed use of
ratings

will enable the market to judge

the quality of competing providers
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THE GROWTH PICTURE FOR 2009 AND BEYOND Financial Innovation and Financial Darwinism The

In previous shareholder letters wrote confidently about
current crisis has brought about broad-based investor rejec

globalization and disintermediation innovations in
tion of securitized instruments Unsurprisingly investors

financial technology and global economic expansion as navigating the precarious shoals of the crisis have generally

powerful and interconnected drivers of growth for Moodys not distinguished between instruments and asset classes

business Paradoxically now write about those features of
that have perftrmed well under stress and those that have

the financial market landscape as being in flux and subject
not ile many commentators and investors cur-

to greater uncertainty than most market participants ever rently eschew all classes of securitization as flawed more

expected From growth perspective aoo8 was the most
refined views will inevitably emerge as markets stabilize

difficult year Moodys has experienced in decadesfairly
Instruments that perform best through this period of deep

characterized as year
that established new baseline

recession will be understood as empirically
stress-tested

for growth We do not project 2009 to he
any

easier
and gain acceptance by the market Such outcomes will

Nevertheless intriguing
and potentially substantial long help restore smaller hut ultimately healthier securitiza

term opportunities remain Lion market Issuance of structured instruments will not

reach the levels of 2006 or zoo for long time if ever

Disintermediation Even as dc-leveraging reduces
but securitization should still have useful role to play

outstanding debt in the worlds financial
system capital in healthy global

financial system and will offer growth

replenishment within the banking system may curtail

opportunities
from current levels

the volume of bank lending for years
If so dc-leveraging

among banks may be partially offset by
additional

We anticipate that innovative financial products will even-

bond issuance by corporations municipalities and tually regain investor and regulatory confidence Moodys

other borrowers It is also likely that as markets recover
will strive to play central role in providing insight

future efforts to reduce the role of
government as the

that facilitates market understanding of such products

investor-of-last-resort in financial assets will result in
In the interim we will remain vigilant in monitoring

new wave of disintermediation of assets from government
outstanding rated securities that are under stress demn

balance sheets onstrating analytical enhancements that restore both

private-
and official-sector confidence in our work and

promoting efforts toward creating more transparency in

markets and in the work of credit rating agencies

From growth perspective 2008 International Growth Worldwide economic growth will

was the most difficult year Moodys
eventually resume with new equilibrium emerging

among domestic regional and global capital markets

has experienced in decades With our global reach and
presence

in 29 countries

fairly characterized as year that Moodys is well positioned to adapt to changes within and

established new baseline for growth
across markets and to meet demands for

expert opinion

research and risk-measurement applications We continue

We do not project 2009 to be any to position both Moody/s Investors Service and Moodys

easier Nevertheless intriguing and Analytics ior global opportunities by participating in

promising markets in Asia Europe the Middle East and

potentiaLLy substantiaL long-term Latin America through acquisitions joint ventures and

opportunities remain Moodys subsidiaries

MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL



Growth from Moodys Analytics In 2008 we relied heavily OUR COMMITMENTS TO STAKEHOLDERS

on Moodys Analytics to mitigate
the effects of the global The market realities of zooS and early 2009 are testing

credit market contraction Iie we cannot count on the
participants in unprecedented ways and have surpassed

same levels of growth every yeal we still
expect

attractive
even the most bearish early forecasts sks of over-reaction

long-term opportunities
for this business For example and under-reaction flank polir initiatives and business

of the most important lessons emerging from the
decisions every day Yet abundant lessons have been

current crisis are the need for better risk-measurement and
learned and are already being applied toward renewal of

risk-reporting systems
and more rigorous training in credit u.s and global capital

markets Moodys is responding

and capital markets Moodys Analytics is well positioned with visible enhancements in our work processes perfor

to respond to these demands mance and communication that will not only sustain but

We have deep experience in developing and deliver-
enhance our role in global credit markets Through these

ing risk-measurement solutions In October zoo8 improvements and other efforts we will stay the course

significantly enhanced and expanded these capabilities
throughout

this period of turmoil We continue to have

with the acquisition of Fermat International provider
confidence that the markets we serve will grow and drive

of well-known hank risk-management
software

the demand for independent expertise in assessing credit

and in fostering consistent comparative standards

We responded to the global demand for training in

credit and capital markets with our January zoo8 acqui-
As ever Moodys goal is to remain the leading authori

sition of Financial Projections Ltd and our December on credit risk in the global capital markets We remain

zoo8 acquisition
of Enb Consulting Based in the U.K standards business both because we offer global stan-

both firms have well-established
presence among large

dards for assessing credit and because we must operate to

institutional customers in Europe and Asia
standards that satisfy all stakeholdersinvestors issuers

shareholders regulators policymakers and employees

We will continue to expand the Moodys Analytics
Meeting our goal and fulfilling

the
expectations

of our

business further through internal product development stakeholders will always be challenging especially when

and selective acquisitions the structure and fabric of the markets that we serve

As did last
year

should conclude my comments on are undergoing such profound stress and change

growth by noting that cost management is an important
We will endure and we will succeed

piece of the puzzle in lower-growth environment

Moodys prudently managed expenses throughout 2008 Thank you
while still funding strategic initiatives within the lines of

business
express my deep thanks to Moodys employees

worldwide for their dedication and
perseverance

under

these trying conditions

Raymond McDaniel Jr

Chairman and 6hiefExecntive Officer
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Moodys 2008 Annual Report is organized into five topics

that represent the ways we seek to deliver value to the

global financial markets Each section describes Moodys 2008

initiatives and 2009 plans across our businesses

p.9 Insight

p.14
Innovation

p.21
Ii iiity

p.24 Expertise

p.28
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Moodys is global leader anatyzing

and in erpretng finanLial market and

economic information to provde forward

1ookng credit opnion and analysi Our

professionals draw upon deep range of

experuse acros regtons ndu tries and

asset classes to present omprehensive

muLtidsap1inary per pectve of edt

nsk and the related expo ares Lhat

market partapanb eekto under tand
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CROSSFUNCTONAL COLLABORATON PROVIDES

Stylized View of the Global Risk Scenarios NTERDSCPUNARY PERSPECTVE

POTENTIAL 5009 RISK ICENARIOS Other efrdrts to improve analytic consistency include the

ihanccd
ii teyr Stiod of

expc tist ici 055 foods Ins estors

hr Ssisic to iddiess the complcxines of cc tun mug

otet ses An cx Inple is the asscssins ut of huanci si institutions

pm tfoiio oldings crcdit isis md ho mel snength Lcd

exFFberance
by financial institutions analysts this effoti also incotpo

lies sti ncr uied hu mncc mu ii sts sic 55 on pr ifbi manes

OF
oxpect mtio ms foi the institutions sccuiitiisd assets and the

deree of Os ti nmcnr snppoi as deictinined lag soscieign

in ml sts

Er his iso mote ised oti focus Oil ci oss huietion ii

dJteFeGrtroFF

teseareh publications
with notable exaniples below

Moodys Oigvlii Oars/ Stcseolent ilcwslettet launched

ph sk
ii ito oo8 eomnacnis on emei ing des elopincnts

in ill aie is of debt insirumeuts ins os iug ctedn ds

No
tRIo fi om Moody lnsesioi Cci ict sti nctni ed

HIS 100 ho slice inkius uad ict ul mu fig sis 5cr ci edit nd

asset is iokd sceiri iti7 nons ewdit caid stiet snd the

industi its ifteete bs ihe ma iii mhilits of ousur mci eieflit

Tiac nc slctre also includes naaeuacconornic foie msw

md comment ars hum Moods sfcomioiaag corn ss ith

GLOBAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS
many of our key indnstry onnooks and special reports

tIC FFO Ha lo SOLO or ci cO she
sob edition of ilac Ciedit Os Sttc sie/t has becti

FFHCHCIHI RISE
PPL5pCCFFFRB SpUr

nI F/c iS FlUFFS Mic0s IF folloss lag teleeonfcicncc ss hoto Moods snob ses

of stat io rFd Ce CF 0CI 95 CF

cusis begins to srrksirie Tins 5CEFFSHOOf Global Heaheg HOOF somewbar trF000ited
present tueir perspectives ann anaress questions trom

rO 55911 le
OF

El ŁF5 Isa SEC fraFrg Irs siti coOs us estoi and 0uSd tielpauts

IPF Ft eIHatO 15 lebol SOF SF10 Fr it rrt

10 cs tSar rc ess Ste tire outlook to 2009 1110 on IH Fr ont Lt 1/H trill/tIEs published us en Is sun Os 2009 is

sHccess of p055 .actioss across tire globe to snpport lirrarrc markets aFrO 5tiHrHiatf

tire ECOFFOFO5
series of ni-deptla perspectives across all sectors covered

lag iMoodg cstoi Scia ic liscussumrp issues of hr4h

nnprcdictahiliry amad
couscqneiacc

artd their potential

outcoisies through tlae remainder of time year Potir

reports for coirporate issuers financial institutions

the public sector and structured financecovet

42 imadustries and sectors addressing specific fimetots that

could have significant edhcts on ctcdit ttsk and ratings

uncertainties addressed in time repotis include

tlse availability of capital possibilities raf govetuinetmt

interyennion coiastiuaer behavior counterparto exposure

mud laome price depreciation mae reports also expiate

whether the entities us each secior are equally exposed to

the chctlleuges Moodys identifies
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C/Cjit OiiiIook laullhed in ehruarI 2009

giveI
niarker participants access to Moodx cuIcLnt

undlrltwding of breaking credit dee1opiinrs

ornhining comllIcntarI nd anah is from \Ioo1I

Investors Servi \1Od\S \nalytics Capita \Lirkes

RIlrch Group iid od\ SFCOUOI1IV.COIT1 provide

complete picture iii irket ne Londluonl and

00 El ook ie \Xek7 ii O1Etloo/ providcl

viel\I 01-1 the iee maIsei and ecorlomi e\clltI of th

previoul
week IcroIs Iecrors and for\k ard-looki

up

acssuIeflt potcfl redit iruplirations

SECTOR-SPECFK ANALYSS AND NTATVES

Mood\ Ifl\ eItorI Se cc has IL\oted addiriona resoul LI

to pUlliShiflr inIilltI on IpccihL Ieelrs and indultriel

iiiJudin sliICUISifl of 1ev 11101 or market Londiriolls

that lia rrIulted oni rhe cedit ills

GOVERNMENT GUARANTEE ANALYSIS

During 2008 ii 1001 goverflmLfl gtianiitee prog ani

and ielaed er1I were iiacred in jurisdictioIII here

the Lredi Il ISII has plaUrd significant tres on Pink-

ifl 1111111 keep inIcItorI apprised of deai1s

UI ChlraLtCliOiCI of these piograull
and their rating

inpiications für banks md inking IIe1fls II provided

lnp1ehensive updarcl to Nlood research on ho nicial

iiiItitUiiofl iSIiieiS nki stem pi
ohlel iiid onilooks

flIS hal included number of Sprual cniiiien reportl

ourhning the amount nid fii ms ofgo ernnIeilt suppoi

aiìd the tLilUre of speLihe prOnaiiiI

ASSESSING THE CREDIT CRISIS IMPACT ON PUBLIC FINANCE

AND SOVEREIGNS

flc Lapita flldtkCt tur1aoil of zoo8 and the ensuing

ecolloinic dO\ nturn have had signihcaiit and ide

ranging ciferts on the credit profiles of U.S hate and local

gverninriitS prclcntiiig chalenges for many public

iIlfraItruuiire dir rpi Nd Sovereign credits have iio

been ifrric ht the dcliiic in the Pu mci ii inarlcI

md
I\Ireping changcl iii tile aiiahiiitv of origi

iiricilc\ liiiidiiig
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Moodys extensive proactive cinnntary derailing will likely face considerable srress nd difficult choices

th impact of rh ciedit ci isis on puhlic ho irlee issuers iiIcurriIi hibhel numhei of 15c 105 ItlilL Icto us

pïovided investors with panorama of rhe various rating than in other recent recessions

iniplications across governments regions
and sectors

SPECULATVE-GRADE LQUDTY RATINGS AND LQUDTY
SovereignsThe iispact ofihis crisis upon sovereign COMPONENT SCORES

governments
ha hceis widespread Moodys 2008

As dcfiitilt rates increased for specu1ativeCrade corpo
report Iatiig 5oiereigos Duinf 15000/ Suaaen

iatc credits amid the turbulent market ctl\iroflflent

.Stop in Ii-iternatiioitit uiiatidcscribed how limited

of aoo8 there was heightened need for an ohjcctive
access to reliable sources of wholesale foreign currency

transparent ijicasLire of the liquidity of companies issuilic

hirìeiirig is cnauellglng cey assunipuons anout rue

these instruments
sustainahilitv and stahihiy ofglohalized hnancial ma-

kcts and systems As sovereigns
hscccl unprecedented Ilse Speculative-Grade Liquidity SGL ratings provided

demands on their capacity to support
financial institu- cIod\s Investors Service have addressed ihis iiced

tiOiSs and other critical industries Moodvs published spice their introduction in aooz which was oronipted by

additional research on
ilsIplicatiolls

for specific poe- risc iii speculative-grade defaulrs imilar coudi tions

crnineilts including an andvsis of the capacity for
esultilig Irons the current crisis \4oodvs Specuahvc

top-rated governments to take oii additional debt and Grade Lic1uidirv ratings focus soicv oil coinpanys

lIsappillg ogvernnse1it liabilities to help investors
iqUiditY iis5til11flfi no further recourse io debt

assess balance sliect strength markers and assess an issuers lifiuiditv position over tile

coin tiC 12 itiotitlis on scale rul SCL-i acre good to
Public Fmance ii se is of tepot ts on

sc L-4 weak In aoo8 N1oodvs published coisiprebeitsive
public finance 1oodys concluded that most states

researeli Ott liquidity and ichtsancin risk for approxi55 cuoure toe current crisis svitriout signmcant ciete

iTiatClV 27co companies ar ound Ate piolc to supplement
notation in credit quality and local governments

s-

I-
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Insight

ii

Ui monthly SGL A1üiiito
report

that aiiah zes speciIici

grade market deveIopnits and raring aLt1on from hc

prcceding rioiirh

\1OQd plaiI it begin ptih1ihing an addition1 aessiiient

of four key dri\ ers iquidir oi spectiauegradc istieis

in carI ZOOQ hc SGL Component Scores will asss

trenth of

Internal cash sources ini1uJing cash flov from opr i-

tiOlls dild ih halallcLs

External cash courccs uJ cinuiitted md atiahie

hank 1iiie

Covenant compliance iiidicatii the ushioii rhe

itir hCSS under
ag1ceIneni

A1ternatsc liquidity sousces as a1eahlc ir

Coi fl1i o1c \\iIl Fitip IuLreaL fr311p11

Iuv jciiuiid 1iic1x Iiqiiidit ratIngs
for moic IhJfl Ou

sp cii1ati e-gi de isuei hit rogeiher sccouii oi narI

$1 trillion dchr By pi\idiflg ill ai1aIi cich SCI

oriiponelr Lood to dLcpefl ji\LfOl iisight

flt icauie ihar tic paruculrlv vital LC deccring irh

igfls Of dII cs diffcrciitia ii chc reltiv credir quil ot

pcculai\ c-grae Lcucrs and informing rating deLiin

Growth in Number of Companies Assigned SpecutativeGrade Liquidity Ratings

4SCL1 SGL2 1ISGL3 SiL4
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Innovation

To serve increasingly complex gLobal credit

markets Moodys continues to advance our

research data and toots to further our own

anatyss vvithin Moodys nvestors Service and to

deEp investors make better credit risk decisions

Our analytical and research teams are considered

leaders in their fields and the products and

services we deliver through Moodys Analytics

to address customers risk challenges are wideLy

regarded as being among the best-ofbreed

COMPREHENSVE CREDT AND FNANCAL-RSK

MANAGEMENT SERVKES

1he credit crisis has revealed potential gaps
and weaknesses the

analytical frameworks 6nancial data and technology tools
supporn fig

niarket participants illvestmem and risLrnariagemerit decisions

tirisequentls there is clear market demand for integrated credit and

iiancia1risk management processes to support
stiund institutional

decision-making and improve risLnianagement

one ol tlk ii LL L1 il org fliI/alfO sped fI I/1l Iii L1lft fild

Huancial risk analysis Ioodvs has liuth the resources and capabilities

iiicci broad array of customer needs \Xe 1niinrain worldwide

putatlull to 05 ldlrfg nhoi it ftls l1IO5\ kde md
Ifislhht

di oiitjs

the ratings uiid research of Moodys Investors Service as sscii as

lOt developing innovative tOols arid technologies within v1oodys

Aiialvtics that empower investors to perform their own analyses

Our ongiii cfftii ts to liwiLast tIaL alu is pins
id to lobal

hfiaficial fif1tkct include both rating initiatives and new

analytic products such as

New measures to evaluate structured hnancc cfcdit

Credit-assessment iols that stress against nitiltiple econITfc

scenarios

Correlation liaOdels that map default risk as S5 regionsid

asset classes

Integrated solutions to improve rislsrnanagcment infrasttuct nrc

and
processes
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Cht

innovation

der

Se\eral olour rectnt initiative address specific Irkef

Scores PotentaLVanabLity of Ratng Assumptions for

concerns and opportunities highligbted by the credit crisis
Structured Finance Aeset Classes

-ce will continue to explore new S1\ ices md enIiancc

ments that build uuon lessons earncd from the riis to
U.S Pnme Li Pnate

net the evolving needs ofthe capital niarkets md of Auto Loan Credit Student Loan

our customers ________s
Card AB ABS

Compos ore Low/Medium Medium dium/ gh

NEW RISK MEASURES FOR
Hstorcat

STRUCTURED FUNANCE SECURTES Performance
LowfMethum Medium Medium/High

An Utr\Sth of the credit crisis 11 hee call from Data Adequacy and
Low/Medum Medium Medium/High

marker participants regulators and pulicsrnakcrs for richer Quatttyof DiscLosure

iiifrmation about the assulliprions hat iiiforis ratings CompLexLty Low/Medium Medium Medium

of structured finance instruments In
reSpOi1sc

s1oodv\
Governance Low/Medium Low/Medium Medium

Investors Service hjss developed supplemental isk mrasulcs

that ascss the potential vaiiahilit aruiid
npti to striic ss urnp to ji -1

tjred finance ratings as v11 as tho sonsitis itS of riis to
tW us tr dAt ratnrsp So

tent UflI rat ag CS

changes in key
dsSL1itiOfl\

\T Scores rank structured hnance TransacioILs hv the

poreotial for signihcant ating cl
igrs

because uncer

taiiaty around the information supporting tinderlying

asstirnptIOns including historical performancc data

adequacy disclosure complexity and gos ernance As

depicted in the ehihit at top right Scores pr
ide

clear picture of relative
assumption cnali scros asset

classes thrrigls mple rmking of 00h ran og nput
from

lOW variability to high variahiliiy

Parameter Sensitivities providc qiiaiiui atis anal is

ol- hoss structured finance
rig

could vaiv if lse

assumptions ot scuri were changed Tsing parame ter

sensitivities iiivcstors can firmulite their own viess

of the appropriate levels for key
assunipnons

and note

the potential impact 00 assigiìed Itings sec exhibit at

hottOflh right

Scores and Parameter Sensitivities were initially intro

ditced for
ratings ofncw a.sserhaced securiries issuance in

tic global auto global redir card .S student loan and

US cqllipfllent lease issct classes Fecdback from inveswrs

on thi.s iliOO\ JtiOi in structured finance risk measurement

and ratings has been positive mrd ss expect to immtmodtmce

mhosc measures for the ma3orirv of glohal mssethackcd

secmlrities rcsmdenmial maorrgage4askrd entities and

derivative asset classes in early 20c9
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STRESSNG CREDIT PORTFOUOS AGMNST MULTWLE

ECONOMK SCENAROS

FACTORING ECONOMIC DRIVERS INTO RATING TRANSITION

AND DEFAULT RATE FORECASTS

Raring performance over time uds to he vdicaI nieaii-

ing
that raring transitions and dfu1t rates rack he ups

nd downs of the economy to some degree fls crcates an

opportunity for IHVCSCOrS Can rati/1 tiliSztioil i2J ita//t

117tCJ0C125t5
he iliiustei to 1iclpoJdte IZ1Ut 1eiA of

juti/re eoioniic c/i/C/1tyOflS

N1oodvs Atialvuics offers ctistouuizahle tool tIu leverages

this OppfrUflitV Credit Transition Model nhles

tlt1 to pioject dJ mit it rii tiiiitOiiS ih

high degree ofprecisioii fr singi corporate issuer

tfly pItfOliO of iSSUFS It IlO\VS LIS1S WClp1atC cheir

own estimates of key nCroeConvmc CiJS ubat iiiHu

flc credit qulitv
and aviiiabiIity fci1itating rigorous

süess

1le Credit mition 1oI eI1lli c1 Ui11
hU\V rhir perceptions oIenergi1Ig Inar1 trends ffcct t1

crdir risk of their portfolios Bcausc calcuiate likely

Credt Transton ModeL Evdence That CychcaL

Default Rates Can Be Predicted

AcruaE

Predcted

-S

87 85 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 gB 99 00 01 02 03 04

DeaUR es .i edcteu by .iie Cr Modi OSL track Iefut

atS over the rnode This exinp.te
the Creht Trarsiton MJes

OJ H1evearCJefaUt Ftef .rsn ge-.B
rjs
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default rates over multiple horizons the model provides
credit ocers and risk man iers to juannfs risks and

users with an integrated view to understand how risk
opportunities

under difteieoi economic cilsirorlnients

changes over time and si nul ite the
impact

of potential portfolio srraiegs

policy adjnsrnienis oidei considerarior

FORECASTING AND STRESS-TESTING CONSUMER LOAN

PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE
MODELING THE CREDIT RISK CORRELATIONS IN

Under volatile or uncertain economic and marker condi- MULTI-ASSET-CLASS PORTFOLIOS

tions identifring cnicrgiilg credit risks before defaults start
Across cci nomic cycles large hn lucia osntnnons ri st

spike can help preserve pomrfolio performance xIsn understand how the default risks of corporoc retail urd

models can niake simple extrapolations of loss trajectories commiercial ivil est lEe instrumiits in then poirtdlios are

as defaults start to build hut hy then it nia he too late to interrelated so that rhes can nicasenc uid
nicorpoi see

adjust exposures
and manage risk default risk con elations into the portfolio analysis

\loodys CrcditCycle offered by Moodis Analytics Released iii zooS hi Mo xlvi An sls tick \ood Ulol sI

integrates regional
and national econc flue data with

\lodiel ocs idvanced

lender-specific performance
analytics to fdmecast and

research on asset eoirelasions us dli obsersed market hchav

si tess test the performance of consumer credit portfidios ior to explicirls model .S coinnierci real escaic ut

Moodys CreditCecle identifies and quantifies the effects of
retail nisttnillcnts and poraic insErt nsciirs isorldsi ide

the internal and external factors that underpin consumer ie integiared GCorr Itaincis omIt eaprnrcs Eti ce is pci of

loan credit performance quality at origiriatiuii perfor- correlations nmi oi tfoli is of nm plc asset cl.nscs

inance oser the lifetime of the loan pool .and prevailing

liii ta-ti iarkei to cIa ion nit teAt oim hens ceo
economic conditions faced by existing account oOmuei

iwo San 5i uimeisco hotel piopciiiesMoody CreditCvclc allows lenders portfoliri managers

Moodys CreditCycle Loss Given DefauLt LGD Rates There is clear market demand for

Alternative Scenarios
Bis es rose

integrated credit and financialrisk
SE 540 5seP51

management processes to support

sound institutional decision- making

and improve riskmanagement

outcomes Moodys has both the

resources and capabilities to meet

broad array of customer needs

We will continue to explore new

services and enhancements that

build upon lessons learned from the

crediLt crisis to meet the evolving

67 12 13 14 15
needs of the capital markets and of

Li IUNE Ci our customers
des meg aNer Un snrars.s Er dci es sdefss otes hOp mrvnt asses
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iL
Intr-niarkr crre1tior1 e.g. correlation Iieten for retail md coInnc1ctal hiiiks iiciiient rins arid

San FrancisLo hotel
properly

arid Seitle othcc other lending instirudorr Feirirat rgcred scalable

solutions address real arid
pressing cusEolner rìeeds

property

helping
Financial insliturior to reduce risk and ntlxiniizc

ross-a\set correlatior e.g he correlarion between
return in their davo lay business decisions ie scal

San Francisco hotel property and Cairadiari into

ibdny of Feririar products rcdrices barrki rdoptioii

colilparir
eiiahlinc scphysep clepiovnicnr alproaLh that rncers

The GCoir model is critical corilpolient of wide
range

of reqiiireriseirs across the discise needs of

Riskbrontiei 1od\ Arsah tics flagship portolio hnaricial fls
credir riskiranagcmcm plafornr rod the model has

ith instllatirs floIC than TOO banks and iiIsuiis

been adopted h\ some of tlìe niost sopbisricated risk- Id iii couii rlrroughout Europe the Middle

IiiaiiageinLriu orgaiiizarioiis
svoilds tdc

Eist .M rica rhe ri1Ir1ca arid sia liciti Fermar

grearly
extends the hincriorial and

geogr ipbic scope
of

BULDNG AN END-TO-END RSKMANAGEMENT SUTE Ml5 Anals EiLs ilite of sofrssare nid ii expands
FOR GLOBAL HNANCAL NSTTUTONS

Else commirted cutonicr base br our tsLmanageiiieirt

MooJ\ ris October aof icrinisirion Frina
solurions ise combination of Fr on it highly regardcd

International Feririat gnificantl\ adsanees tIre

rcgulatrs and rislcnianagcmeiit products rod sofrssarc

Iiipats\ goal ofofferirig eoniprclrensl\e cud-to end
dselpiieir capahibries ssitb esisring ecorioriric capital

ilKfliJii rg merit solution for coitiiileicial banks arid
arid portfolio offerings enables bodes Aiiah tics to

otoer global hnancial itisntution become global
leader iii risk- and pcrfdmnt

Fcrinat enter lri.sc-ss
ide risk rod pCI forinaiice management fr.\ are

nianagerricrit plrfoi or is art inrcgiared sutte of sofrsvaie
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ReUabiLity
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Re1ab1ity mportant aEt aspects of Moodys business

and ha become an area at particuLar focus dunng the

edit crisis As standards bu ness the priority of Moodys

nvestors Service the onsstency and re1iab1ity of

our credit opinions and re earch We regutr1y assess and

update our policies procedures models and methodotogie

to help ensure that our opinions remain piedictive

transparent and compa able acro industr es institutions

and instruments

PRO OTNG ATNG CONS STE TRANSP RENC
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REDE NG HE ROLE STR CTUR OF REDT POUCY CO TTEIE
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ReUabiity

SUPPORT OF RATING CONSISTENCY MethodoLogyApproval LeveLs

taflL11-djLed raung pioesscs
ail tiiiipti niust

New asset structure or rating type Credit
Policy

Committee orL11S pptied cnlparaDlhry across
sectorcommittee

iiidusu stor and
gL ograph Iohal mroconoiiii

Major change in prior methodol- Credit Policy Committee
sccn1r1os dcvdoped and published reu1arlv Moody

ogy ncludtng any change that and if appropriate request for

e1fIOlfllt re ipplied ros lifl of huiiies re ft
leads to numerous or significant comment published

Lf1f11 frauiìcork and infirni cach iridividu ii uedit
rating changes

u-t i1 si \jre\ el ii II dei to provide hroadci
pci spc-

Minorchanges and few or no rating ChiefCredit Officer of sector

rre iiid added lnilv lgi during rating cinnuirt.l
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Expertise

For more than century Moodys rating practices and services have

evolved and expanded in tandem with the increasing depth and breadth

of global capital markets Our extensive base of institutional knowledge

about credit risk is continually enriched by highly skilled and well-trained

professionals who provide expert credit insight and forge new ideas

and approaches through active and ongoing dialogue with investors and

other market participants

TRADITION OF ANALYTIC RIGOR PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT TRAINING PROGRAM

INDEPENDENCE AND ETHICS
We provide formal continuing education in credit analysis

Global capital markets have
undergone immense growth and other professional development needs Rating analysts

and change since Moodys opened its doors in 1900 but have training target of ao hours per year and they may
market participants have consistently turned to Moodys enroll in varie of courses taught by Moodys senior

for timely robust and
transparent

credit analysis The
analysts as well as attend presentations by outside

experts

credit crisis while pointing out areas where we can further on topics
of special interest

enhance the qualiqr of our analysis has also served to

underscore ongoing demand for reliable independent TECHNOLOGY LEARNING CENTER

assessments of credit risk An inhouse rraining facility in New hrk is utilized to

WŁ will meet this demand through the talent and hard
teach

proper use of Moodys technology tools and analytic

work of our professionalstheir intelligence diligence

models through guided classroom instruction The center

and judgment are the foundation of our analytic rigor
also trains employees in compliance applications and

independence and ethics At the same time to enable
document retention systems to support adherence to

our employees to do their best work we must equip
sound business practices while minimizing administrative

them with rigorous methodologies tools and training
burdens

Moreover we must maintain policies and procedures that

TRAINING AND INDIVIDUAL DEVELOPMENT
ensure we embody the highest standards of professional

conduct By placing these policies and principles at the
As part of the annual performance review process

core of our business activities and by communicating managers
assess the continuing professional development

rhem clearly we enable our analysts to focus on what needs of individual team members and collaborate with

they do best provide credit expertise and insights to training staff to address specific training
needs

the global financial markets
In aoo8 Moodys Professional Development Training

Moodys analysts and staff are recruited from many of the capabilities were consolidated within the Credit Policy

worlds leading corporations and academic institutions group This reporting structure links training priorities and

and they join us with broad
range

of experience
and content directly to management priorities on both emerg

expertise They share commitment to applying their ing and critical credit issues helping to support analytic

talent and experience to top-quality credit analysis and rigor
and consistency throughout the organization

research We guide
this commitment through several

training initiatives
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Expertise

In addition iaining staff liaise ith puonn in taJ
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MOODYS ANALYTICS PORTFOlIO ADVISORY SERVICES

Portfoio Advisors Services helps institutions apply advanced techniies

and tools to better undertind rneasurc and manage crcdit risk within

their portfolios Custom irnp1emeiittion projects help users make th

most ofour portfolio technology by adapting the functionality oi

RiskProntier it the credit culture and procedures
of their

organiiation

i1e Portfolio Ad\ isory Servtres tcm composed of experienced edit

cnu1tants iking with and drawing insights from our wi1dcIis porrfolio

lnanagenlcnt
md valuation tcchno1ogy flieir \acrk Is supported by Moodys

eXtenSi\e proprietary
credit datahass

ie Portfolio Advisory Services team has worked with over too credo porttIios

in banking insurance and asset tnanacment organi7ationsar ound th world

helping their leaders understand and iddres redit challenges throuh ide

range of portfolio niIvtics and custom coIsnlrative o1utiu

MOODYSANALYTICSTRAINING SERVICES

Thr Moodvs ìalvtics aining Scrvice group provides cornprLhnsivc tJ1I1i11g

SOlUIiOflS tO finaiirial institutions and other f3nancia imrkets partkipri ts in the

areas of credit hnancial niarket and professional ski1i Our approach men

on ofterii specific
SolUtiOns to custonicrs challenges and on delivering ncaur

dale returns on their training in estmcnts

raining Services are delivered through public seminars tailored inhouse scin

pars and taeofthe-arr technologiLs such as e-learning with content designed

and dclierea by seasoned inr1uirv professionals As they learn to apph nc
credit and hnaricid markets conccptv customers receiveinstructioti inMo dy

analytical methodologies and ratings thus deepening their app eciat

Moody role in global credit markets This instruction also gcneratc aw rcflcs

of MOdVS broader products and services as acll as helping to expand global

culture of hnancial markets best practice

REACHING OUT TO INVESTORS ACADEMIA AND MARKET PARTICIPANTS

IVloodvs inaintain direct and regular diahue irh iiisntutioiial iilvcsrors

hnancial ieserchcrs regulators and ether market parncipant in our role as an

authoriw credit and solicits critical fecdh ick oiì ho\ we re perflrning in

thai role Surh fredhack is essential as Wc WOrk OUt \vav through the credit crisis

and its repcrct1sions \c continue to actively sck pportunitic to diatc our

insight \\ ith iiictors and to enrich out undetstandii of ht\ Olt ustm
and other stakeliolders uc our opinIons anti products
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CUSTOMER OUTREACH AND EVENTS INVESTOR ADVISORY COUNCILS

JTroughour ihc ye yloodvs hosts uid pai iicipares in signature program in Moodys ouueacli eRoi is is OW

numerous conferences and other cynics ihat reach global series of Jnsestor Advisory Councils oiganized for corpo

coinniunit
of fixed-income investors md grossing rate financial institutions or struc cured finance investors

nnmhcr of equity insestors These esents aie an important
ie Councils were formed in aoo6 as forums toi pci

mdic

oppott uiity to share Moodss insighis and identib ss ars highs-level dialoguc hetveen senior investment profession-

to hi tci meet niamket nccds In zooX held 05cr 400 als and Moodys management

ci cuts 55 orldss ide that dress ncarls .30000 participants
in rhc ss ake of he credit crisis the Iris estor Ads isoi

md approxirnatels poo people mttcnded Moods
ouncils barn been cciii cmi

coinponeni
AIOOdVs

iii person
ciforts to uneract directly with fixed-inconie uivcstors and

\lans esenis present
Afood\ icis of the .mnilytic issues to ensurn that our ratings and uialysms irnain relesant iii

md rating iissphicaticois sorrounding kcs credit-ni irkei their needs

devJopmcnis such is our scven-p in rnleconfercnce series

The agendas of the Ins c5tor Advisory Councils ire

dtnuig the banLing crisis ni mtc aooS Other cvcnts such
invcstor-driscn mud ses nral recurring theiies hms

is our set ics of intcruuional Credit Risk onfcrcnecs hricf

ciiicigcd from neetings di 2008 tnesitnc is am Moodi

participants ni cmerguig cipo
al inarkc ts on Lv crcdi i- and

to rc-cstahhmch iuaikct conhdence and icsiorc common

mting
relaicd issues is bile list rusing its ocitets of hoods

iimdc staudi no of ihe
rileaning

of ratings rake multi

iole ni suppoi iiisg
fricient gioss ing capital inu keis amid

disciplinaiv ipproach to raitngs
and approach analysis si ithi

cic iting ness business oppom unities

uiaroccononuc view rigorouslY Os uiage poientlal

As pot of cur otitreach eflOi tt sic arrmgc e\tcnsi\ one- conflicts of interest and providc niorc prospcvti\e

one meetings
that

pi os ide hxcd-inctsnme ins cstois ss ith foissard-hooking mfom marion in ciii con mcnuvati ins ss oh

thy oppo tcinirr to inicrjcr diiecihs is irhi our analysts md investors icse piiorities arc shired hr Aloodi and ste

leadrship across the firms lines of business globally \5 ill eonnnue to pursue tiur polics of
ope

and pioacmive

coinuitinication on mhese issties to advance die needs

of investors

Moodys Analytics Training Services---Sample Seminar Offerings

MOODYS ACADEMIC ADVISORY AND RESEARCH COMMITTEE

Corporate Credit Rating Analysis thy Moods Academic Adsis tS and Research Coninuttee

LiquidityAnalysis and Refinancing Risk for Corporates brings leading academic
experts

from Europe and torth

Amerie-m together ss irh Aioodys researchers to chmsctiss

High Yield and Leveraged Finance Credit Analysis

developments in credit markers ai credit isk
manage-

Analyzing Financial Institutions and Funds
nient to tcs iesv research fludnigs to generate ness subjects

EconomicCapital Pillar land ICAAP under Basel II for research and to explore oppotronities
fin cohlahoianve

Islamic Bank Analysis

studies The
group

his met sensianimi1ahh sinec soot

Current Issues in Financial InstitutionsAnalysis
ku important public actis it of this cominmmtiee ms the

kuimtiah Credit Risk omiferenec Thms scars fifth umnuml

Financial Analysis in Public Finance

omiference dress more thami
pam ticmpants imicltmding

Introduction to Credit DerivativesStructures Applications
globally respected

mcadsnmics mod market
pr

setiut tiers Tb

Debt Derivatives and Hedging Strategies
for Managing Amimiuah Cicchit Risk onferenec mud other mcmis itics ti mhc

Financial Market Risk conunitee
pros mdc an otitsmanding vehicle lot Moods to

Foundations of Commercial Real Estate Financial Analysis cspamid and sharc us kuoss hedge to crcdit nsk and snongb

eouvcs tium conmnunnent to imimios mi momm and thotighit

Covered Bonds and Mortgage-Backed Finance

lecdcrshiip mmm crcdit reserefi
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rtien

Moody presence and engagement extends

acros a1 major deveLoped and em rglrg

economies Our diverse and growing

international staff are thought leader in

credit and we contribute to the efficiency

and growth capital market worldwide

through our ommitment to the public

good of publi hing the credit opinions of

Moodys nyc tors ervi Though oodys

Analytics we offer be in Las products

and service to me the needs of capital

markets Lustomers in over 120 countrie

In all areas of Moody we aspire to good

corporate citizenship through philanthropic

and volunteer activities in ou espectivo

commun ties
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Engagement

Moodys Presence By Region As credit markets have

become more global

BULGARIA

and integrated the

CYPRUS international scope
CZECH REPUBLIC

FRANCE and scale of Moodys
GERMANY

ITALY operations has iown
RUSSIA

SPAIN steadily enabling the
UNITED KINGDOM

Company to expand

its customer base and

MW DIE EAST
coverage

DUBAI

ISRAEL

Growth in Moodys International Resources

AFRICA

EGYPT

SOUTH AFRICA

ASA-PACFC

CHINA difi
INDONESIA 04 05 06 07 08

JAPAN

KOREA

SINGAPORE
Hail Rd

TAIWAN
Hei

Ni at HI

es SC is

THE AMERCAS

ARGENTINA

BRAZIL

CANADA

COLOMBIA

MEXICO

PERU

UNITED STATES

Moodys has offices and affiliates in 29 countries across all regions
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

The following terms abbreviations and acronyms are used to identify frequently used terms in this report

TERM DEFINITION

ACNielsen ACNielsen Corporation former affiliate of Old DB

Analytics Moodys Analytics reportable segment of MCO formed in January 2008 which combines MKMV the

sales of MIS research and other MCO non-rating commercial activities

AOCI Accumulated other comprehensive income loss separate component of shareholders equity

deficit

Basel II Capital adequacy framework published in June 2004 by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision

Board The board of directors of the Company

Bps
Basis points

BQuotes BQuotes Inc an acquisition completed in January 2008 part of the MA segment global provider of

price discovery tools and end-of-day pricing services

Canary Wharf Lease Operating lease agreement
entered into on February 2008 for office space in London England to be

occupied by the Company in the second half of 2009

CDO5 Collateralized debt obligations

CFG Corporate finance group an LOB of MIS

CMBS Commercial mortgage-backed securities part of CREF

Cognizant Cognizant Corporation former affiliate of Old DB which comprised the MS Health and NMR

businesses

Commission European Commission

Common Stock the Companys common stock

Company Moodys Corporation and its subsidiaries MCO Moodys

COSO Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

CP Commercial paper

CP Notes Unsecured commercial paper notes

CP Program The Companys commercial paper program entered into on October 2007

CRAs Credit rating agencies

CREF Commercial real estate finance which includes REITs commercial real estate CDOs and CMBS part of

SFG

DB Business Old DBs Dun Bradstreet operating company

DBPPs Defined benefit pension plans

Debt/EBITDA Ratio of Total Debt to EBITDA

Directors Plan The 1998 Moodys Corporation Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan

Distribution Date September 30 2000 the date which Old DB separated into two publicly traded companies

Moodys Corporation and New DB

EBITDA Earnings before interest taxes depreciation amortization and extraordinary gains or losses
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TERM DEFINITION

ECAIs External Credit Assessment Institutions

ECB European Central Bank

EITF Emerging Issues Task Force task force established by the FASB to improve financial reporting through

the timely identification discussion and resolution of financial accounting issues within the framework

of existing authoritative literature

EMEA Represents countries within Europe the Middle East and Africa

Enb Enb Consulting an acquisition completed in December 2008 part of the MA segment provider of

credit and capital markets training services

EPS Earnings per share

ESPP The 1999 Moodys Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan

ETR Effective Tax Rate

EU European Union

EUR Euros

Excess Tax Benefit The difference between the tax benefit realized at exercise of an option or delivery of restricted share

and the benefit recorded at the time that the option or restricted share is expensed under GAAP

Exchange Act The Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board

Fermat Fermat International an acquisition completed in October 2008 part of the MA segment provider of

risk and performance management software to the global banking industry

FIG Financial institutions group an LOB of MIS

FIN 48 FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

FSF Financial Stability Forum

FX Foreign exchange

GAAP U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GBP British pounds

G-7 The finance ministers and central bank governors
of the group of seven countries consisting of Canada

France Germany Italy Japan U.S and U.K that meet annually

G-20 The G-20 is an informal forum that promotes open and constructive discussion between industrial and

emerging-market countries on key issues related to global economic stability By contributing to the

strengthening of the international financial architecture and providing opportunities for dialogue on

national policies international co-operation and international financial institutions the G-20 helps to

support growth and development across the globe The G-20 is comprised of Argentina Australia Brazil

Canada China France Germany India Indonesia Italy Japan Mexico Russia Saudi Arabia South

Africa South Korea Turkey the U.K and the U.S and The EU who is represented by the rotating Council

presidency and the ECB

HFSC House Financial Services Committee

IMS Health spin-off of Cognizant which provides services to the pharmaceutical and healthcare industries

IOSCO International Organization of Securities Commissions
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TERM DEFINITION

IOSCO Code Code of Conduct Fundamentals for Credit Rating Agencies issued by IOSCO

IRS Internal Revenue Service

Legacy Tax Matters Exposures to certain potential tax liabilities assumed in connection with the 2000 Distribution

LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate

LOB Line of Business

MA Moodys Analytics reportable segment of MCO formed in january 2008 which combines the

operations of MKMV the sales of MIS research arId other MCO non-rating commercial activities

Make Whole Amount The prepayment penalty amount relating to the Series 2005-1 Notes and Series 2007-1 Notes

which is premium based on the excess if any of the discounted value of the remaining

scheduled payments over the prepaid principal

MCO Moodys Corporation and its subsidiaries the Company Moodys

MDA Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

MIS Moodys Investors Service reportable segment of MCO

MIS Code Moodys Investors Service Code of Professional Conduct

MKMV Moodys KMV reportable segment of MCO prior to january 2008

Moodys Moodys Corporation and its subsidiaries MCO the Company

New DB The New DB Corporation which comprises the DB business

NM Percentage change is not-meaningful after 400%

NMR Nielsen Media Research Inc spin-off of Cognizant which is leading source of television

audience measurement services

Notices IRS Notices of Deficiency for 1997-2002

NRSRO Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations

Old DB The former Dun and Bradstreet Company which distributed New DB shares on September 30

2000 and was renamed Moodys Corporation

Post-Retirement Plans Moodys funded and unfunded pension plans the post-retirement healthcare plans and the post-

retirement life insurance plans

PPIF Public project and infrastructure finance an LOB of MIS

Profit Participation Plan Defined contribution profit participation retirement plan that covers substantially all U.S

employees of the Company

PWG Presidents Working Group on Financial Markets

Reform Act Credit Rating Agency Reform Act of 2006

REITs Real estate investment trusts

Reorganization
The Companys business reorganization announced in August 2007 which resulted in two new

reportable segments MIS and MA beginning in january 2008
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TERM DEFINITION

Restructuring Plan The Companys 2007 restructuring plan

RMBS Residential mortgage-backed security part of SFG

SP Standard Poors Ratings Services division of The McGraw-HiR Companies Inc

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission

Series 2005-1 Notes Principal amount of $300.0 million 4.98% senior unsecured notes due in September 2015 pursuant to

the 2005 Agreement

Series 2007-1 Notes Principal amount of $300.0 million 6.06% senior unsecured notes due in September 2017 pursuant to

the 2007 Agreement

SEAS Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

SFAS No 87 SEAS No 87 Employers Accounting for Pensions

SFAS No 88 SEAS No 88 Employers Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefits Pension

Plans and for Termination Benefits

SFAS No 109 SEAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes

SFAS No 112 SEAS No 112 Employers Accounting for Postemployment Benefits

SFAS No 123 SEAS No 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

SFAS No 123R SEAS No 123R Share-Based Payment Revised 2004

SFAS No 132R SEAS No 132R Employers Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits an

amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88 and 106 Revised 2003

SFAS No 133 SEAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

SFAS No 141 SEAS No 141 Business Combinations

SFAS No 141R SEAS No 141R Business Combinations Revised 2007

SFAS No 142 SEAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

SFAS No 144 SEAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

SFAS No 146 SEAS No 146 Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities

SFAS No 157 SEAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements

SFAS No 158 SEAS No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

an amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88 106 and 132R

SFAS No 159 SEAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities including an

amendment of EASB Statement No 115

SFAS No 162 SEAS No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

SFG Structured finance group an LOB of MIS

SGA Selling general and administrative expenses

Stock Plans The 1998 Plan and the 2001 Plan

TE Travel and entertainment expenses

Total Debt All indebtedness of the Company as reflected on the consolidated balance sheets excluding current

accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business
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TERM DEFINITION

U.K United Kingdom

U.S United States

USD U.S dollar

UTBs Unrecognized tax benefits

UTPs Uncertain tax positions

1998 Plan Old DBs 1998 Key Employees Stock Incentive Plan

2000 Distribution The distribution by Old DB to its shareholders of all of the outstanding shares of New DB common

stock on September 30 2000

2000 Distribution Agreement governing certain ongoing relationships between the Company and New DB after the 2000

Agreement
Distribution including the sharing of any liabilities for the payment of taxes penalties and interest

resulting from unfavorable IRS determinations on certain tax matters and certain other potential tax

liabilities

2001 Plan The Amended and Restated 2001 Moodys Corporation Key Employees Stock Incentive Plan

2005 Agreement Note purchase agreement dated September 30 2005 relating to the Series 2005-1 Notes

2007 Agreement Note purchase agreement dated September 2007 relating to the Series 2007-1 Notes

2007 Facility Revolving credit
facility

of $1 billion entered into on September 28 2007 expiring in 2012

2008 Term Loan Five-year $150.0 million senior unsecured term loan entered into by the Company on May 2008

7WTC The Companys headquarters located at World Trade enter

7WTC Lease Operating lease agreement entered into on October 20 2006
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

BACKGROUND

As used in this report except where the context indicates otherwise the terms Moodys or the Company refer to Moodys

Corporation Delaware corporation and its subsidiaries The Companys executive offices are located at World Trade Center at

250 Greenwich Street New York NY 10007 and its telephone number is 212 553-0300 Prior to September 30 2000 the

Company operated as part of The Dun Bradstreet Corporation

THE COMPANY

Moodys is provider of credit ratings and related research data and analytical tools ii quantitative credit risk measures risk

scoring software and credit portfolio management solutions and iii securities pricing software and valuation models In 2007 and

prior years Moodys operated in two reportable segments Moodys Investors Service and Moodys KMV Beginning in January

2008 Moodys segments were changed to reflect the Reorganization announced in August 2007 As result of the Reorganization

the rating agency
remains in the MIS operating segment and several ratings business lines have been realigned All of Moodys

other non-rating commercial activities including MKMV and sales of MIS research are now combined under new operating

segment known as Moodys Analytics Moodys now reports in two new reportable segments MIS and MA Financial information

and operating results of these segments including revenue expenses operating income and total assets are included in Part II

Item Financial Statements of this annual report and are herein incorporated by reference

The MIS segment publishes credit ratings on wide range of debt obligations and the entities that issue such obligations in mar

kets worldwide including various corporate and governmental obligations structured finance securities and commercial paper

programs
Revenue is derived from the originators and issuers of such transactions who use MISs ratings to support the dis

tribution of their debt issues to investors MIS provides ratings in more than 110 countries Ratings are disseminated via press

releases to the public through variety of print and electronic media including the Internet and real-time information systems

widely used by securities traders and investors As of December 31 2008 MIS had ratings relationships with approximately 13000

corporate issuers and approximately 26000 public finance issuers Additionally the Company has rated and currently monitors

ratings on approximately 109000 structured finance obligations

The MA segment develops wide range of products and services that support the credit risk management activities of institutional

participants in global financial markets These offerings include quantitative credit risk scores credit processing software

economic research analytical models financial data securities pricing software and valuation models and specialized consulting

services MA also distributes investor-oriented research and data developed by MIS as part of its rating process including in-depth

research on major debt issuers industry studies and commentary on topical events MA clients represent more than 5000

institutions worldwide operating in approximately 120 countries Over 30000 client users and more than 200000 individuals

accessed Moodys research web site

The Company operated as part of Old DB until September 30 2000 when Old DB separated into two publicly traded compa

nies Moodys Corporation and New DB At that time Old DB distributed to its shareholders shares of New DB stock New

DB comprised the business of Old DBs Dun Bradstreet operating company The remaining business of Old DB consisted

solely of the business of providing ratings and related research and credit risk management services and was renamed Moodys

Corporation For purposes of governing certain ongoing relationships between the Company and New DB after the 2000 Dis

tribution and to provide for an orderly transition the Company and New DB entered into various agreements including dis

tribution agreement tax allocation agreement and employee benefits agreement

PROSPECTS FOR GROWTH

Over recent decades global fixed-income markets have grown significantly in terms of outstanding principal amount and types of

securities or other obligations Despite the recent market disruption and significant declines in issuance activity for many classes

of securities in the U.S and internationally Moodys believes that the overall long-term outlook remains favorable for continued

secular growth of fixed-income markets worldwide However Moodys expects that in the near-term growth drivers such as

financial innovation and disintermediation will slow as capital market participants adjust to the recent poor performance of some

structured finance asset classes such as U.S RMBS and credit derivatives Restoring investor confidence in structured products

may require further enhancements to MISs rating processes and may be facilitated by greater transparency from issuers of
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structured or securitized debt MIS has developed updated rating methodologies volatility measures and pricing and valuation

services to aid the return of investor trust Moodys expects that these initiatives will support continued long-term demand for

high-quality independent credit opinions

Growth in global fixed-income markets is attributable to number of forces and trends Advances in information technology such

as the Internet make information about investment alternatives widely available throughout the world This technology facilitates

issuers ability to place securities outside their national markets and investors capacity to obtain information about securities

issued outside their national markets Issuers and investors are also more readily able to obtain information about new financing

techniques and new types of securities that they may wish to purchase or sell many of which may be unfamiliar to them This

availability of information promotes the ongoing integration and development of worldwide financial markets and greater need

for credible globally comparable opinions about credit risk As result existing capital markets have expanded and number of

new capital markets have emerged In addition more issuers and investors are accessing developed capital markets

Another trend in the worlds capital markets is the disintermediation of financial systems Issuers increasingly raise capital in the

global public capital markets in addition to or in substitution for traditional financial intermediaries Moreover financial inter

mediaries have sold assets in the global public capital markets in addition to or instead of retaining those assets Recent credit

market disruptions have slowed the trend of disintermediation globally but Moodys believes that debt capital markets offer

advantages in capacity and efficiency compared to the traditional banking systems Thus disintermediation is expected to expand

in the longer-term

The strong growth trend seen in the issuance of structured finance securities reversed dramatically in 2008 due to the market

turmoil The market disruptions that escalated in 2008 are expected to continue in the immediate term and Moodys expects to

see continued decline in revenue from this market in 2009 However although the extent and scale are unclear Moodys

believes that structured finance securities wilt continue to play role in global credit markets and provide opportunities for longer

term growth Moodys will continue to monitor and support the progress of this market and adapt to meet the changing needs

Rating fees paid by debt issuers account for most of the revenue of MIS Therefore substantial portion of MISs revenue is

dependent upon the volume and number of debt securities issued in the global capital markets that it rates Moodys is therefore

affected by for example the performance and the prospects for growth of the major world economies the fiscal and monetary

policies pursued by their governments and the decisions of issuers to request MIS ratings to aid investors in their investment deci

sion process However annual fee arrangements with frequent debt issuers annual debt monitoring fees and annual fees from

commercial paper
and medium-term note programs bank and insurance company financial strength ratings mutual fund ratings

subscription-based research and other areas are less dependent on or independent of the volume or number of debt securities

issued in the global capital markets

Moodys operations are also subject to various risks inherent in carrying on business internationally Such risks include currency

fluctuations and possible nationalization expropriation exchange and price controls changes in the availability of data from pub

lic sector sources limits on providing information across borders and other restrictive governmental actions Management believes

that the risks of nationalization or expropriation are reduced because the Companys basic service is the creation and dissem

ination of information rather than the production of products that require manufacturing facilities or the use of natural resources

However the formation of for example new government-sponsored regional or global rating agency would pose risk to

Moodys growth prospects Management believes that this risk compared to other regulatory changes under consideration for the

credit rating industry is relatively low because of the likelihood that substantial investments over sustained period would be

required with uncertainty about the likelihood of financial success

Legislative bodies and regulators in both the U.S Europe and selective other jurisdictions continue to conduct regulatory reviews

of CRA5 which may result in for example an increased number of competitors changes to the business model or restrictions on

certain business activities of MIS or increased costs of doing business for Moodys Therefore in order to broaden the potential for

expansion of non-ratings services Moodys reorganized in January 2008 into two distinct businesses MIS consisting solely of the

ratings business and MA Moodys Analytics conducts all non-ratings activities and includes the MKMV and Fermat businesses

the sale of credit research produced by MIS and the production and sale of other credit related products and services The

reorganization broadens the opportunities for expansion by MA into activities which were previously restricted due to the poten

tial for conflicts of interest with the ratings business At present Moodys is unable to assess the nature and effect that
any regu

latory changes may have on future growth opportunities See Regulation below

10 MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIALS



MA expects to benefit from the growing demand among credit market participants for information that enables them to make

sound investment and risk management decisions These customers require advanced qualitative and quantitative tools to support

their management of increasingly complex capital market instruments Such complexity creates analytical challenges for market

participants including financial intermediaries asset managers and other investors In recent years reliable third-party ratings and

research served to supplement or substitute for traditional in-house research as the scale geographic scope and complexity of

financial markets grew Recent disruptions in credit markets threaten to slow this trend but Moodys expects to sustain reliance

on its offerings as enhancements to credit rating methodologies and other changes in securities origination processes restore

investor confidence and more orderly market operations

Growth in MA is also expected as financial institutions adopt active credit portfolio management practices and implement internal

credit assessment tools for compliance with Basel II regulations MA offers products that respond to these needs This growth will

be realized by for example the development of new private firm default probability models for specific countries and by expand

ing analysis capabilities of new asset classes

COMPETITION

The MIS business competes with other Credit Rating Agencies and with investment banks and brokerage firms that offer credit

opinions and research Many of Moodys customers also have in-house credit research capabilities Moodys largest competitor in

the global credit rating business is Standard Poors Ratings Services division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc There are

some rating markets based on industry geography and/or instrument type in which Moodys has made investments and obtained

market positions superior to SPs In other markets the reverse is true

In addition to SP Moodys competitors include Fitch subsidiary of Fimalac S.A Dominion Bond Rating Service Ltd of Canada

DBRS A.M Best Company nc Japan Credit Rating Agency Ltd Rating and Investment Information Inc of Japan RI and

Egan-Jones Ratings Company In 2008 two more firms were granted the Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations

status LACE Financial Corp in February and Realpoint LLC in June One or more additional rating agencies may emerge in the

U.S as the SEC continues to expand the number of NRSROs Competition may also increase in developed or developing markets

outside the U.S over the next few years as the number of rating agencies increases

The increased regulatory focus on credit risk presents both opportunities and challenges for Moodys Global demand for credit

ratings and risk management services may rise but regulatory actions may result in greater number of rating agencies and/or

additional regulation of Moodys and its competitors Alternatively banking or securities market regulators could seek to reduce

the use of ratings in regulations thereby reducing certain elements of demand for ratings or otherwise seek to control the analysis

or business of rating agencies

Credit rating agencies such as MIS also compete with other means of managing credit risk such as credit insurance Competitors

that develop quantitative methodologies for assessing credit risk also may pose competitive threat to Moodys

MA competes broadly in the financial information space against diversified competitors such as Thomson-Reuters Bloomberg

RiskMetrics SP Fitch Dun Bradstreet and Markit Group among others MA main competitors within credit risk management

include Fitch Algorithmics SunGard SAS i-Flex and RiskMetrics Group as well as host of smaller vendors and in-house solutions

In economic analysis data and modeling services MA faces competition from IHS Global Insight Oxford Economics Haver Ana

lytics and number of smaller firms around the world Within Credit Services Moodys competes with Mercer Oliver Wyman for

certain credit risk consulting with Omega Performance DC Gardner and host of boutique providers for financial training and

CreditSights Gimme Credit and other smaller providers for independent credit research In Securities Analytics and Valuation

Moodys competes against Interactive Data Corporation Thomson-Reuters SP Fitch Markit Group CME Intex and many other

smaller providers

MOODYS STRATEGY

Moodys continues to follow growth strategies that adapt to market conditions and capitalize on emerging opportunities

Given recent market turmoil Moodys immediate focus is on making effective business decisions to adjust for the expected reduc

tion in revenue while positioning the Company to benefit from an eventual recovery in global credit market activity

In world of renewed attention to risk analysis and risk management Moodys is committed to further encouraging the informed

use of credit ratings research and related analytics products
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Moodys seeks to differentiate itself from incumbent and potential competitors with uniquely thoughtful forward-looking and

accurate opinions about credit and the credit industry

Adapting to market change is key factor in maintaining market relevance Moodys continuously monitors opportunities to

selectively diversify its revenue base through organic growth and acquisitions in order to replace lost revenue and position

Moodys for new sources of business

In support of those goals Moodys intends to continue its focus in the following areas

Expansion in Financial Centers

Moodys serves its customers through its global network of offices and business affiliations Moodys currently maintains com

prehensive rating and marketing operations in financial centers including Dubai Frankfurt Hong Kong London Madrid Milan

Moscow New York Paris Singapore Sydney and Tokyo Moodys expects that its global network will position it to benefit from

the expansion of worldwide capital markets and thereby increase revenue Moodys also expects that the growth of its MIS

business as consequence of financial market integration in Europe will return Additionally Moodys expects to continue its

expansion into developing markets either directly or through joint ventures This will allow Moodys to extend its credit opinion

franchise to local and regional obligors through domestic currency ratings and national scale ratings

New Rating Products

Moodys continues to respond to investor demand for new products and enhancements In the recent market turmoil attention

to core strengths has been crucial and enhancements have and continue to be focused on quality and transparency Given the

particular disruption in the structured finance markets MIS has been developing enhanced structured finance offerings to meet

investor demands for more information content Leveraging the diversity of its research data and analytics Moodys has

introduced cross-sector analysis to better illustrate the broader impacts of recent market events This is further enhanced by the

incorporation of macroeconomics to frame conditions and assumptions MIS continues to capitalize on market developments

and enhance ratings surveillance efficiency focusing on new ratings products such as hedge fund operations quality ratings

and to identify design develop and maintain value-added research analytics aind data products serving the capital markets

Internet-Enhanced Products and Services

Moodys is expanding its use of the Internet and other electronic media to enhance client service Moodys website provides the

public with instant access to ratings and provides the public and subscribers with credit research Internet delivery also enables

Moodys to provide services to more individuals within client organization than were available with paper-based products and

to offer higher-value services because of more timely delivery Moodys expects that access to these applications will increase

client use of Moodys services Moodys expects to continue to invest in electronic media to capitalize on these and other

opportunities

Expansion of Credit Research Products and Investment Analytic Toots

Moodys plans to expand its research and analytic services through internal development and through acquisitions Most new

product initiatives tend to be more analytical and data-intensive than traditional narrative research offerings Such services

address investor interest in replicating the monitoring activities conducted by for example Moodys securitization analysts and

provide the means for customers to gain access to raw data and adjusted financial statistics and ratios used by Moodys ana

lysts
in the rating process for municipalities companies and financial institutions These products represent important sources

of growth for the research business MA is developing products in the fixed-income valuations and pricing arena that facilitate

price transparency in global fixed income markets especially for complex structured securities and derivative instruments

Moreover Moodys continues to explore opportunities to extend its research relevance in new domestic or regional markets

e.g China as well as new functional markets e.g hedge funds

New Quantitative Credit Risk Assessment Services

Moodys will continue to provide banks and other institutions with quantitative credit risk assessment services Moodys

believes that there will be increased demand for such services because they assist customers trading or holding credit-sensitive

assets to better manage risk and deliver better performance Also international bank regulatory authorities are assessing the
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adequacy of banks internal credit risk management systems for the purpose of determining regulatory capital The acquisition

of Fermat accelerates Moodys developments in this area Such regulatory initiatives create demand for and encourage adop

tion of related services by banks from third-party providers

REGULATION

In the U.S since 1975 MIS has been designated as an NRSRO by the SEC The SEC first applied the NRSRO designation in that

year to companies whose credit ratings could be used by broker-dealers for purposes of determining their net capital require

ments Since that time Congress the SEC and other governmental and private bodies have used the ratings of NRSRO5 to dis

tinguish between among other things investment-grade and non-investment-grade securities

In September 2006 the Credit Rating Agency Reform Act of 2006 was passed which created voluntary registration process for

rating agencies wishing to be designated as NRSRO5 The Reform Act provides the SEC with authority to oversee NRSROs while

prohibiting the SEC from regulating the substance of credit ratings or the procedures and methodologies by which any NRSRO

determines credit ratings In june 2007 the SEC published its first set of rules under the Reform Act These rules address the

NRSRO application and registration process as well as oversight rules related to recordkeeping financial reporting prevention of

misuse of material non-public information conflicts of interest and prohibited acts and practices In June 2007 MIS filed its appli

cation for registration as an NRSRO with the SEC In September 2007 the SEC registered MIS as an NRSRO under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and as of that time MIS has been subject to the SECs oversight rules described above As required by the

rules MIS has made its Form NRSRO Initial Application its Annual Certification of Form NRSRO and any associated updates pub

licly available by posting it on the Regulatory Affairs page of the Companys website

In july 2008 the SEC released report on its examination of CRAs The SEC began its review of the ratings processes and proce

dures of the three leading rating agencies MIS SP and Fitch in August 2007 focusing on sub-prime RMBS and CDO5

While the Commissions Staff noted that most of the period under review pre-dated the implementation of SEC rules for the

industry the report identified areas that were either of concern to the SEC or that the SEC believed could be enhanced going-

forward The concerns identified by the Commissions Staff generally fall into three categories policies addressing potential con

flicts of interest resources and resource allocation documentation around policies and procedures and enhancing transparency

The SEC also summarized the various steps that are already being put in place by the rating agencies as well as those that are

under consideration in the SECs current rule-making process

In February 2009 the SEC published second set of final rules applicable to NRSROs as well as additional proposed rules These

final rules and rule proposals were approved by the Commission in early December 2008 The majority of the final rules address

managing conflicts of interest enhancing record keeping requirements and improving transparency of ratings performance and

methodologies The deadline for market comment on the new proposed rules is March 26 2009 MIS will submit comments to the

SEC by this deadline

Finally both chambers of the Congress are reviewing the broader U.S regulatory infrastructure and as part of this review the role

and function of CRAs will continue to be studied For example as part of series of hearings focusing on the existing market

turmoil on October 22 2008 the House Committee on Oversight and Government Reform held hearing on the Role of Credit

Rating Agencies MIS has participated in this and other hearings and the written testimonies can be found on the Regulatory

Affairs page of the Companys website

Internationally several regulatory developments have occurred

The Group of and the Group of 20 The G-7 Finance Ministers and Central Bank Governors formally asked the FSF to analyze

the underlying causes of the recent financial market turbulence One area for analysis was the role and use of credit rating in the

structured finance market To encourage the adoption of unified regulatory approach the FSF has coordinated the work of other

international organizations on these subjects The FSFs recommendations on the CRA industry are as follows improve the quality

of the rating process and management of conflicts of interest in rating structured finance securities differentiate ratings on struc

tured finance products from those on corporate and government bonds and expand the initial and ongoing information provided

on the risk characteristics of structured products and enhance their review of the quality of the data input and due diligence per

formed on underlying assets by originators arrangers and issuers

In November 2008 the Heads of State of the G-20 reached agreement on wide-ranging set of proposals to better regulate

financial systems Among other things the G-20 committed to implement oversight of the CRAs consistent with the strength
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ened international code of conduct see below and agreed that in the medium term the countries should implement registra

tion system for CRA5 The G-20 also committed to formulate their regulations and other measures in consistent manner and

recommended that the international organization of securities regulators should review CRAs adoption of the standards and

mechanisms for monitoring compliance

IOSCO In December 2004 the Technical Committee of IOSCO published its Code of Conduct Fundamentals for Credit Rating

Agencies In March 2008 IOSCO published for public consultation report on the role of CRA5 in structured finance as well as

proposal to amend the IOSCO Code of Conduct Fundamentals for CRA5 Working with four other globally active CRAs MIS sub

mitted joint response to IOSCOs consultation report This joint response can be found on the Regulatory Affairs webpage of the

Companys website In May 2008 IOSCO finalized its report and published the revised IOSCO Code at its annual meeting in May

2008 The changes made to the OSCO Code broadly address greater transparency of methodologies and processes by CRAs On

July 2008 IOSCO also announced that it will monitor the CRA5 implementation of the IOSCO Code changes and it will explore

the means by which IOSCO members might work together to verify the proper and complete disclosure by CRAs of information

required by the IOSCO Code Finally in September OSCO announced that it would discuss at its next technical committee meet

ing held in January 2009 measures that would aim to bring about more globally consistent oversight of CRAs

MIS initially published its Code of Professional Conduct pursuant to the IOSCO Code in June 2005 and published an updated ver

sion in October 2007 In November 2008 MIS revised its Code to reflect the changes made to the IOSCO Code Beginning in

2006 MIS has annually published report that describes its implementation of the Code The MIS Code and the three annual

reports that have been published thus far can be found on the Regulatory Affairs page of the Companys website

EU The European Commission presently is re-examining the regulatory framework for rating agencies in Europe On July 31

2008 the Commission published consultation document seeking comments on proposals with respect to regulating rating agen

cies that operate in the EU Specifically the Commission sought comments on the authorization supervision and enforcement

rules for rating agencies that operate within the EU Over 90 respondents provided the Commission with their views on the sug

gested framework MISs comments on the proposal are posted on the Regulatory Affairs page of the Companys website

In November 2008 the Commission introduced proposed regulation for the oversight of CRAs Proposed Regulation The

document is primarily based on the IOSCO Code but with important differences Particularly the Commission has introduced

additional conduct and governance regulation The Proposed Regulation is now being considered by EU Member States under

the leadership of the Presidency of the Council of the EU and by the European Parliament Both bodies have the
ability

to

introduce significant modifications to the Commissions original proposed text

It is as yet too early to assess the form and content of this re-evaluation process

The Basel Committee In June 2004 the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision published new bank capital adequacy

framework called Basel II to replace its initial 1988 framework Under Basel II ratings assigned by recognized CRAs or ECAIs can

be used by banks in determining credit risk weights for many of their institutional credit exposures Recognized ECAI5 could be

subject to broader range of oversight National authorities have begun the ECA recognition process MIS has been recognized as

an ECAI in several jurisdictions and the recognition process is ongoing in many others MIS does not currently believe that Basel II

will materially affect its financial position or results of operations As result of the recent regulatory activity the banking author

ities of the Basel Committee are reconsidering the overall Basel II framework It is as yet too early to assess the form and content

of this re-evaluation

Other legislation and regulation relating to credit rating and research services is being considered by local national and multina

tional bodies and this type of activity is likely to continue in the future In addition in certain countries governments may provide

financial or other support to locally-based rating agencies For example governments may from time to time establish official

rating agencies or credit ratings criteria or procedures for evaluating local issuers If enacted any such legislation and regulation

could change the competitive landscape in which MIS operates The legal status of rating agencies has been addressed by courts in

various decisions and is likely to be considered and addressed in legal proceedings from time to time in the future Management of

MIS cannot predict whether these or any other proposals will be enacted the outcome of any pending or possible future legal

proceedings or regulatory or legislative actions or the ultimate impact of any such matters on the competitive position financial

position or results of operations of Moodys
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Moodys and its affiliates own and control variety of trade secrets confidential information trademarks trade names copy

rights patents databases and other intellectual property rights that in the aggregate are of material importance to Moodys

business Management of Moodys believes that each of the trademarks and related corporate names marks and logos containing

the term Moodys are of material importance to the Company Moodys is licensed to use certain technology and other

intellectual property rights owned and controlled by others and similarly other companies are licensed to use certain technology

and other intellectual property rights owned and controlled by Moodys The Company considers its trademarks service marks

databases software and other intellectual property to be proprietary and Moodys relies on combination of copyright trade

mark trade secret patent non-disclosure and contractual safeguards for protection

The names of Moodys products and services referred to herein are trademarks service marks or registered trademarks or service

marks owned by or licensed to Moodys or one or more of its subsidiaries

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31 2008 the number of full-time equivalent employees of Moodys was approximately 3900

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Moodys investor relations Internet website is http//ir.moodys.com/ Under the SEC Filings tab at this website the Company

makes available free of charge its annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and

amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed with or furnished to the SEC

The SEC maintains an internet site that contains annual quarterly and current reports proxy and other information statements

that the Company files electronically with the SEC The SECs internet site is http//www.sec.gov/

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

NAME AGE AND POSITION BIOGRAPHICAL DATA

Mark Atmeida 49 Mr Almeida has served as President of Moodys Analytics since january 2008 Prior to this posi

PresidentMoodys Analytics tion Mr Almeida was Senior Vice President of Moodys Corporation from August 2007 to January

2008 Senior Managing Director of the Investor Services Group ISG at Moodys Investors Service

Inc from December 2004 to January 2008 and was Group Managing Director of ISG from June

2000 to December 2004 Mr Almeida joined Moodys Investors Service Inc in April1988 and has

held variety of positions with the company in both the U.S and overseas

Richard Cantor 51 Mr Cantor has served as Chief Risk Officer of Moodys Corporation since December 2008 and as

Chief Risk Officer Moodys Chief Credit Officer of Moodys Investors Service Inc since November 2008 Mr Cantor has also

Corporation and served as the Chairman of the Credit Policy Committee since November 2008 From July 2008 to

Chief Credit Officer November 2008 Mr Cantor served as Acting Chief Credit Officer and Acting Chairman of the

Moodys Investors Seivice Credit Policy Committee Prior thereto Mr Cantor was Managing Director of Moodys Credit

Policy Research Group from June 2001 to July 2008 and Senior Vice President in the Financial

Guarantors Rating Group Mr Cantor joined Moodys in 1997 from the Federal Reserve Bank of

New York where he served as Assistant Vice President in the Research Group and was Staff Direc

tor at the Discount Window Prior to the Federal Reserve Mr Cantor taught Economics at UCLA

and Ohio State and has taught on an adjunct basis at the business schools of Columbia University

and NYU

John Goggins 48 Mr Goggins has served as the Companys Senior Vice President and General Counsel since

Senior Vice President and October 12000 Mr Goggins joined Moodys Investors Service Inc in February 1999 as Vice

General Counsel President and Associate General Counsel and became General Counsel in 2000
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NAME AGE AND POSITION BIOGRAPHICAL DATA

Linda Huber 50 Ms Huber has served as the Companys Executive Vice President and Chief

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Financial Officer since May 2005 Prior thereto she served as Executive Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer at U.S Trust Company subsidiary of

Charles Schwab Company Inc from 2003 to 2005 Prior to U.S Trust she

was Managing Director at Freeman Co from 1998 through 2002 She

served PepsiCo as Vice President of Corporate Strategy and Development

from 1997 until 1998 and as Vice President and Assistant Treasurer from

1994 until 1997 She served as Vice President in the Energy Investment

Banking Group at Bankers Trust Company from 1991 until 1994 and as an

Associate in the Energy Group at First Boston Corporation from 1986

through 1990 She also held the rank of Captain in the U.S Army where she

served from 1980 to 1984

MicheL Madetain 52 Mr Madelain has served as Chief Operating Officer of Moodys Investors

Chief Operating Officer Moodys Investors Service Service Inc since May 2008 Prior to this position Mr Madelain served as

Executive Vice President Fundamental Ratings from September 2007 to May

2008 with responsibility for all Global Fundamental Ratings including

Corporate Finance Financia Institutions Public Finance and Infrastructure

Finance He managed the Financial Institutions group from March 2007 until

September 2007 Mr Madelain served as Group Managing Director EMEA

Corporate Ratings from January 2004 to March 2007 and prior thereto held

several Managing Director positions in the U.S and U.K Fundamental Rating

Groups Prior to joining Mocldys in 1994 Mr Madelain served as Partner of

Ernst Young Auditing Practice Mr Madelain is qualified as Chartered

Accountant in France

Joseph Jay McCabe 58 Mr McCabe has served as the Companys Senior Vice President and Corpo

Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller rate Controller since December 2005 Mr McCabe joined Moodys in July

2004 as Vice President and Corporate Controller Before joining the Com

pany he served as Vice President Corporate Controller at PPL Corporation

an energy and utility company from 1994 to 2003 Prior to PPL Corporation

he served Deloitte Touche as Partner from 1984 to 1993 and as member

of the firms audit practice from 1973 to 1984

Raymond McDanieL Jr 51 Raymond McDaniel Jr has served as the Chairman and Chief Executive

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Officer of the Company since April 2005 and serves on the International

Business Development Committee of the Board of Directors Mr McDaniel

served as the Companys President from October 2004 until April 2005 and

the Companys Chief Operating Officer from January 2004 until April 2005

He has served as Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President of Moodys

Investors Service Inc since May 2008 and served as President of Moodys

Investors Service from November 2001 to August 2007 Mr McDaniel served

as the Companys Executive Vice President from April 2003 to January 2004

and as Senior Vice President Global Ratings and Research from November

2000 until April 2003 He served as Senior Managing Director Global Ratings

and Research of Moodys Irlvestors Service from November 2000 until

November 2001 and as Managing Director International from 1996 to

November 2000 Mr McDaniel is also Director of John Wiley Sons Inc
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NAME AGE AND POSITION BIOGRAPHICAL DATA

Perry RoteLLa 45 Mr Rotella has served as the Companys Senior Vice President and Chief

Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer Information Officer since December 2006 Prior to joining the Company

he served as Chief Information Officer for American International

Groups AIG Domestic Brokerage group from 2003 to 2006 Oper

ations and Systems Executive in 2006 and Global Chief Technology Offi

cer from 2000 to 2003 Prior to AIG from 1985 to 1999 Mr Rotetla was

with American Management Systems AMS technology consulting

firm where he held variety of positions including Chief Technology

Officer for AMSs Insurance Technology Group

Lisa WestLake 47 Ms Westlake has served as the Companys Senior Vice President and

Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resource Officer Chief Human Resources Officer since December 2008 Prior to this posi

tion Ms Westlake served as Vice President Investor Relations from

December 2006 to December 2008 and Managing Director Finance

from September 2004 to December 2006 Prior to joining the Company

Ms Westlake was senior consultant with the Schiff Consulting Group

from 2003 to 2004 From 1996 to 2003 Ms Westlake worked at Ameri

can Express Company where she held several different positions such as

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for the OPEN Business Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer for Establishment Services and Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer for Relationship Services From

1989 to 1995 Ms Westlake held range of financial management posi

tions at Dun Bradstreet Corporation and it subsidiary at the time IMS

International From 1984 to 1987 Ms Westlake served at Lehman

Brothers in both the investment banking and municipal trading areas
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ITEM RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors and other information included in this annual report on Form 10-K should be carefully considered The

risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones the Company faces Additional risks and uncertainties not presently

known to the Company or that the Companys management currently deems minor or insignificant also may impair its business

operations If any of the following risks occur Moodys business financial condition operating results and cash flows could be

materially adversely affected

Changes in the Volume of Debt Securities Issued in Domestic and/or Global Capital Markets and Changes in Interest Rates and

Other Volatility in the Financial Markets

Approximately 49% of MIS revenue for 2008 was transaction-based compared to 68% of MIS revenue in 2007 Revenue from

rating transactions in turn is dependent on the number and dollar volume of debt securities issued in the capital markets Accord

ingly any conditions that either reduce investor demand for debt securities or reduce issuers willingness or
ability

to issue such

securities could reduce the number and dollar volume of debt issuances for which Moodys provides ratings services and thereby

have an adverse effect on the fees derived from the issuance of ratings

significant disruption in world financial markets particularly in the credit markets that began in mid-2007 worsened materially

in the second half of 2008 particularly in the latter portion of the year when many credit markets experienced severe lack of

liquidity These credit market disruptions together with the current economic slowdown have negatively impacted the volume of

debt securities issued in global capital markets and the demand for credit ratings Consequently the Company has experienced

substantial reduction in the demand for rating newly issued debt securities resulting in 32% decrease in MIS revenue for 2008

compared to 2007 The timing and nature of any recovery
in the credit and other financial markets remains uncertain and there

can be no assurance that market conditions will improve in the future or that financial results will not continue to be adversely

affected sustained period of market decline or weakness especially if it relates to credit sensitive securities for which there is

typically high level of demand for ratings could have material adverse effect on Moodys business and financial results Ini

tiatives that the Company has undertaken to reduce costs may not be sufficient to offset the results of prolonged or more

severe downturn and further cost reductions may be difficult or impossible to obtain in the near term due in part to rent

technology and other fixed costs associated with some of the Companys operations as well as the need to monitor outstanding

ratings Further the cost-reduction initiatives undertaken to date could result in strains in the Companys operations if the credit

markets and demand for ratings return to levels that prevailed prior to mid-2007 or otherwise unexpectedly surge

Other factors that could further reduce investor demand for debt securities or reduce issuers willingness or ability to issue such

securities include increases in interest rates or credit spreads continued volatility in financial markets or the interest rate

environment significant regulatory political or economic events the use of alternative sources of credit including financial

institutions and government sources defaults of significant issuers and other unfavorable market and economic conditions

Regulation as Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization and Potential forNewDomestic and Overseas

Legislation and Regulations

Credit rating agencies are regulated in both the U.S and in other countries including by state and local authorities Currently

Moodys is designated as an NRSRO pursuant to SEC regulation enacted in response to the adoption of the Reform Act One of

the central promises of the Reform Act was to encourage competition among rating agencies Given its adoption Moodys is

unable to assess the future impact of any regulatory changes that may result from the SECs regulations or the impact on Moodys

competitive position or its current practices Possible consequences of these new regulations include issues that may affect all

entities engaged in the rating agency business such as expected increased costs or issues that may affect Moodys in dispropor

tionate manner Any of these changes could negatively impact Moodys operations or profitability the Companys ability to

compete or the markets for its products and services in ways that Moodys presently is unable to predict

In addition over the past year both the G-7 and the G-20 Finance Ministers and Central Bank Governors have sought to analyze

and arrive at consistent approach for addressing the various areas of the financial market and have made variety of recom

mendations as to regulation of rating agencies and the markets for ratings Finance ministers have also agreed to register rating

agencies in their home jurisdiction As result of the internationally coordinated activity individual countries likely will begin

implementing registration regimes for the oversight of CRAs in the coming years In particular the European Commission pres

ently is re-examining the regulatory framework for rating agencies in Europe In November 2008 the Commission published

18 MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL REPORT FINANOALS



draft regulation for the oversight of regulating rating agencies that operate in the EU It is as yet too early to assess the form and

content of this re-evaluation As with the recent regulatory initiatives in the U.S these initiatives may affect all entities engaged

in the rating agency business or may affect Moodys in disproportionate manner and could negatively impact Moodys oper

ations or profitability the Companys ability to compete or the markets for its products and services in ways that Moodys pres

ently is unable to predict

In addition to the foregoing many legislative and regulatory agencies both in the U.S and in other countries have been studying

or pursuing new laws and regulations addressing CRAs and the use of credit ratings It is possible that such initiatives could lead to

additional laws or regulations affecting Moodys operations or profitability the Companys ability to compete or the markets for

its products and services This could include adopting regulations that require debt securities to be rated establish criteria for

credit ratings or authorize only certain entities to provide credit ratings which could negatively affect competition among rating

agencies the level of demand for ratings or the Companys ability to provide objective assessments of creditworthiness Additional

regulations could potentially increase the costs associated with the operation of CRA alter the rating agencies communica

tions with the issuers as part of the rating assignment process increase the legal risk associated with the issuance of credit ratings

change the regulatory framework to which CRAs are subject and affect the competitive environment in which CRAs operate

As existing laws and regulations applicable to credit ratings and rating agencies continue to evolve and new laws or regulations are

adopted the costs of compliance may increase and Moodys may not be able to pass these costs through the pricing of its prod

ucts In addition increased regulatory uncertainty over the scope interpretation and administration of laws and regulations may

increase costs decrease demand or affect the manner in which Moodys or its customers or users of credit ratings operate or alter

the economics of the credit ratings business by restricting or mandating the business models under which an NRSRO is permitted

to operate

description of several of the more recent regulatory initiatives in the U.S and other countries is described above under the sec

tion entitled Regulation in Item Business of this Form 10-K

Legal Economic and Regulatory Risks of Operating in ForeignJurisdictions

Moodys maintains offices outside the U.S and derives significant and increasing portion of its revenue from sources outside the

U.S In addition to the regulatory risks discussed above operations in different countries expose Moodys to number of legal

economic and regulatory risks such as restrictions on the ability to convert local currency into U.S dollars and currency fluctua

tions U.S laws affecting overseas operations including regulations applicable under the Office of Foreign Asset Control and the

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act domestic and foreign export and import restrictions tariffs and other trade barriers political
and

economic instability the possibility of nationalization expropriation price controls and other restrictive governmental actions

longer payment cycles and possible problems in collecting receivables and potentially adverse tax consequences

In addition to competition from other rating agencies that operate in number of international jurisdictions and specialized

companies that provide ratings for particular types of financial products or issuers such as A.M Best Company Inc with respect

to the insurance industry in many foreign countries Moodys will have to compete with rating agencies that may have stronger

local presence
and greater familiarity or longer operating history in those markets These local providers or comparable com

petitors that may emerge in the future may receive support from local governments or other institutions that Moodys does not

receive putting Moodys at competitive disadvantage

Uncertain Impact of GovernmentActions to Stabilize Financial Institutions and Markets

The U.S government announced several programs in 2008 including the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act the October 14

2008 joint statement by the U.S Treasury Federal Reserve and FDIC announcing the Troubled Asset Relief Program through

which the government is authorized to purchase up to $700 billion in whole loans and mortgage-related securities as well as to

invest directly in financial institutions the Treasury Departments money market mutual fund guaranty program the Federal

Reserves commercial paper funding facility
and payment of interest on reserve balances the FDICs temporary liquidity guaran

tee program and the February 10 2009 statement by the U.S Treasury Additionally the governments of many nations and

international organizations such as the International Monetary Fund have announced similar measures for institutions and coun

tries around the world There is no assurance that these programs individually or collectively will have beneficial effects in the

credit markets will address credit or liquidity issues of companies that participate in the programs will reduce volatility or

uncertainty in the financial markets or will reverse or moderate the slowdown and downturn of world economies The failure of

these programs to have their intended effects could have material adverse effect on the financial markets which in turn could

materially and adversely affect the Companys business financial condition and results of operations In addition these and
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similar initiatives could reduce the demand for ratings of credit securities or other financial products could result in increased

government regulation of such markets and could have other unanticipated adverse effects on the markets for and demand for

debt securities and/or for ratings of such instruments

Increased Pricing Pressure from Competitors and/or Customers

In the credit rating research and credit risk management markets competition for customers and market share has spurred more

aggressive tactics by some competitors in areas such as pricing and service At the same time bankruptcies and consolidation of

customers particularly those involved in structured finance products and other factors affecting demand may enhance the mar

ket power of customers While Moodys seeks to compete primarily on the basis of the quality of its products and service if its

pricing and services are not sufficiently competitive with its current and future competitors Moodys may lose market share

Introduction of Competing Products or Technologies by Other Companies

The markets for credit ratings research and credit risk management services are highly competitive The ability to provide

innovative products and technologies that anticipate customers changing requirements and to utilize emerging technological

trends is key factor in maintaining market share Competitors may develop quantitative methodologies or related services for

assessing credit risk that customers and market participants may deem preferable more cost-effective or more valuable than the

credit risk assessment methods currently employed by Moodys or may price or market their products in manners that differ from

those utilized by the Company Customers or others may develop alternative proprietary systems for assessing credit risk Such

developments could affect demand for Moodys products and the Companys growth prospects In addition Moodys growth

prospects also could be adversely affected by limitations of its information technologies that fail to provide adequate capacity and

capabilities to meet increased demands of producing quality ratings and research products at levels achieved by competitors

Exposure to Litigation Related to Moodys Rating Opinions

Currently Moodys has received subpoenas and inquiries from states attorneys general and governmental authorities as part of

ongoing investigations and is cooperating with those inquiries In addition Moodys faces litigation
from parties claiming damages

relating to ratings actions as well as other related actions In these difficult economic times when the value of credit-dependent

instruments has declined and defaults have increased the number of investigations and legal proceedings Moodys is facing has

increased These proceedings impose additional expenses on the Company which may increase over time as these matters prog

ress procedurally require the attention of senior management to an extent that may reduce their
ability to devote significant time

addressing other business issues and may result in fines or damages if we are deemed to have violated
any

laws or regulations As

Moodys international business expands these types of claims may increase or become more costly because foreign jurisdictions

may not have legal protections or liability standards comparable to those in the U.S such as protections for the expression of

credit opinions as provided by the First Amendment and may pose
criminal rather than civil penalties for non-compliance These

risks often may be difficult to assess or quantify and we may not have adequate insurance or reserves to cover them and their

existence and magnitude often remains unknown for substantial periods of time

Exposure to Reputational and Credibility Concerns

Moodys reputation is one of the key bases on which the Company competes To the extent that the rating agency business as

whole or that Moodys relative to its competitors suffers loss in credibility Moodys business could be adversely affected Fac

tors that could affect credibility include potentially the performance of securities relative to the rating assigned to such securities

by particular rating agency the timing and nature of changes in ratings adverse publicity as to the ratings process
and the

appearance of conflict of interest

Possible Loss of Key Employees and Related Compensation Cost Pressures

Moodys success depends in part upon recruiting and retaining highly skilled experienced financial analysts and other professionals

Competition for qualified staff in the financial services industry is intense and Moodys ability
to attract staff could be impaired if it

is unable to offer competitive compensation and other incentives or if the regulatory environment mandates restrictions on or dis

closures about individual employees that would not be necessary in competing analytical industries Investment banks investors

and competitors may seek to attract analyst talent by offering higher compensation than Moodys or providing more favorable

working conditions Moodys also may not be able to identify and hire employees in some markets outside the U.S with the

required experience or skills to perform sophisticated credit analysis Moodys may also lose key employees due to other factors

such as catastrophes that could lead to disruption of business operations Moodys ability
to compete effectively will continue to

depend among other things on its
ability to attract new employees and to retain and motivate existing employees
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Moodys Operations and Infrastructure may Malfunction or Fail

Moodys ability
to conduct business may be adversely impacted by disruption in the infrastructure that supports its businesses

and the communities in which Moodys is located This may include disruption involving electrical communications or other

services used by the Company or third parties with or through whom Moodys conducts business whether due to human error

natural disasters power loss telecommunication failures break-ins sabotage computer viruses intentional acts of vandalism acts

of terrorism or war or otherwise Moodys efforts to secure and plan for potential disruptions of major operating systems may not

be successful The Company does not have
fully

redundant systems for most of its smaller office locations and low-risk systems

and its disaster recovery plan does not include restoration of non-essential services If disruption occurs in one of Moodys loca

tions or systems and its personnel in those locations or who rely on such systems are unable to utilize other systems or communi

cate with or travel to other locations its
ability

to service and interact with Moodys clients and customers may suffer

The Companys operations also rely on the secure processing storage and transmission of confidential and other information in its

computer systems and networks Although Moodys takes protective measures and endeavor to modify them as circumstances

warrant its computer systems software and networks may be vulnerable to unauthorized access computer viruses or other mali

cious events that could have security impact If one or more of such events occur this could jeopardize Moodys or its clients or

counterparties confidential and other information processed and stored in and transmitted through its computer systems and

networks or otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in the Companys its clients its counterparties or third parties oper

ations Moodys may be required to expend significant additional resources to modify its protective measures or to investigate and

remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures and the Company may be subject to litigation and financial losses that are either not

insured against or not
fully

covered through any insurance maintained by Moodys

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

Moodys corporate headquarters is located at World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich Street New York New York with approx

imately 668513 square feet During the fourth quarter of 2006 the Company completed the sale of its former corporate head

quarters building at 99 Church Street New York New York As of December 31 2008 Moodys operations were conducted from

18 U.S offices and 56 non-U.S office locations all of which are leased These properties are geographically distributed to meet

operating and sales requirements worldwide These properties are generally considered to be both suitable and adequate to meet

current operating requirements

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time Moodys is involved in legal and tax proceedings governmental investigations claims and
litigation

that are

incidental to the Companys business including claims based on ratings assigned by MIS Moodys is also subject to ongoing tax

audits in the normal course of business Management periodically assesses the Companys liabilities and contingencies in con

nection with these matters based upon the latest information available Moodys discloses material pending legal proceedings

pursuant to SEC rules and other pending matters as it may determine to be appropriate

As result of recent events in the U.S subprime residential mortgage sector and the credit markets more broadly various legis

lative regulatory and enforcement entities around the world are investigating or evaluating the role of rating agencies in the U.S

subprime mortgage-backed securitization market and structured finance markets more generally Moodys has received subpoenas

and inquiries from states attorneys general and other governmental authorities and is cooperating with such investigations and

inquiries Moodys is also cooperating with review by the SEC relating to errors in the model used by MIS to rate certain

constant-proportion debt obligations In addition the Company is facing market participant litigation relating to the performance

of MIS rated securities Although Moodys in the normal course experiences such litigation the volume and cost of defending such

litigation
has significantly increased in the current economic environment

On June 27 2008 the Brockton Contributory Retirement System purported shareholder of the Companys securities filed

purported shareholder derivative complaint on behalf of the Company against its directors and certain senior officers and the

Company as nominal defendant in the Supreme Court of the State of New York County of New York The
plaintiff

asserts various

causes of action relating to the named defendants oversight of MISs ratings of RMBS and constant-proportion debt obligations

and their participation in the alleged public dissemination of false and misleading information about MISs ratings practices and/or

failure to implement internal procedures and controls to prevent the alleged wrongdoing The
plaintiff

seeks compensatory
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damages restitution disgorgement of profits and other equitable relief On July 2008 Thomas Flynn purported shareholder

of the Companys securities filed similar purported shareholder derivative complaint on behalf of the Company against its

directors and certain senior officers and the Company as nominal defendant in the Supreme Court of the State of New York

County of New York asserting similar claims and seeking the same relief The cases have been consolidated and plaintiffs filed an

amended consolidated complaint in November 2008 The Company removed the consolidated action to the U.S District Court for

the Southern District of New York in December 2008 In January 2009 the
plaintiffs

moved to remand the case to the Supreme

Court of the State of New York The Company will oppose remand and expects to move to dismiss the amended consolidated

complaint upon resolution of the remand motion On October 30 2008 the Louisiana Municipal Police Employees Retirement

System purported shareholder of the Companys securities also filed shareholder derivative complaint on behalf of the Com

pany against its directors and certain officers and the Company as nominal defendant in the U.S District Court for the Southern

District of New York This complaint too asserts various causes of action relating to the Companys ratings of RMBS CDO and

constant-proportion debt obligations and named defendants participation in the alleged public dissemination of false and

misleading information about MISs ratings practices and/or failure to implement internal procedures and controls to prevent the

alleged wrongdoing On December 2008 Rena Nadoff purported shareholder of the Company filed shareholder derivative

complaint on behalf of the Company against its directors and its CEO and the Company as nominal defendant in the Supreme

Court of the State of New York The complaint asserts claim for breach of fiduciary duty in connection with alleged overrating of

asset-backed securities and underrating of municipal securities

Two purported class action complaints have been filed by purported purchasers of the Companys securities against the Company

and certain of its senior officers asserting claims under the federal securities laws The first was filed by Raphael Nach in the U.S

District Court for the Northern District of Illinois on July 19 2007 The second was filed by Teamsters Local 282 Pension Trust

Fund in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York on September 26 2007 Both actions have been

consolidated into single proceeding entitled In re Moodys Corporation Securities Litigation in the United States District Court for

the Southern District of New York On June 27 2008 consolidated amended complaint was filed purportedly on behalf of all

purchasers of the Companys securities during the period February 2006 through October 24 2007 Plaintiffs allege that the

defendants issued false and/or misleading statements concerning the Companys business conduct business prospects business

conditions and financial results relating primarily to MISs ratings of structured finance products including RMBS CDO and

constant-proportion debt obligations The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of compensatory damages and their reasonable

costs and expenses incurred in connection with the case The Company moved for dismissal of the consolidated amended

complaint in September 2008 On February 23 2009 the court issued an opinion dismissing certain claims sustaining others and

granting plaintiffs leave to amend their complaint by March 18 2009

For claims litigation and proceedings not related to income taxes where it is both probable that
liability

has been incurred and

the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated the Company has recorded liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and

periodically adjusts these as appropriate In other instances because of uncertainties related to the probable outcome and/or the

amount or range of loss management does not record
liability

but discloses the contingency if significant As additional

information becomes available the Company adjusts its assessments and estimates of such matters accordingly For income tax

matters the Company employs the prescribed methodology of FIN 48 implemented as of January 2007 which requires

company to first determine whether it is more-likely-than-not defined as likelihood of more than
fifty percent that tax

position will be sustained based on its technical merits as of the reporting date assuming that taxing authorities will examine the

position and have full knowledge of all relevant information tax position that meets this more-likely-than-not threshold is then

measured and recognized at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than
fifty percent likely

to be realized upon effective

settlement with taxing authority

Based on its review of the latest information available and subject to the contingencies described in Item MDA
Contingencies the ultimate monetary liability

of the Company for the pending matters referred to above other than Legacy Tax

Matters that are discussed in Part II Item MDA Contingencies is not
likely

to have material adverse effect on the

Companys consolidated financial condition although it is possible that the effect could be material to the Companys

consolidated results of operations for an individual reporting period This opinion is subject to the contingencies described in Part

II Item MDA Contingencies

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this annual report on Form 10-K no matter was submitted to vote of

security holders
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Information in
response to this Item is set forth under the captions below

MOODYS PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

For the Three Months Ended December 31 2008

Total Number of Approximate Dollar

Shares Purchased as Part Value of Shares That May
Total Number Average Price of Publicly Announced yet be Purchased Under

Period of Shares Purchasedlil Paid per Share Program the Programl2l

October 31 3620923 $25.43 3619910 $1459.2 million

November 130 1174251 $23.88 1174251 1431.2 million

December 31 1025 $19.98 1431.2 million

Total 4796199 $25.05 4794161 $1431.2 million

Includes the surrender to the Company of 1013 and 1025 shares in October and December respectively
of common stock to satisfy tax withholding obligations

in connection with the vesting of restricted stock issued to employees

As of the last day of each of the months On July 30 2007 the Companys Board authorized $2.0 billion share
repurthase program which the Company began

utilizing
in

January
2008 upon completion of the June 2006 authorization There is no established expiration date for the authorization

During the fourth quarter of 2008 Moodys repurchased 4.8 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $120.1

million and issued $0.1 million shares under employee stock-based compensation plans
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COMMON STOCK INFORMATION AND DIVIDENDS

The Companys common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol MCO The table below indicates the

high and low sales price of the Companys common stock and the dividends declared and paid for the periods shown The number

of registered shareholders of record at January 31 2009 was 3338

PRICE PER SHARE DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

High Low Declared Paid

2008

First quarter
$42.89 $31.14 $0.10

Second quarter
46.36 33.14 0.10 0.10

Third quarter
43.07 29.45 0.10 0.10

Fourth quarter
33.96 15.41 0.20 0.10

Year ended December 31 2008 $0.40 $0.40

2007

First quarter $76.09 $58.65 $0.08

Second quarter 73.69 59.91 0.08 0.08

Third quarter 63.70 42.42 0.08 0.08

Fourth quarter 55.99 35.05 0.18 0.08

Year ended December 31 2007 $0.34 $0.32

During 2006 the Company paid quarterly dividend of $0.07 per
share of Moodys common stock in each of the quarters result

ing in dividends paid per share during the year ended December 31 2006 of $0.28

On December 16 2008 the Board of the Company approved the declaration of quarterly dividend of $0.10 per share of

Moodys common stock payable on March 10 2009 to shareholders of record at the close of business on February 20 2009 The

continued payment of dividends at the rate noted above or at all is subject to the discretion of the Board

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The table below sets forth as of December 31 2008 certain information regardirlg the Companys equity compensation plans

Number of

Securities to be Weighted

Issued Upon Average Exercise Number of Securities

Exercise of Price of Remaining Available for

Outstanding Outstanding Future Issuance Under

Options Options Equity Compensation Plans

Warrants and Warrants and excluding Securities

Rights Rights Reflected in Column

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 194080141 $37.72 152528662

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

Total 19408014 $37.72 15252866

Includes 11563350 options outstanding under the Companys 2001 Key Employees Stock Incentive Plan 7670664 options outstanding under the Companys

1998 Key Employees Stock Incentive Plan and 174000 options issued under the 1998 Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan

Includes 11492279 shares available for issuance as options
stock appreciation rights or other stock-based awards under the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan and

235989 shares available for issuance as options
shares of restricted stock or performance shares under the 1998 Directors Plan and 3524598 shares available for

issuance under the companys Employee Stock Purchase Plan No new
grants may be made under the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan which expired by its terms in

June 2008
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the total cumulative shareholder return of the Company to the performance of Standard Poors

Stock 500 Index an index of performance peer group companies the Performance Peer Group and the Russell 3000 Financial

Services Index

The Company is electing to use the Russell 3000 Financial Services Index which is accessible to our shareholders in newspapers

the Internet and other readily available sources for purposes of the following graph The Company previously utilized the Perform

ance Peer Group which is custom composite index of peer issuers that were selected in good faith At December 31 2008 this

Performance Peer Group consisted of The McGraw-Hill Companies Pearson PLC Thomson-Reuters Corporation and Wolters

Kluwer N.y Late in 2007 Dow Jones Company Inc was acquired by News Corporation and in 2008 Reuters Group PLC was

acquired by Thomson Corporation As result of these changes and because of the limited number of companies contained in the

Performance Peer Group index the Company believes that the index previously utilized is not as representative for comparison

purposes as the Russell 3000 Financial Services Index

The comparison assumes that $100.00 was invested in the Companys common stock and in each of the foregoing indices on

December 31 2003 The comparison also assumes the reinvestment of dividends if any The total return for the common stock

was 1% during the performance period as compared with total return during the same period of 10% for the SP 500

48% for the Russell 3000 Financial Services Index and 19% for the Performance Peer Group

Comparison of CumuLative Total Return

Moodys Corporation Peer Group Index Russell 3000 Financial Services Index and SP Composite Index

250

i1
-- ..-

50

12/31/03 12/31104 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08

Moodys Corporation .- Peer Group Index

SP Composite Index Russell 3000 Financial Services Index

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Moodys Corporation $100.00 $144.06 $204.89 $231.41 $120.35 $68.58

PeerGrouplndex 100.00 111.83 117.81 151.18 131.14 81.38

Russell 3000 Financial Services Index 100.00 110.57 113.85 131.56 106.26 52.09

SP Composite Index 100.00 110.88 116.33 134.70 142.10 89.53

The comparisons in the graph above are provided in response to disclosure requirements of the SEC and are not intended to fore

cast or be indicative of future performance of the Companys common stock
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The Companys selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with Item MDA and the Moodys Corpo

ration consolidated financial statements and notes thereto

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

amounts in millions except per
share data 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Results of operations

Revenue $1755.4 $2259.0 $2037.1 $1731.6 $1438.3

Operating and SGA expenses
934.6 1035.1 898.7 756.8 617.8

Depreciation and amortization 75.1 42.9 39.5 35.2 34.1

Restructuring 2.5 50.0

Gain on sale of building 160.6

Operating income 748.2 1131.0 1259.5 939.6 786.4

Non-operating expense income net 22.4 14.3 1.0 4.9 15.1

Income before provision for income taxes 725.8 1116.7 1260.5 934.7 771.3

Provision for income taxes 268.2 415.2 506.6 373.9 346.2

Net income 457.6 701.5 753.9 560.8 425.1

Earnings per share

Basic 1.89 2.63 2.65 1.88 1.43

Diluted 1.87 2.58 2.58 1.84 1.40

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 242.4 266.4 284.2 297.7 297.0

Diluted 245.3 272.2 291.9 305.6 304.7

Dividends declared per share 0.40 0.34 0.29 0.24 0.15

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Balance sheet data

Total assets $1773.4 $1714.6 $1497.7 $1457.2 $1389.3

Long-term debt 750.0 600.0 300.0 300.0

Shareholders deficit equity 994.4 783.6 167.4 309.4 317.5

The 2008 and 2007 amounts include benefit of $13.3 million and $31.9 million respectively related to the favorable resolution of certain Legacy Tax Matters

The 2007 2006 and 2005 amounts include net benefits of $20.4 million $2.4 million and $8.8 million respectively and the 2004 amount includes an expense of

$30.0 million relating to certain Legacy
Tax Matters

At December 31 2004 the $300 million notes payable scheduled to mature in September 2005 were classified as current liability
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Moodys Corpo

ration consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K

This MDA contains Forward-Looking Statements See Forward-Looking Statements commencing on page 53 and Item 1A Risk

Factors commencing on page 18 for discussion of uncertainties risks and other factors associated with these statements

THE COMPANY

Moodys is provider of credit ratings and related research data and analytical tools ii quantitative credit risk measures risk

scoring software and credit portfolio management solutions and iii software for fixed income pricing data and valuation models

Moodys operates in two reportable segments MIS and MA

MIS the credit rating agency publishes credit ratings on wide range of debt obligations and the entities that issue such obliga

tions in markets worldwide Revenue is derived from the originators and issuers of such transactions who use MIS ratings in the

distribution of their debt issues to investors

The MA segment develops wide range
of products and services that support the risk management activities of institutional partic

ipants in global financial markets These offerings include quantitative credit risk scores credit processing software economic

research analytical models financial data securities pricing and valuation services and specialized consulting services MA also

distributes investor-oriented research and data developed by MIS as part of its rating process including in-depth research on

major debt issuers industry studies and commentary on topical credit related events

Beginning in january 2008 Moodys segments were changed to reflect the Reorganiztion announced in August 2007 As result

of the Reorganization the rating agency
is reported in the MIS segment and several ratings business lines have been realigned All

of Moodys other non-rating commercial activities including MKMV and sales of research produced by MIS analysts and the pro

duction and sales of other products and services are represented in the MA segment

As part of the Reorganization there were several realignments within the MIS LOBs Sovereign and sub-sovereign ratings which

were previously part of financial institutions infrastructure/utilities ratings which were previously part of corporate finance and

project finance which was previously part of structured finance were combined with the public finance business to form new

LOB called public project and infrastructure finance In addition real estate investment trust ratings were moved from financial

institutions and corporate finance to the structured finance business Furthermore in August 2008 the global managed invest

ments ratings group previously part of the structured finance business was combined with the financial institutions business

Within MA various aspects of the legacy MIS research business and MKMV business were combined to form the subscriptions

software and consulting businesses The subscriptions business includes credit and economic research data and analytical models

that are sold on subscription basis the software business includes license and maintenance fees for credit risk securities pricing

and valuation software products and the consulting business includes professional services and credit training associated with risk

modeling credit scorecard development and other specialized analytical projects as well as credit education services that are

typically sold on per-engagement basis Subscription services are typically sold for an initial 12-month term with renewal fea

tures for subsequent annual periods

The following is discussion of the results of operations of these segments excluding the intersegment royalty revenue for MIS

and expense charged to MA for the rights to use and distribute content data and products developed by MIS Additionally over

head costs and corporate expenses of the Company are allocated to each segment based on revenue-split methodology Over

head expenses include costs such as rent and occupancy information technology and support staff such as finance human

resource information technology and legal

In addition to its reported results Moodys has included in this MDA certain adjusted results that the SEC defines as non-GAAP

financial measures Management believes that such non-GAAP financial measures when read in conjunction with the Companys

reported results can provide useful supplemental information for investors analyzing period to period comparisons of the Compa

nys performance These non-GAAP financial measures relate to Legacy Tax Matters and adjustments made to the Companys

2007 Restructuring Plan further described in Note 17 and Note 10 respectively to the Companys consolidated financial

statements
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Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Moodys discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based on the Companys consolidated finan

cial statements which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP The preparation of these financial statements requires

Moodys to make estimates and judgments that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and related disclosures of con

tingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and revenue and expenses during the reporting periods These

estimates are based on historical experience and on other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circum

stances On an ongoing basis Moodys evaluates its estimates including those reLated to revenue recognition accounts receivable

allowances contingencies goodwill and intangible assets pension and other post-retirement benefits and stock-based compensa

tion Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions The following accounting estimates

are considered critical because they are particularly dependent on managements judgment about matters that are uncertain at

the time the accounting estimates are made and changes to those estimates couLd have material impact on the Companys

consolidated results of operations or financial condition

Revenue Recognition

In recognizing revenue related to ratings MIS uses judgments to allocate billed revenue between the initial assignment of ratings

and the future monitoring of ratings in cases where MIS does not charge ongoing monitoring fees for particular issuer These

judgments are not dependent on the outcome of future uncertainties but rather relate to allocating revenue across accounting

periods In such cases MIS defers portions of rating fees that it estimates will be attributed to future monitoring activities and

recognizes the deferred revenue ratably over the estimated monitoring periods

The portion of the revenue to be deferred is based upon number of factors including the estimated fair market value of the

monitoring services charged for similar securities or issuers The monitoring period over which the deferred revenue will be recog

nized is determined based on factors such as the estimated lives of the rated securities Currently the estimated monitoring peri

ods range from one to ten years At December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 deferred revenue included approximately $48 million

$54 million and $47 million respectively related to such monitoring fees

Additionally in the case of commercial mortgage-backed securities derivatives international residential mortgage-backed and

asset-backed securities issuers can elect to pay the monitoring fees upfront These fees are deferred and recognized over the

future monitoring periods ranging from three to 51 years which are based on the expected lives of the rated securities at

December 31 2008 At December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 deferred revenue related to these securities was approximately $82

million $86 million and $72 million respectively

MIS estimates revenue for ratings of commercial paper for which in addition to fixed annual monitoring fee issuers are billed

quarterly based on amounts outstanding Revenue is accrued each quarter based on estimated amounts outstanding and is billed

when actual data is available The estimate is determined based on the issuers most recent reported quarterly data At

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 accounts receivable included approximately $34 million $38 million and $34 million

respectively related to accrued commercial paper revenue Historically MIS has not had material differences between the esti

mated revenue and the actual billings

Revenue earned within the MA segment relating to the three lines of business are recognized as follows subscription-based rev

enue is recognized ratably over the subscription period which is typically for an initial 12-month term with renewal features for

subsequent annual periods beginning upon delivery of the initial product software revenue is recognized at time of delivery which

is considered to have occurred upon transfer of the product master or first copy If uncertainty exists regarding customer accept

ance of the product or service revenue is not recognized until acceptance occurs consulting revenue is generally recognized at the

time services are performed

Certain revenue arrangements within the MA segment include multiple elements such as software licenses maintenance sub

scription fees and professional services In these types of arrangements the fee is allocated to the various products or services

based on objective measurements of fair value that is generally the price charged when sold separately or vendor-specific

objective evidence
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Accounts Receivable Allowance

Moodys records provisions for estimated future adjustments to customer billings as reduction of revenue based on historical

experience and current conditions Such provisions are reflected as additions to the accounts receivable allowance Additionally

estimates of uncollectible accounts are recorded as bad debt expense and are reflected as additions to the accounts receivable

allowance Billing adjustments and uncollectible account write-offs are recorded against the allowance Moodys evaluates its

accounts receivable allowance by reviewing and assessing historical collection and adjustment experience and the current status

of customer accounts Moodys also considers the economic environment of the customers both from an industry and geographic

perspective in evaluating the need for allowances Based on its analysis Moodys adjusts its allowance as considered appropriate

in the circumstances This process
involves high degree of judgment and estimation and could involve significant dollar amounts

Accordingly Moodys results of operations can be affected by adjustments to the allowance Management believes that the

allowance for uncollectible accounts is adequate to cover anticipated adjustments and write-offs under current conditions How

ever significant changes in any of the above factors or actual write-offs or adjustments that differ from the estimated amounts

could result in amounts that are greater or less than estimates In each of 2008 2007 and 2006 the Company revised its provision

rates for billing adjustments and uncollectible accounts to reflect its current estimate of the appropriate accounts receivable

allowance

Contingencies

Accounting for contingencies including those matters described in the Contingencies section of this MDA commencing on

page 51 is highly subjective and requires the use of judgments and estimates in assessing their magnitude and likely outcome In

many cases the outcomes of such matters will be determined by third parties including governmental or judicial bodies The

provisions made in the consolidated financial statements as well as the related disclosures represent managements best esti

mates of the then current status of such matters and their potential outcome based on review of the facts and in consultation

with outside legal counsel where deemed appropriate The Company regularly reviews contingencies and as new information

becomes available may in the future adjust its associated liabilities Based on its review of the latest information available and

subject to the contingencies described in Item MDA Contingencies the ultimate monetary liability of the Company in

connection with pending legal and tax proceedings claims and
litigation

is not likely to have material adverse effect on Moodys

future reported results and financial position

For the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 the provision for income taxes reflected credits of $8.7 million $27.3

million and $2.4 million respectively due to changes in the Companys liabilities for Legacy Tax exposures that were assumed by

Moodys in connection with its separation from Old DB in October 2000 These tax matters are more fully described under the

caption Legacy Tax Matters within Item MDA

GoodwiLL and Other Acquired Intangible Assets

Moodys evaluates its goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level defined as an operating segment or one level below an

operating segment annually as of November 30th or more frequently if impairment indicators arise in accordance with SFAS

No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets These impairment indicators could include significant events or circumstances that

would reduce the fair value of reporting unit below its carrying value These events or circumstances could include significant

change in the business climate legal factors operating performance indicators competition or sale or disposition of significant

portion of reporting unit As of the 2008 impairment test the reporting units were determined to be MIS MA and Fermat To test

goodwill for impairment the fair value of the reporting unit is compared to its carrying value including goodwill and if the fair value

exceeds its carrying value then goodwill is not impaired If the carrying value exceeds the fair value then the implied fair value of

goodwill is compared to the carrying value of goodwill If the implied fair value exceeds the carrying value then goodwill is not

impaired otherwise an impairment loss will be recorded by the amount the carrying value exceeds the implied fair value The

Company allocates corporate items to the carrying value of the reporting unit based on the same methodology as corporate and

overhead expenses are allocated The fair value of each reporting unit is estimated using discounted cash flow methodology This

analysis requires significant judgments including estimation of future operating results and cash flows of each reporting unit which

is based on internal budgets and strategic plans expected long-term growth rates terminal values discount rates determination of

Moodys weighted average cost of capital and the effects of external factors and market conditions Changes in these estimates and

assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair value and goodwill impairment for each reporting unit and an

impairment charge may be necessary to reduce the carrying value of goodwill which charge could be material to the Companys

financial position and results of operations Moodys allocates goodwill to reporting units based on the reporting unit expected to

benefit from the combination The Company evaluates its reporting units on an annual basis

MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIALS 29



In accordance with SEAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets amortizable intangible assets

are reviewed for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be

recoverable

Restructuring

The Company has engaged and may continue to engage in restructuring actions which require management to utilize significant

estimates related to expenses for severance and other employee benefit costs contract termination costs and asset impairments

If the actual amounts differ from these estimates the amount of the restructuring charge could be impacted For full description

of Moodys restructuring actions refer to the Results of Operations section below and Note 10 to the consolidated financial

statements

Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits

The expenses assets and liabilities that Moodys reports for its pension and other post-retirement benefit plans are dependent on

many assumptions concerning the outcome of future events and circumstances These assumptions include the following

future compensation increases based on the Companys long-term actual experience and future outlook

long-term return on pension plan assets based on historical portfolio results and the expected future average annual return

for each major asset class within the plans portfolio which is principally comprised of equity and fixed-income investments

future healthcare cost trends based on historical market data near-term outlooks and assessments of likely long-term trends

discount rates based on current yields on high-grade corporate long-term bonds

The discount rate selected to measure the present value of the Companys benefit obligations as of December 31 2008 was

derived using cash flow matching method whereby the Company compares
the plans projected payment obligations by year

with the corresponding yield on the Citibank pension discount curve The cash flows are then discounted back to their present

value and an overall discount rate is determined

Moodys major assumptions vary by plan and assumptions used are set forth in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements

In determining these assumptions the Company consults with outside actuaries and other advisors as deemed appropriate While

the Company believes that the assumptions used in its calculations are reasonable differences in actual experience or changes in

assumptions could have significant effect on the expenses assets and liabilities related to the Companys Post-Retirement Plans

When actual plan experience differs from the assumptions used actuarial gains or losses arise To the extent the total outstanding

gain or loss exceeds corridor threshold as defined in SEAS No 87 Employers Accounting for Pensions and the excess is sub

ject to amortization in annual expense over the estimated average future working lifetime of active plan participants For Moodys

Post-Retirement Plans the total losses as of December 31 2008 that have not been recognized in annual expense are $27.1 mil

lion and Moodys expects to recognize in net periodic pension expense $0.8 million for the amortization of actuarial losses

For Moodys funded pension plan the differences between the expected long-term rate of return assumption and actual experi

ence could also affect the net periodic pension expense As permitted under SFAS No 87 the Company spreads the impact of

asset experience over five-year period for purposes of calculating the market-related value of assets that is used in determining

the expected return on assets component of annual expense and in calculating the total unrecognized gain or loss subject to

amortization As of December 31 2008 the Company has an unrecognized asset loss of $32.6 million of which $7.6 million will

be recognized in the market-related value of assets that is used to calculate the expected return on assets component of 2010

expense
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The table below shows the estimated effect that one percentage-point decrease in each of these assumptions wilt have on

Moodys 2009 operating income These effects have been calculated using the Companys current projections of 2009 expenses

assets and liabilities related to Moodys Post-Retirement Plans which could change as updated data becomes available

Estimated Impact on

Assumption Used for 2009 Operating Income

2009 Decrease/Increase

Discount Rate 6.00%/6.25% $5.4

Weighted Average Assumed Compensation Growth Rate 4.00% $1.2

Assumed Long-Term Rate of Return on Pension Assets 8.35% $1.2

Discount rates of 6.00% and 6.25% are used for pension plans and other post-retirement plans respectively

one percentage-point increase in assumed healthcare cost trend rates wilt not affect 2009 projected expenses Based on current

projections the Company estimates that expenses related to Post-Retirement Plans wilt be $15.2 million in 2009 compared with

$14.2 million in 2008 excluding the costs of curtailment and special termination benefits of $3.8 million in 2008 The expected

expense increase in 2009 reflects the effects of lower discount rates higher amortization of actuarial losses and higher loss on

plan assets

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of SEAS No 123R Share-Based

Payments Under this pronouncement companies are required to record compensation expense for all share-based payment

award transactions granted to employees based on the fair value of the equity instrument at the time of grant This includes

shares issued under employee stock purchase plans stock options restricted stock and stock appreciation rights The fair value of

each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model that uses assumptions and

estimates that the Company believes are reasonable Some of the assumptions and estimates such as share price volatility
and

expected option holding period are based in part on Moodys experience during the period since becoming public company

which is limited The use of different assumptions and estimates in the Black-Scholes option pricing model could produce materi

ally different estimated fair values for option awards and related expense

An increase in the following assumptions would have had the following estimated effect on operating income in 2008 dollars in

millions

Estimated Impact on

Assumption Used for Increase in Operating Income in 2008

2004-2008 grants Assumption lncrease/Decrease

Average Expected Dividend Yield 0.1% -1.9% 0.10% 0.4

Average Expected Share Price Volatility 23% 37.3% 5% $4.2

Expected Option Holding Period 5.0 6.0 years 1.0 year $3.4

Income Taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S and various foreign jurisdictions The Companys tax assets and liabilities are

affected by the amounts charged for service provided and expenses incurred as well as other tax matters such as inter-company

transactions The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method in accordance with SEAS No 109

Therefore income tax expense
is based on reported income before income taxes and deferred income taxes reflect the effect of

temporary differences between the amounts of assets and liabilities that are recognized for financial reporting purposes and the

amounts that are recognized for income tax purposes

Moodys is subject to tax audits in various jurisdictions which involve Legacy Tax and other tax matters The Company regularly

assesses the likely outcomes of such audits in order to determine the appropriateness of its FIN 48 tax liabilities On January

2007 upon the implementation of FIN 48 the Company implemented the accounting policy to classify interest related to income

taxes as component of interest expense in the Companys consolidated financial statements and to classify associated penalties

if any as part of other non-operating expenses Prior to the implementation of FIN 48 the Company had classified interest related

to income taxes and associated penalties as components of income tax expense In accordance with FIN 48 prior period financial

statements have not been reclassified for this change
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FIN 48 requires company to first determine whether it is more-likely-than-not defined as likelihood of more than fifty per

cent that tax position will be sustained based on its technical merits as of the reporting date assuming that taxing authorities

will examine the position and have full knowledge of all relevant information tax position that meets this more-likely-than-not

threshold is then measured and recognized at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than
fifty percent likely to be realized

upon effective settlement with taxing authority Upon the initial implementation of FIN 48 the Company recorded reduction

of its january 2007 retained earnings of $43.3 million which is comprised of $32.9 million of tax and accrued interest of $17.3

million $10.4 million net of tax As the determination of FIN 48 liabilities and associated interest and penalties requires sig

nificant estimates to be made by the Company there can be no assurance that the Company will accurately predict the outcomes

of these audits and thus the eventual outcomes could have material impact on the Companys operating results or financial

condition

Other Estimates

In addition there are other accounting estimates within Moodys consolidated financial statements including recoverability of

deferred tax assets anticipated dividend distributions from non-U.S subsidiaries and valuation of investments in affiliates

Management believes the current assumptions and other considerations used to estimate amounts reflected in Moodys con

solidated financial statements are appropriate However if actual experience differs from the assumptions and other consid

erations used in estimating amounts reflected in Moodys consolidated financial statements the resulting changes could have

material adverse effect on Moodys consolidated results of operations or financial condition

See Note to the consolidated financial statements for further information on significant accounting policies that impact

Moodys

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Beginning in january 2008 Moodys segments were changed to reflect the Reorganization announced in August 2007 As result

of the Reorganization the rating agency is reported in the MIS segment and several ratings business lines have been realigned All

of Moodys other non-rating commercial activities including MKMV and sales of research produced by MIS analysts and the pro

duction and sales of other products and services are represented in the MA segment

As part of the Reorganization there were several realignments within the MIS LOBs Sovereign and sub-sovereign ratings which

were previously part of financial institutions infrastructure/utilities ratings which were previously part of corporate finance and

project finance which was previously part of structured finance were combined with the public finance business to form new

LOB called public project and infrastructure finance In addition real estate investment trust ratings were moved from financial

institutions and corporate finance to the structured finance business Furthermore in August 2008 the global managed invest

ments ratings group previously part of the structured finance business was combined with the financial institutions business

Within MA various aspects of the legacy MIS research business and MKMV business were combined to form the subscriptions

software and consulting businesses The subscriptions business includes credit and economic research data and analytical models

that are sold on subscription basis the software business includes license and maintenance fees for credit risk securities pricing

and valuation software products and the consulting business includes professional services and credit training associated with risk

modeling credit scorecard development and other specialized analytical projects as well as credit education services that are

typically sold on per-engagement basis Subscription services are typically sold for an initial 12-month term with renewal fea

tures for subsequent annual periods

The following is discussion of the results of operations of the new segments excluding the intersegment royalty revenue for MIS

and expense charged to MA for the rights to use and distribute content data and products developed by MIS Additionally over

head costs and corporate expenses of the Company all of which were previously included in the former MIS segment are allo

cated to each new segment based on revenue-split methodology Overhead expenses include costs such as rent and occupancy

information technology and support staff such as finance human resource information technology and legal

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31 2008 compared with Year Ended December 31 2007

Executive summary

Moodys revenue for 2008 totaled $1755.4 million decrease of 22% from $2259.0 million in 2007 Operating income was

$748.2 million down $382.8 million or 34% from $1131.0 million in 2007 Excluding the positive impact from FX translation

global revenue and operating income declined 23% and 36% respectively Diluted EPS of $1.87 for 2008 included benefit of

$0.05 related to the resolution of certain Legacy Tax Matters and minor adjustments to the 2007 restructuring Excluding the

Legacy Tax Matters and impact of restructuring in both years diluted EPS of $1.82 for 2008 decreased 27% from $2.50 for 2007

Revenue at MIS totaled $1204.7 million for 2008 decrease of $575.2 million or 32% from 2007 Excluding the positive impact

from FX translation revenue declined $591.7 million or 33% from prior year U.S revenue of $645.0 million decreased $474.0

million or 42% while non-U.S revenue of $559.7 million decreased $101.2 million or 15% from the prior year The public project

and infrastructure business line achieved modest growth Due to the credit market crisis that began in mid-2007 all other MIS

business lines recorded declines from the prior year led by structured finance

MA revenue rose to $550.7 million for 2008 up 15% from 2007 with all lines of business growing U.S revenue of $265.1 million

for 2008 increased 9% from 2007 Non-U.S revenue of $285.6 million increased 21% from 2007 and represented 52% of global

revenue compared to 49% year earlier

Total expenses for Moodys Corporation of $1007.2 million were down $120.8 million compared to the prior year Excluding the

restructuring charge in 2007 and minor adjustments to this charge in 2008 Moodys total expenses were $68.3 million or 6%

lower in 2008 due primarily to lower compensation costs

Moodys Corporation

The table below provides summary of revenue and operating results followed by further insight and commentary

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 %Change

Revenue

United States 910.1 1361.8 33.2%

International

EMEA 603.1 659.3 8.5%

Other 242.2 237.9 1.8%

Total International 845.3 897.2 5.8%

Total 1755.4 2259.0 22.3%

Expenses

Operating
493.3 584.0 15.5%

SGA 441.3 451.1 2.2%

Restructuring 2.5 50.0 105.0%

Depreciation and amortization 75.1 42.9 75.1%

Total 1007.2 1128.0 10.7%

Operating income 748.2 1131.0 33.8%

Interest expense income net 52.2 24.3 114.8%

Other non-operating expense income net 29.8 10.0 198.0%

Net income 457.6 701.5 34.8%

Total revenue of $1755.4 million decreased $503.6 million from 2007 due to the significant decline in MIS partly offset by good

growth in MA

Total relationship and transaction-based revenue for Moodys in 2008 was 64% and 36% respectively compared to 45% and

55% respectively in the prior year Relationship revenue in the MIS segment represents
the recurring monitoring of rated debt

obligation and/or entities that issue such obligations as well as revenue from programs such as commercial paper medium-term

notes and shelf registrations while transaction revenue represents the initial rating of new debt issuance as well as other

one-time fees In the MA segment relationship revenue represents the entire subscription-based business line and the
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maintenance revenue within the software tine of business Transaction revenue in MA represents the license fees for credit risk

software products and revenue from the consulting tine of business which offers professional services and credit training which

are typically sold on per-engagement basis

U.S revenue was $910.1 million down $451.7 million from the prior year primarily reflecting significantly reduced issuance activ

ity due to the broader downturn in global economic activity significant financial market volatility worsening credit market con

ditions and record-high interest rate spreads

International revenue of $845.3 million decreased $51.9 million from 2007 and accounted for 48% of global revenue compared to

40% year ago FX translation contributed approximately $23 million to 2008 international revenue Issuance volumes were sig

nificantly lower across most of the EMEA and Asian markets compared to 2007

Operating expenses were $493.3 million down $90.7 million due primarily to lower compensation costs of $70.5 million

Incentive compensation of $30.8 million decreased $27.8 million due to weak financial performance within the MIS segment and

the impact of restructuring Salaries and wages decreased approximately $21 million primarily reflecting the effects of the 2007

restructuring Stock-based compensation of $40.6 million declined $17.3 million due to the impact of the 2007 restructuring

which resulted in higher forfeitures of awards than in the previous year Non-compensation costs of $76.6 million decreased $20.2

million due to strong cost controls particularly in the areas of TE and recruiting which declined approximately $9 million and $3

million respectively

SGA expenses of $441.3 million decreased $9.8 million from the prior year due to declines in both compensation and non-

compensation expenses Compensation costs decreased $4.9 million or 2% primarily reflecting reductions of approximately $5

million and $10 million in incentive and stock-based compensation respectively These decreases were partially offset by an

approximate $9 million increase in salaries and wages due primarily to $6 million in senior executive severance expense recorded

in the second quarter of 2008 Non-compensation expenses of $207.4 million were down $4.9 million from prior year reflecting

decreases in TE rent and occupancy costs and professional service fees of $4.6 million $5.4 million and $6.8 million

respectively partially offset by approximately $11 million of bad debt reflecting the increase in bankruptcies and collection issues

compared to less than $1 million in 2007

The table below shows Moodys global staffing by geographic area

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 %Change

United States 2130 2175 2.1%

International 1817 1397 30.1%

Total 3947 3572 10.5%

reflects approximately 350 additional heacicount due to acquisitions
made

during
the year of which

approximately
290 were added in the fourth

quarter

Restructuring in 2008 reflects adjustments of previous estimates for severance and contract termination costs associated with the

2007 Restructuring Plan

Depreciation and amortization of $75.1 million increased $32.2 million from 2007 primarily due to an approximate $11 million

impairment of certain software and database intangible assets within the MA segment approximately $6 million of incremental

depreciation reflecting the use of 7WTC for the full year of 2008 approximately $6 million of purchase accounting amortization

associated with the acquisition of Fermat of which $4.5 million was write-off of acquired in-process technology and approx

imately $4 million of accelerated depreciation related to the closure of the Companys New jersey office in the second quarter of

2008

Operating income in 2008 of $748.2 million decreased $382.8 million from the prior year reflecting the significant decline in rev

enue resulting in an operating margin of 42.6% which was 750 basis points lower than the 50.1% margin in 2007 Operating

income in 2007 reflected $50.0 million restructuring charge FX translation positively impacted operating income by approx

imately $28 million

Net interest expense was $52.2 million an increase of $27.9 million from prior year primarily due to higher debt levels and the

absence in 2008 of $17.5 million of income relating to the reversal of accrued interest resulting from the resolution of Legacy

Tax Matter in the second quarter of 2007 compared to $2.3 million in 2008
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Other non-operating income was $29.8 million up about 200% from the prior year due primarily to FX gains of approximately

$25 million recorded during the year reflecting the strengthening of the U.S dollar and the euro to the British pound

Moodys effective tax rate of 37.0% remained essentially flat with 7.2% in 2007 Excluding the impact of restructuring and Leg

acy Tax items in both years Moodys ETR was 37.3% down 290 bps from 40.2% in 2007 due primarily to larger portion of

consolidated taxable income being generated from outside the U.S which is generally taxed at lower rate than the U.S stat

utory rate and the realization of benefits available for U.S.-based manufacturing and research activities

Net income was $457.6 million decrease of $243.9 million from the prior year primarily reflecting revenue declines that out-

paced cost reductions Excluding the impact of Legacy Tax Matters and restructuring net income of $445.3 million was $235.3

million lower than 2007 Diluted EPS was $1.87 or 28% lower than in the prior year resulting from the 35% reduction in net

income partially offset by 10% fewer diluted shares outstanding

Segment Results

Moodys Investors Sevice

The table below provides summary of revenue and operating results followed by further analysis and commentary

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 %Change

Revenue

Structured finance 411.2 873.3 52.9%

Corporate finance 300.5 411.5 27.0%

Financial institutions 263.0 274.3 4.1%

Public project and infrastructure finance 230.0 220.8 4.2%

Total 1204.7 1779.9 32.3%

Expenses

Operating and SGA 636.0 759.4 16.2%

Restructuring 1.6 41.3 103.9%

Depreciation and amortization 33.3 24.0 38.8%

Total 667.7 824.7 19.0%

Operating income 537.0 955.2 43.8%

Global MIS revenue of $1204.7 million was down $575.2 million from 2007 reflecting the significant declines in global SFG and

U.S CFG revenue In the U.S revenue of $645.0 million was down $474.0 million or 42% due to decreases in SFG and CFG

Internationally revenue was $559.7 million decline of $101.2 million or 15% from year-ago with declines in SFG and CFG

partially offset by growth in PPIF In 2008 international revenue comprised 46% of global revenue compared to 37% in 2007 FX

contributed approximately $16 million to international revenue in 2008 The
split

of revenue between relationship and transaction

was 51% and 49% respectively versus the prior year when the split was 32% relationship and 68% transaction revenue Globally

the lower proportion of transaction revenue in 2008 was primarily due to the significant decline in new issuance due to the

broader downturn in global economic activity reflected in the extreme market volatility worsening credit market conditions and

record-high interest rate spreads in the later part of the year

Global SFG revenue decreased $462.1 million due to declines in derivatives CREF and RMBS of $194.5 million or 57% $123.8

million or 69% and $103.1 million or 58% respectively which together accounted for 91% of the decrease Continued turbulence

in the capital and credit markets combined with lack of market liquidity and higher interest rate spreads has resulted in lower

loan origination and securitization which led to significant decline in new issuance revenue In 2008 transaction-based revenue

accounted for S1% of total SFG down from 77% in the prior year In the U.S revenue of $190.7 million was down $370.7 million

or 66% from year ago led by declines in the aforementioned asset classes due to significantly reduced issuance volume

International revenue was $220.5 million decrease of $91.4 million or 29% from 2007 led by declines in derivatives and CREF

of $48.5 million or 42% and $41.6 million or 66% respectively FX translation contributed approximately $8 million to interna

tional SFG revenue in 2008
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Global CFG revenue was down $111.0 million from prior year due to low issuance volumes particularly in the U.S Revenue from

new issuance declined approximately $121 million or 43% from the prior year due primarily to lower issuance in both

investment-grade and speculative-grade securities resulting from the broader downturn in global economic activity reflected in

the significant financial market volatility worsening credit market conditions and record-high interest rate spreads in the later part

of the year Transaction-based revenue comprised 53% of global CFG revenue compared to 68% in 2007 Revenue in the U.S was

$176.6 million decrease of $93.4 million or 35% from the prior year as revenue from bank loans and speculative-grade bond

ratings declined $64.1 million or 66% and $30.6 million or 62% respectively and was slightly offset by $6.6 million or 18% of

growth in revenue from monitoring fees International revenue of $123.9 million was down $17.6 million or 12% from prior year

comprised of declines in speculative-grade bond ratings bank loan ratings estimated ratings and investment-grade bond ratings of

$10.4 million or 56% $7.4 million or 67% $4.4 million or 25% and $3.7 million or 13% respectively These declines were offset

by growth in monitoring fees of $5.3 million as well as $2.7 million increase in other CFG services such as national scale ratings

and company credit assessment services FX translation contributed approximately $3 million to international CFG revenue in

2008

Global FIG revenue decreased $11.3 million from the prior year reflecting significant declines in issuance volumes primarily in the

U.S insurance and banking markets due to the on-going credit crisis Revenue from new transactions accounted for 33% of total

FIG in 2008 compared to 42% in the prior year In the U.S revenue of $117.8 million decreased $12.2 million or 9% from prior

year led by an $8.9 million decline in the insurance sector specifically the property and casualty insurance industry which was

down $5.0 million or 22% from 2007 International revenue of $145.2 million remained flat with prior year reflecting growth from

the life insurance industry offset by declines from rating financial guarantors and the property and casualty insurance industry FX

translation contributed $5 million to international FIG revenue in 2008

Global PPIF revenue increased $9.2 million from prior year due to growth in municipal structured products and in the project and

infrastructure finance sectors of $10.3 million or 35% and $2.5 million or 3% respectively Recurring revenue represented 41% of

total in 2008 compared with 40% in 2007 In the U.S revenue of $159.9 million grew $2.3 million with increases in the

aforementioned municipal structured products partially offset by declines of $6.4 million in other public finance issuance Outside

the U.S revenue of $70.1 million was up $6.9 million or 11% from prior year reflecting growth primarily within the EMEA region

of $4.6 million and $2.1 million in the infrastructure finance and public finance sectors respectively

Operating and SGA expenses of $636.0 million including allocated corporate overhead costs decreased $123.4 million with

declines in both compensation and non-compensation expenses of approximately $83 million and approximately $40 million

respectively Incentive compensation decreased approximately $39 million primarily due to weak financial performance Stock-

based compensation decreased approximately $20 million primarily reflecting the impact of the 2007 Restructuring Plan which

resulted in higher forfeitures of awards than in the previous year Salary and benefits expense
decreased approximately $24 million

from prior year reflecting the change in the mix of employees and timing of adding new hires during the year partially offset by

approximately $6 million in senior executive severance expense recorded in the second quarter of 2008 The decrease in

non-compensation expenses from 2007 reflected continued strong cost controls resulting in reductions within TE recruiting and

marketing of $14.6 million $3.1 million and $2.6 million respectively Offsetting these decreases in 2008 was an $8.1 million

increase in bad debt expense compared to prior year primarily related to bankruptcies and collection issues including $2.3 million

for Lehman Brothers and $1.7 million for issuers of structured investment vehicles

The 2008 restructuring amount primarily reflects adjustments of previous estimates for severance and contract termination costs

associated with the Restructuring Plan

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $9.3 million primarily due to the accelerated depreciation recorded in the sec

ond quarter of 2008 relating to the jersey City office closure and full year of depreciation on 7WTC assets

Operating income decreased $418.2 million from 2007 reflecting the 32% reduction in revenue outpacing the 19% decline in

Operating and SGA expenses Excluding the impact of the 2007 restructuring and minor adjustments made in 2008 relating to

this charge operating income declined $461.1 million or 46% from the prior year FX translation had positive impact of approx

imately $17 million on MIS operating income in 2008

36 MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIALS



Moodys Analytics

The table below provides summary of revenue and operating results followed by further insight and commentary

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 Change

Revenue

Subscriptions
475.9 421.5 12.9%

Software 49.2 39.5 24.6%

Consulting
25.6 18.1 41.4%

Total 550.7 479.1 14.9%

Expenses

Operating and SGA 298.6 275.7 8.3%

Restructuring 0.9 8.7 10.3%

Depreciation and amortization 41.8 18.9 121.2%

Total 339.5 303.3 11.9%

Operatingincome
211.2 175.8 20.1%

Global MA revenue increased $71.6 million with 69% of the growth generated internationally and accounted for 31% of global

MCO revenue in 2008 compared to 21% in the prior year Recurring revenue which includes subscription and software main

tenance fees comprised 91% of the total in 2008 Compared to 92% in the prior year In the U.S revenue of $265.1 million

increased 9% primarily reflecting growth in subscription revenue International revenue of $285.6 million was $49.3 million higher

than in 2007 reflecting growth in all business lines particularly the software line of business which benefited from the acquisition

of Fermat FX translation contributed approximately $7 million to international MA revenue in 2008

Global subscription revenue which comprises 86% of total MA in 2008 increased $54.4 million and accounted for 76% of global

MA growth reflecting continued demand from new and existing customers for credit and economic research structured finance

analytics credit risk assessment and other offerings U.S revenue was $239.4 million an increase of $20.3 million from 2007

Internationally revenue totaled $236.5 million an increase of $34.1 million or 17% over the prior year with 78% of the growth

generated within the EMEA region

Global software revenue increased $9.7 million including the positive impact of the Fermat acquisition in the fourth quarter of

2008 U.S revenue of $20.0 million remained flat with prior year while international revenue of $29.2 million increased $9.0 mil

lion or 45% from the prior year with growth generated from all regions

Global consulting revenue increased $7.5 million over prior year reflecting relatively higher demand internationally for credit

education portfolio analysis risk modeling and scorecard development services primarily in the EMEA region

Operating and SGA expenses including allocated corporate overhead costs were $298.6 an increase of $22.9 million from the

prior year due to increases in both compensation and non-compensation expenses
of approximately $8 million and approximately

$15 million respectively The increase in compensation expense primarily reflects approximately $6 million of higher incentive

compensation costs due to better than expected financial performance and 30% increase in average headcount due to acquis

itions made during the year Non-compensation expenses of $98.0 million increased due primarily to the impact of acquisitions

and higher proportion of allocated corporate overhead expenses in 2008 compared to prior year based on the revenue-split

methodology as well as the absence in 2008 of $2.5 million sales tax benefit received in the second quarter of 2007

The 2008 restructuring amount primarily reflects adjustments of previous estimates for severance and contract termination costs

associated with the Restructuring Plan

The increase in depreciation and amortization of $22.9 million compared to 2007 is primarily due to the approximate $11 million

impairment of certain software and database intangible assets and amortization of approximately $6 million related to the Fermat

acquisition including $4.5 million write-off of acquired in-process technology

Operating income increased $35.4 million from 2007 reflecting strong revenue growth and an approximate $10 million positive

impact from FX translation
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Year Ended December 31 2007 compared with December 31 2006

Executive Summary

Revenue for 2007 totaled $2259.0 million an increase of 11% from $2037.1 million in 2006 Operating income for 2007 was

$1131.0 million and included restructuring charge of $50.0 million Diluted EPS of $2.58 for the full year 2007 included $0.19

per share benefit from the settlement of Legacy Tax Matter in the second quarter of 2007 and an $0.1 per share charge related

to restructuring actions Excluding the 2007 restructuring charge and the $160.6 million gain on building sale in 2006 operating

income of $1181.0 for 2007 grew 7% from $1098.9 million in 2006 Excluding the adjustments listed above and the impact of

Legacy Tax Matters in both years diluted EPS for 2007 were $2.50 11% higher than $2.25 in 2006

Revenue at MIS totaled $1779.9 million in 2007 an increase of $140.1 million or 9% from the prior year period Currency trans

lation had positive impact on these results Each of the global ratings business lines achieved year-over year revenue growth led

by double-digit growth in corporate finance and financial institutions Finally revenue at MA for 2007 totaled $479.1 million an

increase of $81.8 million or 20.6% from the prior year reflecting strong growth in the subscriptions line of business

Moodys Corporation

The table below provides summary of revenue and operating results followed by further insight and commentary

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2007 2006 %Change

Revenue

United States 1361.8 1277.8 6.6%

International

EMEA 659.3 543.9 21.2%

Other 237.9 215.4 10.4%

Total International 897.2 759.3 18.2%

Total 2259.0 2037.1 10.9%

Expenses

Operating 584.0 539.4 8.3%

SGA 451.1 359.3 25.5%

Restructuring 50.0 NM
Gain on sale of building 160.6 NM

Depreciation and amortization 42.9 39.5 8.6%

Total 1128.0 777.6 45.1%

Operating income 1131.0 1259.5 10.2%

Interest expense income net 24.3 3.0 NM

Other non-operating expense income 10.0 2.0 NM

Net income 701.5 753.9 7.0%

Moodys revenue for 2007 totaled $2259.0 million an increase of $221.9 million from $2037.1 million for the same period in

2006 The main contributors to this growth were from the CFG line of business within MIS and from MA Revenue from MA con

tributed 37% of the Companys year-over-year growth driven primarily by the subscriptions line of businesses

Revenue in the U.S was $1361.8 million in 2007 an increase of $84.0 million or 7% from $1277.8 million in 2006 International

revenue was $897.2 million in 2007 an increase of $137.9 million or 18.2% from $759.3 million in 2006 FX translation

accounted for approximately $39 million of international revenue growth in 2007

During the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company committed to Restructuring Plan in response to the Companys reorganization

and decline in current and anticipated issuance of rated debt securities in some market sectors as more fully described in the

notes to the consolidated financial statements restructuring charge of $50.0 million was recorded in 2007 which consisted of

$45.9 million of expenses relating to severance and other employee benefit costs and $4.1 million for contract termination costs
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Moodys operating and SGA expenses of $1035.1 million in 2007 were $136.4 million higher than 2006 Compensation and

benefits continue to be Moodys largest expense accounting for approximately 70% of total Operating and SGA expenses

representing approximately $77 million in growth from prior year Moodys average global staffing of approximately 3500

employees during the year ended December 31 2007 was approximately 13% higher than during 2006 This increase reflects the

impact of hiring from late 2006 and the first half of 2007 to support business growth mainly in the U.S Asian and European

ratings businesses offset by partial completion of the workforce reductions relating to the restructuring actions implemented in

the fourth quarter of 2007 The table below shows Moodys global staffing by geographic area

DECEMBER 31

2007 2006 Change

United States 2175 2155 0.9%

International 1397 1195 16.9%

Total 3572 3350 6.6%

Operating expenses were $584.0 million in 2007 an increase of $44.6 million or 8.3% from $539.4 million in 2006 Compensa

tion and benefits expense comprised approximately 77% of the growth reflecting normal salary increases coupled with higher

staffing levels compared to prior year partially offset by lower incentive compensation The staffing level increase reflects hiring in

the first half of 2007 to support business growth primarily in the international ratings businesses where head count increased by

approximately 14% over 2006 Non-compensation expenses of $96.8 million increased $10.2 million primarily from higher pro

fessional service costs associated with technology investments

SGA expenses were $451.1 million in 2007 an increase of $91.8 million or 25.5% from $359.3 million in 2006 Compensation

expense of $238.8 million increased $46.5 million or 24.2% from 2006 reflecting increased staffing levels in the corporate com

pliance and technology support functions coupled with the increase in stock-based compensation Non-compensation expense
of

$212.3 million was up $45.3 million or 27.1% over 2006 due to higher rent and occupancy costs of $39.3 million or 88.2% over

2006 primarily related to the Companys relocation to its new corporate headquarters at 7WTC and an increase in professional

service costs of $21.6 million relating to technology investment spending and legal matters

Operating income in 2007 includes $50.0 million restructuring charge consisting of $45.9 million of expenses relating to sev

erance and other employee benefit costs and $4.1 million for contract termination costs as further discussed in Note 10 to the

consolidated financial statements

Operating income of $1131.0 million decreased $128.5 million or 10.2% from $1259.5 million in 2006 which reflected

$160.6 million gain on building sale and approximately $21 million of FX translation gains in 2007 Moodys operating margin for

2007 was 50.1% compared to 61.8% in 2006 The restructuring charge in 2007 decreased the 2007 margin by approximately 220

bps while the gain on building sale increased the 2006 margin by approximately 790 bps

Interest and other non-operating expense income net was $14.3 million in 2007 compared with $1.0 million in 2006 Interest

expense on borrowings was $40.7 million and $15.2 million for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively The

increase was due to borrowings under the Companys credit facilities the issuance of the $300.0 million Series 2007-1 Notes in

September 2007 and issuance under the Companys commercial paper program which was established in October 2007 Interest

expense on FIN 48 and other tax liabilities was $21.5 million in 2007 In 2006 before FIN 48 became effective interest on tax

liabilities was reported as part of income tax expense net of federal tax benefit Included in 2007 was $17.5 million reduction of

accrued interest expense and $14.4 million increase in other non-operating income relating to the resolution of certain Legacy

Tax Matter more fully
described in Contingencies Legacy Contingencies below Interest income earned on short-term

investments and invested cash balances were $19.3 million and $18.2 million for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006

respectively FX gains losses were immaterial in both 2007 and 2006

Moodys Effective Tax Rate was 37.2% in 2007 compared to 40.2% in 2006 The 2007 and 2006 ETRs included benefits of $27.3

million and $2.4 million respectively related to Legacy Tax Matters Additionally in 2007 there was $14.4 million increase in

other non-operating income which was not taxable related to Legacy Tax Matters These matters favorably impacted the

Companys 2007 and 2006 ETR by approximately 295 bps and 30 bps respectively

Net income was $701.5 million in 2007 decrease of $52.4 million or 7.0% from $753.9 million in 2006 Diluted was $2.58

in both 2007 and 2006 Excluding the restructuring charge in 2007 the gain on building sale in 2006 and Legacy Tax adjustments

in both years net income increased $21.8 million or 3.3% and diluted increased $0.25 or 11.1% to $2.50 per
share
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Segment ResuLts

Moodys Investors Sevice

The table below provides summary of revenue and operating results followed by further insight and commentary

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2007 2006 %Change

Revenue

Structured finance 873.3 872.6 0.1%

Corporate finance 411.5 335.9 22.5%

Financial institutions 274.3 233.1 17.7%

Public project and infrastructure finance 220.8 198.2 11.4%

Total 1779.9 1639.8 8.6%

Expenses

Operating and SGA 759.4 666.1 14.0%

Restructuring
41.3 NM

Depreciation and amortization 24.0 17.3 38.7%

Total 824.7 683.4 20.7%

Operating income 955.2 956.4 0.1%

Revenue at MIS in 2007 was $1779.9 million up $140.1 million from $1639.8 million in 2006 Global CFG FIG and the PPIF

business increased $75.6 million $41.2 million and $22.6 million respectively

Global SFG revenue was $873.3 million for 2007 flat with $872.6 million in 2006 Revenue of $561.5 million in the U.S decreased

$36.2 million or 6% in mixed year
where strong growth in the first half of 2007 largely from credit derivatives and CREF was

offset in the second half of 2007 by declining revenue in the RMBS derivatives and CREF as result of credit market turmoil which

reduced ratable issuance volume Outside the U.S revenue of $311.8 million increased $36.9 million or 13% reflecting strong

growth from derivatives and RMBS of $19.8 million and $12.3 million respectively mostly in EMEA

Global CFG revenue totaled $411 million in 2007 an increase of 75.6 million from 2006 Revenue in the U.S increased $45.3

million or 20.2% primarily due to increased leveraged loan activities and growth in investment-grade bond issuance International

revenue of $141.5 million increased $30.3 million or 27.2% largely driven by growth in European bond issuance

Global FIG revenue was $274.3 million up $41.2 million from $233.1 million in 2006 Revenue in the U.S increased $19.6 million

or 18% principally due to strong performance within the banking and insurance sectors driven by debt refinancing and funding for

share repurchases International revenue of $144.3 million grew $21.6 million or 18% from prior year mainly due to increased

corporate bond issuance activity and significant number of new ratings mandates both within the European banking sector

Global PPIF revenue was $220.8 million an increase of $22.6 million from 2006 Revenue from project and infrastructure finance

of $76.1 million showed the strongest growth with an increase of $13.5 million or 1.6% over 2006 mostly from within the

United States Revenue of $115.2 million from the public finance sector including U.S public finance sovereign and

sub-sovereign increased $6.1 million or 6% over prior year driven by growth in combined issuance and new money issuance

Operating and SGA expenses including allocated corporate overhead costs were $759.4 million an increase of $93.3 million

from $666.1 million in 2006 Compensation and benefits expense was the largest contributor to the year-over-year growth

reflecting increased staffing internationally to support business growth as well as additional head count in the corporate com

pliance group
Stock-based compensation expense increased year-over-year primarily due to the higher Black-Scholes value of the

2007 equity grants compared to prior years Non-compensation expenses in 2007 included an increase in allocated expenses such

as increased rent and occupancy costs related to the Companys relocation to its new corporate headquarters at 7WTC and

increases in professional service costs primarily due to information technology investment spending and legal matters

Operating income of $955.2 million in 2007 was flat compared to 2006 ExcLuding the $41.3 million restructuring charge 2007

operating income of $996.5 million increased $40.1 million or 4.2% from $956.4 million in 2006
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Moodys Analytics

The table below provides summary of revenue and operating results followed by further insight and commentary

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2007 2006 %Change

Revenue

Subscriptions 421.5 347.5 21.3%

Software 39.5 36.3 8.9%

Consulting
18.1 13.5 34.1%

Total 479.1 397.3 20.6%

Expenses

Operating and SGA 275.7 232.6 18.5%

Restructuring
8.7 NM

Depreciation and amortization 18.9 22.2 14.9%

Total 303.3 254.8 19.0%

Operating income 175.8 142.5 23.4%

Revenue for MA was $479.1 million an increase of $81.8 million from 2006 U.S revenue of $242.8 million increased $38.1 mil

lion or 18.6% and international revenue increased $43.7 million or 22.7% with 90.3% of the growth from within the EMEA

region

Revenue from subscription products of $421.5 million was up $74.0 million compared to 2006 reflecting continued demand from

new and existing customers for credit and economic research structured finance analytics and other offerings Software revenue

of $39.5 million increased $3.2 million from $36.3 million in 2006 primarily from additional license and maintenance fees for

credit decisioning and analysis products Revenue from consulting services grew $4.6 million due to increased demand for credit

education risk modeling and scorecard development among customers seeking to implement sophisticated risk management

processes and comply with regulatory requirements

Operating and SGA expenses in 2007 including allocated corporate overhead costs were $275.7 million an increase of $43.1

million from 2006 The increase is primarily result of additional compensation due to head count growth of 8% and higher

sales commission expense resulting from better than expected revenue growth over 2006 It also reflected an increase in allocated

expenses due to increased rent and occupancy costs related to the Companys relocation to its new corporate headquarters at

7WTC and increases in professional service costs primarily due to information technology investment spending and legal matters

MAs operating income of $175.8 million in 2007 increased $33.3 million from $142.5 million in 2006 Operating income included

an $8.7 million restructuring charge in 2007 Excluding the restructuring charge 2007 operating income of $184.5 million

increased $42.0 million or 29.5% from $142.5 million in 2006

Market Risk

Moodys maintains operations in 28 countries outside the U.S In 2008 approximately 42% and 47% of the Companys revenue

billed and expenses incurred respectively were in currencies other than the U.S dollar principally in the GBP and the euro As

such the Company is exposed to market risk from changes in FX rates

As of December 31 2008 approximately 34% of Moodys assets were located outside the United States Moodys aggregate cash

and cash equivalents of $245.9 million at December 31 2008 consisted of approximately $152 million which was located outside

the U.S making the Company susceptible to fluctuations in FX rates Additionally all of Moodys aggregate short-term invest

ments of $7.1 million were located outside the United States The effects of changes in the value of foreign currencies relative to

the U.S dollar on assets and liabilities of non-U.S operations with non-U.S functional currencies are charged or credited to the

cumulative translation adjustment account in the statement of shareholders equity deficit

Moodys cash equivalents consist of investments in high-quality investment-grade securities within and outside the U.S with

maturities of three months or less when purchased The Company manages its credit risk exposure by allocating its cash equiv

alents among various money market mutual funds and issuers of high-grade commercial paper Short-term investments primarily

consist of certificates of deposit and high quality investment-grade corporate bonds in Korea The Company manages its credit

risk exposure on cash equivalents and short-term investments by limiting the amount it can invest with any single issuer
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portion of the Companys future
billings

and related revenue is exposed to market risk associated with changes in FX rates pri

marily related to the euro and GBP Under the Companys current FX hedging program the Company hedges portion of FX cur

rency risk for the purpose of reducing volatility in the Companys cash flows related to future euro and GBP
billings

and related

revenue FX options and forwards are currently utilized to hedge these exposures and have maturities between one and 14

months As of December 2008 all FX derivative contracts were set to expire at various times through February 2010 and were

deemed to be highly effective under SEAS No 133 and related accounting pronouncements No credit losses are anticipated as

the counterparties to these agreements are major financial institutions The fair value of the Companys outstanding FX derivative

contracts was recorded within other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets and consisted of the following notional

amounts

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

Notional amount of Currency Pair

GBP/USD 7.4 miLLion 7.9 million

EUR/USD 12.9 miLLion 16.7 million

EUR/GBP 24.3 miLLion 61.5 million

Fair value of derivative asset 4.9 miLLion 2.3 million

Unrealized gains or losses are recorded in AOCI and once realized the gains or losses will be recognized as an adjustment to rev

enue when the billings are recognized in revenue

sensitivity analysis has been prepared to estimate the exposure to fluctuations in the FX rates on Moodys FX options hypo

thetical 10% favorable change in the overall option currency portfolio would result in gain of approximately $3.5 million as of

December 31 2008 The maximum loss related to an adverse change in the option currency portfolio would be $3.1 million

As result of the 2008 Term Loan completed on May 2008 the Company entered into interest rate swaps with total notional

amount of $150.0 million to protect against fluctuations in the LIBOR-based variable interest rate These swaps are adjusted to

fair market value based on prevailing interest rates at the end of each reporting period and fluctuations are recorded into AOCI

while net interest payments are recorded in the statement of operations At December 31 2008 the fair value of the interest rate

swaps was $10.7 million and is recorded in other liabilities in the Companys consolidated balance sheet The objective of interest

rate risk management is to reduce the funding cost and volatility to the Company and to alter the interest rate exposure to the

desired risk profile Moodys uses interest rate swaps as deemed necessary to assist in accomplishing this objective

sensitivity analysis has been prepared to estimate the exposure to fluctuations in the short-term LIBOR on Moodys interest

expense relating to the 2008 Term Loan assuming the interest rate swap was not in place hypothetical change of one-percent

in the LIBOR would result in an impact on annual interest expense of approximately $1.5 million

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flow

The Company is currently financing its operations capital expenditures and share repurchases through cash flow from operations

and from financing activities The Company had net borrowings of $316.3 million during the year ended December 31 2008

The following is summary of the change in the Companys cash flows followed by brief discussion of these changes

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31 YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 Change 2007 2006 Change

Net cash provided by operating activities 534.7 984.0 $449.3 984.0 752.5 231.5

Net cash used in provided by investing activities S319.3 $124.7 $194.6 $124.7 $116.1 $240.8

Net cash used in financing activities $344.8 S861.5 516.7 $861.5 $965.2 $103.7
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Net cash provided by operating activities

Yearended December31 2008 comparedto the yearendedDecember3l 2007

The following changes in non-cash and other one-time items impacted cash provided by operating activities in 2008 compared to

2007 relative to net income

$27.0 million decrease in stock-based compensation expense primarily reflecting the 2007 restructuring actions

$32.2 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense due primarily to an approximate $11 million impairment

of certain software and database intangibles within the MA segment approximately $6 million relating to the acquisition of

Fermat including $4.5 million write-off of acquired in-process technology approximately $6 million reflecting the use of

7WTC for the full year of 2008 and approximately $4 million of accelerated depreciation resulting from the closure of the

Companys New Jersey office in the second quarter of 2008

$44.7 million decrease in Excess Tax Benefits due to fewer stock option exercises

$44.5 million decrease of an accrual for Legacy Tax Matters in 2007 compared to 2008

$59.1 million decrease in deferred income taxes due to lower restructuring tenant allowances and deferred revenue in

2008

The $449.3 million reduction of net cash flows provided by operating activities was primarily attributed to decrease in net

income of $243.9 million adjusted for the non-cash and other one-time items discussed above and the following changes in

assets and liabilities

decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $1 72.3 million comprised of approximately $111 million of accrued

taxes relating to lower pre-tax income and the timing of payments and approximately $30 million related to lower annual

incentive compensation accruals reflecting weak financial performance

decrease in deferred revenue of $70.2 million as result of lower
billings reflecting the weak credit market conditions

decrease of $62.9 million in the restructuring liability relating to payments made during the year and other minor

adjustments

decrease in the growth of deferred rent of $46.5 million due primarily to tenant allowance received in 2007 relating to

7WTC

An increase of approximately $33 million for deposit returned from the IRS in March 2008 in connection with Legacy Tax

Matter

$61.1 million decrease in UTBs and other non-current tax liabilities due primarily to the implementation of FIN 48 in 2007

Year ended December31 2007 compared to theyear ended December31 2006

The following changes in non-cash and other one-time items impacted cash provided by operating activities in 2007 compared to

2006 relative to net income

$51.0 million decrease in Excess Tax Benefits due to fewer stock option exercises

$52.3 million decrease to an accrual relating to the favorable resolution of Legacy Tax Matter in the second quarter of

2007

$160.6 million gain on sale of the Companys former headquarters building in 2006

$13.1 million increase in stock-based compensation expense due to higher staffing levels in 2007 and higher Black-

Scholes value in 2007 compared to 2006

The $231.5 million increase in net cash flows provided by operating activities was primarily attributed to the change in net

income adjusted for the non-cash and other one-time items discussed above and the following changes in assets and liabilities

$79.1 million decrease due to 7% reduction in the accounts receivable balance in 2007 compared to 2006 when the

balance increased by 13%

$67.2 million increase in other current assets primarily for approximately $40 million of prepaid state income taxes and an

$8.5 million receivable from the IRS for Legacy Tax Matter

positive impact from decreases in other assets primarily relating to an approximate $40 million deposit made in the first

quarter
of 2006 with the IRS relating to Amortization Expense Deductions as discussed in Note 17 to the consolidated

financial statements
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An $87.5 million negative impact due to the decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities relating to $76.5 million

lower accrued income taxes and approximately $27 million lower accrued incentive compensation

$33.1 million increase to the 2007 restructuring liability

An $83.0 million increase of UTBs and other non-current tax liabilities due to the implementation of FIN 48 in 2007

$46.9 million increase in the deferred rent liability due primarily to tenant allowance received in 2007 relating to 7WTC

Net cash used in provided by investing activities

Year ended December31 2008 compared to the year ended December31 2007

The $194.6 million increase in net cash used in investing activities was primarily attributed to

$237.0 million increase in net cash used resulting from the 2008 acquisitions of Fermat BQuotes Financial Projections

Limited and Enb Consulting

$55.9 million decrease of net cash provided by short-term investments in 2008 following the liquidation of majority of

the portfolio in 2007 to finance share repurchases and other operational activities

Partially offset by

$97.4 million decrease in capital additions resulting from reduced 7WTC build-out activity in 2008 compared to 2007

Year ended December31 2007 compared to the year ended December31 2006

The $240.8 million increase in net cash used in investing activities was primarily attributed to

$150.7 million increase in capital additions resulting from the build-out of 7WTC

$163.9 million increase due to cash proceeds received in 2006 related to the sale of the Companys former headquarters

building

Partially offiet by

$34.8 million decrease in cash paid for acquisitions relating to the investment in CCXI and purchase of Wall Street

Analytics Inc in 2006

$39.0 million net increase of net cash provided by short-term investments related to the liquidation of majority of the

portfolio in 2007 to finance share repurchases and other operational and investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Year ended December31 2008 compared to theyear ended December31 2007

The $516.7 million decrease in net cash flows used in financing activities was primarily attributed to

$1145.5 million decrease in treasury shares repurchased in 2008 compared to 2007

$44.7 million decrease in Excess Tax Benefits due to fewer stock option exercises

Partially offset by

$381.1 million net increase in short-term borrowings under the Companys CP program and revolving credit facilities the

proceeds of which were used to fund share repurchases and other operational and investing activities

$150.0 million increase in long-term debt resulting from the issuance of the 2008 Term Loan compared to $300.0 million

received in 2007 from the issuance of the Series 2007-1 Notes

Year ended December31 2007 compared to the
year

ended December31 2006

The $103.7 million decrease in net cash flows used in financing activities was primarily attributed to

$547.4 million net increase in short-term borrowings under the Companys CP program and revolving credit facilities the

proceeds of which were used to fund share repurchases and other operational and investing activities

$300.0 million increase in long-term debt resulting from the issuance of the Series 2007-1 Notes in the third quarter of

2007

Partially offset by

$644.8 million increase in treasury shares repurchased in 2007 compared to 2006
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Future Cash Requirements

The Company believes that it has the financial resources needed to meet its cash requirements and expects to have positive oper

ating cash flow for the next twelve months Cash requirements for periods beyond the next twelve months will depend among

other things on the Companys profitability and its ability to manage working capital requirements The Company may also bor

row from various sources

The Company remains committed to using its strong cash flow to create value for shareholders in manner consistent with main

taining sufficient liquidity by investing in growing areas of the business reinvesting in ratings quality initiatives making selective

acquisitions in related business repurchasing stock and paying modest dividend As result of current market conditions in the

near-term Moodys will maintain its dividend and curtail share repurchase activity As of December 31 2008 Moodys had $1.4

billion of share repurchase authority remaining under its current program which does not have an established expiration

At December 31 2008 the Company had total borrowings from its CP Program and 2007 Facility of $104.7 million and $613.0

million respectively the proceeds of which were or will be used to support the build-out of 7WTC and Canary Wharf share

repurchases acquisitions and other operational and investing activities At December 31 2008 Moodys had $1.5 billion of out

standing debt with $300 million of additional debt capacity available

On October 20 2006 the Company entered into an operating lease agreement
with World Trade Center LLC for 589945

square-feet of an office building located at 7WTC at 250 Greenwich Street New York New York which is serving as Moodys new

headquarters The 7WTC Lease has an initial term of approximately 21 years with total of 20 years of renewal options The total

base rent of the 7WTC Lease over its initial 21-year term is approximately $536 million including rent credits from the World

Trade Center Rent Reduction Program promulgated by the Empire State Development Corporation On March 28 2007 the 7WTC

lease agreement was amended for the Company to lease an additional 78568 square feet at 7WTC The additional base rent is

approximately $106 million over 20-year term The total remaining lease payments as of December 31 2008 including the

aforementioned rent credits are approximately $612 million

On October 24 2007 the Company announced restructuring plan that would reduce global head count terminate certain tech

nology contracts and consolidate certain corporate functions in response to both the Companys Reorganization announced on

August 2007 as well as decline in current and anticipated issuance of rated debt securities in some market sectors Included in

the $50.0 million restructuring charge reported in 2007 is $7.0 million of non-cash settlements relating to pension curtailments

and stock-based compensation award modifications for certain terminated employees At December 31 2008 the remaining cash

payments were $11.4 million of which $3.3 million is expected to be paid during 2009 The remaining liability
of $8.1 million

relates to payments that will be made in connection with the Companys unfunded pension plans for which payments will com

mence when the affected employees reach retirement age beginning in 2009 and continue in accordance with plan provisions The

amount to be paid in 2009 relating to these pension liabilities is approximately $2 million

On February 2008 the Company entered into 17.5
year operating lease agreement to occupy six floors of an office tower

located in the Canary Wharf section of London England The total base rent of the Canary Wharf Lease over its 17.5-year term is

approximately 134 million GBPs and the Company will begin making base rent payments in 2011 In addition to the base rent

payments the Company will be obligated to pay certain customary amounts for its share of operating expenses and tax obligation

The Company expects to incur approximately 41 million GBP of costs to build out the floors to its specifications of which approx

imately 33 million GBP is expected to be incurred over the next twelve months

The Company will be required to make contribution in the later half of 2010 to its qualified Defined Benefit Pension Plan of

between approximately $10 million to $15 million The contribution will be dependent on the 2009 plan asset returns as well as

the actuarial determination of plan liabilities
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The Company also intends to use portion of its cash flow to pay dividends On December 16 2008 the Board approved the

declaration of quarterly dividend of $0.10 per share of Moodys common stock payable on March 10 2009 to shareholders of

record at the close of business on February 20 2009 The continued payment of dividends at this rate or at all is subject to the

discretion of the Board

In addition the Company will from time to time consider cash outlays for acquisitions of or investments in complementary busi

nesses products services and technologies The Company may also be required to make future cash outlays to pay to New DB
its share of potential liabilities related to the Legacy Tax Matters that are discussed in this MDA under Contingencies These

potential cash outlays could be material and might affect liquidity requirements and they could cause the Company to pursue

additional financing There can be no assurance that financing to meet cash requirements will be available in amounts or on terms

acceptable to the Company if at all

Indebtedness

The following table summarizes total indebtedness

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

2007
Facility

613.0

Commercial paper net of unamortized discount of $0.3 million at 2008 and $0.7 million at 2007 104.7 551.9

Notes payable

Series 2005-1 Notes 300.0 300.0

Series 2007-1 Notes 300.0 300.0

2008 Term Loan 150.0

Total Debt 1467.7 1151.9

Current portion 717.7 551.9

Total long-term debt 750.0 600.0

2007 Facility

On September 28 2007 the Company entered into $1.0 billion five-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility expiring in

September 2012 The 2007
Facility

will serve in part to support the Companys CP Program described below Interest on borrow

ings is payable at rates that are based on LIBOR plus premium that can range from 16.0 to 40.0 basis points of the outstanding

borrowing amount depending on the Debt/EBITDA ratio The Company also pays quarterly facility fees regardless of borrowing

activity under the 2007 Facility The quarterly fees for the 2007 Facility can range from 4.0 to 10.0 basis points of the facility

amount depending on the Companys Debt/EBITDA ratio The Company also pays utilization fee of 5.0 basis points on borrow

ings outstanding when the aggregate amount outstanding exceeds 50% of the total facility The weighted average
interest rate on

borrowings outstanding as of December 31 2008 was 1.47% The 2007 Facility
contains certain covenants that among other

things restrict the ability of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries without the approval of the lenders to engage in mergers

consolidations asset sales transactions with affiliates and sale-leaseback transactions or to incur liens as defined in the related

agreement The 2007 Facility also contains financial covenants that among other things require the Company to maintain

Debt/EBITDA ratio of not more than 4.0 to 1.0 at the end of any fiscal quarter

Commercial Paper

On October 2007 the Company entered into private placement commercial paper program
under which the Company may

issue CP notes up to maximum amount of $1.0 billion Amounts available under the CP Program may be re-borrowed The CP

Program is supported by the Companys 2007 Facility The maturities of the CP Notes will vary but may not exceed 397 days

from the date of issue The CP Notes are sold at discount from par or alternatively sold at par and bear interest at rates that

will vary based upon market conditions at the time of issuance The rates of interest will depend on whether the CP Notes will be

fixed or floating rate The interest on floating rate may be based on the following certificate of deposit rate

commercial paper rate the federal funds rate the LIBOR prime rate treasury rate or such other base rate as

may be specified in supplement to the private placement agreement The weighted average interest rate on CP borrowings out

standing was 2.08% and 5.13% as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The CP Program contains certain events of
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default including among other things non-payment of principal interest or fees violation of covenants invalidity of any loan

document material judgments and bankruptcy and insolvency events subject in certain instances to cure periods

Notes Payable

On September 2007 the Company issued and sold through private placement transaction $300.0 million aggregate principal

amount of its 6.06% Series 2007-1 Senior Unsecured Notes due 2017 pursuant to the 2007 Agreement The Series 2007-1 Notes

have ten-year term and bear interest at an annual rate of 6.06% payable semi-annually on March and September of each

year Under the terms of the 2007 Agreement the Company may from time to time within five years in its sole discretion issue

additional series of senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of
up to $500.0 million pursuant to one or more supplements to

the 2007 Agreement The Company may prepay the Series 2007-1 Notes in whole or in part at any time at price equal to

100% of the principal amount being prepaid plus accrued and unpaid interest and Make Whole Amount The 2007 Agreement

contains covenants that limit the
ability

of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries to among other things enter into trans

actions with affiliates dispose of assets incur or create liens enter into any sale-leaseback transactions or merge with any other

corporation or convey transfer or lease substantially all of its assets The Company must also not permit its Debt/EBITDA ratio to

exceed 4.0 to 1.0 at the end of any fiscal quarter

On September 30 2005 the Company issued and sold through private placement transaction $300.0 million aggregate princi

pal amount of its Series 2005-1 Senior Unsecured Notes pursuant to the 2005 Agreement The Series 2005-1 Notes have

ten-year term and bear interest at an annual rate of 4.98% payable semi-annually on March 30 and September 30 The proceeds

from the sale of the Series 2005-1 Notes were used to refinance $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Companys

outstanding 7.6 1% senior notes which matured on September 30 2005 In the event that Moodys pays all or part of the Series

2005-1 Notes in advance of their maturity such prepayment will be subject to Make Whole Amount The Series 2005-1 Notes

are subject to certain covenants that among other things restrict the
ability

of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries with

out the approval of the lenders to engage in mergers consolidations asset sales transactions with affiliates and sale-leaseback

transactions or to incur liens as defined in the related agreements

2008 Term Loan

On May 2008 Moodys entered into five-year $150.0 million senior unsecured term loan with several lenders Proceeds from

the loan were used to pay off portion of the CP outstanding Interest on borrowings under the 2008 Term Loan is payable quar

terly at rates that are based on LIBOR plus margin that can range from 125 basis points to 175 basis points depending on the

Companys Debt/EBITDA ratio The outstanding borrowings shall amortize beginning in 2010 in accordance with the schedule of

payments set forth in the 2008 Term Loan outlined in the table below

The 2008 Term Loan contains restrictive covenants that among other things restrict the ability
of the Company to engage or to

permit its subsidiaries to engage in mergers consolidations asset sales transactions with affiliates and sale-leaseback transactions

or to incur or permit its subsidiaries to incur liens in each case subject to certain exceptions and limitations The 2008 Term

Loan also limits the amount of debt that subsidiaries of the Company may incur In addition the 2008 Term Loan contains

financial covenant that requires the Company to maintain DebtIEBITDA ratio of not more than 4.0 to 1.0 at the end of any fiscal

quarter

The principal payments due on the 2008 Term Loan through its maturity are as follows

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31

2010 3.8

2011 11.3

2012 71.2

2013 63.7

Total $150.0

Also on May 2008 the Company entered into interest rate swaps with total notional amount of $150.0 million to protect

against fluctuations in the LIBOR-based variable interest rate on the 2008 Term Loan Fair market value adjustments are recorded

into other comprehensive income at the end of each period while net interest payments are recorded in the statement of oper

ations At December 31 2008 the fair value of the interest rate swap was $10.7 million and is recorded in other liabilities in the

Companys consolidated balance sheet
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Interest expense income net

The following table summarizes the components of interest as presented in the consolidated statements of operations

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Income 18.1 19.3 18.2

Expense on borrowings 60.0 40.7 15.2

FIN 48 and other tax related interest 13.7 21.5

Reversal of accrued interest 2.3 17.5

Interest capitalized
1.1 1.1

Total 52.2 24.3 3.0

Interest paid 59.5 32.5 14.9

Represents
reduction of accrued interest related to the favorable resolution of Legacy Tax Matters further discussed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements

At December 31 2008 the Company was in compliance with all covenants contained within all of the debt agreements In addi

tion to the covenants described above the 2007 Facility the 2005 Agreement the 2007 Agreement and the 2008 Term Loan

contain cross default provisions whereby default under one of the aforementioned debt instruments could in turn permit lenders

under other debt instruments to declare borrowings outstanding under those instruments to be immediately due and payable

Management may consider pursuing additional long-term financing when it is appropriate in
light

of cash requirements for oper

ations share repurchase and other strategic opportunities which would result in higher financing costs

Off-Balance SheetArrangements

At December 31 2008 and 2007 Moodys did not have
any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships

such as entities often referred to as special purpose or variable interest entities where Moodys is the primary beneficiary which

would have been established for the purpose
of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or lim

ited purposes As such Moodys is not exposed to any financing liquidity market or credit risk that could arise if it had engaged in

such relationships

Contractual Obligations

The following table presents payments due under the Companys contractual obligations as of December 31 2008

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

in millions
Total Less Than Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Over Years

Indebtedness $1761.9 757.8 94.2 207.3 702.6

Operating lease obligations 929.2 60.3 101.2 100.7 667.0

Purchase obligations 139.8 71.1 42.0 23.8 2.9

Pension obligations 71.2 1.7 16.2 7.1 46.2

Capital lease obligations 2.7 1.4 1.3

Total $2904.8 892.3 254.9 338.9 1418.7

Reflects principal payments related interest and applicable fees due on the 2008 Term Loan the Series 2005-1 Notes the Series 2007-1 Notes borrowings under

the CP Program and the 2007 Facility as described in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

Includes amounts contractually
committed to for the fit-out of the Canary Wharf Lease

Reflects projected benefit payments for the next ten years relating to the Companys unfunded Post-Retirement Benefit Plans described in Note 11 to the

consolidated financial statements

The table above does not include the Companys net long-term tax liabilities of $141.7 million and $51.5 million relating to FIN 48 and Legacy Tax Matters

respectively since the expected cash outflow of such amounts by period cannot be
reasonably

estimated
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2009 OutLook

Moodys outlook for 2009 is based on assumptions about many macroeconomic and capital market factors including interest

rates corporate profitability and business investment spending merger and acquisition activity consumer borrowing and securiti

zation and the impact of government-sponsored economic stabilization initiatives There is an important degree of uncertainty

surrounding these assumptions and if actual conditions differ from these assumptions Moodys results for the year may differ

materially from current outlook

For Moodys overall the Company expects full-year 2009 revenue to decline in the low single-digit percent range This outlook

assumes foreign currency translation in 2009 at current rates Although Moodys has solid base of recurring revenue the Com

pany anticipates issuance-based revenue to reflect generally weak conditions throughout 2009 with any broad improvement in

market liquidity and issuance expected to be modest and to occur later in the year Full-year 2009 operating expenses are

expected to increase in the mid single-digit percent range Moodys expects the full-year 2009 operating margin will be in the

mid-to high-thirties percent range due to lower ratings revenue and higher comparable expenses The Company projects diluted

EPS for full-year 2009 in the range of $1.40 to $1.50

For the global MIS business the Company expects revenue for the full-year 2009 to decline in the high single-digit percent range

both in the U.S and internationally Structured finance revenue for full-year 2009 is expected to decrease in the high-teens to

low-twenties percent range reflecting continued declines across all asset classes Corporate finance revenue for full-year 2009 is

expected to decrease in the mid- to high single-digit percent range with weakness most pronounced in speculative-grade issuance

and bank loans Revenue from financial institutions and public project and infrastructure finance ratings for full-year 2009 is

expected to be about flat with full-year 2008

For MA the Company expects full-year 2009 revenue growth in the mid single-digit percent range Moodys expects strong rev

enue growth in the software and consulting businesses to offset revenue decline in the subscription business in the low single-

digit percent range
Within the U.S the Company projects MA revenue to be about flat with full-year 2008 Outside the U.S the

Company expects MA revenue to increase in the low double-digit percent range

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Adopted

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities including

an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 SFAS No 159 expands the use of fair value accounting but does not affect existing

standards which require assets or liabilities to be carried at fair value Under SFAS No 159 company may elect to measure

many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value on an instrument by instrument basis with changes in fair value

recognized in earnings each reporting period Items eligible
for fair-value election include recognized financial assets and liabilities

such as equity-method investments and investments in equity securities that do not have readily determinable fair values written

loan commitments and certain warranties and insurance contracts where warrantor or insurer is permitted to pay third party

to provide the warranty goods or services If the use of fair value is elected the election must be applied to individual instruments

with certain restrictions is irrevocable and must be applied to an entire instrument Any upfront costs and fees related to the item

elected for fair value must be recognized in earnings and cannot be deferred At the implementation date unrealized gains and

losses on existing items for which fair value has been elected are reported as cumulative adjustment to beginning retained earn

ings Subsequent to the implementation of SFAS No 159 changes in fair value will be recognized in earnings SFAS No 159 is

effective for fiscal years beginning after November iS 2007 and was implemented by the Company as of January 2008 The

implementation did not have an effect on the Companys consolidated financial condition results of operations and cash flows

In October 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 157-3 FSP 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of Financial

Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active FSP 157-3 clarifies the application of SFAS No 157 in market that is not

active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of financial asset when the market

for that financial asset is not active FSP 157-3 is effective upon issuance and the implementation did not have material effect

on the Companys consolidated financial condition results of operations and cash flows

Not Yet Adopted

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS No 157 establishes single authoritative

definition of fair value sets out framework for measuring fair value and requires additional disclosures about fair-value

measurements SFAS No 157 is expected to increase the consistency of fair value measurements and applies only to those

MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIALS 49



measurements that are already required or permitted to be measured at fair value by other accounting standards SFAS No 157 is

effective for fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2007 In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 157-2

FSP FAS 157-2 which partially defers the effective date of SFAS No 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities except for items

that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis until fiscal years beginning after

November 1S 2008 The Company has implemented the deferral provisions of FSP FAS 157-2 and as result has partially

implemented the provisions of SFAS No 157 as of january 2008 The partial implementation of SFAS No 157 did not have

material impact on the Companys consolidated financial position and results of operations in 2008 The Company will apply as of

january 2009 the provisions of SFAS No 157 to its non financial assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in busi

ness combination and not subsequently remeasured at fair value non financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value for

goodwill impairment assessment non-financial long-lived assets measured at fair value for an asset impairment assessment and

asset retirement obligations initially
measured at fair value The Company does not expect the implementation of this standard to

have material impact on the consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SEAS No 160 Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements an amend

ment of ARB No 51 SEAS No 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by

parties other than the parent the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling inter

est changes in parents ownership interest and the valuation of retained non-controlling equity investments when subsidiary is

deconsolidated SEAS No 160 also establishes disclosure requirements that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests

of the parent and the interests of the non-controlling owners and requires that non-controlling interest in subsidiary be

reported as equity SEAS No 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15 2008 and is required to be

implemented by the Company as of january 2009 The adoption of this standard will have an immaterial impact on the pre

sentation of minority interest in the consolidated balance sheet and statement of operations

In December 2007 the FASB issued SEAS No 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations SEAS No 141R extends its applicability

to all transactions and other events in which one entity obtains control over one or more other businesses and establishes princi

ples and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the

liabilities assumed any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired SFAS 141R also expands disclosure

requirements to improve the statement users abilities to evaluate the nature and financial effects of business combinations SEAS

No 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15 2008 and is required to be implemented by the Company

as of january 2009 While SFAS No 141R applies only to business combinations consummated on or after its effective date its

amendments to SEAS No 109 with respect to deferred tax valuation allowances and liabilities for income tax uncertainties are

required to be applied to all deferred tax valuation allowances and liabilities for income tax uncertainties that existed and recog

nized in prior business combinations or that arise as result of the prior business combinations The implementation of

SEAS No.141R is not expected to impact the Companys consolidated financial statements for prior periods

In March 2008 the FASB issued SEAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities- an amendment of

FASB Statement No 133 SEAS No 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SEAS No 133 and requires qual

itative disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives quantitative disclosures in tabular format about fair value

amounts of and gains and losses on derivative instruments and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in

derivative agreements SEAS No 161 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 The Company plans to

implement the provisions of SEAS No 161 as of january 2009 and does not expect the implementation to have material

impact on its consolidated financial statements

In May 2008 the FASB issued SEAS No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles SEAS No 162 identifies

the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements

of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with SEAS No 162 will become effective 60 days following the

SECs approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411 The Meaning of Present

Fairly
in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles The Company does not expect the implementation of

SEAS No 162 to have material effect on its consolidated financial statements

In November 2008 the FASB ratified EITF Issue No 08-6 Equity Method Investment Accounting Considerations EITE 08-6
EITF 08-6 applies to all investments accounted for under the equity method and clarifies the accounting for certain transactions

and impairment considerations involving those investments EITE 08-6 is effective in fiscal years beginning on or after

December 15 2008 and was adopted by the Company as of january 12009 The implementation of EITE 08-6 did not have

material effect on the Companys consolidated financial statements
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In December 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 132R-i Employers Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit

Plan Assets FSP FAS 132R-1 FSP FAS 132R-1 expands the disclosures set forth in SFAS No 132R by adding required dis

closures about how investment allocation decisions are made by management major categories of plan assets and significant

concentrations of risk Additionally FSP FAS 132R-1 requires an employer to disclose information about the valuation of plan

assets similar to that required under SFAS No 157 FSP FAS 32R-1 intends to enhance the transparency surrounding the types of

assets and associated risks in an employers defined benefit pension or other postretirement plan and the new disclosures are

required to be included in financial statements for fiscal years ending after December 15 2009 The Company is currently evaluat

ing the potential impact if any of the implementation of FSP FAS 132R-1 on its consolidated financial statements

Contingencies

From time to time Moodys is involved in legal and tax proceedings governmental investigations claims and
litigation

that are

incidental to the Companys business including claims based on ratings assigned by MIS Moodys is also subject to ongoing tax

audits in the normal course of business Management periodically assesses the Companys liabilities and contingencies in con

nection with these matters based upon
the latest information available Moodys discloses material pending legal proceedings

pursuant to SEC rules and other pending matters as it may determine to be appropriate

As result of recent events in the U.S subprime residential mortgage sector and the credit markets more broadly various legis

lative regulatory and enforcement entities around the world are investigating or evaluating the role of rating agencies in the U.S

subprime mortgage-backed securitization market and structured finance markets more generally Moodys has received subpoenas

and inquiries from states attorneys general and other governmental authorities and is cooperating with such investigations and

inquiries Moodys is also cooperating with review by the SEC relating to errors in the model used by MIS to rate certain

constant-proportion debt obligations In addition the Company is facing market participant litigation relating to the performance

of MIS rated securities Although Moodys in the normal course experiences such litigation the volume and cost of defending such

litigation
has significantly increased in the current economic environment

On June 27 2008 the Brockton Contributory Retirement System purported shareholder of the Companys securities filed

purported shareholder derivative complaint on behalf of the Company against its directors and certain senior officers and the

Company as nominal defendant in the Supreme Court of the State of New York County of New York The
plaintiff

asserts various

causes of action relating to the named defendants oversight of MISs ratings of RMBS and constant-proportion debt obligations

and their participation in the alleged public dissemination of false and misleading information about MISs ratings practices and/or

failure to implement internal procedures and controls to prevent the alleged wrongdoing The
plaintiff

seeks compensatory

damages restitution disgorgement of profits and other equitable relief On July 2008 Thomas Flynn purported shareholder

of the Companys securities filed similar purported shareholder derivative complaint on behalf of the Company against its direc

tors and certain senior officers and the Company as nominal defendant in the Supreme Court of the State of New York County

of New York asserting similar claims and seeking the same relief The cases have been consolidated and plaintiffs filed an

amended consolidated complaint in November 2008 The Company removed the consolidated action to the United States District

Court for the Southern District of New York in December 2008 In January 2009 the
plaintiffs

moved to remand the case to the

Supreme Court of the State of New York The Company will oppose remand and expects to move to dismiss the amended con

solidated complaint upon
resolution of the remand motion On October 30 2008 the Louisiana Municipal Police Employees

Retirement System purported shareholder of the Companys securities also filed shareholder derivative complaint on behalf of

the Company against its directors and certain officers and the Company as nominal defendant in the U.S District Court for the

Southern District of New York This complaint too asserts various causes of action relating to the Companys ratings of RMBS

CDO and constant-proportion debt obligations and named defendants participation in the alleged public dissemination of false

and misleading information about MISs ratings practices and/or failure to implement internal procedures and controls to pre

vent the alleged wrongdoing On December 2008 Rena Nadoff purported shareholder of the company filed shareholder

derivative complaint on behalf of the Company against its directors and its CEO and the company as nominal defendant in the

Supreme Court of the State of New York The complaint asserts claim for breach of fiduciary duty in connection with alleged

overrating of asset-backed securities and underrating of municipal securities

Two purported class action complaints have been filed by purported purchasers of the Companys securities against the Company

and certain of its senior officers asserting claims under the federal securities laws The first was filed by Raphael Nach in the U.S

District Court for the Northern District of Illinois on July 19 2007 The second was filed by Teamsters Local 282 Pension Trust

Fund in the U.S District Court for the Southern District of New York on September 26 2007 Both actions have been consolidated
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into single proceeding entitled In re Moodys Corporation Securities Litigation in the U.S District Court for the Southern District of

New York On June 27 2008 consolidated amended complaint was filed purportedly on behalf of all purchasers of the Compa

nys securities during the period February 2006 through October 24 2007 Plaintiffs allege that the defendants issued false and

or misleading statements concerning the Companys business conduct business prospects business conditions and financial

results relating primarily to MISs ratings of structured finance products including RMBS CDO and constant-proportion debt

obligations The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of compensatory damages and their reasonable costs and expenses incurred

in connection with the case The Company moved for dismissal of the consolidated amended complaint in September 2008 On

February 23 2009 the court issued an opinion dismissing certain claims sustaining others and granting plaintiffs
leave to amend

their complaint by March 18 2009

For claims litigation
and proceedings not related to income taxes where it is both probable that

liability
has been incurred and

the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated the Company has recorded liabiLities in the consolidated financial statements and

periodically adjusts these as appropriate In other instances because of uncertainties related to the probable outcome andor the

amount or range of loss management does not record liability
but discloses the contingency if significant As additional

information becomes available the Company adjusts its assessments and estimates of such matters accordingly For income tax

matters the Company employs the prescribed methodology of FIN 48 implemented as of January 2007 which requires com

pany to first determine whether it is more-likely-than-not defined as likelihood of more than
fifty percent that tax position

will be sustained based on its technical merits as of the reporting date assuming that taxing authorities will examine the position

and have full knowledge of all relevant information tax position that meets this more-likely-than-not threshold is then meas

ured and recognized at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than
fifty percent likely

to be realized upon effective settle

ment with taxing authority

The Company cannot predict the ultimate impact that any of the legislative regulatory enforcement or litigation
matters may

have on how its business is conducted and thus its competitive position financial position or results of operations Based on its

review of the latest information available in the opinion of management the ultimate monetary liability
of the Company for the

pending matters referred to above other than the Legacy Tax Matters that are discussed below is not likely to have material

adverse effect on the Companys consolidated financial position although it is possible that the effect could be material to the

Companys consolidated results of operations for an individual reporting period

Legacy Tax Matters

Moodys continues to have exposure to certain Legacy Tax Matters The following description of the relationships among Moodys

New DB and their predecessor entities is important in understanding the Legacy Tax Matters

In November 1996 The Dun Bradstreet Corporation separated into three separate public companies The Dun Bradstreet

Corporation ACNielsen Corporation and Cognizant Corporation In June 1998 The Dun Bradstreet Corporation separated into

two separate public companies Old DB and R.H Donnelley Corporation During 1998 Cognizant separated into two separate

public companies IMS Health Incorporated and Nielsen Media Research Inc In September 2000 Old DB separated into two

separate public companies New DB and Moodys as further described in Note to the consolidated financial statements

Old DB and its predecessors entered into global tax planning initiatives in the normal course of business These initiatives are

subject to normal review by tax authorities Old DB and its predecessors also entered into series of agreements covering the

sharing of any liabilities for payment of taxes penalties and interest resulting from unfavorable IRS determinations on certain tax

matters and certain other potential tax liabilities all as described in such agreements Further in connection with the 2000 Dis

tribution and pursuant to the terms of the 2000 Distribution Agreement New DB and Moodys have agreed on the financial

responsibility for
any potential liabilities related to Legacy Tax Matters

Settlement agreements were executed with the IRS in 2005 regarding Legacy Tax Matters for the years 1989-1990 and 1993-

1996 As of December 31 2008 the Company continues to carry liability
of $1.8 million with respect to these matters With

respect to these settlement agreements Moodys and New DB believe that IMS Health and NMR did not pay their full share of

the
liability

to the IRS pursuant to the terms of the applicable separation agreements among the parties Moodys and New DB
paid these amounts to the IRS on their behalf and attempted to resolve this dispute with IMS Health and NMR As result

Moodys and New DB commenced arbitration proceedings against IMS Health and NMR in connection with the 1989-1990

matter This matter was resolved during the third quarter of 2008 in favor of Moodys and New DB resulting in MS Health and

NMR having paid total of S6.7 million to Moodys Moodys and New DB may also commence an arbitration proceeding to

collect amounts owed by MS Health and NMR with respect to the 1993-1996 matter Moodys cannot predict the outcome of

this matter with any certainty
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Amortization Expense Deductions

This Legacy Tax Matter which was affected by developments in June 2007 and 2008 as further described below involves partner

ship transaction which resulted in amortization expense deductions on the tax returns of Old DB since 1997 IRS audits of Old

DBs and New DBs tax returns for the years 1997 through 2002 concluded in June 2007 without any disallowance of the

amortization expense deductions or any other adjustments to income related to this partnership transaction These audits

resulted in the IRS issuing the Notices for other tax issues for the 1997-2000 years aggregating $9.5 million in tax and penalties

plus statutory interest of approximately $6 million which should be apportioned among Moodys New DB IMS Health and

NMR pursuant to the terms of the applicable separation agreements Moodys share of this assessment was $6.6 million including

interest net of tax In November 2007 the IRS assessed the tax and penalties and used portion of the deposit discussed below

to satisfy the assessment together with interest The Company believes it has meritorious grounds to challenge the IRSs actions

and is evaluating its alternatives to recover these amounts The absence of any tax deficiencies in the Notices For the amortization

expense deductions for the years 1997 through 2002 combined with the expiration of the statute of limitations for 1997 through

2002 for issues not assessed resulted in Moodys recording an earnings benefit of $52.3 million in the second quarter of 2007

This is comprised of two components as follows reversal of tax liability of $27.3 million related to the period from 1997

through the Distribution Date reducing the provision for income taxes and ii reduction of accrued interest expense of $1 7.5

million $10.6 million net of tax and an increase in other non-operating income of $14.4 million relating to amounts due to New

DB In June 2008 the statute of limitations for New DB relating to the 2003 tax year expired As result in the second quarter

of 2008 Moodys recorded reduction of accrued interest expense of $2.3 million $1.4 million net of tax and an increase in

other non-operating income of $6.4 million relating to amounts due to New DB

On the Distribution Date New DB paid Moodys $55.0 million for 50% of certain anticipated future tax benefits of New DB

through 2012 It is possible that IRS audits of New DB for tax years after 2003 could result in income adjustments with respect

to the amortization expense deductions of this partnership transaction In the event these tax benefits are not claimed or other

wise not realized by New DB or there is an audit adjustment Moodys would be required pursuant to the terms of the 2000

Distribution Agreement to repay to New DB an amount equal to the discounted value of its share of the related future tax

benefits and its share of any tax liability that New DB incurs As of December 31 2008 Moodys liability with respect to this

matter totaled $48.7 million

In March 2006 New DB and Moodys each deposited $39.8 million with the IRS in order to stop the accrual of statutory interest

on potential tax deficiencies with respect to the 1997 through 2002 tax years In July 2007 New DB and Moodys commenced

procedures to recover approximately $57 million of these deposits $24.6 million for New DB and $31.9 million for Moodys

which represents the excess of the original deposits over the total of the deficiencies asserted in the Notices As noted above in

November 2007 the IRS used $7.9 million of Moodys portion of the deposit to satisfy an assessment and related interest Addi

tionally in the first quarter of 2008 the IRS returned to Moodys $33.1 million in connection with this matter which includes $3.0

million of interest In July 2008 the IRS paid Moodys the remaining $1.8 million balance of the original deposit and in September

2008 the IRS paid Moodys $0.2 million of interest on that balance

At December 31 2008 Moodys has recorded liabilities for Legacy Tax Matters totaling $51.5 million This includes liabilities and

accrued interest due to New DB arising from the 2000 Distribution Agreement It is possible that the ultimate liability
for Legacy

Tax Matters could be greater than the liabilities recorded by the Company which could result in additional charges that may be

material to Moodys future reported results financial position and cash flows

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this annual report on Form 10-K are forward-looking statements and are based on future expect

ations plans and prospects for the Companys business and operations that involve number of risks and uncertainties Such

statements involve estimates projections goals forecasts assumptions and uncertainties that could cause actual results or out

comes to differ materially from those contemplated expressed projected anticipated or implied in the forward-looking state

ments Those statements appear at various places throughout this annual report on Form 10-K including in the sections entitled

Outlook and Contingencies under Item MDA commencing on page 27 of this annual report on Form 10-K under Legal

Proceedings in Part Item of this Form 10-K and elsewhere in the context of statements containing the words believe

expect anticipate intend plan will predict potential continue strategy aspire target forecast project

estimate should could may and similar expressions or words and variations thereof relating to the Companys views on

future events trends and contingencies Stockholders and investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward
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looking statements The forward-looking statements and other information are made as of the date of this annual report on Form

10-K and the Company undertakes no obligation nor does it intend to publicly supplement update or revise such statements on

going-forward basis whether as result of subsequent developments changed expectations or otherwise In connection with

the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 the Company is identifying examples of fac

tors risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ perhaps materially from those indicated by these forward-

looking statements Those factors risks and uncertainties include but are not limited to the current world-wide credit market

disruptions and economic slowdown which is affecting and could continue to affect the volume of debt and other securities

issued in domestic and/or global capital markets other matters that could affect the volume of debt and other securities issued in

domestic and/or global capital markets including credit quality concerns changes in interest rates and other volatility in the

financial markets the uncertain effectiveness and possible collateral consequences of U.S and foreign government initiatives to

respond to the economic slowdown concerns in the marketplace affecting our credibility or otherwise affecting market percep

tions of the integrity or utility
of independent agency ratings the introduction of competing products or technologies by other

companies pricing pressure
from competitors and/or customers the impact of regulation as nationally recognized statistical

rating organization and the potential for new U.S state and local legislation and regulations the potential for increased competi

tion and regulation in foreign jurisdictions exposure to litigation related to our rating opinions as well as any other
litigation

to

which the Company may be subject from time to time the possible loss of key failures or malfunctions of our operations and

infrastructure the outcome of any review by controlling tax authorities of the Companys global tax planning initiatives the out

come of those Legacy Tax Matters and legal contingencies that relate to the Company its predecessors and their affiliated

companies for which Moodys has assumed portions of the financial responsibility the ability of the Company to successfully

integrate acquired businesses and decline in the demand for credit risk management tools by financial institutions These fac

tors risks and uncertainties as well as other risks and uncertainties that could cause Moodys actual results to differ materially

from those contemplated expressed projected anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements are described in greater

detail under Risk Factors in Part Item 1A of this annual report on Form 10-K elsewhere in this Form 10-K and in other filings

made by the Company from time to time with the SEC or in materials incorporated herein or therein Stockholders and investors

are cautioned that the occurrence of any of these factors risks and uncertainties may cause the Companys actual results to differ

materially from those contemplated expressed projected anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements which could

have material and adverse effect on the Companys business results of operations and financial condition New factors may

emerge from time to time and it is not possible for the Company to predict new factors nor can the Company assess the poten

tial effect of any new factors on it
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information in response to this Item is set forth under the caption Market Risk in Part II Item on page 41 of this annual report

on Form 10-K
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of Moodys Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting and for the assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting As defined by the SEC in Rules

13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 internal control over financial reporting is process designed

by or under the supervision of the Companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar

functions and effected by the Companys Board management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Moodys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of

records that in reasonable detail accurately and
fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of assets of the Company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of Moodys management and directors and provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Companys assets that could have material

effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may riot prevent or detect misstatements Also projec

tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management of the Company has undertaken an assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the Companys

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The COSO framework is based

upon five integrated components of control risk assessment control activities control environment information and communica

tions and ongoing monitoring

Based on the assessment performed management has concluded that Moodys maintained effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 has been audited by KPMG LLP an

independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which
appears

herein

Is RAYMOND MCDANIEL JR

Raymond McDaniel Jr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Is LINDA HUBER

Linda Huber

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 27 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Moodys Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Moodys Corporation the Company as of December 31 2008

and the related consolidated statements of operations cash flows and shareholders deficit for the year
then ended We also have

audited Moodys Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the criteria established

in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO Moodys Corporations management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express

an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

based on our integrated audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state

ments are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all

material respects Our audit of the consolidated financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also

included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain

to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projec

tions of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial position

of Moodys Corporation as of December 31 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations cash flows and share

holders deficit for the year then ended in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion

Moodys Corporation maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31

2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by COSO

Is KPMG LLP

KPMG LIP

New York New York

February 27 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Moodys Corporation

In our opinion the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations

shareholders equity and cash flows for each of two years in the period ended December 31 2007 present fairly in all material

respects the financial position of Moodys Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31 2007 and the results of their oper

ations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31 2007 in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits We conducted our

audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state

ments are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and dis

closures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company has changed the manner in which it accounts for

uncertainty in income taxes as of January 2007 and the manner in which it accounts for defined benefit pension and other

post-retirement plans as of December 31 2006

Is PRICEWATERI-IOUSECOOPERS LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York New York

February 28 2008 except for the effects of

the change in the composition of reportable

segments as discussed in Note 18 as to which

the date is February 27 2009
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MOODYS CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Operations
AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Revenue $1755.4 $2259.0 $2037.1

Expenses

Operating
493.3 584.0 539.4

Selling general and administrative 441.3 451.1 359.3

Restructuring 2.5 50.0

Depreciation and amortization 75.1 42.9 39.5

Gain on sale of building 160.6

Total expenses 1007.2 1128.0 777.6

Operating income 748.2 1131.0 1259.5

Interest income expense net 52.2 24.3 3.0

Other non-operating income expense net 29.8 10.0 2.0

Non-operating income expense net 22.4 14.3 1.0

Income before provision for income taxes 725.8 1116.7 1260.5

Provision for income taxes 268.2 415.2 506.6

Net income 457.6 701.5 753.9

Earnings per share

Basic 1.89 2.63 2.65

Diluted 1.87 2.58 2.58

Weighted average
shares outstanding

Basic 242.4 266.4 284.2

Diluted 245.3 272.2 291.9

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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MOODYS CORPORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheets

AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
245.9 426.3

Short-term investments 7.1 14.7

Accounts receivable net of allowances of $23.9 in 2008 and $16.2 in 2007 421.8 443.6

Deferred tax assets net 26.5 13.1

Other current assets 107.8 91.4

Total current assets 809.1 989.1

Property and equipment net 247.7 214.6

Goodwill 338.0 179.9

Intangible assets net 114.0 56.9

Deferred tax assets net 220.1 166.3

Other assets 44.5 107.8

Total assets $1773.4 $1714.6

Liabilities and sharehoLders deficit

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 240.4 371.3

Commercial paper 104.7 551.9

Revolving credit facility
613.0

Deferred revenue 435.0 426.0

Total current liabilities 1393.1 1349.2

Non-current portion of deferred revenue 114.8 121.1

Long-term debt 750.0 600.0

Deferred tax liabilities net 19.0

Unrecognized tax benefits 185.1 156.1

Other liabilities 305.8 271.8

Total liabilities 2767.8 2498.2

Commitments and contingencies Notes 16 and 17

Shareholders deficit

Preferred stock par value $01 per share 10000000 shares authorized no shares issued and

outstanding

Series common stock par value $.01 per share 10000000 shares authorized no shares issued and

outstanding

Common stock par value $.01 per share 1000000000 shares authorized 342902272 shares issued

at December 31 2008 and 2007 3.4 3.4

Capital surplus 392.7 387.9

Retained earnings 3023.2 2661.1

Treasury stock at cost 107757537 and 91495426 shares of common stock at December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively 4361.6 3851.6

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income 52.1 15.6

Total shareholders deficit 994.4 783.6

Total liabilities and shareholders deficit $1773.4 $1714.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the consolidated financial statements
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MOODYS CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 457.6 701.5 753.9

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 75.1 42.9 39.5

Stock-based compensation expense
63.2 90.2 77.1

Non-cash portion of restructuring charge
7.0

Deferred income taxes 17.3 76.4 27.2

Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options 7.5 52.2 103.2

Legacy Tax Matters 7.8 52.3

Gain on sale of building 160.6

Other 1.2

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 26.2 36.7 42.4

Other current assets 23.1 58.3 8.9

Other assets and prepaid pension costs 26.0 15.5 40.0

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 118.4 53.9 141.4

Restructuring liability 29.8 33.1

Deferred revenue 9.0 79.2 80.2

Unrecognized tax benefits and other non-current tax liabilities 30.8 91.9 8.9

Deferred rent 6.6 53.1 6.2

Other liabilities 44.1 18.2 8.6

Net cash provided by operating activities 534.7 984.0 752.5

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital additions 84.4 181.8 31.1

Purchases of Short-term investments 10.3 191.4 414.0

Sales and maturities of Short-term investments 15.9 252.9 436.5

Net proceeds from sale of building
163.9

Cash paid for acquisitions and investment in affiliates net of cash acquired 241.4 4.4 39.2

Insurance recovery
0.9

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 319.3 124.7 116.1

Cash flows from financing activities

Borrowings under revolving credit facilities 4266.2 1000.0

Repayments of borrowings under revolving credit facilities 3653.2 1000.0

Issuance of commercial paper 11522.7 6684.1

Repayment of commercial paper
11969.4 6136.7

Issuance of long term debt 150.0 300.0

Net proceeds from stock plans
23.5 65.9 105.3

Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options
7.5 52.2 103.2

Cost of treasury shares repurchased 592.9 1738.4 1093.6

Payment of dividends 96.8 85.2 79.5

Payments under capital lease obligations 1.7 2.0 0.6

Debt issuance costs and related fees 0.7 1.4

Net cash used in financing activities 344.8 861.5 965.2

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 51.0 20.4 18.7

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 180.4 18.2 77.9

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of the period
426.3 408.1 486.0

Cash and cash equivalents end of the period
245.9 426.3 408.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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MOODYS CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity Deficit
AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS

ACCUMULATED

OTHER TOTAL

COMPREHENSIVE SHAREHOLDERS COMPREHENSIVE

COMMON STOCK TREASURY STOCK INCOME LOSS EQUITY DEFICIT INCOME LOSS

Capital Retained

Shares Amount Surplus Earnings Shares Amount

Balance at December 31 2005 3429 3.4 240.9 1419.2 52.6 51353.2 0.9 309.4

Net income 753.9 753.9 753.9

Dividends 81.7 81.7

Proceeds from stock plans

including excess tax benefits 209.0 209.0

Stock-based compensation 77.3 77.3

Net treasury stock activity 181.5 11.7 91 1.5 1093.0

Currencytranslation adjustment 11.4 11.4 11.4

Additional minimum pension liability

net of tax of $0.7 million 1.0 1.0 1.0

Amounts eliminated related to

additional minimum pension liability

upon the implementation of SEAS

No 158 net of tax of $1.8 million 2.5 2.5

Actuarial losses and prior service costs

recognized upon the

implementation of SEAS No 158

net of tax of

$16.3 million 22.5 22.5

Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges
________ _______ ________ _______

0.1 0.1 0.1

Comprehensive income 766.4

Balance at December 31 2006 342.9 3.4 345.7 2091.4 64.3 $2264.7 8.4 167.4

Net income 701.5 701.5 701.5

Dividends 88.4 88.4

Amounts recognized upon

implementation of FIN 48 43.4 43.4

Proceeds from stock plans

including excess tax benefits 92.0 92.0

Stock-based compensation 94.6 94.6

Net treasury stock activity 144.4 27.2 1586.9 1731.3

Currency translation adjustment net

of tax of $5.5 million 12.9 12.9 12.9

Net actuarial gains and prior service

costs net of tax of $5.9 million 7.8 7.8 7.8

Amortization and recognition of prior

service cost and actuarial losses net

of tax of $2.5 million 3.4 34 34

Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges
________ _______ ________ _______

0.1 0.1 0.1

Comprehensive income 725.5

continued on next page
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ConsoLidated Statements of SharehoLders Equity Deficit continued

AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS

ACCUMULATED

OTHER TOTAL

COMPREHENSIVE SHAREHOLDERS COMPREHENSIVE

COMMON STOCK TREASURY STOCK INCOME LOSS EQUITY DEFICIT INCOME LOSS

Capital Retained

Shares Amount Surplus Earnings Shares Amount

Balance at December 31 2007 342.9 3.4 387.9 2661.1 91.5$ 3851.6$ 15.6 783.6

Net income 457.6 457.6 457.6

Dividends 95.5 95.5

Proceeds from stock plans

including excess tax benefits 8.1 8.1

Stock-based compensation 63.2 63.2

Net treasury stock activity 66.5 16.3 510.0 576.5

Currency translation

adjustment net of tax of

$12.1 million 37.8 37.8 37.8

Net actuarial losses and prior

service costs net of tax of

$18.0 million 26.7 26.7 26.7

Amortization and recognition of

prior service cost and

actuarial losses net of tax

of $0.8 million
0.9 0.9 0.9

Net unrealized loss on cash

flow hedges net of tax of $2.1

million
________________________

4.1 4.1 4.1

Comprehensive income
389.9

Balance at December 31 2008 342.9 3.4 392.7 3023.2 107.8$ 4361.6$ 52.1$ 994.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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MOODYS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
TABULAR DOLLAR AND SHARE AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA

NOTE DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Moodys is provider of credit ratings and related research data and analytical tools ii quantitative credit risk measures risk

scoring software and credit portfolio management solutions and iii beginning in January 2008 securities pricing software and

valuation models In 2007 and prior years Moodys operated in two reportable segments Moodys Investors Service and Moodys

KMV Beginning in January 2008 Moodys segments were changed to reflect the Reorganization announced in August 2007 As

result of the Reorganization the rating agency remains in the MIS operating company and several ratings business lines have been

realigned All of Moodys other non-rating commercial activities including MKMV and sales of MIS research are now combined

under new operating company known as Moodys Analytics Moodys now reports in two new reportable segments MIS and MA

The MIS segment publishes credit ratings on wide range of debt obligations and the entities that issue such obligations in mar

kets worldwide Revenue is derived from the originators and issuers of such transactions who use MISs ratings to support the dis

tribution of their debt issues to investors The MA segment develops wide range of products and services that support the credit

risk management activities of institutional participants in global financial markets These offerings include quantitative credit risk

scores credit processing software economic research analytical models financial data securities pricing software and valuation

models and specialized consulting services MA also distributes investor-oriented research and data developed by MIS as part of

its rating process including in-depth research on major debt issuers industry studies and commentary on topical events

The Company operated as part of Old DB until September 30 2000 when Old DB separated into two publicly traded compa
nies Moodys Corporation and New DB At that time Old DB distributed to its shareholders shares of New DB stock New

DB comprised the business of Old DBs Dun Bradstreet operating company The remaining business of Old DB consisted

solely of the business of providing ratings and related research and credit risk management services and was renamed Moodys

Corporation For
purposes

of governing certain ongoing relationships between the Company and New DB after the 2000 Dis

tribution and to provide for an orderly transition the Company and New DB entered into various agreements including dis

tribution agreement tax allocation agreement and employee benefits agreement

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include those of Moodys Corporation and its majority- and wholly-owned subsidiaries The

effects of all intercompany transactions have been eliminated Investments in companies for which the Company has significant

influence over operating and financial policies but not controlling interest are accounted for on an equity basis Investments in

companies for which the Company does not have the ability to exercise significant influence are carried on the cost basis of

accounting

The Company applies the guidelines set forth in Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No 46R Consolidation of

Variable Interest Entities an Interpretation of ARB No 51 in assessing its interests invariable interest entities to decide whether

to consolidate that entity The Company has reviewed the potential variable interest entities and determined that there are no

consolidation requirements under FIN 46R

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents principally consist of investments in money market mutual funds and high-grade commercial paper with matur

ities of three months or less when purchased Interest income on cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments was $12.2

million $19.3 million and $18.2 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

typically three to 20 years for computer equipment and office furniture fixtures and equipment Leasehold improvements are

amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvement Expenditures for maintenance

and repairs that do not extend the economic useful life of the related assets are Charged to expense as incurred Gains and losses

on disposals of property and equipment are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations
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Computer Software

Costs for the development of computer software that will be sold leased or otherwise marketed are capitalized when techno

logical feasibility has been established in accordance with SFAS No 86 Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to Be

Sold Leased or Otherwise Marketed These costs primarily relate to the development of credit processing software and quantita

tive credit risk assessment products sold by the MA segment to be licensed to customers and generally consist of professional

services provided by third parties and compensation costs of employees that develop the software The Company amortizes these

assets based on the greater of either ratio of current product revenue to estimated total product revenue or ii the straight-

line basis over the useful life Amortization expense
for all such software for the year ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

was $0.2 million $1.7 million and $6.0 million respectively In accordance with SEAS No 86 the Company assesses the recover

ability of these assets at each period end date

The Company capitalizes costs related to software developed or obtained for internal use in accordance with Statement of Posi

tion 98-1 Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use These assets included in

property and equipment in the consolidated balance sheets relate to the Companys accounting product delivery and other sys

tems Such costs generally consist of direct costs of third-party license fees professional services provided by third parties and

employee compensation in each case incurred either during the application development stage or in connection with upgrades

and enhancements that increase functionality Such costs are depreciated over their estimated useful lives generally three to

seven years Costs incurred during the preliminary project stage of development as well as maintenance costs are expensed as

incurred

Long-Lived Assets IncLuding Goodwill and Other Acquired IntangibLe Assets

Finite-lived intangible assets and other long-lived assets are reviewed for recoverability whenever events or changes in circum

stances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable If the estimated undiscounted future cash flows are lower than

the carrying amount of the related asset loss is recognized for the difference between the carrying amount and the estimated

fair value of the asset Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level annually on November 30th or more fre

quently if events or circumstances indicate the assets may be impaired in accordance with the provisions of SEAS No 142 If the

estimated fair value is less than its carrying amount loss is recognized

Rent Expense

--

The Company records rent expense on straight-line basis over the life of the lease In cases where there is free rent period or

future fixed rent escalations the Company will record deferred rent
liability Additionally the receipt of any

lease incentives will

be recorded as deferred rent liability
which will be amortized over the lease term as reduction of rent expense

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of SEAS No 123R Under this pronounce

ment companies are required to record compensation expense for all share-based payment award transactions granted to

employees based on the fair value of the equity instrument at the time of grant This includes shares issued under employee stock

purchase plans stock options restricted stock and stock appreciation rights The Company has also established pool of addi

tional paid-in capital related to the tax effects of employee share-based compensation APIC Pool which is available to absorb

tax deficiencies recognized in accordance with FASB Staff Position No FAS 123R-3 Transition Election Related to Accounting

for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards which provides for an alternative transition method for establishing the begin

ning balance of the APIC Pool

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Based on the Companys risk management policy from time to time the Company may use derivative financial instruments to

reduce exposure to changes in foreign currencies and interest rates The Company does not enter into derivative financial instru

ments for speculative purposes The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities in accordance

with SEAS No.133 as amended and interpreted which requires that all derivative financial instruments be recorded on the balance

sheet at their respective fair values The changes in the value of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recorded currently

into earnings Changes in the derivatives fair value that qualify as cash flow hedges are recorded as other comprehensive income

or loss to the extent the hedge is effective and such amounts are reclassified to earnings in the same period or periods during

which the hedged transaction affects income

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No 104 Revenue Recognition As such revenue

is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred or the services have been provided and
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accepted by the customer fees are determinable and the collection of resulting receivables is considered probable If uncertainty

exists regarding customer acceptance of the product or service revenue is not recognized until acceptance occurs

In the MIS segment revenue attributed to initial ratings of issued securities is recognized when the rating is issued Revenue attrib

uted to monitoring of issuers or issued securities is recognized over the period in which the monitoring is performed In most areas

of the ratings business MIS charges issuers annual monitoring fees and amortizes such fees ratably over the related one-year pen-

od In the case of commercial mortgage-backed securities derivatives international residential mortgage-backed and asset-backed

securities issuers can elect to pay the monitoring fees upfront These fees are deferred and recognized over the future monitoring

periods ranging from three to 51 years which are based on the expected lives of the rated securities as of December 31 2008

In areas where MIS does not separately charge monitoring fees it defers portions of the rating fees that it estimates will be attrib

uted to future monitoring activities and recognizes such fees ratably over the applicable estimated monitoring period The portion

of the revenue to be deferred is based upon number of factors including the estimated fair market value of the monitoring serv

ices charged for similar securities or issuers The estimated monitoring period is determined based on factors such as the lives of

the rated securities Currently the estimated monitoring periods range from one to ten years

In the MA segment revenue from sales of research products and from credit risk management subscription products is recognized

ratably over the related subscription period which is principally one year beginning upon delivery of the initial product Revenue

from licenses of credit processing software is recognized in accordance with SOP 97-2 at the time the product master or first

copy is delivered or transferred to customers Related software maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the annual main

tenance period Revenue from professional services rendered within the consulting line of business is generally recognized as the

services are performed

Certain revenue arrangements within the MA segment include multiple elements such as software licenses maintenance sub

scription fees and professional services In these types of arrangements the fee is allocated to the various products or services

based on objective measurements of fair value that is generally the price charged when sold separately or vendor-specific

objective evidence Revenue is recognized for each element based upon the conditions for revenue recognition noted above unless

objective evidence of fair value is not available for an undelivered element If the fair value is not available for an undelivered

element the revenue for all elements is deferred The deferred revenue will be recognized when MA has delivered the elements

that do not have fair value or the fair value becomes readily determinable

Amounts billed or received in advance of providing the related products or services are reflected in revenue when earned and are

classified in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the consolidated financial statements as are customer overpayments and

other credits In addition the consolidated balance sheets reflect as current deferred revenue amounts that are expected to be

recognized within one year of the balance sheet date and as non-current deferred revenue amounts that are expected to be

recognized over periods greater than one year The majority of the balance in non-current deferred revenue relates to fees for

future monitoring of CMBS

In 2008 2007 and 2006 no single customer accounted for 10% or more of total revenue

Accounts Receivable Allowances

Moodys records provisions for estimated future adjustments to customer billings as reduction of revenue based on historical

experience and current conditions Such provisions are reflected as additions to the accounts receivable allowance Additionally

estimates of uncollectible accounts are recorded as bad debt expense and are reflected as additions to the accounts receivable

allowance
Billing adjustments and uncollectible account write-offs are recorded against the allowance Moodys evaluates its

accounts receivable allowance by reviewing and assessing historical collection and adjustment experience and the current status

of customer accounts Moodys also considers the economic environment of the customers both from an industry and geographic --

perspective in evaluating the need for allowances Based on its analysis Moodys adjusts its allowance as considered appropriate

in the circumstances

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are charged to income as incurred These expenses include costs associated with the development and pro-

duction of the Companys products and services and their delivery to customers These expenses principally include employee

compensation and benefits and travel costs that are incurred in connection with these activities

66 MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIALS



Restructuring

The Companys restructuring accounting follows the provisions of SFAS No 112 for severance relating to employee terminations

SFAS No 88 for pension settlements and curtailments and SFAS No 146 for contract termination costs and other exit activities

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

SGA expenses are charged to income as incurred These expenses include such items as compensation and benefits for corporate

officers and staff and compensation and other expenses related to sales of products They also include items such as office rent

business insurance professional fees and gains and losses from sales and disposals of assets

Foreign Currency Translation

For all operations outside the U.S where the Company has designated the local currency as the functional currency assets and

liabilities are translated into U.S dollars using end of year exchange rates and revenue and expenses are translated using average

exchange rates for the year For these foreign operations currency translation adjustments are accumulated in separate compo

nent of shareholders equity

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income represents the change in net assets of business enterprise during period due to transactions and other

events and circumstances from non-owner sources including foreign currency translation impacts net actuarial losses and net

prior service costs related to pension and other post-retirement plans recorded in accordance with SFAS No 158 changes in

minimum pension liability
and derivative instruments Accumulated other comprehensive loss income is primarily comprised of

currency translation adjustments of $10.1 million and $27.7 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively and net

actuarial losses and net prior service costs related to the Companys Post-Retirement Plans-net of tax of $37.2 million and

$11.3 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability
method in accordance with SFAS No 109 Accounting for

Income Taxes Therefore income tax expense is based on reported income before income taxes and deferred income taxes

reflect the effect of temporary differences between the amounts of assets and liabilities that are recognized for financial reporting

purposes and the amounts that are recognized for income tax purposes On January 2007 the Company implemented the

provisions of FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The Company classifies interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense
in its consolidated statements of oper

ations Penalties if incurred would be recognized in other non-operating expenses
Prior to the implementation of FIN 48 interest

expense and if necessary penalties associated with tax contingencies were recorded as part of the provision for income taxes

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Companys financial instruments include cash cash equivalents trade receivables and payables all of which are short-term in

nature and accordingly approximate fair value Additionally the Company invests in short-term investments that are carried at

cost which approximates fair value due to their short-term maturities The fair value of the Companys CP Notes 2007
Facility

and 2008 Term Loan approximates cost due to the floating interest rate paid on these outstanding loans The fair value of the

Companys Series 2005-1 Notes and Series 2007-1 Notes both of which have fixed rate of interest is estimated using dis

counted cash flow analyses based on the prevailing interest rates available to the Company for borrowings with similar maturities

The carrying amount of these notes was $600.0 million and $600.0 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Their

estimated fair value was $732.1 million and $650.8 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk principally consist of cash and cash

equivalents short-term investments and trade receivables

Cash equivalents consist of investments in high quality investment-grade securities within and outside the U.S The Company

manages its credit risk exposure by allocating its cash equivalents among various money market mutual funds and issuers of high

grade commercial paper Short-term investments primarily consist of certificates of deposit and high-grade corporate bonds in
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Korea as of December 31 2008 and 2007 The Company manages its credit risk exposure on cash equivalents and short-term

investments by limiting the amount it can invest with any single issuer No customer accounted for 10% or more of accounts

receivable at December 31 2008 or 2007

Earnings per Share of Common Stock

In accordance with SFAS No 128 Earnings per Share basic EPS is calculated based on the weighted average number of shares of

common stock outstanding during the reporting period Diluted EPS is calculated giving effect to all potentially dilutive common

shares assuming that such shares were outstanding during the reporting period

Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits

Moodys maintains various noncontributory DBPPs as well as other contributory and noncontributory retirement and post-

retirement plans The expenses assets liabilities and obligations that Moodys reports for pension and other post-retirement bene

fits are dependent on many assumptions concerning the outcome of future events and circumstances Moodys major

assumptions vary by plan and the Company determines these assumptions based on the Companys long-term actual experience

and future outlook as well as consultation with outside actuaries and other advisors where deemed appropriate If actual results

differ from the Companys assumptions such differences are deferred and amortized over the estimated future working life of the

plan participants

The Company accounts for its pension and other post-retirement benefit plans in accordance with SFAS No 158 Employers

Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans an amendment of FASB Statements No.87 88 106

and 132R SEAS No 158 requires an employer to recognize as an asset or liability
in its statement of financial position the

funded status of its defined benefit post-retirement plans and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the

changes occur through other comprehensive income

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Estimates are used for but not limited to revenue recognition accounts receivable allowances income taxes contingencies valu

ation of investments in affiliates long-lived and intangible assets and goodwill pension and other post-retirement benefits stock-

based compensation and depreciation and amortization rates for property and equipment and computer software

The financial market volatility and poor economic conditions beginning in the third quarter of 2007 and continuing into early

2009 both in the U.S and in many other countries where the Company operates have impacted and will continue to impact

Moodys business Such conditions could have material impact to the Companys significant accounting estimates discussed

above in particular those around accounts receivable allowances valuations of investments in affiliates goodwill and other

acquired intangible assets and pension and other post-retirement benefits

Rectassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation

RecentLy Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Adopted

In February 2007 the FASB issued SEAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitiesincluding an

amendment of FASB Statement No 115 SEAS No 159 expands the use of fair value accounting but does not affect existing

standards which require assets or liabilities to be carried at fair value Under SEAS No 159 company may elect to measure

many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value on an instrument by instrument basis with changes in fair value

recognized in earnings each reporting period Items eligible for fair-value election include recognized financial assets and liabilities

such as equity-method investments and investments in equity securities that do not have readily determinable fair values written

loan commitments and certain warranties and insurance contracts where warrantor or insurer is permitted to pay third party

to provide the warranty goods or services If the use of fair value is elected the election must be applied to individual instruments

with certain restrictions is irrevocable and must be applied to an entire instrument Any upfront costs and fees related to the item

elected for fair value must be recognized in earnings and cannot be deferred At the implementation date unrealized gains and

losses on existing items for which fair value has been elected are reported as cumulative adjustment to beginning retained earn

ings Subsequent to the implementation of SEAS No 159 changes in fair value will be recognized in earnings SEAS No 159 is

effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2007 and was implemented by the Company as of january 2008 The

implementation did not have an effect on the Companys consolidated financial condition results of operations and cash flows
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In October 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 157-3 FSP 57-3 Determining the Fair Value of Financial

Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active FSP 157-3 clarifies the application of SEAS No 157 in market that is not

active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of financial asset when the market

for that financial asset is not active FSP 157-3 is effective upon
issuance and the implementation did not have material effect

on the Companys consolidated financial condition results of operations and cash flows

Not Yet Adopted

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements SEAS No 157 establishes single authoritative

definition of fair value sets out framework for measuring fair value and requires additional disclosures about fair-value

measurements SEAS No 157 is expected to increase the consistency of fair value measurements and applies only to those meas

urements that are already required or permitted to be measured at fair value by other accounting standards SEAS No 157 is

effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2007 In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 157-2

ESP EAS 157-2 which partially defers the effective date of SEAS No 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities except for items

that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis until fiscal years beginning after

November 15 2008 The Company has implemented the deferral provisions of FSP FAS 157-2 and as result has partially

implemented the provisions of SFAS No 157 as of january 2008 The partial implementation of SEAS No 157 did not have

material impact on the Companys consolidated financial position and results of operations in 2008 The Company will apply as of

january 12009 the provisions of SEAS No 157 to its non financial assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in busi

ness combination and not subsequently remeasured at fair value non financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value for

goodwill impairment assessment non-financial long-lived assets measured at fair value for an asset impairment assessment and

asset retirement obligations initially
measured at fair value The Company does not expect the implementation of this standard to

have material impact on the consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the EASB issued SEAS No 160 Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statementsan amend

ment of ARB No 51 SEAS No 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by

parties other than the parent the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling inter

est changes in parents ownership interest and the valuation of retained non-controlling equity investments when subsidiary is

deconsolidated SEAS No 160 also establishes disclosure requirements that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests

of the parent and the interests of the non-controlling owners and requires that non-controlling interest in subsidiary be

reported as equity SEAS No 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15 2008 and is required to be

implemented by the Company as of january 2009 The adoption of this standard will have an immaterial impact on the pre

sentation of minority interest in the consolidated balance sheet and statement of operations

In December 2007 the EASB issued SEAS No 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations SEAS No 141R extends its applicability

to all transactions and other events in which one entity obtains control over one or more other businesses and establishes princi

ples and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the

liabilities assumed any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired SEAS 141 also expands disclosure

requirements to improve the statement users abilities to evaluate the nature and financial effects of business combinations SEAS

No 141 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15 2008 and is required to be implemented by the Company

as of January 12009 While SEAS No 141R applies only to business combinations consummated on or after its effective date its

amendments to SEAS No 109 with respect to deferred tax valuation allowances and liabilities for income tax uncertainties are

required to be applied to all deferred tax valuation allowances and liabilities for income tax uncertainties that existed and recog

nized in prior business combinations or that arise as result of the prior business combinations The implementation of

SEAS No.141R is not expected to impact the Companys consolidated financial statements for prior periods

In March 2008 the EASB issued SEAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities- an amendment of

EASB Statement No 133 SEAS No 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SEAS No 133 and requires qual

itative disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives quantitative disclosures in tabular format about fair value

amounts of and gains and losses on derivative instruments and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in

derivative agreements SEAS No 161 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 The Company plans to

implement the provisions of SEAS No 161 as of January 2009 and does not expect the implementation to have material

impact on its consolidated financial statements

In May 2008 the FASB issued SEAS No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles SEAS No 162 identifies

the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements
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of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with SFAS No 162 will become effective 60 days following the

SECs approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411 The Meaning of Present

Fairly
in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles The Company does not expect the implementation of

SEAS No 162 to have material effect on its consolidated financial statements

In November 2008 the FASB ratified EITF Issue No 08-6 Equity Method Investment Accounting Considerations EITF 08-6

EITF 08-6 applies to all investments accounted for under the equity method and clarifies the accounting for certain transactions

and impairment considerations involving those investments EITF 08-6 is effective in fiscal years beginning on or after

December 15 2008 and was adopted by the Company as of January 2009 The implementation of EITF 08-6 did not have

material effect on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In December 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 132R-i Employers Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit

Plan Assets FSP FAS 132R-1 FSP FAS 132R-1 expands the disclosures set forth in SFAS No 132R by adding required dis

closures about how investment allocation decisions are made by management major categories of plan assets and significant

concentrations of risk Additionally FSP FAS 132R-1 requires an employer to disclose information about the valuation of plan

assets similar to that required under SEAS No 157 FSP EAS 132R-i intends to enhance the transparency surrounding the types of

assets and associated risks in an employers defined benefit pension or other postretirement plan and the new disclosures are

required to be included in financial statements for fiscal years ending after December 15 2009 The Company is currently evaluat

ing the potential impact if any of the implementation of FSP FAS 132R-1 on its consolidated financial statements

NOTE RECONCILIATION OF WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING

Below is reconciliation of basic to diluted shares outstanding

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Basic 242.4 266.4 284.2

Dilutive effect of shares issuable under stock-based compensation plans 2.9 5.8 7.7

Diluted 245.3 272.2 291.9

Antidilutive options to purchase common shares and restricted stock excluded from the table above 11.3 5.6 2.9

The calculation of diluted EPS requires certain assumptions regarding the use of both cash proceeds and assumed proceeds that

would be received upon the exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock outstanding as of December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 These assumed proceeds include those from excess tax benefits that would be realized upon exercise of the option or

vesting of the restricted stock and any unrecognized compensation as calculated under SFAS No 123R

NOTE SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments are securities with maturities greater than 90 days at the time of purchase that are available for use in

the Companys operations in the next twelve months The short-term investments primarily consisting of certificates of deposit

are classified as held-to-maturity and therefore are carried at cost The remaining contractual maturities of the short-term

investments were one to ten months for both December 31 2008 and 2007 Interest and dividends are recorded into income

when earned

NOTE DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

In December 2007 the Company commenced hedging program to protect against EX rate risks from forecasted
billings

and

related revenue denominated in the euro and the GBP FX options and forward exchange contracts were utilized to hedge

exposures related to changes in FX rates As of December 31 2008 all option contracts have maturities between one and

14 months and were set to expire at various times through February 26 2010

70 MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIALS



The following table summarizes the notional amounts of the Companys outstanding options and the fair value of the asset

recorded in other current assets in the Companys consolidated balance sheets

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

Notional amount of Currency Pair

GBP/USD 7.4 million 7.9 million

EUR/USD 12.9 million 16.7 million

EUR/GBP 24.3 million 61.5 million

Fair value of derivative asset 4.9 million 2.3 million

The amount of unrecognized FX hedge gains recorded in AOCI at December 31 2008 and 2007 was approximately $2 million net

of tax and nil respectively The hedges ineffectiveness for the years then ended recorded within revenue in the consolidated

statements of operations was immaterial Additionally the existing realized gains as of December 31 2008 expected to be classi

fied to earnings in the next twelve months are $2.3 million Gains and losses reported in AOCI are reclassified into earnings as the

underlying transaction is recognized

In May 2008 the Company entered into interest rate swaps with total notional amount of $150.0 million to protect against

fluctuations in the LIBOR-based variable interest rate on the 2008 Term Loan further described in Note 14 These are designated

as cash flow hedges The amount of unrecognized hedge losses net of tax reported in AOCI was $6.4 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 Changes in the fair value of the related derivative instrument are included in AOCI As of December 31 2008

the fair value of the interest rate swaps was $10.7 million and is recorded in other liabilities in the Companys consolidated bal

ance sheet

NOTE PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT NET

Property and equipment net consisted of

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

Office and computer equipment 89.3 92.4

Office furniture and fixtures 34.4 35.6

Internal-use computer software 101.2 69.8

Leasehold improvements 153.2 137.7

Total property and equipment at cost 378.1 335.5

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 130.4 120.9

Total property and equipment net 247.7 214.6

Depreciation and amortization expense related to the above assets was $46.7 million $31.5 million and $23.6 million for the

years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

NOTE ACQUISITIONS

During 2008 the Company completed the acquisitions of Financial Projections BQuotes Fermat and Enb These acquisitions were

accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS No 141 Business Combinations These

acquisitions are discussed below in more detail

Enb Consulting

In December 2008 subsidiary of the Company acquired Enb Consulting provider of credit and capital markets training serv

ices The purchase price was not material and the near term impact to operations and cash flow is not expected to be material

Enb is part of the MA segment
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Fermat InternationaL

On October 2008 subsidiary of the Company acquired Fermat International provider of risk and performance management

software to the global banking sector which is now part of the MA segment The combination of MAs credit portfolio manage

ment and economic capital tools with Fermats expertise in risk management software positions MA to deliver comprehensive

analytical solutions for financial institutions worldwide The results of Fermat are reflected in the MA operating segment since the

acquisition date

The aggregate purchase price of $211 million consisted of $204.5 million in cash payments to the sellers and $6.5 million in direct

transaction costs primarily professional fees The purchase price was funded by using Moodys cash on hand

The acquisition has been accounted for as purchase Shown below is the preliminary purchase price allocation which summa

rizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition

Current assets
54.0

Property and equipment net
1.6

Intangible assets

Software 9.0 year weighted average life
43.0

Client relationships 16.0 year weighted average life
12.1

Other intangibles 1.8 year weighted average life
2.7

Total intangible assets
57.8

In-process technology
4.5

Goodwill
123.1

Liabilities assumed 30.0

Net assets acquired
$211.0

In accordance with SEAS No 142 the acquired goodwill which has been assigned to the MA segment will not be amortized and

will not be deductible for tax In accordance with SFAS No 141 the $4.5 million allocated to acquired in-process technology was

written off immediately following the acquisition because the technological feasibility
had not yet been established as of the

acquisition date and was determined to have no future use This write-off is included in depreciation and amortization expenses

for the year ended December 31 2008 Current assets include acquired cash of approximately $26 million

BQuotes Inc

In January 2008 subsidiary of the Company acquired BQuotes Inc global provider of price discovery tools and end-of-day

pricing services for wide range of fixed income securities The purchase price was not material and the near term impact to

operations and cash flow is not expected to be material BQuotes is part of the MA segment

Financial Projections Limited

In January 2008 subsidiary of the Company acquired Financial Projections Ltd leading provider of in-house credit training

services with long-standing relationships among European banks The purchase price was not material and the near term impact

to operations and cash flow is not expected to be material Financial Projections is part of the MA segment
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NOTE GOODWILL AND OTHER ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table summarizes the activity in goodwill

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

MIS MA ConsoLidated MIS MA ConsoLidated

Beginning balance 11.4 168.5 179.9 9.4 166.7 176.1

Additions 1.4 158.7 160.1 1.9 1.8 3.7

Foreign currency translation adjustments 2.2 0.2 2.0 0.1 0.1

Ending balance 10.6 327.4 338.0 11.4 168.5 179.9

Acquired Intangible assets consisted of

DECEMBER31

2008 2007

Customer lists 80.5 62.7

Accumulated amortization 37.7 31.8

Net customer lists 42.8 30.9

Trade secret 25.5 25.5

Accumulated amortization 6.6 4.4

Net trade secret 18.9 21.1

Software 55.2 2.2

Accumulated amortization 11.0 0.4

Net software 44.2 1.8

Other 28.2 13.9

Accumulated amortization 20.1 10.8

Net other 8.1 3.1

Total $114.0 56.9

The weighted average life of customer lists software and other intangible assets acquired during the year ended December 31

2008 was 15.9 years 8.8 years and 9.8 years respectively Other intangible assets primarily consist of databases trade-names and

covenants not to compete Amortization expense for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $28.2 million $9.7

million and $9.9 million respectively

Estimated future annual amortization expense for intangible assets subject to amortization is as follows

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31

2009 16.9

2010 15.7

2011 14.5

2012 14.3

2013 14.3

Thereafter 38.3

Intangible assets are reviewed for recoverability whenever circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recover

able If the estimated undiscounted future cash flows are lower than the carrying amount of the related asset loss is recognized

for the difference between the carrying amount and the estimated fair value of the asset Goodwill is tested for impairment annu

ally or more frequently if circumstances indicate the assets may be impaired
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For the year ended December 31 2008 there were no impairments to goodwill and an impairment of $11.1 million was recog

nized for certain software and database intangible assets within the MA segment which is reflected in amortization expense

These intangible assets were determined to be impaired in accordance with SFAS No 144 as result of comparing the carrying

amount to the undiscounted cash flows of the related asset group expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the

assets The Company measured the amount of the impairment loss by comparing the carrying amount of the related assets to

their fair value The fair value was determined by utilizing
the expected present value technique which uses multiple cash flow

scenarios that reflect the range
of possible outcomes and risk-free rate For the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 there

were no impairments to goodwill or other intangible assets

NOTE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

Salaries and benefits 49.7 51.2

Incentive compensation 47.1 90.4

Customer credits advanced payments and advanced
billings

23.4 18.2

Dividends 24.5 26.0

Professional service fees 23.9 18.1

Interest 10.2 9.5

Accounts payable 8.6 8.1

Income taxes see Note 13 3.5 69.4

Restructuring see Note 10 3.3 33.1

Other 46.2 47.3

Total 240.4 371.3

NOTE 10 RESTRUCTURING

During the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company committed to Restructuring Plan to reduce global head count by approximately

275 positions or approximately 7.5% of the workforce in response to both the Companys Reorganization and to decline in

current and anticipated issuance of rated debt securities in some market sectors Included in the Restructuring Plan is reduction

of staff as result of consolidation of certain corporate staff functions ii the integration of businesses comprising MA and

iii an anticipated decline in new securities issuance in some market sectors The Restructuring Plan also calls for the termination

of technology contracts as well as the outsourcing of certain technology functions which began in the first half of 2008 The

Restructuring Plan is complete as of December 31 2008

Restructuring amounts for the
year

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 were $2.5 million and $50.0 million respectively The

2008 amount primarily reflects adjustments of previous estimates for severance and contract termination costs associated with

the Restructuring Plan As of December 31 2008 there was $11.4 million of accrued restructuring remaining of which $3.3 million

will be paid in 2009 Payments related to the $8.1 million unfunded pension liability
will commence when the affected employees

reach retirement age beginning in 2009 The 2009 payments are expected to be approximately $2 million and will continue in

accordance with the provisions of the Post-Retirement Plan
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Changes to the restructuring liability during the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows

EMPLOYEE TERMINATION COSTS

Contract

Pension Stock Termination Total Restructuring

Severance Settlements Compensation Total Costs Liability

Balance at january 2007

Costs incurred 30.8 10.8 4.3 45.9 4.1 50.0

Cash payments 1.8 1.8 1.8

Non-cash charges 2.7 4.3 7.0 7.0

Balance at December 31 2007 29.0 8.1 37.1 4.1 41.2

Costs incurred and adjustments 2.5 2.5 0.3 2.2

Cash payments 25.0 25.0 2.6 27.6

Balance at December 31 2008 1.5 8.1 9.6 1.8 11.4

Severance and contract termination costs of $3.3 million and $33.1 million are recorded in accounts payable and accrued

liabilities as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Additionally pension settlements of $8.1 million are recorded within

other liabilities The non-cash charges in 2007 reflect $2.7 million pension curtailment which reduced AOCI and $4.3 million

increase to capital surplus relating to stock option modification charge

NOTE 11 PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Moodys maintains funded and unfunded noncontributory Defined Benefit Pension Plans The plans provide defined benefits using

cash balance formula based on years of service and career average salary or final average pay for selected executives The

Company also provides certain healthcare and life insurance benefits for retired U.S employees The post-retirement healthcare

plans are contributory with participants contributions adjusted annually the life insurance plans are noncontributory Moodys

funded and unfunded pension plans the post-retirement healthcare plans and the post-retirement life insurance plans are collec

tively referred to herein as the Post-Retirement Plans Effective at the Distribution Date Moodys assumed responsibility for the

pension and other post-retirement benefits relating to its active employees New DB has assumed responsibility for the Compa

nys retirees and vested terminated employees as of the Distribution Date

Through 2007 substantially all U.S employees were eligible
to participate in the Companys DBPPs Effective january 2008 the

Company no longer offers DBPPs to employees hired or rehired on or after january 2008 and new hires instead will receive

retirement contribution in similar benefit value under the Companys Profit Participation Plan Current participants of the Compa

nys DBPPs continue to accrue benefits based on existing plan benefit formulas

As of December 31 2006 the Company implemented the provisions of SFAS No 158 and the incremental effect of

implementation was decrease in other assets of $1 5.9 million an increase in other liabilities of $18.6 million and pre-tax

increase in AOCI of $34.5 million $20.0 million net of tax The amounts recognized in AOCI are subsequently recognized as

components of net periodic benefit expense over future years pursuant to the recognition and amortization provisions of SFAS

No 87 and SFAS No 106
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Following is summary of changes in benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for the Post-Retirement Plans for the years

ended December 31

PENSION PLANS OTHER POST- RETIREMENT PLANS

2008 2007 2008 2007

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation beginning of the period 149.3 134.6 9.7 9.4

Service cost 12.4 12.6 0.8 0.9

Interest cost 9.7 8.1 0.6 0.6

Plan participants contributions 0.1 0.1

Benefits paid 3.3 1.9 0.4 0.4

Plan amendments 3.6 0.4

Impact of curtailment 1.1 5.3 0.4

Impact of special termination benefits 2.8 8.1

Actuarial gain loss 0.8 2.5 0.2 0.4

Assumption changes 1.2 13.0 0.5

Benefit obligation end of the period 171.8 149.3 11.0 9.7

Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets beginning of the period 123.9 116.6

Actual return on plan assets 33.9 8.5

Benefits paid 3.3 1.9 0.4 0.4

Employer contributions 1.9 0.7 0.3 0.3

Plan participants contributions 0.1 0.1

Fair value of plan assets end of the period 88.6 123.9

Funded status of the plans 83.2 25.4 11.0 9.7

Amounts Recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Net post-retirement benefit asset 37.4

Pension and post-retirement benefits liability-current 1.3 2.2 0.4 0.5

Pension and post-retirement benefits liability-non current 81.9 60.6 10.6 9.2

Net amount recognized 83.2 25.4 11.0 9.7

Accumulated benefit obligation end of the period 141.5 113.7

The 2007 pension plan amendment above reflects the impact of the new benefit payment provision related to an unfunded plan

which beginning January 2008 requires lump sum payments to be paid to active participants when they retire Previously the

plan allowed lump sum or annuity payments

The pension plan curtailment and the special termination benefits in both 2008 and 2007 relate to the terminations of certain

participants of the Companys Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan which resulted in curtailment under SFAS No 88 as there

was significant reduction in the expected years of future service of participants covered by this plan The special termination

benefits relate to the Company waiving early retirement penalties otherwise required by this plan

The following table summarizes the pre-tax net actuarial losses and prior service cost recognized in AOCI for the Companys Post

Retirement Plans as of December 31

PENSION PLANS OTHER POST-RETIREMENT PLANS

2008 2007 2008 2007

Net actuarial losses 59.3 14.8 0.4 0.1

Net prior service costs 3.8 5.3 0.1 0.1

Total recognized in AOCI- pretax 63.1 20.1 0.5 0.2
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For the Companys pension plans the Company expects to recognize in 2009 as components of net periodic expense $0.8 million

for the amortization of net actuarial losses and $0.4 million for the amortization of prior service costs Expected amortizations for

other post-retirement plans in 2009 are not material

Net periodic benefit expenses recognized for the Post-Retirement Plans for years ended December 31

PENSION PLANS OTHER POST-RETIREMENT PLANS

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Components of net periodic expense

Service cost 12.4 12.6 11.2 0.8 0.9 0.8

Interest cost 9.7 8.1 7.0 0.6 0.6 0.5

Expected return on plan assets 9.9 9.0 8.5

Amortization of net actuarial loss from earlier

periods 0.2 2.5 3.3

Amortization of net prior service costs from earlier

periods 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.2 0.2

Curtailment loss 1.0 2.7

Cost of special termination benefits 2.8 8.1

Net periodic expense 16.6 25.4 13.4 1.4 1.7 1.5

The following table summarizes the pre-tax amounts recognized in AOCI related to the Companys Post-Retirement Plans for the

years ended December 31

PENSION PLANS OTHER POST-RETIREMENT PLANS

2008 2007 2008 2007

Amortization of net actuarial losses 0.2 2.5

Amortization of prior service costs 0.4 0.4 0.2

Accelerated recognition of prior service costs due to curtailment 1.0 2.7

Net actuarial gain loss arising during the period 44.7 15.2 0.2 0.6

Net prior service cost arising during the period due to plan amendment 3.5 0.4

Total recognized in Other Comprehensive Income pre-tax 43.1 17.3 0.2 1.2

The folLowing information is for those pension pLans with benefit obligation in excess of plan assets

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

Aggregate benefit obligation 171.8 62.7

Aggregate fair value of plan assets 88.6

The folLowing information is for those pension pLans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation 56.8 42.2

Aggregate fair value of plan assets

MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIALS 77



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December31

OTHER POST

PENSION PLANS RETIREMENT PLANS

2008 2007 2008 2007

Discount rate
6.00% 6.45% 6.25% 6.35%

Rate of compensation increase
4.00% 4.00%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit expense foryears ended December31

PENSION PLANS OTHER POST-RETIREMENT PLANS

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Discount rate 6.45% 5.90% 5.60% 6.35% 5.80% 5.45%

Expected return on plan assets 8.35% 8.35% 8.35%

Rate of compensation
increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

For 2008 the Company continued to use an expected rate of return on assets of 8.35% for Moodys funded pension plan Moodys

works with third-party consultants to determine assumptions for long-term rates of return for the asset classes that are included

in the pension plan investment portfolio These return assumptions reflect long-term time horizon They also reflect combina

tion of historical performance analysis and forward-looking views of the financial markets including consideration of inflation

current yields on long-term bonds and price-earnings ratios of the major stock market indices Moodys expected return on plan

asset assumption is determined by using building block approach which weighs the expected rate of return for each major asset

class based on their respective allocation target within the plan portfolio As the ompanys investment policy is to primarily

invest in index funds the impact of active management is not considered in determining the expected rate of return assumption

Assumed Healthcare Cost Trend Rates at December31

2008 2007 2006

Pre-age 65 Post -age 65 Pre-age 65 Post-age 65 Pre-age 65 Post-age 65

Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for the

followingyear 9.4% 10.4% 10.4% 11.4% 9.0% 11.0%

Ultimate rate to which the cost trend rate is

assumed to decline ultimate trend rate 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2015 2015 2013

The assumed health cost trend rate was updated in 2007 to better reflect different expectations for the medical and prescribed

medication components of health care costs for pre and post-65 retirees As the Company subsidies for retiree healthcare cover

age are capped at the 2005 level for the majority of the post-retirement health plan participants retiree contributions are

assumed to increase at the same rate as the healthcare cost trend rates As such one percentage-point
increase or decrease in

assumed healthcare cost trend rates would not have affected total service and interest cost and would have minimal impact on

the post-retirement benefit obligation
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Plan Assets

The assets of the funded pension plan were allocated among the following categories at December 31

PERCENTAGE OF

PLAN ASSETS

Asset Category
2008 2007

Equity securities 60% 71%

Debt securities 26 19

Real estate 14 10

Total 100% 100%

Moodys investment objective for the assets in the funded pension plan is to earn total returns that will minimize future con

tribution requirements over the long run within prudent level of risk Risk management practices include diversification across

asset classes and investment styles and periodic rebalancing toward asset allocation targets The Companys current pension plan

asset allocation targets are for approximately seventy percent of assets to be invested in equity securities diversified across U.S

and non-U.S stocks of small medium and large capitalization twenty percent in investment-grade bonds and the remainder in

real estate funds The use of derivatives to leverage the portfolio or otherwise is not permitted The Companys monitoring of the

plan includes ongoing reviews of investment performance annual liability measurements periodic asset/liability studies and

investment portfolio reviews The Company is currently reviewing its asset allocation targets with its advisors Except for the

Companys funded pension plan all of Moodys Post-Retirement Plans are unfunded and therefore have no plan assets

Cash Flows

The Company made payments of $1.9 million and $0.7 million related to its unfunded pension plan obligations during the years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively and made no contributions to its funded pension plans during the afore

mentioned years The Company made payments of $0.4 million and $0.3 million to its other post-retirement plans during the

years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The Company presently anticipates making payments of $1.3 million to

its unfunded pension plans and $0.4 million to its other post-retirement plans during the year ended December 31 2009

Estimated Future Benefits Payable

Estimated future benefits payments for the Post-Retirement Plans are as follows at December 31 2008

Other Post-

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 Pension Plans Retirement Ptans

2009 4.0 0.4

2010 10.4 0.5

2011 11.2 0.6

2012 6.3 0.6

2013 7.5 0.7

20142018 72.5 5.3

The estimated future benefits payable for the Post-Retirement Plans are reflected net of the expected Niedicare Part subsidy for which the subsidy

is insignificant on an annual basis for all the years presented

Defined Contribution Plans

Moodys has Profit Participation Plan covering substantially all U.S employees The Profit Participation Plan provides for an

employee salary deferral and the Company matches employee contributions with cash contributions equal to 50% of employee

contribution up to maximum of 3% of the employees pay Moodys also makes additional contributions to the Profit Partic

ipation Plan based on year-to-year growth in the Companys EPS Effective January 2008 all new hires are automatically

enrolled in the Profit Participation Plan when they meet eligibility requirements unless they decline participation As the Compa

nys DBPP5 are closed to new entrants effective january 2008 all
eligible new hires will instead receive retirement con

tribution into the Profit Participation Plan in value similar to the pension benefits Additionally effective january 2008 the
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Company implemented deferred compensation plan in the U.S which is unfunded and provides for employee deferral of com

pensation and Company matching contributions related to compensation in excess of the IRS limitations on benefits and con

tributions under qualified retirement plans Total expenses associated with defined contribution plans were $8.0 million $13.3

million and $15.5 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Effective january 2008 Moodys has designated the Moodys Stock Fund an investment option under the Profit Participation

Plan as an Employee Stock Ownership Plan and as result participants in the Moodys Stock Fund may receive dividends in cash

or may reinvest such dividends into the Moodys Stock Fund Moodys paid approximately $0.3 million in dividends for the

Companys common shares held by the Moodys Stock Fund in 2008 The Company records the dividends as reduction of

retained earnings in the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity Deficit The Moodys Stock Fund held approximately

922000 shares of Moodys common stock at December 31 2008

InternationaL Plans

Certain of the Companys international operations provide pension benefits to their employees in the form of defined contribution

plans Company contributions are primarily determined as percentage of employees eligible compensation Expenses related to

these plans for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were $5.3 million $4.8 million and $3.9 million respectively

In addition the Company also maintains an unfunded DBPP for its German employees which was closed to new entrants in 2002

Furthermore as result of the acquisition of its wholly owned French subsidiary Fermat See Note Acquisitions in October

2008 the Company has assumed Fermats pension liability
related to state pension plan mandated by the French Government

Total defined benefit pension liabilities recorded related to these plans was $3.0 million $2.9 million and $3.2 million based on

weighted average
discount rate of 5.76% 5.60% and 4.2 5% at December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The pension

liabilities recorded as of December 31 2008 represents the unfunded status of these plans and were recognized in the statement

of financial position as non-current
liability

Total pension expense recorded for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 was approximately $0.3 million $0.4 million and $0.3 million respectively These amounts are not included in the tables

above The incremental effect of implementing SEAS No 158 for the German plan was immaterial As of December 31 2008 the

Company has included in AOCI net actuarial gains of $1.3 million $0.9 million net of tax that have yet to be recognized as

reduction to net periodic pension expense The Company expects its 2009 amortization of the net actuarial gains to be

immaterial

NOTE 12 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Presented below is summary of the stock compensation cost and associated tax benefit in the accompanying Consolidated

Statements of Operations

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Stock compensation cost $63.2 $90.2 $77.1

Tax benefit $23.5 $34.0 $29.7

The 2007 restructuring charge as described in Note 10 includes $4.3 million relating to stock award modification for three

employees which is not included in the stock compensation cost for 2007 shown in the table above The nature of the mod
ification was to accelerate the vesting of certain awards for the affected employees as if they were retirement-eligible at the date

of their termination

The fair value of each employee stock option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing

model that uses the assumptions noted below The expected dividend yield is derived from the annual dividend rate on the date of

grant The expected stock volatility is based on an assessment of historical weekly stock prices of the Company as well as implied

volatility from Moodys traded options The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S government zero coupon bonds with maturities

similar to the expected holding period The expected holding period was determined by examining historical and projected post

vesting exercise behavior activity
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The following weighted average assumptions were used for options granted

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Expected dividend yield
1.06% 0.44% 0.44%

Expected stock volatility
25% 23% 23%

Risk-free interest rate 2.96% 4.78% 4.59%

Expected holding period 5.5 yrs
5.7

yrs
6.0 yrs

Grant date fair value $9.73 $22.65 $19.97

Under the 1998 Plan 33.0 million shares of the Companys common stock have been reserved for issuance The 2001 Plan which

is shareholder approved permits the granting of up to 28.6 million shares of which not more than 8.0 million shares are available

for grants of awards other than stock options The 2001 Plan was amended and approved at the annual shareholders meeting on

April 24 2007 increasing the number of shares reserved for issuance by 3.0 million which are included in the aforementioned

amounts The Stock Plans provide that options are exercisable not later than ten years from the grant date The vesting period for

awards under the Stock Plans is generally determined by the Board at the date of the grant and has been four years except for

employees who are at or near retirement
eligibility as defined for which vesting is between one and four years Options may not

be granted at less than the fair market value of the Companys common stock at the date of grant The Stock Plans also provide

for the granting of restricted stock

The Company maintains the Directors Plan for its Board which permits the granting of awards in the form of non-qualified stock

options restricted stock or performance shares The Directors Plan provides that options are exercisable not later than ten years

from the grant date The vesting period is determined by the Board at the date of the grant and is generally one year for options

and three years
for restricted stock Under the Directors Plan 0.8 million shares of common stock were reserved for issuance Any

director of the Company who is not an employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries as of the date that an award is granted

is eligible to participate in the Directors Plan

summary of option activity as of December 31 2008 and changes during the year
then ended is presented below

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate

Exercise Price Contractual Intrinsic

Options
Shares Per Share Term VaLue

Outstanding December 31 2007 18.6 $37.43

Granted 3.2 37.44

Exercised 1.2 19.25

Forfeited 0.8 51.74

Expired 0.4 53.27

Outstanding December 31 2008 19.4 $37.72 5.4 yrs $14.6

Vested and expected to vest December 31 2008 18.8 $37.30 5.3 yrs $14.6

ExercisabLe December 31 2008 13.1 $30.73 4.1 yrs $14.6

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value the difference between Moodys cbs

ing stock price on the last trading day of the year ended December 31 2008 and the exercise prices multiplied by the number of

in-the-money options that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options as of

December 31 2008 This amount varies based on the fair value of Moodys stock As of December 31 2008 there was $52.6 mil

lion of total unrecognized compensation expense related to options The
expense

is expected to be recognized over weighted

average period of 1.1 years
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The following table summarizes information relating to stock option exercises

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Proceeds from stock option exercises 23.2 69.3 105.0

Aggregate intrinsic value 21.6 139.4 269.6

Tax benefit realized upon exercise 8.5 53.9 108.0

summary of the status of the Companys nonvested restricted stock as of December 31 2008 and changes during the year then

ended is presented below

Weighted Average

Grant Date Fair

Nonvested Restricted Stock Shares Value Per Share

Balance December 31 2007 1.7 63.20

Granted 0.6 37.97

Vested 0.6 57.69

Forfeited 0.2 57.41

BaLance December 31 2008 1.5 55.33

As of December 31 2008 there was $41.8 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested restricted

stock The expense is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of 1.2 years

The following table summarizes information relating to the vesting of restricted stock awards

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Fair value of vested shares 23.7 43.2 27.8

Tax benefit realized upon vesting 8.8 16.6 10.9

The Company has policy of issuing treasury stock to satisfy shares issued under stock-based compensation plans

In addition the Company also sponsors the ESPP Under the ESPP 6.0 million shares of common stock were reserved for issuance

The ESPP allows
eligible employees to purchase common stock of the Company on monthly basis at 85% of the average of the

high and the low trading prices on the New York Stock Exchange on the last trading day of each month The employee purchases

are funded through after-tax payroll deductions which plan participants can elect from one percent to ten percent of compensa

tion subject to the annual federal limit This results in stock-based compensation expense for the difference between the purchase

price and fair market value under SFAS No 123R Beginning on January 2009 the discount offered on the ESPP will be reduced

to 5% which will result in the ESPP qualifying for non-compensatory status under SEAS No 123R Accordingly no compensation

expense will be recognized for the ESPP subsequent to December 31 2008

82 MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIALS



NOTE 13 INCOME TAXES

Components of the Companys income tax provision are as follows

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Current

Federal 147.5 277.0 362.2

State and local 49.3 89.8 105.0

Non-U.S 88.7 124.8 66.6

Total 285.5 491.6 533.8

Deferred

Federal 10.9 64.9 20.1

State and local 0.8 10.7 5.8

Non-U.S 5.6 0.8 1.3

Total 17.3 76.4 27.2

Total Income Tax Provision 268.2 415.2 .506.6

reconciliation of the U.S federal statutory tax rate to the Companys effective tax rate on income before provision for income

taxes is as follows

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

U.S statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State and local taxes net of federal tax benefit 4.1 4.6 5.1

Benefit of foreign operations 2.6 0.1 0.5

Legacy Tax 0.3 2.4 0.1

Other 0.8 0.1 0.5

Effective tax rate 37.0% 37.2% 40.2%

Income taxes paid
319.9 408.7 408.8

The source of income before provision for income taxes is as follows

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

United States 437.4 814.7 1026.0

International 288.4 302.0 234.5

Income before provision for income taxes 725.8 $1116.7 1260.5
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The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

Deferred tax assets

Current

Accounts receivable allowances 6.5 4.9

Accrued compensation and benefits 7.8 4.6

Deferred Revenue 5.5 21.1

Restructuring
3.0 19.7

Other 3.4 0.6

Total 26.2 50.9

Non-current

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 1.9

Stock-based compensation 68.5 62.3

Deferred Revenue 38.6

Benefit plans 39.1 35.5

State taxes 2.8

Deferred rent and construction allowance 27.9 23.1

Foreign net operating loss1 2.9

Uncertain tax positions 59.8 37.8

Other 9.9 3.4

Total 248.6 164.9

Total deferred tax assets 274.8 215.8

Deferred tax liabilities

Current

Prepaid expenses
0.3 0.3

Other 0.2

Total 0.5 0.3

Non-current

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 11.4 3.1

Benefit plans 20.6

Intangible assets and capitalized software 35.8 11.7

Other 0.3 0.7

Total 47.5 36.1

Total deferred tax liabilities 48.0 36.4

Net deferred tax assets 226.8 179.4

Amounts are primariLy
set to expire at various times throughout 2015 if unused

Prepaid taxes of $62.7 million and $52.0 million for December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively are included in other current assets

in the consolidated balance sheets Non-current tax receivables of $31.9 million at December 31 2007 are included in other

assets

As of December 31 2008 the Company had approximately $216.8 million of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries that it

intends to indefinitely reinvest in foreign operations The Company has not provided deferred income taxes on these indefinitely

reinvested earnings It is not practicable to determine the amount of deferred taxes that might be required to be provided if such

earnings were distributed in the future due to complexities in the tax laws and in the hypothetical calculations that would have to

be made
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On January 2007 the Company implemented the provisions of FIN 48 resulting in reduction to retained earnings of $43.3

million This reduction is comprised of $32.9 million increase in the liability
for UTB5 and accrued interest of $17.3 million $10.4

million net of tax

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of UTB5 is as follows

2008 2007

Balance as of January
156.1 122.7

Additions for tax positions related to the current year
34.5 41.5

Additions for tax positions of prior years
8.2 27.7

Reductions for tax positions of prior years
12.2 4.0

Settlements with taxing authorities 0.7

Lapse of statute of limitations 0.8 31.8

Batanceasof December31 185.1 156.1

As of December 31 2008 the Company had $185.1 million of UTBs of which $141.7 million represents the amount that if recog

nized would impact the effective income tax rate in future periods

The Company classifies interest related to UTB5 in interest expense in its consolidated statements of operations Penalties if

incurred would be recognized in other non-operating expenses Prior to the implementation of FIN 48 interest expense and if

necessary penalties associated with tax contingencies were recorded as part of the provision for income taxes During 2008 the

Company accrued interest of $12.8 million related to UTPs As of December 31 2008 the amount of accrued interest recorded in

the Companys balance sheet related to UTP5 was $36.4 million

Moodys Corporation and subsidiaries are subject to U.S federal income tax as well as income tax in various state and local and

foreign jurisdictions Moodys federal income tax returns filed for the years
2004 through 2007 remain subject to examination by

the IRS New York City income tax returns for 2001 through 2004 are currently under examination and for 2005 through 2007

remain open to examination New York State income tax returns for 2004 through 2005 are currently under examination and for

2006 through 2007 remain open to examination Tax
filings

in the U.K for 2001 through 2005 are currently under examination by

the U.K taxing authorities and for 2006 through 2007 remain open to examination

For current ongoing audits related to open tax years the Company estimates that it is possible that the balance of UTBs could

decrease in the next twelve months as result of the effective settlement of these audits which might involve the payment of

additional taxes the adjustment of certain deferred taxes and/or the recognition of tax benefits It is also possible that new

issues might be raised by tax authorities which might necessitate increases to the balance of UTBs As the Company is unable to

predict the timing of conclusion of these audits the Company is unable to estimate the amount of changes to the balance of

UTBs at this time However the Company believes that it has adequately provided for its financial exposure for all open tax years

by tax jurisdiction in accordance with the provisions of FIN 48 Additionally the Company is seeking tax rulings on certain tax

positions which if granted could decrease the balance of UTB5 over the next twelve months however due to the uncertainty

involved with this process the Company is unable to estimate the amount of changes to the balance of UTB5 at this time
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NOTE 14 INDEBTEDNESS

The following table summarizes total indebtedness

DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

2007
Facility

613.0

Commercial paper net of unamortized discount of $0.3 million at 2008 and $0.7 million at 2007 104.7 551.9

Notes payable

Series 2005-1 Notes 300.0 300.0

Series 2007-1 Notes 300.0 300.0

2008Term Loan 150.0

Total Debt 1467.7 1151.9

Current portion 717.7 551.9

Total long-term debt 750.0 600.0

2007 Facility

On September 28 2007 the Company entered into $1.0 billion five-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility expiring in

September 2012 The 2007
Facility

will serve in part to support the Companys CP Program described below Interest on borrow

ings is payable at rates that are based on LIBOR plus premium that can range from 16.0 to 40.0 basis points of the outstanding

borrowing amount depending on the Debt/EBITDA ratio The Company also pays quarterly facility fees regardless of borrowing

activity under the 2007 Facility The quarterly fees for the 2007
Facility

can range from 4.0 to 10.0 basis points of the
facility

amount depending on the Companys Debt/EBITDA ratio The Company also pays utilization fee of 5.0 basis points on borrow

ings outstanding when the aggregate amount outstanding exceeds 50% of the total facility The weighted average
interest rate on

borrowings outstanding as of December 31 2008 was 1.47% The 2007 Facility contains certain covenants that among other

things restrict the ability of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries without the approval of the lenders to engage in mergers

consolidations asset sales transactions with affiliates and sale-leaseback transactions or to incur liens as defined in the related

agreement The 2007 Facility
also contains financial covenants that among other things require the Company to maintain

Debt/EBITDA ratio of not more than 4.0 to 1.0 at the end of any fiscal quarter

Commercial Paper

On October 2007 the Company entered into private placement commercial paper program under which the Company may

issue CP notes up to maximum amount of $1.0 billion Amounts available under the CP Program may be re-borrowed The CP

Program is supported by the Companys 2007 Facility The maturities of the CP Notes will vary but may not exceed 397 days

from the date of issue The CP Notes are sold at discount from par or alternatively sold at par and bear interest at rates that

will vary based upon market conditions at the time of issuance The rates of interest will depend on whether the CP Notes will be

fixed or floating rate The interest on floating rate may be based on the following certificate of deposit rate

commercial paper rate the federal funds rate the LIBOR prime rate treasury rate or such other base rate as

may be specified in supplement to the private placement agreement The weighted average interest rate on CP borrowings out

standing was 2.08% and 5.13% as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The CP Program contains certain events of

default including among other things non-payment of principal interest or fees violation of covenants invalidity of any loan

document material judgments and bankruptcy and insolvency events subject in certain instances to cure periods

Notes Payable

On September 2007 the Company issued and sold through private placement transaction $300.0 million aggregate principal

amount of its 6.06% Series 2007-1 Senior Unsecured Notes due 2017 pursuant to the 2007 Agreement The Series 2007-1 Notes

have ten-year term and bear interest at an annual rate of 6.06% payable semi-annually on March and September of each

year Under the terms of the 2007 Agreement the Company may from time to time within five years in its sole discretion issue

additional series of senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to $500.0 million pursuant to one or more supplements to

the 2007 Agreement The Company may prepay
the Series 2007-1 Notes in whole or in part at any time at price equal to

100% of the principal amount being prepaid plus accrued and unpaid interest and Make Whole Amount The 2007 Agreement
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contains covenants that Limit the
ability

of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries to among other things enter into trans

actions with affiliates dispose of assets incur or create liens enter into any sale-leaseback transactions or merge
with any other

corporation or convey transfer or lease substantially all of its assets The Company must also not permit its Debt/EBITDA ratio to

exceed 4.0 to 1.0 at the end of any fiscal quarter

On September 30 2005 the Company issued and sold through private placement transaction $300.0 million aggregate princi

pal amount of its Series 2005-1 Senior Unsecured Notes pursuant to the 2005 Agreement The Series 2005-1 Notes have

ten-year term and bear interest at an annual rate of 4.98% payable semi-annually on March 30 and September 30 The proceeds

from the sale of the Series 2005-1 Notes were used to refinance $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Companys

outstanding 7.6 1% senior notes which matured on September 30 2005 In the event that Moodys pays all or part of the Series

2005-1 Notes in advance of their maturity such prepayment will be subject to Make Whole Amount The Series 2005-1 Notes

are subject to certain covenants that among other things restrict the ability of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries with

out the approval of the lenders to engage in mergers consolidations asset sales transactions with affiliates and sale-leaseback

transactions or to incur liens as defined in the related agreements

2008 Term Loan

On May 72008 Moodys entered into five-year $150.0 million senior unsecured term loan with several lenders Proceeds from

the loan were used to pay off portion of the CP outstanding Interest on borrowings under the 2008 Term Loan is payable quar

terly at rates that are based on LIBOR plus margin that can range from 125 basis points to 175 basis points depending on the

Companys Debt/EBITDA ratio The outstanding borrowings shall amortize beginning in 2010 in accordance with the schedule of

payments set forth in the 2008 Term Loan outlined in the table below

The 2008 Term Loan contains restrictive covenants that among other things restrict the
ability

of the Company to engage or to

permit its subsidiaries to engage in mergers consolidations asset sales transactions with affiliates and sale-leaseback transactions

or to incur or permit its subsidiaries to incur liens in each case subject to certain exceptions and limitations The 2008 Term

Loan also limits the amount of debt that subsidiaries of the Company may incur In addition the 2008 Term Loan contains

financial covenant that requires the Company to maintain DebtIEBITDA ratio of not more than 4.0 to 1.0 at the end of any fiscal

quarter

The principal payments due on the 2008 Term Loan through its maturity are as follows

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31

2010 3.8

2011 11.3

2012 71.2

2013 63.7

Total $150.0

Also on May 2008 the Company entered into interest rate swaps with total notional amount of $150.0 million to protect

against fluctuations in the LIBOR-based variable interest rate on the 2008 Term Loan Fair market value adjustments are recorded

into other comprehensive income at the end of each period while net interest payments are recorded in the statement of oper

ations At December 31 2008 the fair value of the interest rate swap was $10.7 million and is recorded in other liabilities in the

Companys consolidated balance sheet
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INTEREST EXPENSE INCOME NET

The following table summarizes the components of interest as presented in the consolidated statements of operations

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Income 18.1 19.3 18.2

Expense on borrowings 60.0 40.7 15.2

FIN 48 and other tax related interest 13.7 21.5

Reversal of accrued interest 2.3 17.5

Interest capitalized 1.1 1.1

Total 52.2 24.3 3.0

Interest paid 59.5 32.5 14.9

Represents
reduction of accrued interest related to the favorable resolution of

Legacy
Tax Matters further discussed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements

At December 31 2008 the Company was in compliance with all covenants contained within all of the debt agreements In addi

tion to the covenants described above the 2007 Facility the 2005 Agreement the 2007 Agreement and the 2008 Term Loan

contain cross default provisions whereby default under one of the aforementioned debt instruments could in turn permit lenders

under other debt instruments to declare borrowings outstanding under those instruments to be immediately due and payable

NOTE 15 CAPITAL STOCK

Authorized Capital Stock

The total number of shares of all classes of stock that the Company has authority to issue under its Restated Certificate of

Incorporation is 1.02 billion shares with par value of $0.01 of which 1.0 billion are shares of common stock 10.0 million are

shares of preferred stock and 10.0 million are shares of series common stock The preferred stock and series common stock can be

issued with varying terms as determined by the Board

Rights Agreement

The Company had rights agreement which expired as of june 30 2008 and was not renewed The rights agreement was

designed to protect its shareholders in the event of unsolicited offers to acquire the Company and coercive takeover tactics that

in the opinion of the Board could impair its ability to represent shareholder interests

Share Repurchase Program

The Company implemented systematic share repurchase program in the third quarter of 2005 through an SEC Rule lobs-i

program Moodys may also purchase opportunistically when conditions warrant On June 2006 the Board authorized $2.0

billion share repurchase program which the Company completed during January 2008 On July 30 2007 the Board of the Com

pany authorized an additional $2.0 billion share repurchase program which the Company began utilizing
in January 2008 after

completing the June 2006 authorization There is no established expiration date for the remaining authorization The Companys

intent is to return capital to shareholders in way that serves their long-term interests As result Moodys share repurchase

activity will continue to vary from quarter to quarter

During 2008 Moodys repurchased 18.2 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of approximately $593 million

and issued 2.2 million shares under employee stock-based compensation plans

Dividends

During 2008 2007 and 2006 the Company paid quarterly dividend of $0.10 $0.08 and $0.07 per share of Moodys common

stock in each of the quarters resulting in dividends paid per share during the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 of

$0.40 $0.32 and $0.28 respectively

On December 16 2008 the Board of the Company approved the declaration of quarterly dividend of $0.10 per share of

Moodys common stock payable on March 10 2009 to shareholders of record at the close of business on February 20 2009 The

continued payment of dividends at the rate noted above or at all is subject to the discretion of the Board
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NOTE 16 LEASE COMMITMENTS

Moodys operates its business from various leased facilities which are under operating leases that expire over the next 19 years

Moodys also leases certain computer and other equipment under operating and capital leases that expire over the next five years

Rent expense including lease incentives is amortized on straight-line basis over the related lease term Rent and amortization

expense under operating leases for the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $64.4 million $65.8 million and

$27.9 million respectively The amount of deferred rent that is included in the other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets

is $67.1 million and $60.5 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The Company has $5.5 million and $6.8 million

of computer equipment subject to capital lease obligations at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively with accumulated

amortization of $2.9 million and $2.8 million respectively

The approximate minimum rent for leases that have remaining or original noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year at

December 31 2008 is as follows

CapitaL Operating

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31
Leases Leases

2009 1.4 60.3

2010
1.3 52.1

2011
49.1

2012
50.3

2013
50.4

Thereafter 667.0

Total minimum lease payments
2.7 929.2

Less amount representing interest 0.1

Present value of net minimum lease payments under capital leases 2.6

On October 20 2006 the Company entered into 21-year operating lease agreement to occupy 15 floors of an office building at

7WTC On March 28 2007 the 7WTC lease agreement was amended for the Company to lease an additional two floors for term

of 20 years The total base rent including rent credits for the 7WTC lease is approximately $642 million

On February 2008 the Company entered into 17.5 year operating lease agreement to occupy
six floors of an office tower

located in the Canary Wharf section of London England The total base rent of the Canary Wharf Lease over its 17.5-year term is

approximately 134 million GBP5 and the Company will begin making base rent payments
in 2011 In addition to the base rent

payments the Company will be obligated to pay certain customary amounts for its share of operating expenses and tax obligation

The Company expects to incur approximately 41 million GBP of costs to build out the floors to its specifications of which approx

imately 33 million GBP5 is expected to be incurred over the next twelve months

NOTE 17 CONTINGENCIES

From time to time Moodys is involved in legal and tax proceedings governmental investigations claims and litigation
that are

incidental to the Companys business including claims based on ratings assigned by MIS Moodys is also subject to ongoing tax

audits in the normal course of business Management periodically assesses the Companys liabilities and contingencies in con

nection with these matters based upon
the latest information available Moodys discloses material pending legal proceedings

pursuant to SEC rules and other pending matters as it may determine to be appropriate

As result of recent events in the U.S subprime residential mortgage sector and the credit markets more broadly various legis

lative regulatory and enforcement entities around the world are investigating or evaluating the role of rating agencies in the U.S

subprime mortgage-backed securitization market and structured finance markets more generally Moodys has received subpoenas

and inquiries from states attorneys general and other governmental authorities and is cooperating with such investigations and

inquiries Moodys is also cooperating with review by the SEC relating to errors in the model used by MIS to rate certain

constant-proportion debt obligations In addition the Company is facing market participant litigation relating to the performance
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of MIS rated securities Although Moodys in the normal course experiences such litigation the volume and cost of defending such

litigation
has significantly increased in the current economic environment

On June 27 2008 the Brockton Contributory Retirement System purported shareholder of the Companys securities filed

purported shareholder derivative complaint on behalf of the Company against its directors and certain senior officers and the

Company as nominal defendant in the Supreme Court of the State of New York County of New York The
plaintiff

asserts various

causes of action relating to the named defendants oversight of MISs ratings of RMBS and constant-proportion debt obligations

and their participation in the alleged public dissemination of false and misleading information about MISs ratings practices and/or

failure to implement internal procedures and controls to prevent the alleged wrongdoing The
plaintiff

seeks compensatory

damages restitution disgorgement of profits and other equitable relief On July 2008 Thomas Flynn purported shareholder

of the Companys securities filed similar purported shareholder derivative complaint on behalf of the Company against its direc

tors and certain senior officers and the Company as nominal defendant in the Supreme Court of the State of New York County

of New York asserting similar claims and seeking the same relief The cases have been consolidated and
plaintiffs

filed an

amended consolidated complaint in November 2008 The Company removed the consolidated action to the United States District

Court for the Southern District of New York in December 2008 In January 2009 the
plaintiffs

moved to remand the case to the

Supreme Court of the State of New York The Company will oppose remand and expects to move to dismiss the amended con

solidated complaint upon resolution of the remand motion On October 30 2008 the Louisiana Municipal Police Employees

Retirement System purported shareholder of the Companys securities also filed shareholder derivative complaint on behalf of

the Company against its directors and certain officers and the Company as nominal defendant in the U.S District Court for the

Southern District of New York This complaint too asserts various causes of action relating to the Companys ratings of RMBS
CDO and constant-proportion debt obligations and named defendants participation in the alleged public dissemination of false

and misleading information about MISs ratings practices and/or failure to implement internal procedures and controls to pre

vent the alleged wrongdoing On December 2008 Rena Nadoff purported shareholder of the company filed shareholder

derivative complaint on behalf of the Company against its directors and its CEO and the company as nominal defendant in the

Supreme Court of the State of New York The complaint asserts claim for breach of fiduciary duty in connection with alleged

overrating of asset-backed securities and underrating of municipal securities

Two purported class action complaints have been filed by purported purchasers of the Companys securities against the Company

and certain of its senior officers asserting claims under the federal securities laws The first was filed by Raphael Nach in the U.S

District Court for the Northern District of Illinois on July 19 2007 The second was filed by Teamsters Local 282 Pension Trust

Fund in the U.S District Court for the Southern District of New York on September 26 2007 Both actions have been consolidated

into single proceeding entitled In re Moodys Corporation Securities Litigation in the U.S District Court for the Southern District of

New York On June 27 2008 consolidated amended complaint was filed purportedly on behalf of all purchasers of the Compa

nys securities during the period February 2006 through October 24 2007 Plaintiffs allege that the defendants issued false and

or misleading statements concerning the Companys business conduct business prospects business conditions and financial

results relating primarily to MISs ratings of structured finance products including RMBS CDO and constant-proportion debt

obligations The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of compensatory damages and their reasonable costs and expenses incurred

in connection with the case The Company moved for dismissal of the consolidated amended complaint in September 2008 On

February 23 2009 the court issued an opinion dismissing certain claims sustaining others and granting plaintiffs leave to amend

their complaint by March 18 2009

For claims litigation
and proceedings not related to income taxes where it is both probable that

liability
has been incurred and

the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated the Company has recorded liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and

periodically adjusts these as appropriate In other instances because of uncertainties related to the probable outcome and/or the

amount or range of loss management does not record liability but discloses the contingency if significant As additional

information becomes available the Company adjusts its assessments and estimates of such matters accordingly For income tax

matters the Company employs the prescribed methodology of FIN 48 implemented as of January 12007 which requires com

pany to first determine whether it is more-likely-than-not defined as likelihood of more than
fifty percent that tax position

will be sustained based on its technical merits as of the reporting date assuming that taxing authorities will examine the position

and have full knowledge of all relevant information tax position that meets this more-likely-than-not threshold is then meas
ured and recognized at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than

fifty percent likely
to be realized upon effective settle

ment with taxing authority

The Company cannot predict the ultimate impact that any of the legislative regulatory enforcement or litigation
matters may

have on how its business is conducted and thus its competitive position financial position or results of operations Based on its
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review of the latest information available in the opinion of management the ultimate monetary liability
of the Company for the

pending matters referred to above other than the Legacy Tax Matters that are discussed below is not
likely

to have material

adverse effect on the Companys consolidated financial position although it is possible that the effect could be material to the

Companys consolidated results of operations for an individual reporting period

Legacy Tax Matters

Moodys continues to have exposure to certain Legacy Tax Matters The following description of the relationships among Moodys

New DB and their predecessor entities is important in understanding the Legacy Tax Matters

In November 1996 The Dun Bradstreet Corporation separated into three separate public companies The Dun Bradstreet

Corporation ACNielsen Corporation and Cognizant Corporation In June 1998 The Dun Bradstreet Corporation separated into

two separate public companies Old DB and R.H Donnelley Corporation During 1998 Cognizant separated into two separate

public companies IMS Health Incorporated and Nielsen Media Research Inc In September 2000 old DB separated into two

separate public companies New DB and Moodys as further described in Note to the consolidated financial statements

Old DB and its predecessors entered into global tax planning initiatives in the normal course of business These initiatives are

subject to normal review by tax authorities Old DB and its predecessors also entered into series of agreements covering the

sharing of any liabilities for payment of taxes penalties and interest resulting from unfavorable IRS determinations on certain tax

matters and certain other potential tax liabilities all as described in such agreements Further in connection with the 2000 Dis

tribution and pursuant to the terms of the 2000 Distribution Agreement New DB and Moodys have agreed on the financial

responsibility for any potential liabilities related to Legacy Tax Matters

Settlement agreements were executed with the IRS in 2005 regarding Legacy Tax Matters for the years 1989-1990 and 1993-

1996 As of December 31 2008 the Company continues to carry liability
of $1.8 million with respect to these matters With

respect to these settlement agreements Moodys and New DB believe that IMS Health and NMR did not pay
their full share of

the liability to the IRS pursuant to the terms of the applicable separation agreements among the parties Moodys and New DB

paid these amounts to the IRS on their behalf and attempted to resolve this dispute with IMS Health and NMR As result

Moodys and New DB commenced arbitration proceedings against IMS Health and NMR in connection with the 1989-1990

matter This matter was resolved during the third quarter of 2008 in favor of Moodys and New DB resulting in IMS Health and

NMR having paid total of $6.7 million to Moodys Moodys and New DB may also commence an arbitration proceeding to

collect amounts owed by MS Health and NMR with respect to the 1993-1996 matter Moodys cannot predict the outcome of

this matter with any certainty

Amortization Expense Deductions

This Legacy Tax Matter which was affected by developments in June 2007 and 2008 as further described below involves partner

ship transaction which resulted in amortization expense deductions on the tax returns of Old DB since 1997 IRS audits of Old

DBs and New DBs tax returns for the years
1997 through 2002 concluded in June 2007 without any disallowance of the

amortization expense deductions or any other adjustments to income related to this partnership transaction These audits

resulted in the IRS issuing the Notices for other tax issues for the 1997-2000 years aggregating $9.5 million in tax and penalties

plus statutory interest of approximately $6 million which should be apportioned among Moodys New DB IMS Health and

NMR pursuant to the terms of the applicable separation agreements Moodys share of this assessment was $6.6 million including

interest net of tax In November 2007 the IRS assessed the tax and penalties and used portion of the deposit discussed below

to satisfy the assessment together with interest The Company believes it has meritorious grounds to challenge the IRSs actions

and is evaluating its alternatives to recover these amounts The absence of any tax deficiencies in the Notices for the amortization

expense deductions for the years
1997 through 2002 combined with the expiration of the statute of limitations for 1997 through

2002 for issues not assessed resulted in Moodys recording an earnings benefit of $52.3 million in the second quarter of 2007

This is comprised of two components as follows reversal of tax liability
of $27.3 million related to the period from 1997

through the Distribution Date reducing the provision for income taxes and ii reduction of accrued interest expense of $17.5

million $10.6 million net of tax and an increase in other non-operating income of $14.4 million relating to amounts due to New

DB In June 2008 the statute of limitations for New DB relating to the 2003 tax year expired As result in the second quarter

of 2008 Moodys recorded reduction of accrued interest expense of $2.3 million $1.4 million net of tax and an increase in

other non-operating income of $6.4 million relating to amounts due to New DB

On the Distribution Date New DB paid Moodys $55.0 million for 50% of certain anticipated future tax benefits of New DB

through 2012 It is possible that IRS audits of New DB for tax years
after 2003 could result in income adjustments with respect
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to the amortization expense
deductions of this partnership transaction In the event these tax benefits are not claimed or other

wise not realized by New DB or there is an audit adjustment Moodys would be required pursuant to the terms of the 2000

Distribution Agreement to repay to New DB an amount equal to the discounted value of its share of the related future tax

benefits and its share of
any tax liability

that New DB incurs As of December 31 2008 Moodys liability
with respect to this

matter totaled $48.7 million

In March 2006 New DB and Moodys each deposited $39.8 million with the IRS in order to stop the accrual of statutory interest

on potential tax deficiencies with respect to the 1997 through 2002 tax years In July 2007 New DB and Moodys commenced

procedures to recover approximately $57 million of these deposits $24.6 million for New DB and $31.9 million for Moodys
which represents the excess of the original deposits over the total of the deficiencies asserted in the Notices As noted above in

November 2007 the IRS used $7.9 million of Moodys portion of the deposit to satisfy an assessment and related interest Addi

tionally in the first quarter of 2008 the IRS returned to Moodys $33.1 million in connection with this matter which includes $3.0

million of interest In July 2008 the IRS paid Moodys the remaining $1.8 million balance of the original deposit and in September

2008 the IRS paid Moodys $0.2 million of interest on that balance

At December 31 2008 Moodys has recorded liabilities for Legacy Tax Matters totaling $51.5 million This includes liabilities and

accrued interest due to New DB arising from the 2000 Distribution Agreement It is possible that the ultimate
liability

for Legacy

Tax Matters could be greater than the liabilities recorded by the Company which could result in additional charges that may be

material to Moodys future reported results financial position and cash flows

NOTE 18 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Beginning in January 2008 Moodys segments were changed to reflect the business Reorganization announced in August 2007 As

result of the Reorganization the rating agency is reported in the MIS segment and several ratings business lines have been real

igned All of Moodys other non-rating commercial activities including MKMV and sales of research produced by MIS analysts and

the production and sales of other products and services are reported in the MA segment As result the Company operates in

two new reportable segments in accordance with SFAS No 131 Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related

Information beginning in January 2008

Revenue for MIS and expenses for MA include an intersegment royalty charged to MA for the rights to use and distribute content

data and products developed by MIS Additionally overhead costs and corporate expenses of the Company all of which were pre

viously included in the former MIS segment are allocated to each new segment based on revenue-split methodology Overhead

expenses include costs such as rent and occupancy information technology and support staff such as finance human resource

information technology and legal Eliminations in the table below represents intersegment royalty revenue/expense Below is

financial information by segment MIS revenue by business unit and consolidated revenue by geographic area and total assets by

segment The effects of the change in the composition of reportable segments have been reflected throughout the accompanying

financial statements
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007

MIS MA Eliminations Consolidated MIS MA Eliminations Consolidated

Revenue 1268.3 550.7 63.6 1755.4 1835.4 479.1 55.5 2259.0

Expenses

Operating and

SGA 636.0 362.2 63.6 934.6 759.4 331.2 55.5 1035.1

Restructuring 1.6 0.9 2.5 41.3 8.7 50.0

Depreciation and

amortization 33.3 41.8 75.1 24.0 18.9 42.9

Total 667.7 403.1 63.6 1007.2 824.7 358.8 55.5 1128.0

Operating income 600.6 147.6 748.2 1010.7 120.3 1131.0

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2006

ELiminations/

MIS MA Corporate Items ConsoLidated

Revenue 1685.6 397.3 45.8 2037.1

Expenses

Operating and SGA 666.1 278.4 45.8 898.7

Gain on sale of building 160.6 160.6

Depreciation and amortization 17.3 22.2 39.5

Total 683.4 300.6 206.4 777.6

Operating income 1002.2 96.7 160.6 1259.5

MIS AND MA REVENUE BY LINE OF BUSINESS

As part of the Reorganization there were several realignments within the MIS LOB as follows Sovereign and sub-sovereign ratings

which were previously part of financial institutions infrastructure/utilities ratings which were previously part of CFG and project

finance which was previously part of structured finance were combined with the public finance business to form new LOB

called public project and infrastructure finance or PPIF In addition real estate investment trust ratings were moved from FIG and

CFG to the SFG business Furthermore in August 2008 the global managed investments ratings group which was previously part

of SFG was moved to the FIG business

Within MA various aspects of the legacy MIS research business and MKMV business were combined to form the subscriptions

software and consulting LOB The subscriptions business includes credit and economic research data and analytical models that

are sold on subscription basis the software business includes license and maintenance fees for credit risk software products and

the consulting business includes professional services associated with risk modeling credit scorecard development and other

specialized analytical projects as well as credit education services that are typically sold on per-engagement basis
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The tables below present revenue by LOB within each new segment and the related intra-segment realignment

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

MIS

Structured finance 411.2 873.3 872.6

Corporate finance 300.5 411.5 335.9

Financial institutions 263.0 274.3 233.1

Public project and infrastructure finance 230.0 220.8 198.2

Total external revenue 1204.7 1779.9 1639.8

Intersegment royalty 63.6 55.5 45.8

Total 1268.3 1835.4 1685.6

MA
Subscriptions 475.9 421.5 347.5

Software 49.2 39.5 36.3

Consulting 25.6 18.1 13.5

TotaL 550.7 479.1 397.3

Eliminations 63.6 55.5 45.8

Total MCO 1755.4 2259.0 2037.1

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE INFORMATION BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

Revenue

U.S 910.1 1361.8 1277.8

International

EMEA 603.1 659.3 543.9

Other 242.2 237.9 215.4

Total International 845.3 897.2 759.3

Total 1755.4 2259.0 2037.1

Long-lived assets at December 31

United States 456.4 414.6 283.6

International 243.3 37.1 22.0

Total 699.7 451.7 305.6

TOTAL ASSETS BY SEGMENT

DECEMBER312008 DECEMBER312007

Corporate Corporate

MIS MA Assets Consolidated MIS MA Assets Consolidated

Total Assets 392.4 692.5 688.5 17734 548.9 376.7 789.0 1714.6

Represents common assets that are shared between each segment or utilized by the corporate entity Such assets primarily include cash and cash equivalents

shDrt-term investments unallocated property and equipment and deferred tax assets
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NOTE 19 VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Accounts receivable allowances primarily represent adjustments to customer billings
that are estimated when the related revenue

is recognized Below is summary of activity

Balance at Write-offs BaLance

Beginning and at End of

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
of the Year Additions Adjustments the Year

2008 16.2 39.6 31.9 23.9

2007 14.5 39.3 37.6 16.2

2006 12.7 34.9 33.1 14.5

NOTE 20 OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME EXPENSE NET

The following table summarizes the components of other non-operating income expense as presented in the consolidated state

ments of operations

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

FX gain/loss
24.7 0.2

Legacy Tax see Note 17
11.0 14.4

joint venture income
3.9 2.2 1.4

Minority Interest 4.0 5.3 3.4

Other 5.8 1.5

Total
29.8 10.0 2.0

NOTE 21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Moodys Corporation made grants of $6.0 million to The Moodys Foundation the Foundation in 2006 No grants were made

during the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 The Foundation carries out philanthropic activities primarily in the areas of

education and health and human services Certain members of Moodys senior management are on the Board of the Foundation
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NOTE 22 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

amounts in millions except EPS

THREE MONTHS ENDED

March31 June 30 September30 December31

2008

Revenue 430.7 487.6 433.4 403.7

Operating income 199.3 233.7 189.8 125.4

Net income 120.7 135.2 113.0 88.7

EPS

Basic 0.49 0.55 0.47 0.38

Diluted 0.48 0.54 0.46 0.37

2007

Revenue 583.0 646.1 525.0 504.9

Operating income 304.7 363.7 250.5 212.1

Net income 175.4 261.9 136.9 127.3

EPS

Basic 0.63 0.97 0.52 0.50

Diluted 0.62 0.95 0.51 0.49

Basic and diluted EPS are computed for each of the periods presented The number of weighted average shares outstanding

changes as common shares are issued pursuant to employee stock plans and for other purposes or as shares are repurchased

Therefore the sum of basic and diluted EPS for each of the four quarters may not equal the full year basic and diluted EPS

The quarterly financial data includes $7.8 million $2.9 million and $52.3 million benefit to net income related to the resolution

of Legacy Tax Matters for the three months ended June 30 2008 September 30 2008 and June 30 2007 respectively There was

$47.8 million pre-tax restructuring charge for the three months ended December 31 2007
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On or about February 28 2008 the independent registered public accounting firm for the Company and the Profit Participation

Plan of Moodys Corporation was changed from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to KPMG LLP Information regarding this change in

the independent registered public accounting firm was disclosed in our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 2008 There

were no disagreements or any reportable events requiring disclosure under Item 304b of Regulation S-K

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of DiscLosure Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out an evaluation as required by Rule 3a-1 5b under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

under the supervision and with the participation of the Companys management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer

and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Rule 13a-15e of the Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this report the Evaluation Date Based

on such evaluation such officers have concluded that as of the Evaluation Date the Companys disclosure controls and proce

dures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it

files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the

SECs rules and forms and to provide reasonable assurance that such information is accumulated and communicated to the

Companys management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow

timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Changes In InternaL Control Over FinanciaL Reporting

Information in response to this Item is set forth under the caption Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting in Part II Item of this annual report on Form 10-K

In addition the Companys management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer has

determined that there were no changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected or

are reasonably likely to materially affect these internal controls over financial reporting during the period covered by this report

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART III

Except for the information relating to the executive officers of the Company set forth in Part of this annual report on Form 10-K

the information called for by Items 10-13 is contained in the Companys definitive proxy statement for use in connection with its

annual meeting of stockholders scheduled to be held on April 28 2009 and is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The Audit Committee has established policy setting forth the requirements for the pre-approval of audit and permissible

non-audit services to be provided by the Companys independent registered public accounting firm Under the policy the Audit

Committee pre-approves the annual audit engagement terms and fees as well as any other audit services and specified categories

of non-audit services subject to certain pre-approved fee levels In addition pursuant to the policy the Audit Committee has

authorized its chair to pre-approve other audit and permissible non-audit services up to $50000 per engagement and maximum

of $250000 per year The policy requires that the Audit Committee chair report any pre-approval decisions to the full Audit

Committee at its next scheduled meeting For the year ended December 31 2008 the Audit Committee approved all of the serv

ices provided by the Companys independent registered public accounting firm which are described below

AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees for professional services rendered for the integrated audit of the Companys annual financial statements for

the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 ii the review of the financial statements included in the Companys Reports on

Forms 10-Q and 8-K and iii statutory audits of non-U.S subsidiaries were approximately $1.8 million and $2.6 million in 2008

and 2007 respectively These fees included amounts accrued but not billed of $0.9 million and $0.2 million in 2008 and 2007

respectively All 2008 fees were attributable to KPMG LLP and all 2007 fees were attributable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

AUDIT-RELATED FEES

The aggregate fees billed for audit-related services rendered to the Company were approximately $0.2 million and $0.1 million for

the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Such services included employee benefit plan audits and con

sultations concerning financial accounting and reporting standards All 2008 fees were attributable to KPMG LLP and all 2007 fees

were attributable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

TAX FEES

The aggregate fees for professional services rendered for tax services rendered by the auditors for the years ended December 31

2008 and 2007 were SO and SO respectively

ALL OTHER FEES

The aggregate fees billed for all other services rendered to the Company by KPMG LLP for the year ended December 31 2008 was

$0.3 million primarily relating to accounting and payroll services prior to their appointment as independent auditors and $6000

by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the
year ended December 31 2007 principally related to accounting research software
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

LIST OF DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THIS REPORT

Financial Statements

See Index to Financial Statements on page 55 in Part II Item of this Form 10-K

Financial Statement Schedules

None

Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits on pages 101-106 of this Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

MOODYS CORPORATION

Registrant

By Is RAYMOND MCDANIEL JR

Raymond McDaniel Jr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date February 27 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons

on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

Is RAYMOND MCDANIEL JR

Raymond McDaniel Jr

Chairman of the Board and Chi ef Executive Officer

principal executive officer

Is LINDA HUBER

Linda Huber

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer

Is JOSEPH MCCABE

Joseph McCabe

Senior Vice PresidentCorporate

Controller principal accounting officer

Is BASIL ANDERSON /5/ HENRY MCKINNELL JR

Basil Anderson Henry McKinneLl Jr Ph.D

Dire ctor Director

Is ROBERT GLAUBER /s NANCY NEWCOMB

Robert Glauber Nancy Newcomb
Director Director

Is EWALD KIST Is/JOHN WULFF

Ewald Kist John Wulff

Director Director

Is CONNIE MACK Is DARRELL DUFFIE

Connie Mack Darrell Duffie

Director Director

Date February 27 2009
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INDEXTO EXHIBITS

S-K EXHIBIT NUMBER
___________________________________________________________________________

Articles Of Incorporation And By-laws

.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant dated June 15 1998 as

amended effective June 30 1998 as amended effective October 2000 and as

further amended effective April 26 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1

to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed October

2000 and Exhibit 3.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-

14037 filed April 27 2005

.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Registrant incorporated by reference to

Exhibit to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed

February 25 2008

Instruments Defining The Rights Of Security Holders Including Indentures

.1 Specimen Common Stock certificate incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to

the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed October

2000

.2 Note Purchase Agreement dated September 30 2005 by and among Moodys

Corporation and the Note Purchasers party thereto including the form of the

4.98% Series 2005-1 Senior Unsecured Note due 2015 incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 4.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037

filed October 2005

.3 Note Purchase Agreement dated September 2007 by and among Moodys

Corporation and the Note Purchasers party thereto including the form of the Series

2007-1 Note incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Report on Form 8-K of

the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed September 13 2007

.4 Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of September 28 2007 among Moodys

Corporation the Borrowing Subsidiaries Party Hereto the Lenders Party Hereto

Citibank N.A as Administrative Agent Bank of America N.A as Syndication

Agent and JPMorgari Chase Bank N.A as Documentation Agent incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number

1-14037 filed October 2007

.5 Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of May 2008 with JPMorgan Chase Bank

N.A as administrative agent Bank of China and Fifth Third Bank as co-syndication

agents Barclays Commercial Bank as documentation agent The Bank of Tokyo

Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd and Commerce Bank N.A as co-agents j.P Morgan Securities

Inc as lead arranger and bookrunner and the lenders party thereto incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q file

number 1-14037 filed May 2008

10 Material Contracts

.1 Distribution Agreement dated as of September 30 2000 between the Registrant

and The Dun Bradstreet Corporation f.k.a The New DB Corporation

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the

Registrant
file number 1-14037 filed October 2000
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S-K EXHIBIT NUMBER

.2 Tax ALlocation Agreement dated as of September 30 2000 between the Registrant

and The Dun Bradstreet Corporation f.k.a The New DB Corporation

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Form 8-K of the

Registrant file number 1-14037 filed October 2000

.3 Employee Benefits Agreement dated as of September 30 2000 between the

Registrant and The Dun Bradstreet Corporation f.k.a The New DB Corporation

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Form 8-K of the

Registrant file number 1-14037 filed October 2000

.4 Intellectual Property Assignments dated as of September 2000 between the

Registrant and The Dun Bradstreet Corporation f.k.a The New DB Corporation

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Report on Form 8-K of the

Registrant file number 1-14037 filed October 2000

.5t Profit Participation Benefit Equalization Plan of Moodys Corporation incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q file

number 1-14037 filed November 14 2000

.6t The Moodys Corporation Nonfunded Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-

Employee Directors as amended December 16 2008

.7t 1998 Moodys Corporation Replacement Plan for Certain Non-Employee Directors

Holding Dun Bradstreet Corporation Equity-Based Awards incorporated by

reference to Exhibit to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q file number 1-

14037 filed November 14 2000

.8t 1998 Moodys Corporation Replacement Plan for Certain Employees Holding Dun

Bradstreet Corporation Equity-Based Awards incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.14 to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q file number 1-14037

filed November 14 2000

.9t 1998 Moodys Corporation Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan as

amended and restated on April 23 2001 amended October 23 2006 and

December 15 2008

.lOf 1998 Moodys Corporation Key Employees Stock Incentive Plan incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q file

number 1-14037 filed November 14 2000

.11 Moodys Corporation Career Transition Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.17 to Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K file number 1-14037 filed

March 15 2001

.12 Distribution Agreement dated as of June 30 1998 between R.H Donnelley

Corporation f.k.a The Dun Bradstreet Corporation and the Registrant f.k.a The

New Dun Bradstreet Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 14 1998

.13t Moodys Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan effective as of january 2008

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the

Registrant file number 1-14037 filed October 26 2007

.14 Form of separation agreement and general release used
by the Company in

connection with its Career Transition Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit

99.1 to Form 8-K filed November 20 2007
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S-K EXHIBIT NUMBER
_______________________________________________________________________________

.15 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement between Moodys Corporation and Goldman

Sachs Co dated as of October 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed October

2007

.16 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement between Moodys Corporation and Morgan

Stanley Co Incorporated dated as of October 2007 incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037

filed October 2007

.17 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement between Moodys Corporation
and Citigroup

Global Markets Inc dated as of October 2007 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed

October 2007

.18 Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement dated as of September 28 2007 between

Moodys Corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Report on Form 10-Q of the

Registrant file number 1-14037 filed November 2007

.19 Form of Assumption Agreement among Moodys Corporation jP Morgan Chase

Bank as Administrative Agent and each lender signatory thereto incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Form 10-Q of the Registrant
file number

1-14037 filed May 2007

.20t Amended and Restated 2001 Moodys Corporation Key Employees Stock Incentive

Plan amended December 15 2008

.21 Tax Allocation Agreement dated as of June 30 1998 between R.H Donnelley

Corporation f.k.a The Dun Bradstreet Corporation and the Registrant f.k.a The

New Dun Bradstreet Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 14 1998

.22 Employee Benefits Agreement dated as of June 30 1998 between R.H Donnelley

Corporation f.k.a The Dun Bradstreet Corporation and the Registrant f.k.a The

New Dun Bradstreet Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 14 1998

.23 Distribution Agreement dated as of October 28 1996 among R.H Donnelley

Corporation f.k.a The Dun Bradstreet Corporation Cognizant Corporation and

ACNielsen Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10x to the Annual

Report on Form 10-K of R.H DonnelLey Corporation f.k.a The Dun Bradstreet

Corporation for the year ended December 31 1996 file number 1-7155 filed

March 27 1997

.24 Tax Allocation Agreement dated as of October 28 1996 among R.H Donnelley

Corporation f.k.a The Dun Bradstreet Corporation Cognizant Corporation and

ACNielsen Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10y to the Annual

Report on Form 10-K of R.H Donnelley Corporation f.k.a The Dun Bradstreet

Corporation for the year ended December 31 1996 file number 1-71 55 filed

March 27 1997
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.25 Employee Benefits Agreement dated as of October 28 1996 among R.H

DonneLley Corporation f.k.a The Dun Bradstreet Corporation Cognizant

Corporation and ACNietsen Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10z
to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of R.H Donnelley Corporation f.k.a The Dun

Bradstreet Corporation for the year ended December 31 1996 file number 1-

7155 filed March 27 1997

.26 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of

February 10 2002 by and among Moodys Corporation XYZ Acquisition LLC KMV

LLC KMV Corporation and the principal members of KMV LLC and the shareholders

of KMV Corporation identified therein incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to

the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed February 22

2002

.27 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of October 2000 among the Registrant and

the purchasers named therein incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the

Report on Form 10-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed March 21 2003

.28 Form of 7.61% Senior Notes due 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25

to the Report on Form 10-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed March 21

2003

.29t Form of Employee Non-Qualified Stock Option and Restricted Stock Grant

Agreement for the Amended and Restated 2001 Moodys Corporation Key

Employees Stock Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Report on Form 10-Q of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed November

2004

.30t Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Grant Agreement for the 1998

Moodys Corporation Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan as amended

on April 23 2001 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Form

10-Q of the Registrant file number 1-14037 fiLed November 32004

.31t 2004 Moodys Corporation Covered Employee Cash Incentive Plan incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Report on Form 10-Q of the Registrant file number

1-14037 filed November 2004

.32t Description of Bonus Terms under the 2004 Moodys Corporation Covered

Employee Cash Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the

Report on Form 10-Q of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed November

2004

.33t Director Compensation Arrangements incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

the Report on Form 10-Q of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed May

2006

.34 Agreement of Lease dated as of September 2006 between the Registrant and

World Trade Center LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Report

on Form 10-Q of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed November 2006

.35 Agreement for Lease dated February 2008 among CWCB Properties DS7
Limited CWCB Properties DS7 Limited Canary Wharf Holdings Limited Moodys

Investors Service Limited and Moodys Corporation incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed

February 12 2008
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S-K EXHIBIT NUMBER
_______________________________________________________________________________

.36 storage Agreement for Lease dated February 2008 among Canary Wharf Car

Parks Limited Canary Wharf Holdings Limited Canary Wharf Management

Limited Moodys Investors Service Limited and Moodys Corporation incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant filed

number 1-14037 filed February 12 2008

.37 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of November 20 2006 between Moodys

Holdings Inc and 99 Church Investors LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit

99.2 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed

November 22 2006

.38 Moodys Corporation 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan as amended and

restated December 15 2008 formerly The Dun Bradstreet Corporation 1999

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

.39t Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan of Moodys Corporation amended and

restated as of January 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K File number 1-14037 Filed February 29

2008

.40t Pension Benefit Equalization
Plan of Moodys Corporation amended and restated

as of January 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K File number 1-1403 Filed February 29

2008

.41t Moodys Corporation Retirement Account amended and restated as of January

2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Registrants Annual Report

on Form 10-K File number 1-14037 Filed February 29 2008

.42t Profit Participation Plan of Moodys Corporation amended and restated as of

January 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K File number 1-14037 Filed February 29 2008

.43 Agreement of Lease between Moodys Investors Service Limited and CWCB

Properties D57 Limited dated February 2008 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed

February 12 2008

.44 Storage Agreement for Lease between Moodys Investors Service Limited and

Canary Wharf Car Parks Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number 1-14037 filed February 12

2008

.45 Moodys Corporation Career Transition Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.3 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q file number 1-14037 filed

May 2008

.46t Moodys Corporation
Cafeteria Plan effective January 2008
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.47 Separation Agreement and general release between the Company and Jeanne

Dering dated February 20 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to the

Registrants AnnuaL Report on Form 10-K File number 1-14037 Filed February 29

2008

.48 Separation Agreement and general release between the Company and Brian

Clarkson dated May 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q File number 1-14037 Filed August

2008

16 LETTER REGARDING CHANGE IN CERTIFYING ACCOUNTANT

.1 Letter from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP dated March 2008 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 16.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Registrant file number

1-14037 filed February 12 2008

21 SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT List of Active Subsidiaries as of December 31 2008

23 CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRMS

.1 Consent of KPMG LLP

.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

31 CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002

32 CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section

906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 The Company has furnished this

certification and does not intend for it to be considered filed under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 or incorporated by reference into future filings under the

Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section

906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 The Company has furnished this

certification and does not intend for it to be considered filed under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 or incorporated by reference into future filings under the

Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed herewith

As
permitted

under the Companys Credit Agreement dated as of September 2004 the Company increased the
aggregate amount of the Facilitys commitment

from $160 million to $500 million by entering into assumption agreements with the several lenders In accordance with Instruction to Item 601 of Regulation

S-K the Company has filed only one such assumption agreement as the other agreements are substantially identical in all material respects except as to the

parties thereto the dates of execution arid the amount of the assumed commitment of each respective lender all of which are detailed in the Schedule to Exhibit

10.1

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

LIST OF ACTIVE SUBSIDIARIES AS OF DECEMBER 31 2008

U.S Entities

Name Jurisdiction

Moodys Wall Street Analytics International LLC California

Moodys Wall Street Analytics Inc California

Fermat Inc Delaware

MIS Quality Management Corp
Delaware

Moodys Advisors Inc Delaware

Moodys Analytics Inc Delaware

Moodys Assureco Inc Delaware

Moodys Corporation
Delaware

Moodys Credit Quotes Inc Delaware

10 Moodys Evaluations Inc Delaware

11 Moodys Investors Service Inc Delaware

12 Moodys Overseas Holdings Inc Delaware

13 Moodys Risk Services Corp
Delaware

14 Moodys Assurance Company Inc New York

Foreign Entities

Name Jurisdiction

15 Moodys Latin America Calificadora de Riesgo S.A Argentina

16 Fermat Australia Pty Ltd Australia

17 MIS Funds Pty Ltd Australia

18 Moodys Analytics Australia Pty Ltd Australia

19 Moodys Credit Quotes Australia Pty Ltd Australia

20 Moodys Group Australia Pty Ltd Australia

21 Moodys Investors Service Pty Ltd Australia

22 Fermat Finance SPRL Belgium

23 Fermat International SA Belgium

24 Fermatsa Servicosde Informatica LTDA Brazil

25 Moodys America Latina Ltda Brazil

26 Moodys Analytics do Brasil Ltda Brazil

27 Moodys Central Europe BVI Ltd British Virgin Islands

28 Moodys China BVI Ltd British Virgin Islands

29 Moodys Dubai BvI Ltd British Virgin Islands

30 Moodys Holdings BVI Ltd British Virgin Islands

31 Moodys Indonesia BVI Ltd British Virgin Islands

32 Moodys Investors Service BVI Ltd British Virgin Islands

33 Moodys Israel Holdings Inc British Virgin Islands

34 Moodys Latin America Holding Corp
British Virgin Islands

35 Moodys South Africa BVI Ltd British Virgin Islands

36 Moodys Analytics Canada Inc Canada

37 Moodys Canada Inc
Canada

38 Fermat Bejing Software Co Ltd China

39 Moodys Investors Service Beijing Inc China

MOODYS 2008 ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIALS 107



Name Jurisdiction

40 Moodys Software Development Shenzhen Ltd China

41 Moodys Investors Service Cyprus Ltd Cyprus

42 Moodys Central Europe A.S Czech Republic

43 Fermat FZ LLC Dubai

44 Moodys Analytics DIFC Limited Dubai

45 Moodys Middle East Ltd Dubai

46 Fermat SAS France

47 Moodys Analytics France SAS France

48 Moodys France S.A.S France

49 Moodys Group France SAS France

50 Fermat GmBH Germany

51 Moodys Analytics Deutschland GmbH Germany

52 Moodys Deutschland GmbH Germany

53 Moodys Group Deutschland GmbH Germany

54 Moodys Company Hong Kong Ltd Hong Kong

55 ENB Consulting Asia Limited Hong Kong

56 Fermat Limited Hong Kong

57 Moodys Analytics Hong Kong Ltd Hong Kong

58 Moodys Asia Pacific Ltd Hong Kong

59 Moodys Investors Service Hong Kong Ltd Hong Kong

60 Moodys Investment Co India Pvt Ltd India

61 PT Moodys Indonesia Indonesia

62 Moodys Analytics Ireland Ltd Ireland

63 Moodys Finance Company Ireland Ireland

64 Fermat Limited Israel

65 Midroog Ltd Israel

66 Moodys Italia S.r.l Italy

67 Moodys Analytics Japan KK Japan

68 Moodys Group japan GK Japan

69 Moodys japan Kabushiki Kaisha Japan

70 Moodys Interfax Rating Agency Kazakhstan Ltd Kazakhstan

71 Fermat Co Ltd Korea

72 Korea Investors Service Inc Korea

73 Moodys Investors Service Korea Inc Korea

74 MIS Cyprus Ltd Luxembourg Branch Luxembourg

75 Moodys Group Luxembourg SarI Luxembourg

76 Moodys Mauritius Holdings Inc Mauritius

77 AdministraciOn de Calificadora S.A Mexico

78 Moodys de Mexico S.A de C.V Mexico

79 Fermat S.p.z.o.o Poland

80 Moodys Eastern Europe LLC Russia

81 Moodys Interfax Rating Agency Ltd Russia

82 ENB Consulting Asia Singapore Pte Limited Singapore

83 Fermat Private Ltd Singapore

84 Moodys Analytics Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore

85 Moodys Asia-Pacific Group Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore

86 Moodys Investors Service Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore

87 Moodys Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore

88 Moodys Investors Service South Africa Pty Ltd South Africa

89 Moodys Investors Service Espana S.A Spain

90 Moodys Taiwan Corporation Taiwan
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Name Jurisdiction

91 Economy.com UK Ltd U.K

92 Moodys Holdings Ltd U.K

93 Moodys Investors Service Ltd U.K

94 Moodys Analytics UK Ltd UK

95 Moodys Wall Street Analytics UK Ltd UK

96 Moodys Interfax Rating Agency Ukraine LLC Ukraine

97 ENB Consulting Ltd United Kingdom

98 Moodys Finance Company UK Ltd United Kingdom

99 Moodys Group UK Ltd United Kingdom
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

of Moodys Corporation

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements on form S-8 No 333-145127 No 333-126564

No 333-103496 No 333-47848 No 333-81 121 No 333-68555 No 333-64653 No 333-60737 No 333-57915

No 333-5 7267 of Moodys Corporation of our report dated February 27 2009 with respect to the consolidated balance sheet of

Moodys Corporation as of December 31 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations cash flows and stock

holders deficit for the
year

then ended and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008

which report appears
in the December 31 2008 annual report on Form 10-K of Moodys Corporation

Is KPMG LLP

KPMG LLP

New York New York

February 27 2009
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EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

of Moodys Corporation

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 Nos 333-57267 333-57915

333-60737 333-64653 333-68555 333-81121 333-47848 333-103496 333-126564 and 333-145127 of Moodys Corpo

ration formerly known as The Dun Bradstreet Corporation of our report dated February 28 2008 except for the effects of the

change in the composition of reportable segments as discussed in Note 18 as to which the date is February 27 2009 relating to

the financial statements which appears in this Form 10-K

Is PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York New York

February 27 2009
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Raymond McDaniel Jr Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Moodys Corporation certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 1OK of Moodys Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in tight of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading

with respect to the periods covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f1 for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made

known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed

under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on

such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrants ability

to record process summarize and report financial

information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Is RAYMOND MCDANIEL JR

Raymond McDanieL Jr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

February 27 2009
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Linda Huber Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Moodys Corporation certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Moodys Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading

with respect to the periods covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made

known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed

under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on

such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrants ability

to record process
summarize and report financial

information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

is LINDA HUBER

Linda Huber

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 27 2009
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES

OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Moodys Corporation on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 as filed with

the SEC on the date hereof the Report Raymond McDaniel Jr Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company

certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to the best of

my knowledge

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 5d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company

Is RAYMOND MCDANIEL JR

Raymond McDaniel Jr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

February 27 2009
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES

OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Moodys Corporation on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 as filed with

the SEC on the date hereof the Report Linda Huber Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company

certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to the best of

my knowledge

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company

Is LINDA HUBER

__ Linda Huber

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 27 2009
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